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$700,000,000
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Bank Austria Aktiengesellschaft
7.25% Subordinated Notes Due February 15, 2017

The 7.25% Subordinated Notes due February 15, 2017 {the “Notes”) will be issued by Bank Austria
Aktiengesellschaft (the “Bank" or "'Bank Austria”}. Interest on the Notes will be payabkle semi-annually in
arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing on August 15, 1997,

The Notes will not be subject to aptional or mandatory redemption prior to their stated maturity date, except in
the event of the imposition of certain Austrian taxes. See ""Description of the Notes — Tax Redemption. The
Notes will be direct, unconditional and unsecured obligations of the Bank and will be subordinated in right of
payment to the claims of depositors and other unsubordinated obligations of the Bank. The Fiscal Agency
Agreement pursuant to which the Notes will be issued will permit the Bank to incur an unlimited amount of
additional deposit and other obligations {not limited to obligations for money borrowed} to which the Notes
wolld be subordinated in right of payment. See "'Description of the Notes — Subordination™.

The Notes will be represented by one or more permanent global registered certificates (together, the “'Global
Note™} registered in the name of the nominee of The Depository Trust Company {“DTC’'). Beneficial interests
in the Global Note will be gshown on, and transfers thereof will be effected only through, records maintained by
DTC and its participants. Except as described herein, Notes in definitive form will not be issued. The Notes are
offered, and will be transferable, only in denominations of $250,000 and multiples of $1,000 in excess thereof.
The Notes will trade in DTC's Same-Day Funds Settlement System until maturity, and secondary market
trading activity for the Notes will therefore settle in immediately available funds. See "Description of the
Notes — Book-Entry System; Delivery and Form™. The Notes will not be listed on any securities exchange, and
there can be no assurance that there will be a secondary market for the Notes.

Prospective investors in the Notes should read the section of this Offering Memorandum
entitied “The Proposed Acquisition of Creditanstalt”.

THE BANK IS NOT REQUIRED TO BE, AND IS NOT, A MEMBER OF THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT
INSURANCE CORPORATION (THE “FDIC”). THE NOTES ARE NOT DEPOSITS AND ARE NOT
INSURED BY THE FDIC OR ANY OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCY.

THE NOTES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 (THE
“SECURITIES ACT”) AND ARE BEING OFFERED AND SOLD IN THE UNITED STATES ONLY TO
QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS IN RELIANCE ON RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT.
PROSPECTIVE PURCHASERS THAT ARE AQUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYERS ARE HEREBY
NOTIFIED THAT THE SELLERS OF THESE SECURITIES (THE “INITIAL PURCHASERS”) ARE RELYING
ON THE EXEMPTION FROM THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 5 OF THE SECURITIES ACT PROVIDED BY
RULE 144A. THESE SECURITIES ARE NOT TRANSFERABLE EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
RESTRICTIONS DESCRIBED UNDER “NOTICE TO INVESTORS”.

Price to Proceeds to

Investors {1) Discount the Bank (2)
PerNote ... ... ... ... ... ... .. ........ 99.810% .B75% 98.935%
Total . ..o $698.670,000 $6,125,000 $692,545,000
(1) Plus accrued interest, if any, from February 11, 1997

(2) Before deducting expenses payable by the Bank.

The Notes offered hereby are offered severally by the Initial Purchasers, subject to receipt and acceptance by
them and sugject to their right to reject any order in whole or in part. It is expected that the Notes will be ready
for delivery in book-entry form only through the facilities of DTC in New York, New York, on or about
February 11, 1997, against payment therefor in immediately available funds.

Salomon Brothers Inc
Lehman Brothers
Credit Suisse First Boston
Merrill Lynch & Co.

The date of this Offering Memorandum is February 6, 1997,




IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE INITIAL PURCHASERS MAY OVER-ALLOT OR
EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE NOTES
AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH
STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.

IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR
OWN EXAMINATION OF THE BANK AND THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, INCLUDING THE
MERITS AND RISKS INVOLVED. INVESTCRS SHOULD BE AWARE THAT THEY MAY BE
REQUIRED TO BEAR THE FINANCIAL RISKS OF THIS INVESTMENT FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD
OF TIME.

THE NOTES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION, ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR OTHER U.S.
REGULATORY AUTHORITY, NOR HAVE ANY OF THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES PASSED UPON
OR ENDORSED THE MERITS OF THIS OFFERING OR THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS
OFFERING MEMORANDUM. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL
OFFENSE.

This Offering Memorandum hag been prepared by the Bank solely for use in connection with the
proposed offering of the Notes described herein. This Offering Memorandum is personal to each offeree
and does not constitute an offer to any other person or to the public generally to subscribe for or
otherwise acquire securities. Distribution of thie Offering Memorandum by such offeree to any other
person (other than any person retained to advise such offeree with respect to ite purchase) ig
unauthorized, and any disclosure by such offeree of any of its contents, without the prior written consent
of the Bank, ig prohibited. Each progpective investor, by accepting delivery of this Offering Mamorandum,
agrees to the foregoing and to make no photocopies of this Offering Memorandum or any documents
referred to herein.

The information contained herein concerning the City of Vienna, Creditanstalt-Bankverein
{"'Creditanstalt’) and the Republic of Austria includes extracts from summaries of information and data
publicly released by official sources and other sources indicated herein. This Offering Memorandum also
contains summaries with respect to certain terms of certain documents, but reference is made to the
actual documents (copies of which will be made available to prospective investors upon request to the
Bank or the Initial Purchasers) for complete information with respect thereto, and all such summaries are
qualified in their entirety by such reference.

No representation or warranty, express or implied, is made by the Initial Purchasers as to the
accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this Offering Memorandum, and nothing
contained in this Offering Memorandum is, or shall be relied upon as, a promise or representation by the
Initial Purchasers as to the past or future. The Initial Purchasers have not independently verified any of the
information contained herein (financial, legal or otherwise ) and assume no responsibility for the accuracy
or completeness of any such information.

This Offering Memorandum contains various forward-logking statements and infermation that are
based on management's belief as well as assumptions made by and information currently available to
management. When used in this document, the words “‘anticipate”, “‘estimate”, “project”’, "expect”,
"should" and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Such statements
are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Should one or more of these risks or
uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may vary
materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Among the key factors that have or will have a
direct bearing on Bank Austria’s results are political and economic conditions in Austria, changes in
regutation of financial institutions imposed by Austrian and European Community governmental
authorities, the success of the Bank's divestiture strategy, the consummation of the proposed acquisition
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of Creditanstalt, the successful achievement of the Bank’s strategic goals (including those in connection
with the proposed acquisition of Creditanstalt), the continued availability of capital and financing,
competitive factors and other factors affecting the Bank's results of operations beyond the Bank’s
control.

Neither the Initial Purchasers nor the Bank are making any representation to any offeree or purchaser
of the Notes regarding the legality of investment therein by such offeree or purchaser under applicable
legal investment or similar laws or regulations.

The contents of this Offering Memorandum are not to be construed as legal, business or tax advice.
Each prospective investor should consult its own attorney, business advisor or tax advisor as to legal,
business and tax advice.

No action has been (or will be) taken to permit a public offering in any jurisdiction.

FOR NEW HAMPSHIRE RESIDENTS ONLY: NEITHER THE FACT THAT A REGISTRATION
STATEMENT OR AN APPLICATION FOR A LICENSE HAS BEEN FILED UNDER CHAPTER 421-B OF THE
NEW HAMPSHIRE REVISED STATUTES WITH THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE NOR THE FACT THAT
A SECURITY IS EFFECTIVELY REGISTERED OR A PERSON IS LICENSED IN THE STATE OF NEW
HAMPSHIRE CONSTITUTES A FINDING BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE THAT
ANY DOCUMENT FILED UNDER RSA 421-B IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT MISLEADING. NEITHER
ANY SUCH FACT NOR THE FACT THAN AN EXEMPTION OR EXCEPTION {5 AVAILABLE FCR A
SECURITY OR TRANSACTION MEANS THAT THE SECRETARY OF STATE HAS PASSED IN ANY WAY
UPON THE MERITS OR QUALIFICATIONS OF, OR RECOMMENDED OR GIVEN APPROVAL TO, ANY
PERSON, SECURITY, OR TRANSACTION. IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE, OR CAUSE TO MADE, TO ANY
PROSPECTIVE PURCHASER, CUSTOMER, OR CLIENT ANY REPRESENTATION INCONSISTENT WITH
THE PROVISIONS OF THIS PARAGRAPH.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Bank is currently exempt fram the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended {the “Exchange Act''}, pursuant to Rule 12g3-2 (b} under the Exchange Act. For so
long as any Notes are '‘restricted securities’ {as such lerm is defined in Rule 144 (a)} (3) under the
Securities Act), during any period in which it is neither exempt from such reguirements pursuant to Bule
1293-2(b) nor a reporting company under Section 13 or 15{d) of the Cxchange Act, the Bank has
agreed to make available to each holder and cach prospective purchaser of the Notes designated by a
holder, upon request, the information required to be provided pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities
Act.

Each person receiving this Offering Memorandum acknowledges that (i} such person has been
afforded an opportunity to reguest from the Bank, and to review, and has received, all additional
information considered by it to be necessary to verify the accuracy and completeness of the information
herein, {ii) such person has not relied on the Initial Purchasers or any persen affiliated with (any of} the
Initial Purchasers in connection with its investigation of the aceuracy of such information or its investment
decision and ({iii) except as provided pursuant to clause (i) above, no person has been authorized to
give any information or to make any representation concerning the Notes offered hereby except as
contained in this Offering Memorandum and, if given or made, such other information or representation
should not be refied upon as having been authorized by the Bank or the Initial Purchasers.

ENFORCEMENT OF LIABILITIES; SERVICE OF PROCESS

The Bank is an Austrian joint stock corporation and most of its assets are located outside the United
States. All of the members of the Managing Board (Vorstand)} and the Supervisory Board (Aufsichtsrat)
of the Bank, most of the officers of the Bank and all of the experts named in this Offering Memorandum
are residents of countries other than the United States, and all or a substantial portion of the assets of
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such persons and entities are located outside the United States. As a result, it may not be possible for
investors to effect service of process within the United States upon such persons or entities or to enforce
against them judgments of U.S. courts, including judgments predicated upon the civil liability provisions
of the federal securities laws of the United States. The Bank has expressly submitted to the jurisdiction of
the United States federal and state courts located in the Borgugh of Manhattan in the City of New York for
the purpose of any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or based on the Notes offered hereby, and has
appointed its New York branch as its agent in the City of New York to accept service of process in any
such action.

The United States and Austria do not currently have a treaty providing for reciprocal recognition and
enforcement of Judgments in civil and commercial matters. Therefore, a final judgment for the payment of
money rendered by a federal or state court in the United States based on civil liability, including
judgments predicated upon United States federal securities laws, would not be enforceable in Austria.
However, if the party in whose favor such final judgment is rendered brings a new suit in a competent
court in Austria, such party may submit to an Austrian court the final judgment which has been rendered
in the United States. A judgment by a federal or state court of the United States will be regarded by an
Austrian court only as evidence of the outcome of the dispute to which such judgment relates, and an
Austrian court may choose to rehear the dispute ab initio.

U.S. DOLLAR PRESENTATION; EXCHANGE RATES

Bank Austria publishes its financial statements in Austrian Schilting. In this Offering Memorandum,
references to *'U.S. doliars™, “‘dollars”, *U.S.$" or "'$" are to U.S. currency, and references to “‘Austrian
Schilling™, ""Schilling™ or “"ATS" are references to the currency of the Republic of Austria {""Austria™ or
the “Republic’).

Solely for the convenience of the reader, this Offering Memorandum contains translations of certain
Austrian Schilling amounts into U.S. dollar amounts. Unless otherwise indicated, the translations of
Austrian Schilling into U.S. dollars have been made at the rate of $1.00 = ATS 10.747 ($0.093 per
Austrian Schilling ), the mean currency exchange rate for U.S. dollars as set by the Austrian National Bank
~and published by the Vienna Stock Exchange (the “Mean Rate”) on September 30, 1996. On
February 6, 1997, the Mean Rate was $1.00 = ATS 11.619. These translations should not be construed
as representations that the Austrian Schiling amounts actually represent such U.S. dollar amounts or
could be converted into U.S. doltars at the rate indicated.

For the purposes of information, the following table sets forth, for the periode and for the datesg
indicated, certain information concerning the Mean Rate for U.S. dollars, expressed in Austrian Schilling
per U.S. dollar.

Year ended December 31, Year-End Average(1) High Low

1991 " 10.689 11.680 12.934 10.227
1002 e 11.354 10.990 11.810 9.775
1998 L e 12.143 11.634 12.234 11.042
1994 e 10.969 11.418 12.887 10.490
1995 . . 10.088 10.083 10.982 9.569

1996 ... e 10.954 10.585 11.012 10.081

{1) The average of the daily exchange rates during the relevant period.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Beginning with the year ending December 31, 1995, the Bank was required to prepare its audited
financial statements under the provisions of the Austrian Banking Act of 1993 (the **1993 Banking Act”)
and the regulations promulgated thereunder. The 1993 Banking Act brought the presentation of financial
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statements in Austria into conformity with European Union standards, which facilitates more meaningful
comparisons of credii institutions in Austria with credit institutions in other European Union countries, The
generally accepted accounting principles followed by banks in Austria pursuant te the 1993 Banking Act
are referred to in this Offering Memorandum as “"New Austrian GAAP".

For the years ending December 31, 1994 and 1993, the Bank was required to prepare its audited
financial statements under the provisions of the Austrian Banking Act of 1979 (the 1979 Banking Act’™"),
as amended, and the regulations promulgated thereunder, The generally accepted accounting principles
followed by banks in Austria pursuant to the 1879 Banking Act are referred to in this Offering
Memorandum as “Old Austrian GAAP”.

The presentation format required by New Austrian GAAP differs considerably from the prasentation
format required by Old Austrian GAAP. For a description of certain of the most significant differences
between New Austrian GAAP and Old Austrian GAAP, see ''Summary of Principal Differences between
New Austrian GAAP and Old Austrian GAAP" and Notes 1 and 2 to the Audited Financial Statements of
the Bank for the year ended Dacamber 31, 1995, which Audited Financial Statements begin on page F-2
of this Offering Memorandum.

For the purpose of this Offering Memorandum, financial data from the 1994 and 1993 audited
financial statements of the Bank have been restated pursuant to New Austrian GAAP. These
restatements are provided solely to facilitate meaningful comparisons of 1994 and 1993 financial
information to 1995 financial information. The restated information has not been audited by the Bank's
external auditors but has been subject to a limited review by such auditors. The audited financial
statements of the Bank for the years ending December 31, 1994 and 1993 are attached as Annex A.

The financial information set forth under “‘Interim Financial Information™ for the nine months ended
September 30, 1296 and September 30, 1995 has been prepared on an unconsolidated basis for the
Bank only. Such financial information has not been audited by the Bank's external auditors but has been
subject to a limited review by such auditors.

Except as otherwise indicated, the financial information contained in this Offering Memorandum,
including all tabular information, has been presented on an unconsolidated basis for the Bank. The Bank
was first required to prepare consolidated financial statements pursuant to the 1993 Banking Act as of
December 31, 1895, The consolidated financial statements for the Bank, together with its financial and
non-financial subsidiaries and participations (the “‘Bank Austria Group™ or the “Group) include the
Bank’s majority-owned financial subsidiaries on a fully consolidated basis and most of its other
subsidiaries and participations on an equity basis. The Bank's coniribution to total assets on the
consclidated balance sheet is 98.6%. The consolidated statements for the year ended December 31,
1995 are atteched as Annex B.

The financial information set forth in a number of tables in this Offering Memorandum has been
rounded to the nearest whole number. Accordingly, in certain cases, the sum of the numbers in a column
may not conform exactly to the total figure given for that column.

Austrian GAAP (New Austrian GAAP and Old Austrian GAAFP) differs in certain significant respects
from U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“'U.S. GAAP"). The principal differences hetween
Austrian GAAP and U.S. GAAFP with respect to the financial statements of the Bank are described in
“Summary of Principal Differences Between Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in Austria and in
the United States”.

USE OF PROCEEDS
The net proceeds of the issue of the Notes will be used for general banking purposes.
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SUMMARY

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by, and should be read in conjunction with, the
detailed information and financial staterments and the notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Bank Austria

Bank Austria Aktiengesellschaft (the "“Bank’ or “‘Bank Austria''} is engaged, directly and through its
financial subsidiaries, joint ventures and entities in which it has an investment participation (the
“participations™), in a wide range of banking, financial and other activities in Austria and throughout the
world. The Bank took its current form as a result of the merger of two of the largest banks in Austria that
became effective as of January 1, 1991. See “Bank Austria — Formation of the Bank''. The Bank
provides a full range of banking and financiat services, including commercial and investment banking and
dealing in securities, and holds participations in companies outside of the financial services industry.

Bank Austria is the largest Austrian bank in terms of total asgets (ATS 678 billion at December 31,
1995). In approximate terms, one million customers hold over four and a half million accounts with the
Bank, including three million passbook savings accounts representing approximately 11% of all savings
deposits in Austria. The Bank, together with its financial subsidiaries and joint ventures, also provides a
full range of commercial and investment banking services for Austrian corporate and governmental
entities. The Bank conducts international banking activities through its main office in Vienna, through
branches in New York, London, Hong Kong, Moscow and Singapore, through banking subsidiaries in
Switzerland and Eastern and Central Europe, and through other offices, subsidiaries and joint ventures
throughout the world.

Anteilsverwaltung-Zentralsparkasse {“AV-Z"), the establishing entity of the Bank, is the largest
shareholder of the Bank. In addition, AV-Z owns a controlling interest in GiroCredit Bank
Aktiengesellschaft der Sparkassen (“GiroCredit’), Austria’s third largest bank. Since AV-Z acquired
control of GiroCredit in 1994, the Bank and GiraCredit have combined certain of their operations in joint
ventures that provide services to or on behalf of both institutions, including their pension management
and asset management operations and certain elements of their data processing operations.
Notwithstanding the existence of these joint ventures, the two banks remain separate corporate entitics
with independent obligations to their shareholders and creditors. In connection with the Bank's bid for the
Republic's shares in Creditanstalt-Bankverein (*‘Creditanstalt’), the parties that make up the current
coalition government in Austria reached an understanding that AV-Z should offer its shares in GiroCredit.
The Bank does not believe that the proposed acquisition of Creditanstalt and any possible offer of shares
of GiroCredit by AV-Z will be likely to have a material effect on the Bank's joint ventures with GiroCredit.
See “'The Proposed Acquisition of Creditanstalt”.

The Bank's capital stock is quoted on the official trading market of the Vienna Stock Exchange
(Wiener Wertpapierbdrse) and on six other European stock exchanges, including that of Frankfurt am
Main.

Guarantee Relationship with the City of Vienna

By Austrian statute, the City of Vienna is directly liable as a deficiency guarantor (Ausfalisbiirge) for
the obligations of AV-Z and, by virtue of the deficiency guaranty of AV-Z's obiigations, indirectly liable as
a deficiency guarantor for all obligations of Bank Austria. See “‘Bank Austria — Statutory Guarantee™.

The Proposed Acquisition of Creditanstalt

On January 12, 1997, the Republic announced that the Bank had been selected to acquire the
Republic's controlling interest in Creditanstalt for total consideration of ATS 17.161 billion ($1.53 billion
at the January 16, 1997 Mean Rate of $1.00 = ATS 11,199, the date the purchase price was paid to the
Republic) in cash. For a discussion of the principal terms of the acquisition, including the terms relating
to AV-Z's ownership interest in the Bank and GiroCredit and certain developments relating to the Bank
and the statutory guarantee, see ""The Proposed Acquisition of Creditanstalt' and “Bank Austria —
Statutory Guarantee''.




Summary of Terms of the Notes

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by the more detailed description appearing under
“Description of the Notes" below. Unless otherwise indicated, all references are to the subsections under
"Description of the Notes”.

Issuer ...................... Bank Austria Aktiengesellschaft.

Issue ....................... 7.25% Subordinated Notes due February 15, 2017.

Principal Amount ............ The aggregate principal amount of the Notes will be $700,000,000.

{ssue Price.................. 99.810%, plus accrued interest, if any, from February 11, 1897,

interest ..................... The Notes will bear interest at the rate of 7.25% per annum, payable
semi-annually in arrears on February 15 and August 15 of each year.

Maturity . .................... The Notas will mature on February 15, 2017,

Status; Subordination ........ The Notes will constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and

subordinated obligations of the Bank and will be subordinated in right
of payment to the claims of depositors and other unsubordinated
obligations of the Bank. As of December 31, 1995, the Bank had
approximately ATS 598 billion ($55.7 billion) in amounts due to
customers and to credit institutions and securitized liabilities to which
the Notes would be subordinated in right of payment. The obligations
of the Bank to which the Notes are subordinated are not limited to
such amount, and the Fiscal Agency Agreement pursuant to which
the Notes will be issued will permit the Bank to incur an unlimited
amount of additional deposit and other obligations {not limited to
obligations for money borrowed) to which the Notes would be
subordinated in right of payment. See "— Suberdination".

Taxation .................... Payment of principal and interest on the Notes will be made without
deduction or withhoiding for or on account of Austrian taxes unless
such deduction or withholding is required by law. If any such
deduction or withholding is required, the Bank will pay additional
amounts, subject to customary exceptions. See ''— Taxation;
Additional Amounts”. In such event, the Bank will be entitied to
redesm the Notes. See “— Tax Redemption''.

Form and Denomination. . . ... The Notes will be issued initially in the form of one or more permanent
registered global certificates registered in the name of Cede & Co. as
nominee for DTC. Transfers of interests in the Notes may be effected
between DTG participants in accordance with procedures established
for this purpose by DTC. Except in limited circumstances, owners of
interests in the Notes will not be entitied to receive physical delivery
of Notes in definitive form. See *'~ Book Entry System; Delivery and
Form'. The Notes will be issued in minimum denominations of
$250,000 and multiples of $1,000 in excess thereof.

Governing Law; Submission

to Jurisdiction . .. ... ......... The Notes will be governed by.the laws of the State of New York,
except that the subordination provisions will be governed by the laws
of the Republic of Austria. The Bank will submit to the jurisdiction of
the United States federal and state courts located in the Borough of
Manhattan in the City of New York, in respect of any suit, action or
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proceeding arising out of or based on the Notes, and the Bank will
appoint its New York branch as its agent for service of process.

The Notes will not be listed on any stock exchange.

The Notes offered hereby have been assigned a preliminary rating
of Aal by Moody’s Investors Service Inc. {‘'Moody's”) and AAA by
Standard & Poor's Ratings Services (‘'Standard and Poor's™). A
security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities,
is subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating
organization and should be evaluated independently of any other
rating. In connection with the Bank’s bid to purchase all the
Republic’s shares in Creditanstalt, Standard & Poor’s changed its
rating outlock for the Bank and the City of Vienna from stable to
negative, while currently confirming the Bank's and the City of
Vienna's AAA long-term ratings, and Moody's gave notice of the
placing under review for possible downgrade the Bank's Aaa long-
term deposit and senior debt ratings and its Aal subordinated debt
rating and the Aaa long-term debt rating of the City of Vienna. See
"Bank of Austria — Statutory Guarantee” and ''The Proposed
Acquisition of Creditanstait’.




Summary Financial Information

The summary financiat information of the Bank set forth below at and for the year ended
December 31, 1995 has been derived from the audited financial statements of the Bank, which have
been prepared pursuant to New Austrian GAAP. To provide the summary financial information below at
and for the years ended December 31, 1994 and 1993, financial data from the 1994 and 1993 audited
financial statements of the Bank, which were prepared pursuant to Old Austrian GAAP, have been
restated pursuant to New Austrian GAAP. These restatements are provided solely to facilitate meaningful
comparisons of 1994 and 1993 financial information to 1995 financial information. See “‘Presentation of
Financial Information’. The restated information has not been audited by the Bank’s external auditors but
has been subject 10 a limited review by such auditors.

For a description of the differences belween New Austrian GAAP and Old Austrian GAAP, see
“Summary of Principal Differences Between New Austrian GAAP and Old Austrian GAAP™ . Also, Austrian
GAAFP differs in certain significant respects from U.5. GAAP. See “'Summary of Principal Differences
Between Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in Austria and in the United States™.

At or for the year ended December 31,
1993 1994 1995
{ATS) (ATS) {ATS) ($)
(ATS and $ in millions)

Profit and loss account data

Netinterest sarned. ... ... ... ... ... ... ..l 11,1659 11,614.6 12,278.2 1,1425
Income from shares, other ownership interests

and non-fixed-interest securities ......... ... 124.6 168.8 156.4 14.6
Incoma from equity interests and shares in

Group COMPAaNIes ...ttt 768.2 911.0 8741 81.3
Net commissions (1) .............. .. ..., 2,700.2 2,906.1 28728 267.3
Income /expenses from financial transactions 1,331.6 175.8 905.2 84.2
Other operating income...................... 267.7 306.1 393.8 36.6
Operating income . ... ... ... ... riiavnnnn. 16,348.1 16,082 .4 17,480.5 1,626.5
Fersonnel expenses(?2) ..................o.t. (6.341.4) (7.149.1) (7,408.9) (689.4)
Other administrative expenses (expenditures for

materials) ....... ..o (3.558.5) (3.854.7) (4,155.1) (386.08)
Depreciation on assets ...................... (417.1) (681.8) (714.0) (66.4)
Other operating expenses. . .....ovvvivevnans. (192.2) (243.2) (351.0) (32.7)
Operating expenditure .. ......... ... ... ... (10,509.2) (11,928.8) (12629.0} {1,1751)
Operating resulfs ...................... .. ... 5,838.9 4,153.6 4,851.5 451.4

} Commission income less commission expenses.

{1
(2) The 1993 figure includes a one-time benefit of ATS 735 million resulting from the renegotiation of the
Bank’s pension plan.




At or for the year ended December 31,
1993 1594 1995
(ATS) (ATS) (ATS) ($)
(ATS and § in millions)

Balance sheet data
Vault cash, balances with central banks and

postal giro offices .. ... ... ... L 9.684.6 10,286 .6 83353 775.6
Debt instruments issued by public agencies and

bills of exchange eligible for refinancing at the

centralbank .. ... ... .. ..., 31,176.2 51,171.9 44,339.5 41258
Claims against credit institutions {1) .......... 148,501.3 157,909.2 178,905.2 16,647.0
Claims against customers {1)................ 318,3089 360,261.4 374027.0 34,8029
Bonds and other fixed-interest securities . ... ... 27,2036 13,750.1 25,022.2 2,328.3
Shares and other non fixed-interest securities .. 58,2158 5,916.2 6,288.1 585 .1
Equity interests .. ... ... .o 6,551.4 6,257.7 5,692.9 529.7
Shares in group companies .................. 14,3209 14,827.0 14,0376 1,308.2
Otherassets (2) .. ... .. .. ... .. ... . . 16,5014 16,199.3 21,2155 1,974.1
Total@assets..............ccoiiiiennnniriin 578,4741 636,579.9 677,863.3 63,074.7
Due to credit institutions .........ovece et 186,717.7 180,636.9 186,527.8 17,356.3
Due to customers:

Savings deposits.........oviiiii i 162,868.9 1692726 171,296.6 15,9392.0

Other liabilities. . ........ oo iiiienn s 109,009.9 123,541 1 141,614.5 13,1771
Securitized liabilities . . ....... oot 55,470.8 92,7101 99,0171 9,213.5
P OVISIONS . v v e e ey 15,527.5 16,411.8 18,030.5 1,677.7
Subordinated liabilities . . ... vv v ii i 9,357.4 11,641.3 10,580.0 084.5
Supplementary capital .......... ... o0 3,01585 3,085.5 2,512.0 233.7
Subscribed capital ............. ... ... 6,404.3 6,474.3 65,4743 602.4
Reserves {3) i viiiiiiiiiiii i 13,309.3 13,406.1 14,438.8 1,343.5
Liability reserve pursuant to the 1993 Banking

At e 7,038.9 8,613.3 9,372.6 8721
Other liabilities {4) ... ... ... . i it 8,853.9 10,786.3 17,9891 1,674.8
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity (5) ..... 578,474.1  636,579.3 677,863.3 63,074.7

(1} In accordance with Austrian banking regulations and New Austrian GAAP, the Bank shows all claims
against credit institutions and claims against customers on its balance sheet net of the related loan
loss reserves.

(2) Includes “intangible non-current assets”, “‘tangible fixed assets'’, “‘treasury shares and interest,
interests in a controlling company, interests in a company holding a majority interest’ and *‘accrued
items™.

(3} Includes *‘capital reserves’”, '‘retained income™ and ‘‘untaxed reserves’.
(4) Inciudes “‘other liabilities™, “‘deferred items™ and ‘‘net profit’'.

(5) Shareholders' equity includes at December 31, 1993, 1994 and 1995, respectively, share capital of
ATS 5.7 billion, ATS 5.8 billion and ATS 5.8 billion; participation capital of ATS 702 million, ATS 702
million and ATS 702 million; liability reserve (pursuant to the 1993 Banking Act) of ATS 7.9 biliion,
ATS 8.6 billion and ATS 9.4 billion; and statutory and other reserves of ATS 13.3 billion, ATS 13.4
billion and ATS 14.4 billion.
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BANK AUSTRIA

Bank Austria and its financial subsidiaries, joint ventures and participations are engaged in a wide
range of banking, financial and other activities in Austria and throughout the world. The Bank took its
current form as a result of the merger of Zentralaparkasse und Kommerzialbank Aktiengesellschaft, Wien
(“Z-Bank AG") and Osterreichische Linderbank Aktiengesellschaft {“OLB”), two of the largest banks
in Austria, that became effective as of January 1, 1991, as described below. Based on total assets of
ATS 678 billion at December 31, 1995, the Bank is the largest bank in Austria. The Bank exercises a full
range of banking and financial services, including commercial and investment banking and dealing in
securities, and holds participations in companies outside of the financial services industry. The
management of the Bank has been pursuing, and has indicated that it will continue to pursue over the
next few years, a strategy of divesting its investment in most of its non-financial participations and of
redeploying the proceeds in its core financial services businesses. See 'Business — Non-Financial
Participations''.

Formation of the Bank

The predecessor of 7Z-Bank AG, Zentralgsparkasse und Kommerzialbank, Wien ('“Z-Bank’™) was
founded in 1905 ags a savings bank by the City Council of Vienna and began operations in 1907. Z-Bank
acted as the principal banker to the City and the Province of Vienna and provided a wide range of
banking services and investmant banking services to its customers. The City of Vienna provided a
guarantes for all the obligationg of Z-Bank. See ''— Statutory Guarantee”.

OLB was founded in 1880 as a joint stock corporation that was authorized under Austrian law to
provide a wide range of banking and related financial services. In addition, OLB owned a large portfolio of
non-financial companies. Prior to the 1991 merger, the Republic of Austria was the majority stockholder in
OLB.

in 1990, Z-Bank transferred its entire business operations to its wholly owned subsidiary Z-Bank AG
and Z-Bank changed its name to Anteilsverwaltung Zentralsparkasse, which is referred to berein as
“AV-Z. AV-Z is a corporale entity, crealed under Austrian law, that does not have any shareholders.
Such entities are referred to as being “'self-owned’.

At the time of the 1991 merger, Z-Bank AG was the largest savings bank in Austria in terms of
savings deposits and the third largest bank in Austria in terms of assets, and OLB was the fourth largest
bank in Austria in terms of assets. The legal structure of the 1991 merger was selected in order to
preserve for the merged bank the guarantee provided by the City of Vienna. The margad bank changed
its name to Z-Landerbank Bank Austria Aktiengeselischaft, and then, effective August 2, 1993, to Bank
Austria Aktiengesellechaft. As a result of the 1991 merger, AV-Z became the controlling owner of the
merged bank, and the Republic became a significant shareholder. Currently, AV-Z owne 45.15% of the
ordinary shares (shares with voting rights) of the Bank (and controls a total 49.15% of the ordinary
sharag, including ordinary chares owned by a company controlled by AV-Z), and the Republic indirectly
owne 18.90% of the ordinary shares through Post und Telekombeteiligungsverwaltungsgeselischaft. See
“Ownership, Management and Employees”.

In 1994, the Bank merged with Wiener Landes-Hypothekenbank AG (““Wiener Hypo Bank AG"}, a
mortgage bank that was founded by the Province of Vienna. Wiener Hypo Bank AG possessed a license
that permitted it to issue specially regulated debt securities that are secured by real property or loans to
public entities. By acquiring Wiener Hypo Bank AG, the Bank obtained the right to issue such bonds.

In 1994, AV-Z acquired control of GiroCredit. At the time of the acquisition, GiroCredit was the third
largest bank in Austria in terms of total assets. In addition to providing cemmercial and investment
banking services, as well as asset management services, GiroCredit provides centralized services, such
as data processing, clearing, liquidity management and fund management, for most savings banks in
Austria. As a result of this acquisition, GiroCredit is under common control with Bank Austria.
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Since AV-Z acquired control of GiroCredit, the Bank and GiroCredit have combined certain of their
operations in joint ventureg that provide services to or on behalf of both institutiong, including their
pension management and asget management operations and certain elements of thair data processing
operations. Notwithstanding the existence of these joint ventures, the two banks remain separate
corporate entities with independent obligations to their shareholders and creditors. In connection with the
Bank's bid for the Republic’s shares in Creditanstalt, the parties that make up the current coalition
government in Austria reached an understanding that AV-Z should offer its shares in GiroCredit. The
Bank does not believe that the proposed acquisition of Craditanstalt and any possible offer of shares of
GiroCradit by AV-Z will be likely to have a material effect on the Bank's joint ventures with GiroCreadit. See
“The Proposed Acquisition of Creditanstalt™.

Statutory Guarantee

in Austria, the obligations of each savings bank, the organization of which was sponsored by a
municipality, are by law guaranteed by such municipality. Accordingly, the City of Vienna, as sponsor of
Z-Bank, guaranteed the obligations of Z-Bank, which was subsequently renamed AV-Z, as described
above. AV-Z, as the transferor of Z-Bank's business to Z-Bank AG, is by law the guarantor of the
ohligations of Bank Austria. These guarantees constitute deficiency guarantees (Ausfalisbirgschalt)
under Section 1356 of the Austrian Civil Code. The City of Vienna is, therefore, an indirect guarantor of all
the obligations of the Bank by virtue of its guarantee of the obligations of AV-Z.

Under Austrian law, claims of a creditor of the Bank under a deficiency guarantee according to
Section 1356 of the Austrian Civil Code would be honored only for amounts that such creditor had not
been able to recover after having exhausted all legal remedies against the Bank and any property
pledged to secure the Bank's debt to such creditor. Any legal defenses available to the Bank would be
available as well to AV-Z and the City of Vienna in respect of their guarantees. As a result of this process,
and because the Notes are subordinated in right of payment to the claims of depositors and other
unsubordinated obligations of the Bank, a holder of Notes seeking payment from AV-Z on the basis of its
deficiency guarantee may expect to experience delays in receiving payment from AV-Z (or, ultimately,
the City of Vienna, as a deficiency guarantor of AV-Z).

There can be no assurance that the legislation granting the guarantees will not be revised, amended,
repealed or otherwise altered. Prior to the Republic's acceptance of the Bank’s bid for the Republic's
shares in Creditanstalt, another bidder filed a complaint with the Commission (the *‘Cammission” ) of the
European Union (the “"EU"} alleging that the existence of the guarantses violates EU stats aid rules and
gave the Bank an unfair advantage by allowing the Bank to make a higher bid than wouid have been
possible without the guarantees. The Bank believes that this complaint is without merit. Press reports
indicate that the Commission is conducting an inguiry to determine whether the guarantees constitute
state aid that viclates EU laws and regulations. Should the Commission find that the guarantees are new
state aid (i.e. granted after January 1, 1994) which was not notified to it, the Commission could order
that the legistation providing for the guarantees be revised or repealed or that the guarantees be declared
invalid. The Bank believes it unlikely that the guarantees will be considered invalid in light of the fact that
they existed prior to the date the Republic joined the European Economic Area and therefore should not
be subject to retroactive scrutiny. Even if the Commission finds that the guarantees are not new state aid,
it may order that the guarantees be revised or repealed as of the date of its order. The Bank believes that
any such order would not affect the application of the guarantees to liabilities of the Bank which arose
prior to the date of the order.

To date, there have been no bills introduced in Austria to amend or repeal the legislation granting the
guarantees. The Bank believes that the outright repeal of the statutory guarantees is unlikely, but that it
may become obliged to pay compensation for the guarantees. See the discussion in ‘'The Proposed
Acquisition of Creditanstalt” for certain developments relating to the guarantees. in any event, the Bank
believes that any repeal or amendment of the guarantees would not prejudice the guarantees with
respect to obligations of the Bank which arose prior to such repeal or amendment.
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A loss of the guarantees would have a negative effect on the credit ratings of the Bank and,
therefore, could increase the Bank's funding costs. The statutory guarantees are relevant principally to
the Bank's borrowing in international capital markets and derivative praducts activity, which historically
have not constituted a significant source of funding or income for the Bank.

The Bank believes that any reduction in AV-Z's equity interest in the Bank will not affect the
guarantees. See “'The Proposed Acquisition of Creditanstalt’”.

The statutory guarantees do not extend to the cbligations of the Bank's subsidiaries (and so will not
extend to the obligations of Creditanstalt unless Creditanstalt were to be merged with the Bank).

THE PROPOSED ACQUISITION OF CREDITANSTALT

On January 12, 1997, the Republic announced that the Bank had been selected through a
competitive bidding process to acquire the approximate 48.6% equity interest (representing an
approximate 69.4% voting interest) of the Republic in Creditanstalt for total consideration of ATS 17.16
billien {$1.53 billion at the January 16, 1997 Mean Rate of $1.00 = ATS 11.199, the date the purchase
price was paid to the Republic) in cash. The purchase price represents a payment of ATS 861 (ATS 850
plus ATS 11 in respect of an anticipated Creditanstalt dividend in equal amount} for each ATS 100 in
nominal value of the Republic’s shares in Creditanstalt.

As of December 31, 1995, Creditanstalt was Austria's second largest banking group measured in
terms of total assets, with approximately ATS 645 billion {$60 billion) in total assets on a consolidated
basis. On a consolidated basis, Creditanstalt had shareholder's equity of ATS 25.56 billion ($2.38 billion)
as at December 31, 1995, Creditanstalt’s consolidated operating income, operating result and surplus for
the year after taxes were reported to be ATS 17.34 killion ($1.61 billion}, ATS 6.14 billion ($571 million)
and ATS 2.17 bilion ($202 million), respectively, for the year ended December 31, 1995. As of
December 31, 1995, the Creditanstalt group had 318 offices (of which 61 were located outside Austria},
and 9,714 staff members. {All figures concerning Creditanstalt in this paragraph have been taken from
the publicly available financial statements of Creditanstalt and certain other information as published in
Creditanstalt's 1995 annual report. The Bank and the Initial Purchasers assume no responsibility for the
accuracy or completeness of such information. )

The Bank believes that the proposed acquisition will strengthen its competitiveness in the
increasingly competitive Austrian, European and international finangial markets. In contrast with many
other highly developed Eurcpean banking markets, the Austrian banking market remains rather
fragmented. The Bank believes that the proposed acquisition will both improve the structure of the
banking sector within Austria and underscore the Bank Austria Group’s competitiveness as a preeminent
Austrian financial services provider. Among the benefits the Bank expects to achieve from the proposed
acquisition are improved market penetration for the Bank Austria Group in areas where Creditanstalt has
a well-developed position (particularly in serving large Austrian corporate clients) and greater
efficiencies through economies of scale and the socially responsible consolidation of overlapping
operations. On the European level, the proposed acquisition should enable the Bank Austria Group to
rank among the thirty-five largest banking groups in Europe and enhance the Bank Austria Group’s ability
to compete with its European rivals, which will become particularly important in the context of a single
European currency. Also, the transaction should enhance the Bank's competitiveness in Central and
Eastern European markets, which both the Bank and Creditanstalt have identified as priority markets. The
Bank believes that the proposed acquisition stands to advance significantly the achievement of its
strategic goals. See "Business — Strategy.”

Consummation of the acquisition is subject to certain regulatory and competition law clearances.
Although the Bank expects to complete the acquisition no later than the third quarter of 1997, there can
be no assurance that the propesed acquisition transaction will be completed at that or any other time. In
accordance with the terms of the acquisition agreement, which was signed on January 12, 1997, the
Bank remitted full payment for the Republic's Creditanstalt shares on January 18, 1897, even though
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consummation of the acquisition may not ocour until several months later or not at all. If the acquisition
does not occur, the Republic is obligated to return the purchase price plus interest to the Bank, subject to
certain adjustments.

Under the acquisition agreement, the Republic represents that it owns the Creditanstalt sharas free
of encumbrances, that the shares are duly issued and fully paid and that the certificate in respect of the
shares {Zwischenschein) to be delivered to the Bank validly represents the shares, but disclaims any
other representations or indemnities in respect of the shares or Creditanstalt.

The acquisition agreament provides that consummation of the acquisition is subject to the condition
that, within four weeks from the date the acquisition agresment was executed, AV-Z was to agree to
ansure that the combined shareholdings of AV-Z and Wiener Holding AG in the voting shares of the Bank
would be reduced (through the exchange or sale of shares and/or by not participating in capital
increases) to less than 25% of the outstanding voting shares of the Bank by December 31, 2001, AV-Z
was also required to express its intention to further reduce its total voting shares to less than 20% of the
outstanding voting shares of the Bank within two years thereafter depending on existing market
opportunities. Finally, AV-Z was required to agree that its voting rights corresponding to any holdings in
excese of the 256% threshold would be exercised by a trustee with immediate effect (as of January 1,
2002 with respect to the 20% threshold). The Bank has been informed that on January 24, 1997 AV.Z
satisfied these conditions.

In the acquisition agreement, the Bank agreed that the Republic will receive 70% of any gain from
any sale by the Bank on the Vienna Stock Exchange or international stock exchanges of the Creditanstalt
shares acquired from the Republic within three years from the date of the transfer of the shares. The Bank
also agreed that within three years from the date of the transfer of the Republic's shares, it will {i) make
an offer to buy out for cash Creditanstalt shareholders who are natural persons and who hold
Creditanstalt voting shares with a value of up to ATS 200,000 at a price no less than ATS 850 minus a
discount {which will not exceed 156%) and {ii) make an exchange offer of Bank Austria shares for all
Creditanstalt shares based on an exchange ratio calculated by applying analogous provisions of the
merger rules of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act.

in the materials submitted with its bid, the Bank stated that any reduction in the number of
Creditanstalt employees in Austria would be achieved through natural attrition.

In connection with the Bank's successful bid, a paper setting forth certain political points of
understanding entitled the “Future Procedure for Privatizations and Capital Market Reform as well as
[the Creditanstalt] Sale” was signed by members of the Austrian People’s Party (Osterreichische
Volkspartei) and the Austrian Social Democratic Party (Sozialdemokratische Partei Osterreichs),
including the Austrian Chancellor, the Deputy Chancellor (who is also the Foreign Minister), the Minister
for Economic Affairs and the Finance Minister, as well as by Gerhard Randa (who is the Chairman of the
Managing Board of the Bank}. Among the points set out in the German-language paper are: *“. . . 2. Sale
of the Republic's 19% interest in Bank Austria in the widest possible distribution to private persons in the
year 1997, 3. [Creditanstalt] will survive as an independent company for the period of at least 5 years
(except for partial functions). 4. Employees: preservation of jobs at [ Creditanstalt]. Personnel reduction
only through naturat attrition. 5. Disposal of the [Creditanstalt] holdings in Investkredit [a company that
provides medium and long-term financing to industry] and Kontrollbank [a company that provides export
financing guaranteed by the Republic] less the [GireCredit] holdings to other holders and offer of all
shares in GiroCredit by AV-Z with the aim of an earliest possible disposal. No participation of [the Bank]
in the privatization of PSK [the Postal Bank]. 6. No asset-stripping (does not apply to regional banks,
investment bank, ORAG [Creditanstalt's real estate holding subsidiary], ... ) 7. Waiver of statutory
guarantee or [payment of] consideration for statutory guarantee for the benefit resulting from the
municipal guarantee to be established through international experts pursuant to a new savings banks
act. ... 11. The exception to the rule for consolidation [ for financial holding companies in Austria] will be
limited to December 31, 1998. . .. 13. Amendment of the savings bank act regarding waiver of statutory
guarantee or consideration for statutory guarantee....15. Points [11 and 13] are to be resolved by
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government bill by the summer of 1997. . . .~ This paper is a statement of political intent, and as such is
not part of the acquisition agreement between the Bank and the Republic. it remains to be seen how the
political parties will proceed with regard to the imptementation of the points set forth in the paper. The
Bank believas it unlikely, however, that any implementation measures which may be adopted would have
a material adverse effect on the Bank.

Unaudited pro forma financial information, based on certain historical statements of the Bank and
Creditanstait, is included elsewhere in this Offering Memorandum. See “Unaudited Pro Forma Financial
Information’'. Assuming the accuracy of Credilanstalt’s publicly available financial information and based
on the Bank's estimate of the current financial position of Creditanstalt, the Bank expects to continue to
be in compliance with capital requirements upon the inclusion of Creditanstalt in the Bank Austria
Group’s balance sheet,

Under the 1993 Banking Act, after December 31, 1999 (to be changed to December 31, 1998
according to the paper discussed in the second preceding paragraph), the Bank effectively will have to
treat the entire AV-Z group, which includes AV-Z and its principal subsidiarles (currently the Bank,
Wiener Holding AG and GiroCredit), as consolidated with the Bank for purposes of determining its
compliance with capital adequacy requirements. Assuming that AV-Z ceases to own a controlling interest
in GiroCredit through a disposition at or near book value before the relevant time, the Bank expects that,
based on its current financial position, the consolidation will not result in a significant increase in the
amount of capital necessary to satisfy ils capital adequacy requirements. If AY-Z continues to own a
controlting Interest in GiroCredit at such time, other measures may be required to ensure satisfaction of
relevant capital adeqguacy requirements.

For convenience of reference only, attached to this Offering Memorandum as Annex C is a copy of
portions of the publicly available financial statements of Creditanstalt and the Creditanstalt Group and
certain other information as published in Creditanstalt's 1996 annual report. The Bank and the Initial
Purchasers assume no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of any of the information
contained in Annex C. Although the Bank is very familiar with the Austrian banking market and is
therefore well-acquainted with Creditanstalt and the other participants in that market, the Bank has had
very limited access to information concerning Creditanstalt and therefore does not offer any
representations with respect thereto (including information, such as the unaudited pro forma financial
information contained herein, insofar as it is derived from Creditanstalt information) . Neither the Republic
nor Creditanstalt has been involved in the preparation of this Offering Memorandum, and neither is
responsible for the whole or any part hersof.

The issuance and sale of the Notes is not contingent upon the status or completion of the acquisition
transaction.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth the capitalization of the Bank at December 21, 1995 and at
December 31, 1996. The figures shown as at December 31, 1995, are derived from the Audited Financial
Statements of the Bank and the notes thereto in accordance with New Austrian GAAP. The figures shown
as at December 31, 1996, are unaudited preliminary figures and therefore the items ‘'Retained income’,
“Untaxed reserves’ and “Liability reserve” may differ from the figures that will be presented in the
audited financial statements of the Bank to be attached to the 1996 Annual Report of the Bank.
Additionat information regarding the Bank's capital is presented below in ““Unaudited Pro Forma Financial
Information — Unaudited Pro Forma Capital Data’”.

‘ At December 31, At December 31,
1995 1906
(ATS in millions) (ATS in millions)

Share capital: {1)

57,671,590 ordinary shares, par value ATS 100 (2) ............ 5,019 5,767
7.526,600 preferred shareg, par value ATS 100 ................ 753 753

Total share capital .........coiiiiiiii i i i e e 5,772 6,510
Capital reserves ... .. ... .. .ottt Cerane 11,126 - 15,675
Retained INComMe. ... ... i e e 1,406 1,406
Untaxed resemves . .. e 1,906 1,983
Ligbility reserve . . ... 9,373 9,373
Total reserves . ... ... 23,811 28,437

Total shareholders’ funds ....... e e e 29,583 34,947
Participation capital (2)(3) ...... ... it e, ' 702 592

Total shareholders' funds and participation capital ............ 30,285 35,639
Total secured debt. . ... . i e 47,108 43,719
Total long-term unsecured debt .....................c00i..n,. 43,829 63,083

Total capitalization .......... .. ... ... ... .. . ... ... ..., 121,222 144,341

(1) At December 31, 1995, ATS 36.1 million of the issued share capital was held in the Bank’s own
portfolio (ATS §92.2 million at December 31, 1996). At December 31, 1995, there were 50,194,956
ordinary shares outstanding.

(2) The foltowing ordinary share capital increases occurred in 1996:

— ATS 600 million nominal value in the second quarter, which shares were purchased principaliy by
WestlB;

— ATS 110 million nominal value in the fourth quarter in connection with an offer by the Bank to
exchange ordinary shares for outstanding participation certificates; and

— ATS 28 million nominal value in the fourth quarter as consideration for the contribution in kind by
Wiener Stadtwerke of shares of Bank Austria Handelsholding AG.

(3) At December 31, 1995, ATS 250.9 million of the issued participation capital was held in the Bank’s
own portfolio (ATS 62.7 million at December 31, 1996).

The Bank has issued warrants in connection with its offering of Swiss Franc 125,000,000 3% bearer
notes due 2001 (the "'SFR Warrants”) and Deutsche Mark 250,000,000 3%% bearer notes due 2001
(the “DM Warrants”). Holders of the SFR Warrants have the option to acquire an aggregate of
1,500,000 participation certificates of the Bank. Holders of the DM Warrants have the option to acquire an
aggregate of 1,500,000 ordinary shares of the Bank. The Bank has entered into an agreement with a third
party that will supply the ordinary shares at the request of the Bank upon exercise of the DM Warrants.

There have been no material changes in the Bank's capitalization since December 31, 1996.

16



UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The foltowing unaudited pro forma financial information for the Bank Austria Group is based on the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Bank Austria Group and the Creditanstalt Group for the
year ended December 31, 1995 and the respective unaudited consolidated group financial statements
for the six months ended June 30, 1996. The audited financial statements of Creditanstalt were not
audited by the Bank’s independent auditors but rather by Creditanstalt's own independent auditors. In
preparing the pro forma financial information below, items from the financial statements of the Bank
Austria Group have been added to those of the Creditanstalt Group without any adjustments except to
reflect the purchase price. it should be noted that there are a number of conditions to be satisfied before
the completion of the acquisition. The acquisition is expected to take place no later than the third quarter
of 1997. See “'The Proposed Acquisition of Creditanstalt”.

The Bank has not made any determination of the fair value of the assets and liabilities of
Creditanstalt. Accordingly, no fair market adjustments have been included in the tables below.

The unaudited pro forma consolidated profit and loss account data for the Bank Austria Group for the
six-month period ended June 30, 1996 and the year ended December 31, 1995 have been prepared on
the assumption that the proposed acquisition had occurred on January 1, 1995, The unaudited pro forma
balance sheel data as at June 30, 1996 have been prepared on the assumption that the acquisition had
occurred at that date. The unaudited pro forma financial information below should be read in conjunction
with the “Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information’’ immediately following the tables.

The unaudited pro forma financial information for the Bank Austria Group has been
presented solely as a convenience to prospective investors in the Notes and does not purport to
represent the actual financial position of the Bank had the proposed acquisition occurred on the
relevant date, or at the beginning of the periods indicated, or to project the financial position or
results of the Bank or Creditanstalt at any future date or any future period. Such information is
based on publicly available information concerning Creditanstalt, as to which the Bank and the
Initial Purchasers assume no responsibility. To the extent the publicly available information
concerning Creditanstalt is inaccurate or incomplete, the unaudited pro forma financial
information is also likely to be inaccurate or incomplete.

Unaudited Pro Forma Profit and Loss Account Data
at or for the six months ended June 30, 1996

Bank Austria Creditanstalt
Group Group Total
{ATS in millions)
Netinterestearned ................................ 6,529 5,131 11,660
Income from gecurities and equity interests .. .......... 267 852 1,119
Commigsion income/expenses .. ... 1,944 1,962 3,906
Income / expenses from financial transactions .. ......... 647 900 1,547
Other operating income. . ...t 554 233 787
Operatingincome. ............ ... . iiviiiiiianinns 9,941 9,078 19,019
General administrative expenses..........oovi i {6,626) (5,735) {12,361)
a) Personnel EXPENSES ...ttt {4,233) (3,408) {7,641)
b) other administrative expenses
{expenditures for materials) ..................... (2,393) {2,327) (4,720)
Depreciation onassets ..........ccoiiiiiiiiii . (558) (245) (803)
Other operating expenses. . .......ovvvi oo eonnon. (127) (57) (184)
Operating expenditure . . .................... ... .-t (7,911) (6,037) {13,348)
Operatingresults . ............. ... ... ............ 2,630 3.041 5,671




Unaudited Pro Forma Profit and Loss Account Data
at or for the year ended December 31, 1995

Interest and similar eamings ... i e
Interest and similar expenses ........ooiiiiiiir ...

Net interestearned..................................
Income from securities and equity interests .. ............
a) income from shares, other ownership interests and

non-fixed-interest securities .......................

b} income from equity interests ........ooov ..
¢) income from shares in group companies............
Commission iINCOMe. ... . e
Commission EXPENSES .. .......vvvirieineeaannnnns
Income/expenses from financial transactions.............
Other operating income . ............ .. .. .. iiiii..

Operatingincome .. ... ... .. ... .. .. ... .. .. .. .....
General administrative expenses ..............ccoo. ...
a) PErsonNNel EXpPeNSES . . ... .ot e
0) other administrative expenses
(expenditures for materials) ......................
Cepreciation on assets .. ... oo
Other operating expenses . ... ...,

Operating expenditure .. ... ... ... ... ... ..............

Operatingresults ... ......... ... ....................

Balance of expenditure/income from the valuation and
disposal of claims, securities held in the liquidity reserve
and from contingent liabilities and credit risks ... .......

Balance of expenditure/income from the valuation and
disposal of securities valued as non-current financial
assels, and from equity interests and shares in group
COMPANIES . . . e e

Results from ordinary business activities ...... . ... ..
Extraordinary inCome . ........ ... i
Extraordinary expenses. ......... ... ... ... .. . ...

Extraordinaryresults ................................
Taxes on income and €armings ........ovuvvvneennnnns,
Other taxes . ... ovvriiii i e e

Annualsurplus ............ ... ... ... ... ...
Profit portion of other shareholders ................._...

Profitfortheyear .................................. .
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Bank Austria Creditanstalt
Group Group Total

{ATS in millions)

40,4419 40,030.8 80,4727
(27,398.2) (30,870.4) (58,268.6)

13,0437 9,160.4 22,2041
738.1 2,229.8 2,967.9
171.1 2423 413.4
405.0 1,782.6 2,187 .6
162.0 2049 366.9

4,499.2 47173 9,216.5
(790.3) (1,164.2) {1.954.5)
1,054.0 1,657.1 27111
1.121.8 741.6 1,863.4

19,666.5 17,342.0 37,0085
(11,796.0)  (10,239.0) (22,035.0)
(8,101.8)  (6,151.3) (14.253.1)

(3.694.2)  (4.087.7)  (7,781.9)

(1.671.0) (440.8)  (2,111.8)
(860.6) (523.7)  (1,384.3)

(14,327.6)  (11,2035) (25531.1)
5,338.9 6,1385 114774

(4,603.0) (3,486.0) (8,089.0)

2,244.6 (66.0)  2,178.6
2,980.5 2,586.5 5,567.0
8.3 14.9 23.2
(300.8) (226.1) (526.9)
(292.5) (211.2) (503.7)
(54.2) (137.0) (191.2)
(46.6) (72.2) (118.8)
2,587.2 2,166.1 4,753.3
(140.6) (79.9) (220.5)
2,446.6 2,086.2 45328




Unaudited Pro Forma Balance Sheet Data
at or for the six months ended June 30, 1996

Bank Austria Creditanstalt
Group Group Total

(ATS in millions)

Vault cash, balances with central banks and

postgirooffices ... ... ... . o il 10,824 8,079 18,903
Debt instruments issued by public agencies and bills of

exchange eligible for refinancing at the central bank .. 53,446 39,304 92,750
Claims against credit institutions .. ....... .. ... .. .. 200,384 236,773 437,157
Claimg against customers ... .. ... ... ... .. 397,958 314,213 712,171
Bonds and other fixed-interest securities. .............. © 18,108 63,754 81,862
Shares and other non-fixed-interest securities .. ........ 10,989 2,702 13,691
Equity iInferests .. ... . e 6.8691 10,188 17,079
Sharegs in Qroup COmPanies ............ceiinnennn. 7,863 11,638 19,501
Other 888818 . ... . e 26,563 9,575 36,138
Totalassets................. it 733,026 696,226 1,429,252
Due to credit institutions .. .. ... ... ... i, 205,207 364,126 569,333
Due to customers:

Savings deposite .. ... ..o 163.474 75,562 239,036

Other liabitities . ... .. .. . . 160,485 111,189 271,674
Securitized liabilities . . .. ... ... 115,785 86,859 202,644
Subordinated fighilities . . .. ... ... 11,313 11,838 23,151
Supplementary capital ......... o oo 2.079 3,771 5,850
Subscribed capital, reserves and liability reserve

purguant to the 1983 Banking Act .................. 33,068 25,557 58,626

— purchase price for the shares of Creditanstalt .. .... (17.1861) (1)
Total subscribed capital, reserves and liability reserve

pursuant to the 1993 Banking Act .................. 41,465
Other liabilities ........... e 41,614 17,324 58,838

+ purchase price for the shares of Creditanstalt . ... .. 17,161(1)
Total other liabilities ... ... ... o i 76,099

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity . .. .............. 733,026 696,226 1,429,252

{1) The purchase price for the shares of Creditanstalt (ATS 17,161 million) is both deducted from
reserves and added to the itern "“Other liabilities.

Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information

The unaudited pro forma financial information presented above was prepared by adding items from
the Bank Austria Group’s and the Creditanstalt Group's consolidated financial statements without any
adjustments other than to take into account the purchase price for the shares of Creditanstalt in the table
containing unaudited pro forma balance sheet data. No other intercompany items between the Bank and
Creditanstalt were consolidated.

Both the Bank and Creditanstalt have minority equity interests in companies that, pursuant to the
1993 Banking Act, are not fully consolidated in the respective group financial statements of the Bank and
Creditanstalt. When the holdings of the Bank Austria Group and the Creditanstalt Group are added
together, certain of these equity interests (such as Qesterreichische Kontrolibank AG and
Osterreichische Investitionskredit AG) may be fully consolidated in the combined Bank Austria Group
and Creditanstalt- Group pursuant to §30 of the 1993 Banking Act. No such consolidation has been
shown in the unaudited pro forma financial information.
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Under the 1993 Banking Act, limits are imposed on the amount of large exposures of a bank or a
group of banks that may be outstanding with respect to a single client or group of connected clients. See
“The Austrian Banking System — Regulation and Supervision™'. Although the Bank has not determined
what clients or groups of connected cliente the Bank Austria Group may have in common with the
Creditanstalt Group for purposes of these large exposure limits, it expects to continue to satisfy the
relevant large exposure limits.

Unaudited Pro Forma Capital Data

The following table sets forth certain unaudited pro forma capital data as of June 30, 1996. The table
sets forth pro forma capital data without giving effect to the sale of the Notes or to any other capital
increase. The figures for the Creditanstalt Group are taken from the publicly available information
concerning Creditanstall as of June 30, 1996, as to which the Bank and the Initial Purchasers assume no
responsibility. To the extent that the publicly available information concerning Creditanstalt is inaccurate
or incomplete, the unaudited pro forma capital data is also likely to be inaccurate or incomplete.

The unaudited pro forma capital data has been presented solely as a convenience to
prospective investors in the Notes and does not purport to represent the actual capital position of
the Bank Austria Group had the proposed acquisition occurred on the relevant date, or to project
the capital position at any future date or any future period. The capital positions of both the Bank
and Creditanstalt have changed since June 30, 1996.

as of June 30, 1996{1)
Bank Austria Creditanstalt

Group Group {2) Total
{ATS in millions except ratios)

Core capital (Tier 1 capital) .......... .. ... 35,484 26,400 44,723(3)

Corecapital ratio......... ..ot i e 8.73% 6.44% 5.48%
Supplementary funds {Tier 2 capital};

Supplementary capital and participation capital .......... 2,639 3,300 5,939

Valuation reserve for equity interests ........ ... ....... 4] 2,300 2,300

Subordinated capital . .. ........ ... ... 10,255 11,800 22,0585
Total supplementary funds ....... ... 12,894 17,400 30,294
Deductions (4 ... i e (1,855) (3,200) (5,055)
OWN fUNES L e e 46,523 40,600 62,962(5)
Agsessment basis (8) ... ... ... 406,251 410,000 816,251

Total capital ratio 11.45% 9.90% 8.57%

{1} The unaudited pro forma capital data presented in this table were prepared by adding relevant items
with respect to the Bank and Creditanstalt without any adjustments other than the adjustment to
core capital described in note (3) and the adjustment to own funds described in note (5).

(2) The figures for Creditanstalt in this table have been taken from the unaudited consclidated financial
information publicly reported by Creditanstalt with respect to the six months ended June 30, 1996.

(3) Equal to the total core capital of the Bank Austria Group plus the Creditanstalt Group (ATS 61,884
million} minus the purchase price for the Creditanstalt shares (ATS 17,161 million).

{4) These deductions include amounts for various intangible assets, including goodwili, software and
any subordinated capital that may not be counted towards total capital for bank regulatory purposes,

(5) Equal to the total own funds of the Bank Austria Group plus the Creditanstalt Group (ATS 87,123
million) minus the purchase price for the Creditanstalt shares (ATS 17,161 million) .

(B) The assessment basis is calculated pursuant to the 1993 Banking Act by adding risk-weighted
assets, off-balance sheet transactions weighted by risk and partner and special off-balance sheet
financial transactions at market value.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The seiected financial information of the Bank set forth below at and for the year ended
December 31, 1995 has been derived from the audited financial statements of the Bank, which have
been prepared pursuant to New Austrian GAAP. To provide the selected financial information below at
and for the years ended December 31, 1994 and 1993, financial data from the 1994 and 1993 audited
financial statements of the Bank, which were prepared pursuant to Old Austrian GAAP, have been
restated pursuant to New Austrian GAAP. These restatements are provided solely to facilitate meaningful
comparisons of 1994 and 1993 financial information to 1995 financial information. See “‘Financial
information’”. The restated information has not been audited by the Bank’s external auditors but has been
subject to a kimited review by such auditors.

For a description of the differences between New Austrian GAAP and Old Austrian GAAP, see
“Summary of Principal Differences Between New Austrian GAAP and Old Austrian GAAP". Also, Austrian
GAAP differs in certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP. See “‘Summary of Principal Differences
Between Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in Austria and in the United States''.

At or for the year ended December 31,
1993 1994 1995
{ATS) (ATS) (ATS) (5}
(ATS and $ in millions)

Profit and loss account data

Interest and similar sarnings .. ... ... Ll 37,189.3 38,060.0 39,151.2 3,6431
Interest and similar expenses . ... ............. (25,993.4) (26,4456.4) (26,873.0) (2,500.5)
Netinterestearned ........................ 11,165.9 11,614.6 12,278.2 1,142.5
Income from securities and eguity interests ... 862.8 1,079.8 1,030.5 95.9

a) income from shares, other ownership

interests and non-fixed-interest securities 124.6 168.8 156.4 14.6

b} income from equity interests ............ 321.9 1901 194.9 18.1

¢) income from shares in group companies . . 436.3 720.9 679.2 63.2
CommIssioN INGOMEB ... vttt iieer e ennns 3,044 .4 3,273.8 3,371.7 313.7
COMMISSION BXPENSES . ..ottt i i iear s {(344.2) (367.7) (498.9) {46.4)
Income / expenses from financial transactions . . . 1,331.5 175.8 905.2 84.2
Other operating iNnGome . .. .....oooeeeeo ... 267.7 306.1 393.8 366
Operatingincome . ... ... ......... .. ....... 16,3481 16,082 4 17,480.5 1,626.5
General administrative expenses .. .. .......... {9,899.9) (11,003.8) (11564.0) (1,076.0)

a) personnel expensas{1) ................. (6,341.4) (7,149.1) (7.,408.9) (689.4)

b) other administrative expenses

(expendituras for materials) ............ {3,558.5) (3,854.7) {4,155.1) (386.6)

Depreciationon assets .................... .. (417.1) (681.8) (714.0) (66.4)
Other operating expenges. ................... (182.2) (243.2) (351.0) (32.7)
Operating expenditwre ..................... (10,509.2) (11,928.8) (12,629.0) {1,175.1)
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At or for the year ended December 31,

1993 1994 1995
(ATS) (ATS) (ATS) ()
{ATS and $ in millions)
Operatingresults . .......... .. . ........... 5,838.9 4,153.6 48515 451.4

Balance of expenditure /income from the

valuation and disposal of claims, securities

held in the liquidity reserve and from

contingent liabitities and credit risks .. ....... (3,438.0) (1,176.0) (4,518.7) {420.5)
Balance of expenditure/income from the

valuation and disposal of securities valued as

non-current financial assets, and from equity

interests and shares in group companies .. .. (361.0) {1,430.6) 2,194 .1 204.2
Results from ordinary business activities. . .. 2,0309 1,647.0 2526.9 2351
Extraordinary income .. ... ... ... L ..., 33.4 4.2 7.3 0.7
Extracrdinary expenses ...................... (514.8) {350.1) (299.5) (27.9)
Extraordinaryresults . .. .................... (481.4) {345.9) (292.2) (27.2)
Taxes on income and eamings ............... (21.2) (22.3) (33.7) (3.1)
Other taxes ..o vvviir it e it eens (219.0} (37.4) (33.3) (3.1)
Annualsurplus .. ... ... . ... ... .......... 1,318.3 1,1415 2,167.8 201.7
Changesinreserves ........................ (815.4) {503.5) {1,509.5) {140.5)
Profitfortheyear.......................... 502.9 638.0 658.3 61.3
Profit brought forward from previous year ...... 11.3 13.1 4.5 0.4
Netprofit. ... ......... . ... ............... 514.2 B651.1 662.9 61.7

(1) The 19923 figure includes a one-time benefit of ATS 735 million resulting from the renegotiation of the
Bank’s pension plan.
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At or for the year ended December 31,
1993 1994 199%
(ATS) {ATS) (ATS) (%)
{ATS and § in millions)

Balance sheet data
Vault cagh, balances with central banks and

postal girooffices ............... ... .. ... 0968486 10,286.6 83353 7756
Debt instruments issued by public agencies and

bills of exchange eligible for refinancing at the

central bank. ... ... ... o . i ool 31,176.2 51,171.9 44,3395 41258
Claims against credit institutions{1) .......... 148,501.3 157,909.2 178,905.2 16,647.0
Claims against customers{1) ................ 3183089 360,261.3 3740270 34,802.9
Bonds and other fixed-interest securities . ... ... 27,203.6 13,750.1 25,022.2 2,328.3
Shares and other non-fixed-interest securities .. 6,215.8 5,916.2 6,2881 585.1
Equity interests . ... ..... ... e 6,551.4 6,257.7 5,692.9 529.7
Shares in group companies .................. 14,3309 14,8270 14,037.6 1,306.2
Intangible non-current assets ........ ... ... 1481 6325 596.5 555
Tangible fixed agsets . ......... ...l 1,926 5 2,0863.2 2,164.8 201.4

Treasury shares and interests, interests in a
controlling company, interests in a company

holding a majarity interest. . ................ 546 265.8 2871 26.7
Other ass6ts ... ..ottt it ieraannns 14,047 1 11,878.2 16,547.7 1,530.8
Accrued items . ..o e 326.1 1,359.6 1,619.4 150.7
Total assets ... ... i e e 578,474.1 636,679.3 677,863.3 63,074.7
Due to credit institutions . .....oovviiiiie 186,717.7 180,636.9 186,527.8 17,356.3
Due to customers:

Savings deposits. ... i i e 162,8668.9 169,272.6 171,296.6 15,830.0

Other liabilities. .. ..o v ev i et 109,009.9 123,541 .1 141,614.5 13,1771
Securitized liabilities . ... ovi i 55,470.8 92,7101 99,017 1 9,213.5
Other liabilities. . ... .o o i it i it iiiv e 7,840.0 9,821.4 17,033.6 1,685.0
Deferred ems. . oo v iieviiv e innerraroaess 499.7 313.8 302.6 28.2
PrOVISIONS . oo v ottt e e 15,627.5 16,411.8 18,030.5 1,677.7
Subordinated liabilities. ... ..ooviv et 8,3567.4 11,641.3 10,580.0 984.5
Supplementary capital .......... 0 i 3,016.5 3,085.5 2,612.0 233.7
Subscribed capital ... it i 6,404.3 6,474.3 6,474.3 602.4
Capital reServes . ...ovveerrninenriianecons 10,837.8 10,830.7 11,126.5 1,035.3
Retained iNCOMEB v v i i ir i irv i enns 1,267.3 1,381.3 1,406.5 130.9
Liability reserve pursuant to the 1993

Banking Act ... ittt 7,938.9 8.613.3 9,372.6 8721
Netprofit ... e e e 514.2 851.1 662.9 617
Unfaxed reserves .. ..oviiiveiriianciinirsans 1,204.2 1,185.1 1,905.8 177.3
Liabilities and shareholders’ =quity(2) ......... H78,474.1 636,579.3 677,863.3 63,074.7

(1) In accordance with Austrian banking regulations and New Austrian GAAP, the Bank shows all claims
against credit institutions and claims against customers on its balance sheet net of the related loan
loss reserves.

(2) Shareholders’ equity includes at December 31, 1993, 1994 and 1995, respectively, share capilal of
ATS 5.7 billion, ATS 5.8 billion and ATS 5.8 biliion; participation capital of ATS 702 million, ATS 702
million and ATS 702 million; llability reserve (pursuant to the 1993 Banking Act) of ATS 7.9 billion,
ATS 8.6 billion and ATS 9.4 billion; and statutory and other reserves of ATS 13.3 billion, ATS 13.4
billion and ATS 14.4 billion.
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At or for the year ended December 31,

1993{1) 1994 1995
(ATS) (AT}  (ATS) (%)
Per share data
O.V.F.A earnings per share (2)(3) ....... ..., 28 23 38 3.54
Annual surplus per share {3} ... ., 21 18 34 3.16
Dividend per share {4) ... ... ... ... i 8 10 10 0.93
Book value per share {5) ...... ... ... i 437 440 473 4401
Ratios
Annual surplus/average total agsete (8)(7)................ 0.23% 0.18% 0.33%
Annual surplus/average shareholders’ equity (6)(7) ........ 492 4.04 7.38
Operating resulte/average total assets (7)(8).............. 0.90 0.68 0.74
Net interest margin (9) ........ i 2.14 2.04 204
Commission income/operating income ..................... 18.62 2036 19.29
Efficiency ratio (8) (10) . ... i 68.78 7418 7225
Personnal expenses/average total assete (7)(8) ........... 1.25 1.18 1.13
Operating expenditura/average total assets (7)(8) 1.98 1.96 1.92
Tier Teapital ratio ..., i i e 7.46 7.34 7.48

Total capital ratio .. .. ... .. 10.35 10.76 10.32

1993 figures are not restated to reflect the merger of Wiener Hypo Bank AG with the Bank.
Calculated according to the Austrian Financial Analyst Association {O.V.F.A.) guidelines.

Calculated using period end shares (determined according to O.V.F.A. guidelines which eliminate
treasury shares) outstanding of 63.29 million, 64.24 million and 64.02 million, respectively, in 1993,
1994 and 1935. See “"Summary of Principal Differences Between Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles in Austria and the United States'",

For all gshare capital and participation capital.

Calculated using period end shares outstanding of 64.04 million, 64.74 million and 64.02 miliion,
respectively, in 1993, 1994 and 1995.

Annual surplus before changes in reserves.

Average based on total amounts at the beginning and the end of each year.

1993 ratio excludes ATS 735 million one-time benefit from the renegotiation of the Bank's pension
ptan.

Net interest earned excluding dividends/average earning assets excluding equity interests and
syndicate holdings.

(10) Operating expenses/operating income.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Austrian law gaverning the presentation of the Bank’s financial information changed with the
enactment of the 1993 Banking Act. The 1993 Banking Act brought the presentation of financial
statements in Austria into conformity with European Union standards, which facilitates mare meaningful
comparisans of credit institutions in Austria with credit institutions in other European Union countries. The
presentation format of financial statements under New Austrian GAAP (which includes the requirements
of the 1993 Banking Act) differs considerably from the presentation format under Old Austrian GAAFP. For
a description of certain of the most significant differences between New Austrian GAAP and Old Austrian
GAAP, see “Summary of Principal Differences between New Austrian GAAP and Old Austrian GAAP”
and Notes 1 and 2 to the Audited Financial Statements of the Bank for the year ended December 31,
1995, which Audited Financial Statements begin on page F-2 of this Offering Memaorandum.

The naw presentation requirements first became applicable to the Bank's audited financial
staterments for the year ending December 31, 1995. The audited financial statements of the Bank for the
years ending Dacember 31, 1994 and 1993 were prepared in accordance with Old Austrian GAAP. For
the purpose of the following discussion, financial data from the 1934 and 1993 audited financial
statementg of the Bank have been restated pursuant to New Austrian GAAP. These restatements are
provided solaly to facilitate meaningful comparisons of 1994 and 1993 financial information to 1995
financial information. The restated information has not been audited by the Bank's external auditors but
hag been subject to a limited review by such auditors. The audited financial statements of the Bank for
the years ending December 31, 1994 and 1993 are attached as Annex A.

New Austrian (GAAPR differg in certain significant respects from U.S. GAAP. The principai differences
between New Austrian GAAP and U.S. GAAP with respect to the financial statements of the Bank are
described in “Summary of Principal Differences Between (Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in
Austria and in the United States’.

Overview

The performance of the Bank for the years ended December 31, 1995, 1994 and 1993 was affected
by both domestic and international general economic conditiong and the interest rate environment in
Austria. Austria joined the European Union in 1995. This caused structural changes in the Austrian
markatplace, with more open competition teading to stronger pressure on domestic businesses. These
structural changes, together with the slowing Austrian economy, contributed to keeping credit demand
by both companies and retail customers weak in 1995. Long-term inierest rates, which had risen
gomewnhat in 1994, declined in 1995 to historic lows. Short-term interest rates continued their decline in
1995, although the yield curve remained steep.

in 1995, the gross domestic product in Austria grew by 1.8% (compared to 1994’s 3.0% growth),
as economic growth was generally weaker throughout Europe. The rate of growth in Austria slowed even
further in 1898, and was affected by a sharp deckine in tourism and negative developments in the
construction sector. Borrowing by public entities slowed in 1995 as the Austrian government began 1o
put into effect measuras designed 1o ensure Austria’s compliance with the Maastricht criteria. Private
consumption, which remained strong in 1995, growing over 2% in real terms largely on account of the
lower savings rate, also slowed in 1996, as the effects of reduced public sector demand began to trickle
through to the broader economy. Thus, as in the prior year, competition for high quality corporate loans
intensified, while loan demand remained, by historical standards, below average.

In response o the changes in the Austrian economy and the decline in short- and long-term interest
rates, in 1995 and 1996 the Bank continued its strategy of pursuing the high-quality domestic lending
business. The focus on higher-margin business resulted in a slight decrease in the Bank's market share,
particularly in customer deposits. At the same time, the Bank focused mare on activities outside Austria,
including foreign currency-denominated loans, which have historically had lower margins than the Bank's
Schilling-denominated loans. These factors put continuing pressure on the Bank's interest margins in

25




1995, which had also declined somewhat in 1994. The Bank intends to stabilize or slightly improve its
market share position, which together with the continuing changes in the Austrian economy, can be
expected to further pressure interest margins.

Despite pressure on the Bank's interest margins, the Bank's overall performance in 1995 and 1996
continued to improve. This improvement was a reflection of continued strong earnings in commission
income and trading results, the Bank's focus on international business activities and the Bank’s cost
containment efforts. The Bank’s progress in internationat activities is reflected in the performance of its
foreign branches, all of which improved eamings over 1994, the development of the Bank's international
alliances, and the increasing proportion of foreign assets and liabilities on the Bank's balance sheet.

In January 1897, the Bank agreed to acquire a controlling interest in Creditanstalt. See “The
Proposed Acquisition of Creditanstalt’.

Year Ended December 31, 1995 vs. December 31, 1994
Results of Operations

In 1985, the Bank's operating results (operating income less operating expenditures) increased by
16.8% to ATS 4.85 billion in 1995 from ATS 4.15 billion in 1994. The increase in the Bank's operating
results was primarily due to an increase in net interest earned and earnings on financial business
transactions, while operating expenditures increased by a smaller amount. As a result, the Bank’'s annual
surplus before changes in reserves increased to ATS 2.17 billion in 1995 from ATS 1.14 billion in 1994,
representing an increase of 90.0%.

Operating Income

Net Interest Earned. The Bank’s net interest earned was ATS 12.28 billion in 1995 as compared to
ATS 11.62 billion in 1994, an increase of 5.7%. This increase of ATS 663 million was primarily dug to
growth in interest earned of ATS 1.09 billion, or 2.9%, and smailler growth in interest paid of ATS 428
million, or 1.6%. The Bank's net interest margin remained stable in 1995 at 1.87%. The decline in short-
term and long-term interest rates in Austria in 1995 and the existence of a positively-sloped yieild curve
led to a decrease in the average yield on interest-earning assets to 6.39% in 1995 from 6.42% in 1994,
while the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities increased slightly to 4.51% in 1995 from 4.48% in
1994. Income from securities and equity interests declined by 4.5% to ATS 1.03 billion in 1995 from
ATS 1.08 billion in 1994, This resulted from decreases in income from shares, other ownership interests
and non-fixed interest securitics (to ATS 156 million in 1995 from ATS 169 million in 1994) and income
from shares in group companies (to ATS 679 million in 1995 from ATS 721 million in 1994), which were
greater than the slight increase in income from equity interests (to ATS 195 million in 1995 from ATS 190
million in 1994).

Commission Income/Commission Expenses. Net commission income (commission income less
commission expenses) was ATS 2.87 billion in 1995 as compared to ATS 2.91 billion in 1994, a decrease
of 1.1%. This decrease was primarily due to the decreases in other services, including fees earned in
connection with the insurance business and building society savings contracts, to ATS 475 million in
1995 from ATS 545 million in 1994 (a decline of 12.8%) and in securities brokerage transactions to
ATS 494 million'in 1995 from ATS 535 million in 1994 (a decline of 7.7%) ., which were partially offset by
increases in foreign exchange transactions and transactions in coins and precious metals to ATS 405
million in 1995 from ATS 347 million in 1994 (an increase of 16.7%).

Income/Expenses From Financial Transactions. Results from financial transactions improved
significantly compared to the previous year’s performance, increasing to ATS 805 million in 1995 from
ATS 176 million in 1994. The increase of ATS 729 million was due primarily to higher profits in securities
trading, as well as a decrease in write-offs on the Bank’s trading securities portfolio due to favorable price
developments.
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Operating Expenditure

Operating Expenditure.  Total operating expenditure increased by 5.9% to ATS 12.63 billion in 1995
from ATS 11.93 billion in 1994, Personnel expenses increased by 3.6% to ATS 7.41 billion in 1895 from
ATS 7.15 billion in 1994. In 1995, the number of the Bank's employees was reduced by 167 to 8,953 due
to attrition. In light of several factors that increased the Bank’s personnel costs, including the 1995
collective bargaining agreement, scheduled salary increases and certain statutory changes in
assessments for social security contributions and other levies, the increase in total operating expenditure
reflects the Bank's goal of achieving moderate increases in personnel expenses. Another significant
factor contributing 1o the increase in total operating expenditure was increased administration
expenditures, which increased by ATS 300 million, or 7.8% to ATS 4.16 billion in 1995 from ATS 3.86
billion in 1994. This increase was due to higher computer-relaled expenses and ongeing expenses for
business units. The growth in administrative expenditures (including expenditures for maintenance of
business premises and fixtures, electronic data processing equipment, advertising and legal services)
dampened appreciably in 1996.

Resuits from Ordinary Business Activities

Balance of Expenditure /income from the Yaluation and Disposal of Claims, Securities Held in the
Liquidity Reserve and from Contingent Liabilities and Credit Risks. The balance of this item in 1335 was
a provigion of ATS 4.52 billion, compared with a provision of ATS 1.18 billion in 1994. ATS 1.49 billion of
this increase was due to the reversal in 1994 of a portion of the provision for country risk (a
corresponding amount is reflected as an increase in income in the immediately following item, so that the
net effect of the raversal between the two items is zero). The reversat in the country risk provision was
the result of various debt restructuring measures in 1994 that affected certain foreign loans. If the effects
of this reversal are disregarded, the 1995 amount represents an increase in provisions of ATS 1.83 billion
over the 1994 figure (reviged to ATS 2.67 billion). This increase of ATS 1.85 billion was due principalty to
higher provisions for domestic Iloans. Higher provisions with respect to the domestic lending business
were necessary because of changes in the structure of the domestic market. The continued opening of
markets resulting from Austria’s joining of the Eurcpean Union has led to structural adjustments, which in
turn hag resulted in more insotvencies of Austrian enterprises.

Balance of Expenditure /Income from the Valuation and Digposal of Securities Valued as Non-Current
Financial Assets, and From Equity Interests and Shares in Group Companies. Income from this item was
ATS 2.19 billion in 1995, which was an ATS 3.63 billion increase over the provision of ATS 1.43 billion in
1994, As mentioned in the previous paragraph, the ATS 1.49 billion reversal in the country risk provision
is also reflected in this item. If this reversal is disregarded, the 1995 figure represents an increase of ATS
2.14 billion over the 1094 figure (revised to ATS 58 million). This increase of ATS 2.14 billion was largely
due to profit from the sale of the non-financial group companies DZ-Donauzentrum Betriebs- u.
Vermietungs AG and GET Management Gesellschaft fir Gesundheit, Energie u. Technik.

Extraordinary Income/Extraordinary Expenses. The Bank had net extraordinary expenses
(extraordinary income less extraordinary expenses) in 1995 of ATS 292 million, as compared 1o net
extraordinary expenses in 1994 of ATS 346 million. ATS 231 million was allocated to the deficit portion of
the pension provision and ATS 61 million to provisions for severance payments and anniversary bonuses.
These provisions arose from a change in the actuarial calculation for the Bank's provisions for these
amounts in 1892, which resulted in a deficit. Starting in 1992, the pension provision deficit is being
amortized in equal installments over a twenty year period (the “20-year pension gap™'), and the deficit in
severance payments and anniversary bonus provisions is being amortized in equal instaliments over a
five year period (the ‘‘five-year severance and anniversary bonus gap™).

Taxes on Income and Earnings. The Bank’s taxes on income and earnings were ATS 34 million in
1995, an increase of 54.5% from ATS 22 million in 1994. This increase of ATS 12 million was due to taxes
on earnings at foreign branches, in particular the New York branch. Because of Ausirian lax law related 16
banks, which allows for the exclusion of dividend income and certain amounts allocated to reserves from
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taxable income, the Bank has accumulated net operating loss carry-forwards that can be used to offset
future taxable earnings of the Bank. Such operating loss carry-forwards may not, however, be used in
1998 and 1997, due to measures adopted by the Austrian government in an effort to help Austria achieve
compliance with the Maastricht criteria. Also, pursuant to the Austrian tax law related to banks, the
allocation to the Bank's liability reserve, which was formerly fully deductible, became 50% deductible in
1995. Only 25% of the allocation to the Bank's liability reserve will be deductible in respect of 1996 and
no amount will be deductible thereafter.

Changes in Reserves. Reaserves increased to ATS 1.51 billion in 1995 from ATS 503 million in 1994.
The increase resulted principally from an increase of ATS 281 million In the liability reserve on certain rigk-
weighted assets (pursuant to § 23 of the 1993 Banking Act), due to an increase in the total amount of
those risk-weighted assets. An amount of ATS 750 million was allocated to the reserve pursuant to § 12
of the Austrian Income Tax Law, a component of untaxed reserves.

Financial Condition

At December 31, 1995, the Bank had total assets of ATS 677.86 billion, an increase of ATS 41.28
billion, or 6.5%, from ATS 636.58 billion at December 31, 1994. This increase was primarily due 1o an
increase of ATS 21.00 billion in claims against credit institutions, an increase in ATS 13.77 billion in claims
against customers and an increase of ATS 11.27 billion in bonds and other fixed-interest securities. offset
by a decrease of ATS 6.83 billion in debt instruments issued by public agencies and similar securities.

Assets

Claims Against Credit institutions. At December 31, 1995, claims against credit institutions totaled
ATS 178.91 billion, an increase of 13.3%, from ATS 157.91 billion at December 31, 1994. Balances with
foreign banks held in currencies other than Schilling accounted for most of this increase.

Claims Against Custorners. Claims against customers rose ATS 13.77 bilion, or 3.8%, to
ATS 374.03 at December 31, 1995 from ATS 360.26 billion at December 31, 1994. This increase resulted
primarily from an increase of ATS 4.5 billion, or 44.4%, in unlisted securities to ATS 14.6 billion at
December 31, 1995 from ATS 10.1 billion at December 31, 1994, and an increase of ATS 8.7 billion, or
25%, in toans to customers to ATS 356.8 billion at December 31, 1995 from ATS 348.1 billion at
December 31, 1994, The strongest increases occurred in financing for residential construction, which
increased by ATS 4.8 billion, or 11%, to ATS 47.9 billion at December 31, 1995 from ATS 43.1 billion at
December 31, 1994 and public sector financing, which increased by ATS 4.3 billion, or 5.6%. to ATS 81.0
billion at December 31, 1995 from ATS 76.7 billion at December 31, 1994,

Bonds and Other Fixed-interest Securities. Bonds and other fixed-interest securities grew by
ATS 7.66 billion, or 9.9%, to ATS 85.33 billion at December 31, 1995 from ATS 77.67 billion at
December 31, 1994. This increase resulted from increased investments in bonds and other fixed-interest
securities due to the weak credit demand in 1995.

Shares and Other Non-Fixed-Interest Securities.  In 1995, shares (not including equity interests and
shares in group companies) increased in value by ATS 0.4 billion to ATS 6.3 billion at December 31 , 1995
from ATS 5.9 billion at December 31, 1994. These shares represent minority interests in industry and
banking.

Securities. Elements of the item “'securities” on the balance sheet prepared pursuant to Old
Austrian GAAP can now be found in several separate items of the balance sheet prepared pursuant to
New Austrian GAAP, including “claims against credit institutions™, “‘claims against customers”, “debt
instruments issued by public agencies™, "'bonds and other fixed-interest securities” and “‘shares and
other non-fixed-interest securities'. See '*Summary of Principal Differences between New Austrian GAAP
and Old Austrian GAAP" and Notes 1 and 2 to the Audited Financial Statements of the Bank for the year
ended December 31, 1995. The Bank's securities portfolio increased in 1995 by ATS 7.92 billion, or
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9.46%, to ATS 91.61 billion at December 31, 1995 from ATS 83.70 billion at December 31, 1994. This
increase was mainty due to an increase in bonds and other fixed-interest securities.

Equity interests. The book value of the Bank's equity interests decreased by 8.0% in 1995, to
ATS 5.69 billion at December 31, 1995 from ATS 6.26 billion at December 31, 1994. Share capital
increases at Bankhaus Lobbecke & Co. KG and UNION Versicherungs-Aktiengesellschaft of ATS 255
million and ATS 32 million, respectively, were offset by a significant disposal of shares in AEG Austria
Ges.m.b.H. in the amount of ATS 89 million and an increase in provisions for equity interests.

Shares in Group Companies. Shares in group companies decreased by ATS 789 million, or 5.3%, to
ATS 14.04 billion at December 31, 1995 from ATS 14.83 billion at December 31, 1994, This decrease
was due primarily to the sale of interests in the non-finance sector, including Aktiengesellschaft fur
Bauwesen, DZ-Donauzentrum Betriebs- u. Vermietungs AG and GET Management Gesellschatt fur
Gesundheit, Energie und Technik m.b.H., and the sale of shares {within the Group) in Investment Bank
Austria AG (“Investmentbank Austria’). The most significant addition involved the establishment of
Bank Austria (SR} a.s. in Bratislava.,

Tangible Fixed Assets. The Bank's tangible fixed assets (comprised of land and buildings, office
furniture and equipment) increased by ATS 102 million, or 4.9%, increasing to ATS 2.17 billion at
December 31, 1995 from ATS 2.06 billion at December 31, 1994, Additions to land and buildings in 1995
of ATS 110 million were partially offset by disposals of ATS 45 million. The book value of land and
buildings was ATS 626 million at the end of 1995, compared with ATS 582 million at the end of 1994.
Additions to other tangible fixed assets (primarily office furniture and equipment) in 1985 of ATS 504
million involved the cost of adapting and equipping business units and were largely offset by depreciation
totaling ATS 431 million, resulting in a book value of other tangible fixed assets at the end of 1995 of
ATS 1.54 billion, compared with ATS 1.48 billion at the end of 1994.

Liabilities

Due to Credit Institutions. At December 31, 1895 amounts due to credit institutions totaled
ATS 186.513 billion, an increase of 3.3% from ATS 180.64 billion at December 31, 1994. This increase was
primarily due to an increase in borrowings from foreign credit institutions in foreign currencies of ATS 11.6
billion to ATS 110.3 billion at December 31, 1995 from ATS 98.7 billion at December 31, 1994, which was

partially offset by a decline in domestic deposits in both Schilling and foreign currencies of ATS 4.0 billion
to ATS 71.2 billion at December 31, 1995 from ATS 75.2 billion at December 31, 1994.

Due to Customers — Savings Deposits. At December 31, 1995, savings deposits amounted 1o
ATS 171.28 billion, an increase of 1.2% from ATS 189.27 hillion at December 31, 1994. The general trend
in Austria towards alternative forms of savings, particularly in certificates of deposits, limited the growth
of the Bank's savings deposits in 1995,

Due to Customers — Other Liabilifies. At December 31, 1995, other liabilities due to customers
totaled ATS 141.61 billion, an increase of 14.6% from ATS 123.54 hillion at December 31, 1994. This
increase was primarily due to an increase in domestic deposits in both Schilling and foreign currencies of
ATS 21 .8 hillion.

Securitized Liabilities. At December 31, 1995, the Bank's own issues of debt securities amounted
to ATS 99.02 billion, an increase of 6.8% from ATS 92.71 billion at December 31, 1994, Bond issues
increased by ATS 4.11 billion, or 6.6%, in 1995 to ATS 66.60 bilion at December 31, 1995 from
ATS 62.49 billion at December 31, 1994. Certificates of deposits increased 7.3% in 1995 to ATS 32.42
billion at December 31, 1995 from ATS 30.22 billion at December 31, 1994.

Provisions. At December 31, 1995, total provisions amounted to ATS 18.03 billion, an increase of
0.9% from ATS 16.41 billion at December 31, 1994. Of the 1995 increase, changes in provisions for
pensions added ATS 1.20 billion in 1995, whereas changes in the provisions for severance payments
added ATS 92 million. The remaining shortfall in provisions for pensions as of December 31, 1995 was
ATS 3.69 billion, compared to ATS 3.92 biliion as of December 31, 1994. The remaining deficit for
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severance and anniversary bonus payments at December 31, 1995 was ATS 61 million, which will be fully
made up in 1996. An increase of ATS 335 million of the total provisions was related to the provisions for
various miscellaneous and accrued liabilities.

Subordinated Liabilities. Subordinated liabiities decreased by 9.1% in 1995, to ATS 10.58 billion at
December 31, 1995 from ATS 11.64 billion at December 31, 1994. This decrease was primarily due to the
redemption of U.S. dollar-denominated and Canadian doliar-denominated bonds in 1995. Subordinated
liabilities at December 31, 1995 included four Schilling-denominated bonds and twelve foreign currency-
denominated bonds.

Subscribed Capital. The Bank's subscribed capital remained unchanged at ATS 6.47 billion.

Reserves. The Bank's liability reserve, which is a Tier 1 capital reserve account that Austrian banks
are required to maintain, increased by 8.8% to ATS 9.37 billion at December 31, 1995 from ATS 8.61
billion at December 31, 1994, as the Bank allocated ATS 758 million of its annual surplus before changes
in reserves of ATS 2.17 billion to the liability reserve in 1995. See “'Summary of Principal Differences
Between Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in Austria and in the United States — Liability
Reserve'.

The Bank’s other reserves (including capital reserves, retained income, and untaxed reserves)
increased by 7.7% to ATS 14.4 billion at December 31, 1995 from ATS 13.4 billion at December 31,
1994, with the largest increase (ATS 721 million} occurring in untaxed reserves.

Year Ended December 31, 1994 vs. December 31, 1993
Results of Operations

The Bank's operating results. (operating income less operating expenditures) declined by 28.9% to
ATS 4.15 billion in 1994 from ATS 5.84 billion in 1993. The decrease in operating results in 1994 was
primarily due to an increase in operating expenditures in 1994 as compared with 1993, which included a
one-time benefit of ATS 735 million resulting from the renegotiation of the Bank's required contribution to
its pension plan. This increase in operating expenditures was partially offset by an increase in net interest
earned and net commission income, When excluding the one-time benefit of the pension renegotiation
from the 1993 results, operating resuits decreased by 18.6% in 1994 as compared to 1993. As a result of
the decrease in operating results, the Bank's annual surplus before changes in reserves declined to
ATS 1.14 billion in 1994 from ATS 1.32 billion in 1993, representing a decrease of 13.4%.

Operating Income

Net Interest Earned.  The Bank's net interest earned was ATS 11.62 billion in 1994 as compared to
ATS 11.17 billion in 1993, an increase of 4.0%. The Bank's net interest earned as a percentage of
average interest earning assets, however, declined to 2.15% in 1994 from 2.20% in 1993. The Bank’s
average yield on interest bearing liabilities declined to 4.48% in 1994 from 5.21% in 1993, reflecting a
decrease in short-term and money market interest rates in Austria during 1994, which benefited the Bank
given the short-term nature of its liabilities. The Bank’s average vield on interest earning assets declined
to 6.42% in 1994 from 7.18% in 1993, even though intermediate and long-term interest rates rose during
1994. Due to the significant level of competition for loans in the domestic market, the rise in interest rates
did not have a commensurate effect on the Bank's yield on loans to non-credit institutions, which declined
to 7.26% in 1894 from 8.22% in 1993. The Bank’s income from Group companies, equity interests and
non-fixed interest securities increased to ATS 1.08 billion in 1994 from ATS 883 million in 1993, an
increase of 22.3%. This increase was primarily due to an increase in dividends from Group financial
companies as a result of an increase in earnings in the Bank's credit card and mutual fund management
subsidiaries.

Commission Income /Commission Expenses. Net commission income (commission income less
commission expenses) was ATS 2.91 bilfion in 1994 as compared to ATS 2.70 billion in 1993, an
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increase of 7.6%. The overall increase reflects an increase in fees sarned in connection with the Bank’s
lending business, cash payment transactions, securities brokerage and foreign exchange transactions.

Income/Expenses From Financial Transactions. Income from financial transactions was ATS 176
million in 1994 as compared to ATS 1.33 billion in 1993, a decrease of 86.6%. This decrease resulted
from lower trading profits from securities, foreign exchange transactions and trading in derivatives and
higher write-offs on the Bank's trading securities portfolio.

Operating Expenditure

Operating Expenditure. Operating expenditure was ATS 11.93 billien in 1894 as compared to
ATS 10.51 billion in 1993, an increase of 13.5%. This increase was primarily due to a 12.7% increase in
personnel expenses, to ATS 7.15 billion in 1994 from ATS 6.34 billion in 1993, The increase was largely
due to the fact that the 1993 figure reflects a one-time benefit of ATS 735 million relating to the
renegotiation of the Bank's pension plan which provided for newly-instituted staff contributions to the
pension plan, thereby reducing the Bank’s expenses associated with the plan. If this one-time benefit is
excluded from the 1993 results, personnel expenses increased by only 1.0% in 1984,

Results from Ordinary Business Activities

Balance of Expenditure/income from the Valuation and Disposal of Claims, Securities Held in the
Liquidity Reserve and from Contingent Liabilities and Credit Risks. In 1994, the balance of this item was
a provision of ATS 1.18 billion, as compared to a provision of ATS 3.44 billion in 1993, This decrease in
provisions was primarily due to the reversal in 1994 of a portion of the provision for country risks
described above (a corresponding amount is reflected as a decrease in income in the immediately
following item, so that the net effect of the reversal between the two items is zero). If the effects of this
reversal are disregarded, net provisions decreased by ATS 773 million or 22.56% over the 1993 figure.

Balance of Expenditure /Income from the Valuation and Disposal of Securities Valued as Non-Current
Financial Assets, and From Equity Interests and Shares in Group Companies. If the effects of the
reversal in the provision for country risks described above are disregarded, the net change in this item in
1994 was an increase in income of ATS 421 million over the 1993 figure. This increase was primarily due
to gains realized on the sale by the Bank in 1994 of its ownership interests in Mercurbank
Aktiengesellschaft, and Reumannplatzgarage Wr. Garagenbau-und-Betriebsges.m.H. und Co KG,
partially offset by allocations to provisions for holdings in other Bank Austria Group companies.

Extraordinary Income/Extraordinary Expenses. The Bank’s net extraordinary expenses
(extraordinary income lese extraordinary expenses) were ATS 346 million in 1994, as compared to
ATS 481 million in 1993, a decrease of 28.1%. This decrease wag primarily due to the 1994 decrease in
the allocation to the reserve for potential legal liabilities. In both 1994 and 1993, an amount of ATS 231
million was included as an extraordinary expenge with respect to the 20-year pension gap. and an amount
of approximately ATS 61 million was included with respect to the 5.year severance and anniversary
bonus gap.

Taxes on Income and Earnings.  Taxes on income, earnings and property increased 5.2% in 1994 to
ATS 22.3 million in 1894 from ATS 21.2 million in 1993.

Changes in Reserves. Reserves decreased by 38.2% in 1994 to ATS 504 million in 1934 from
ATS 815 million in 1993, This decrease was mainly the result of a lower allocation ta the liability reserve
pursuant to the 1993 Banking Act.

Financial Condition

At December 31, 1994, the Bank's total assets were ATS 636.58 billion, an increase of ATS 58.11
billion (of which 26.7 billion resulted from the merger with Wiener Hypo Bank AG), or 10.0%, from total
acsets of ATS 578.47 billion at December 31, 1993. This increase was primarily due to an increase of
ATS 20.00 billion in debt instruments issued by public agencies, an increase of ATS 9.41 billion in claims
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against credit institutions, and an increase of ATS 41.95 billion in claims against customers, partially
offset by a decrease in bonds and other fixed-interest securities of ATS 13.45 billion,

Assets

Claims Against Credit Institutions. At December 31, 1994, amounts due from credit institutions
were ATS 157.91 billion, an increase of 6.3% from such claims of ATS 148.560 billion at December 31,
1983. This increase was primarily due to an increase in the volume of business in the foreign inter-bank
market and a desire by the Bank to limit its exposure to cradit institutions to one that wasg short-term in
nature.

Claims Against Custorners. At December 31, 1994, ctaims against customers were ATS 360.26
billion, an increase of 13.2% from such claims of ATS 318.31 billion at December 31, 1993. This increase
was primarily due to the merger with Wiener Hypo Bank AG (adding ATS 24.3 billion) and to an increase
in ioans to domestic customers of 11.0 billion, partially offset by a decrease in loans to foreign customears
of ATS 2.1 bitlion.

Bonds and Other Fixed-interest Securities. At December 31, 1994, the amount of bonds and other
fixed-interest securities (including such securities contained within the items '‘debt instruments issued
by public agencies’, ''claims against credit institutions’” and “‘claims against customers™) was ATS 77.7
billion, an increase of 30.6%, from a total of ATS 59.5 billion at December 31, 1993.

Shares and Other Non-Fixed-Interest Securities. At December 31, 1994, the amount of shares and
other non-fixed-interest securities was ATS 5.92 hillion, a decrease of 4.8%, from a total of ATS 6.22
billion at December 31, 1993.

Securities. At December 31, 1994, the Bank's securities portfolio, which included fixed-interest
securities, equity shares and other securities, totaled ATS 83.7 bitlion, an increase of 27.4%, from a total
of AT3 66.7 billion at December 31, 1993. This increase was primarily due to an increase in bonds and
other fixed-interest securities resulting from the Bank's investment of excess liquidity in bonds of the
Republic and its political subdivisions.

Equity interests. At December 31, 1994, the amount of equity interests was ATS 6.26 billion, a
decrease of 4.5%, from a total of ATS 6.55 billion at December 31, 1993. This decrease was primarily due
to the sale of Perimooser Zementwerke Aktiengesellschatft.

Shares in Group Companies. The book value of the Bank's equity interests in Bank Austria Group
companies increased by 3.5% in 1994 to ATS 14.83 billion at December 31, 1994 from ATS 14.33 billion
at December 31, 1993. The increase in 1994 was primarily due to acquisitions by the Bank in 1994 of
UNITECH Aktiengesellschaft and Bank Austria Wohnbaubank Aktiengesellschaft, offset by sales of
holdings in Mercurbank Aktiengesellschaft.

Tangible Fixed Assets. The Bank’s tangible fixed assets increased 7.2% in 1994. Land and
buildings increased by 11.1% in 1994 to ATS 0.58 billion at December 31, 1994 from ATS 0.52 billion at
December 31, 1993. This increase has resulted primarily from collateral repossessions by the Bank in
1994. Office furniture and equipment increased by 5.6% to ATS 1.48 billion in 1994 from ATS 1.40 billion
at December 31, 1983. This increase was primarily due to an upgrade of technical equipment in the
Bank’s branches and additional purchases of electronic data processing equipment, offset by
depreciation of existing fixed assets.

Liabilities
Due to Credit Institutions. At'December 31, 1994, amounts due to credit institutions wers

ATS 180.64 billion, a decrease of 3.3% from ATS 186.72 billion at December 31, 1993. This decrease
was primarily due to a lower level of refinancing of export loans by Osterreichische Kontrellbank.

Due to Customers — Savings Deposits. At December 31, 1994, savings deposits amounted to
ATS 169.27 billion, an increase of 3.9% from ATS 162.87 billion at December 31, 1993, The general trend
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in Austria towards alternative forms of savings, particularly in the form of certificates of deposits, limited
the growth of the Bank's savings deposits in 1994.

Due to Customers — Other Liabilities. At December 31, 1994, amounts due to others were
ATS 123.54 billion, an increase of 13.3% from ATS 109.01 billion at December 31, 1993. This increase
wag primarily due to a reduction in the funding of the Bank’s New York branch from the inter-bank market
with a corresponding increase in borrowings from other sources.

Securitized Liabilities. At Dacember 31, 1994, securitized liabilities were ATS 92.71 billion, an
increasa of 67.1% from ATS 55.47 at December 31, 1993. This increase was primarily due to an increase
in outstandinge under various bonds issued and an increase in certificates of deposits, issued as an
aiternative to savings deposits. At December 31, 1994, outstandings under various bonds issued
amounted to ATS 41.8 hillion, an increage of 9.7% from ATS 38.1 billion at December 31, 1993. Municipal
bonds and mortgage bonds increased to ATS 27 .8 billion at December 31, 1994, of which 24.9 billion
resulted from the merger with Wiener Hypo Bank AG.

Provigions. At Dacember 31, 1994, total provisions amounted to ATS 16.41 billion, an increase of
5.7% from ATS 15.53 pillion at December 31, 1993. Of the 1994 increase, changes in provisions for
pensions added ATS 697 miltion in 1894, whereas changes in the provisions for severance payments
added ATS 113 millien. The remaining increase of ATS 64 million was related to provisions for various
miscellaneous and acerued liabilities. :

Subordinated Liabilities. Subordinated liabilities increased 24.4% in 1994, to ATS 11.64 billion ai
December 31, 1994 from ATS 8.38 bitlion at Dacember 31, 1993. Thig increase was primarily due to an
expansion in the supplementary element of own funds.

Subscribed Capital. The Bank's subscribed capital increased by 1.1% in 1994, to ATS 6.47 billion
at December 31, 1994 from ATS 6.40 bilion at December 31, 1993. The increase resulted from the
merger with Wiener Hypo Bank AG.

Reserves. The Bank's liability reserve increased by 8.5% to ATS 8.61 billion at December 31, 1994
from ATS 7.94 billion at December 31, 1993, as the Bank allocated ATS 0.5 billion of its annual surplus
(before changes to reserves) of ATS 1.14 billion to the liability reserve in 1994.

The Bank's other reserves remained constant at ATS 13.4 billion at December 31, 1994 and at
Dacember 31, 1993,
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INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The financial information set forth below for the nine months ended September 30, 1996 and 1995
and at September 30, 1996 reflect unaudited results of the Bank for the respective periods in the
presentation required under New Austrian GAAP.

Pursuant to the regulations of the Austrian Ministry of Finance and of the Austrian National Bank, the
Bank does not prepare profit and loss account data below the “operating results'’ line item on an interim
basis. Therefore, information regarding additions to provisions for loan losses, gains or losses on the sale
of interests in companies in the Bank Austria Group and extraordinary earnings or expenses are not
reported for the nine months ended September 30, 1996 and 1995, as such items are evaluated only on
an annuat basis.

For the nine months
ended
September 30,
1995 1996

{ATS in millions)

Profit and loss account data
Net interest earned. . ... ... i i e 8,986 9,247
Income from securities and equity interests:

Income from shares, other ownership interests and non-fixed-interest

BEGUNIES L. e 115 118
Income from equity interests and shares in group companies ... ............ 604 588
Net commission INCOME (1) ...ttt e e e e e 2,073 2,179
Income / expenses from financial transactions ........ ... ... ... . . ....... 661 899
Other operating iNCOME . . .. ... ..ottt e e e 264 273
Operating INCOME . ... e 12,703 13,304
General administrative expenses:
RIS ONNEl X PN SO L . L e (5,639) (5,808)
Other administrative expenses
{expenditures for materials) ... ... .. ... (3,038)  (3,113)
Depraciation on assets .. ... ... (508} {535)
Other operating expenses . .. ... e {226) (230)
Operating expenditures . .. ... ...t {(9.411) (8,686)
Operaling resUlte ... e 3,292 3,618

(1) Commission income less commission expenses,
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At December 31, At September 30,
1095 1996

{ATS in millions)

Balance sheet data

Vault cash, balances with cenirat banks and postal giro offices 8,335 8,520
Debt instruments issued by public agencies and bills of

exchange eligible for refinancing at the central bank......... 44,340 55,069
Claims against credit institutions .. ..., 178,905 189,143
Claims against CUSLOMEIS . . ... .. ... .ot s 374,027 306,346
Bonds and other fixed-interest SECUrities ...............c.oveuns 25,022 23,957
Shares and other non-fixed-interest securities. . ............... 6,288 9,643
EqQUITY IMBrESTS .. .. e 5,693 6,069
Shares IN group COMPENIES. . ... ..ottt iieeeaasann 14,038 14171
OFNBE ASSBIS . o ittt et e 21,215 17,321
Total @586 oo v it i i et e e e 677,863 720,239
Due to credit institutions .. ... . 186,528 202,420
Due to customers:

Savings deposits . . ... ... 171,297 160,723

Other iabilities . . ... . e 141,614 155,334
Securitized liahilities . ... .. e 99,017 116,672
Other lighilities . . ... .. e 18,000 18,830
POV ONE - . o e 18,030 17,485
Subordinated liabilities . ... ... ... 10,580 11,669
Supplementary capital .. ... 2,512 2,130
Total ADIItES . ...t vtiiecirie it 647,578 £85,263
Subscribed CEPILAl . .....viv i et 6,474 7,074
RSB VS . & e e ettt et e e e 14,438 18,529
Liabilily TESEIVE . .. i eis it e b 0,373 9,373
Total shareholdars’ equity .. ... ... ... e 30,285 34,976
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ... ovv i nss 677,863 720,239

Results of Operations

Operating results (operating income less operating expenditure) were ATS 3.62 billion for the nine
months ended September 30, 1996, an increase of 9.9% from ATS 3.29 billion for the nine months ended
September 30, 1995. This increase was due to an increage in operating income of 4.7% to ATS 13.30
billion for the nine months ended September 30, 1996 from ATS 12.70 billion for the nine months ended
September 30, 1995, offset by an increase in operating expenditure of 2.9%, to ATS 9.69 billion for the
nine months ended September 30, 1996 from ATS 9.41 billion for the nine months ended September 30,
19095,

The increase in operating income of 4.7% was primarily due to a 2.9% increase In net interest
earned, to ATS 9.25 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 1996 from ATS 8.99 billion for the
nine months ended September 30, 1995, and an increase in income from financial transactions to
ATS 899 million for the nine months ended September 30, 1996 as compared to income of ATS 661
million for the nine months ended September 30, 1995

The increase in operating expenditure of 2.9% was primarily due to an increase of 3.0% In personnel
expenses, to ATS 5.81 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 1996 from ATS 5.64 billien for
the nine months ended September 30, 1995, and a 2.5% increase in expenditures for materials, to
ATS 3.11 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 1996 from ATS 3.04 billion for the nine months
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ended September 30, 1995. Personnel expenses increased as increases in wages and salaries more than
offset a decline in costs due to employee attrition.

Financial Condition

At September 30, 1996, the Bank had total assets of ATS 720.24 billion, an increase of ATS 42.38
billion, or 6.3%, from ATS 677.86 billion at December 31, 1995, This increase was primarily due to an
increase of ATS 10.73 billion, or 24.2%, in holdings of debt instruments issued by public agencies, an
increase of ATS 10.24 billion, or 5.7%, in claime against credit institutions, an increase of ATS 22.32
billion, or 8.0%, in claims against customers, and an increase of ATS 3.36 billion, or 53.4%, in shares and
other non-fixed interest securities, partially offset by a decrease of ATS 1.07 billion, or 4.3%, in bonds and
other fixed-interest securities.

The corresponding increase in liabilities of ATS 42.38 billion was primarily due to an increase of
ATS 15.89 billion, or 8.5%, in amounts due to credit institutions, an increase of ATS 13,72 billion, or 9.7%,
in other amounts due to customers, and an increase of ATS 17.66 bitlion, or 17.8%, in securitized
liabilities, partially offset by a decrease of ATS 10.57 billion, or 8.2%, in savings deposits.

BUSINESS

The Bank Austria Group, which comprises the Bank, its subsidiaries and participations, is engaged in
a wide range of banking, financial and other activities in Austria and throughout the world. The Bank took
its current form as a resutt of the merger of two of the largest banks in Austria that became effective as of
January 1, 1991. Based on total assets of ATS 678 billion at December 31, 1995, the Bank is the largest
bank in Austria. The Bank’s long-term senior indebtedness is rated Aaa by Moody's and AAA by Standard
and Poor’s and the Bank's short-term senior indebtedness is rated P-1 by Moody's and A-14 by
Standard and Poor's. These ratings reflect, in addition to the financial condition of the Bank, the
guarantee of the Bank's obligations provided by the City of Vienna. In connection with the Bank's bid to
purchase all the Republic's shares in Creditanstalt, Standard & Poor's changed its rating outlook for the
Bank and the City of Vienna from stable to negative, while currently contirming the Bank's and the City of
Vienna's AAA long-term ratings, and Moody's gave notice of the ptacing under review for possible
downgrade the Bank's Aaa long-term deposit and senior debt ratings and its Aal subordinated debt
rating and the Aaa long-term debt rating of the City of Vienna. See “Bank Austria — Statutory
Guarantee™ and ''The Proposed Acquisition of Creditanstalt”. The Bank also owns a substantial portfolio
of equity investments in non-financial companies, primarily in Austria.

Strategy

Management of the Bank believes that the banking industry in Austria is undergoing significant
changes. Accordingly, management is actively repositioning the Bank to compete more effectively in the
changing environment. In this regard, the Bank has entered into an agreement to acquire a controlling
interest in Creditanstalt. See “The Proposed Acquisition of Creditanstalt’.

A number of factors are contributing to the changes in the banking industry. The intense competition
among banks in Austria results principally from the fact that the market for banking services is expected
to experience only limited growth in the near term and is saturated with financial institutions. Austrian
consumers are demonstrating greater sophistication by increasingly investing in potentially higher
yielding capital markets instruments as an alternative to traditional savings accounts. Corporate
cuslomers arg adapting to a more open international environment and are demanding more complex
financial services. As corporate customers look for growth opportunitics beyond their borders, they
increasingly borrow or conduct transactions in currencies other than the Austrian Schilling. Other
significant factors affecting the banking industry include the requirements of the European Union that
banks provide more extensive financial disclosure and comply with more stringent capital adequacy
requirements.
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It is anticipated that Austria will be a parlicipant in the European monetary union as of January 1,
1999, and will therefore also introduce the common European currency (the "'Euro”). The changeover
from the Austrian Schilling to the Euro presents a major challenge for the entire economy and in particutar
for the banking sector. In addition to countless technical preparatory steps required for the changeover,
there is significant public demand for information and explanation. While increased competition in Gertain
business areas may result from banks in other EU countries offering Euro products within Austria, the
Bank considers its home market advantage in Austria to be significant. To the extent the introduction of
the Furo offers banks opporiunities to expand their potential customer base (and allows banks outside
Austria to compele for customers within Austria), the Bank will have a similar epportunity to compete for
customers in other EU countries.

A related issue facing the Bank is the adaptation of its various electronic data processing systems in
anticipation of the Euro and in anticipation of the turn of the century, when older software programs not
designed to operate with years beginning with the digit *2" will need to have been adjusted or replaced.
Both the introduction of the Euro and the year 2000 changes present considerable challenges, but also
bring opportunities for the Bank to streamline and improve its systems. The Bank has formed two task
forces responsible for developing and implementing plans to implemeant necessary changes to eleclronic
data processing systems. The Bank's in-house personnel are working together with personnel at certain
of the Bank’s subsidiaries with the goal of having solutions in place by the end of 1998.

in light of these conditions, management has established the foilowing strategic goale for the Bank:

» To further strengthen the Bank’s consumer banking franchise. Management intends to continue
to (i) rationalize product lines with a focus on improving margins, (ii} rationalize product delivery
with a focus on enhancing efficiency and (iii) emphasize long-term market share expansion.

+ To continue expanding the Bank’s ability to serve the needs of its corporate customers in today’s
business environment. Management has been buiiding upon the Bank's corporate banking
franchise by focusing to a greater extent upon (i) customers in the private sector, {ii} the
international needs of customers and (i} the capital markets needs of customers.

» To continue building a focused international business portfolio based upon perceived
opporlunities in Eastern and Central Europe, where the Bank betieves it has certain competitive
advantages, and in selected areas in the Far East.

To advance the achigvement of these goals, the Bank has reached an agreement with the Republic
to acquire a controlling interest in Creditanstalt, a significant competitor in the Austrian banking market.
See “‘The Proposed Acquisition of Creditanstalt”. The Bank believes that the proposed acquisition will
support the achievement of its strategic goals in many ways, including:

« Enhancing ite competitiveness as a leading Austrian provider of consumer and business financial
products through, among other things, the attainment of a larger and more diversified customef
base and through improved geographic balance and business sector penetration within Austria.
Higtorically, the Bank has had particular strength in serving personal banking customers
{(especially in the Vienna area), while Creditanstalt has had a prominent role in serving large
Austrian corporate customers.

= Through increased size, raising its ability to achieve economies of scale, spreading the costs of
both mass market activities and sophisticated niche capabilities over a broader revenue base,
and raising its profile as a significant market participant on the European level.

- By achieving economies of scale and increasing operating efficiency, management believes it will
strengthen the Bank's competitiveness vis-a-vis increasing competition from large foreign banks
in the Austrian market.

« Increasing opportunity for the socially responsible consolidation of overlapping operations and for
cost savings through the potential avoidance of duplication in new business initiatives.
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» Strengthening the platform for growth established by the Bank and Creditanstalt in Central and
Eastern Europe, where Creditanstalt has been particularly active, and by virtue of the benefits of
greater size and reach, enhancing the likelihood that, in addition to Austrian companies, other
international companies will turn to the Bank Austria Group for financial services in that domain
(as well as for such services in the international financial products market) .

» Further rounding out Bank Austria Group's palette of services as a universal financial services
provider through coordination with Creditanstalt of complementary financial service offerings.

Although the Bank believes that the acquisition of a controlling interest in Creditanstalt will advance
the realization of the Bank’s goals, there can be no assurance that such goals will be attained. As with
any acquisition of the size proposed, there are uncertainties and challenges to be met, including the
challenge of retaining the business of Creditanstalt’s customers and the goodwill of its employees
following the change of control. Bank Austria believes that its experience in combining and coordinating
the activities of banking institutions with differing historical backgrounds (gained through the merger of
Z-Bank AG and OLB and, more recently, through the coordination of certain activities with GiroCredit and
WestlB} will be of value in bringing Creditanstalt within the Bank Austria Group. The Bank believes that
the realization of the benefits of the acquisition are not dependent on the legal merger of the Bank with
Creditanstalt.

In addition to pursuing the acquisition of 2 controlling interest in Creditanstalt, Bank Austria intends
to continue pursuing an active program of reducing its investments in non-financial participations and
redeploying the proceeds expected to be realized in these sales, together with other funds available to
the Bank, for the following purposes:

s To continue ite investment in technology that will improve the efficiency of the Bank’s operations,
principally in the delivery of services to consumer banking customers and in the processing of
trangactions, with the purpose of achieving economies of scale and thereby reducing per unit
costs.

* To build and strengthen alliances, create joint ventures and make acquisitions that combine
complementary strengthe to enable the Bank to leverage or otherwice extend its core business
franchises.

* To maintain its efforts to control the growth of operating expenditures by rationalizing the Bank’s
branch network and reducing the number of employees through attrition. Management believes
that the Bank’s investment in technology for self-service and electronic banking operations
enable it to continue to control the growth of operating expenditures and improve its quality of
service.

The Bank is also pursuing its strategic goals currently by rationalizing the range of products and
services offered and improving the manner in which they are delivered. The Bank is facilitating this shift
by identifying customer groups according to their needs and assigning, to serve such groups, Bank
employees who have received specialized training to cross-sell products offered by members of the Bank
Austria Group.

Beginning with the merger of Z-Bank AG and OLB in 1991, Bank Austria has taken various steps to
achieve its strategic goals. The branch network has been rationatized, staffing levels have been reduced,
back-office and electronic data processing operations have been combined, and investment in banking
technology has been increased. This branch network rationalization will now enable the Bank to focus on
selling its products and providing more consumer-oriented services to its client base. The Bank’s
acquisition of Wiener Hypo Bank AG broadened the Bank's mortgage business and increased the Bank's
flexibility in funding its mortgage and municipal loan portfolios. The Bank has acquired a number of small
savings banks that have extended the Bank's branch network beyond its core Vienna market into other
regions of Austria where the Bank was less well represented. In addition, the Bank recently announced its
intention to acquire the Austrian banking subsidiary of its German strategic partner Westdeutsche
Landesbank Girozentrale (“'WestLB") as a further step in its alliance with WestLB. The acquisition of this
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subsidiary, WestLB {Austria) AG, is expected to be consummated in early 1997, subject to regulatory
approval.

The Bank has entered inte a number of strategic alliances, such as those with Cassa di Risparmio
delle Provincie Lombarde S.p.A. and WestLB, that extend the range of non-banking financial products the
Bank can sell to its banking customers and engage its strategic partners to sell the Bank’s products to a
new customer base. In the alliance with WestLB, in which WestLB took a 9.1% interest in the Bank's
share capital by way of a capital increase, Bank Austria gained a strong international partner. The Bank
and WestLB have declared sach other to be their preferred partner for cross-border financial
transactions. In this cooperative relationship, the Bank and WestLB will focus primarily on foreign
commercial transactions, foreign money transfers, currency clearing, the securities business, investment
banking and business in Eastern Europe. In addition, the Bank has been using its unigue relationship with
GiroCredit to establish joint ventures that combine formerly independent business units into a larger
entity that can achieve a greater market impact. Similarly, certain back-office and electronic data
processing operations of the Bank and GiroCredit are in the process of being combined for the purpose of
realizing economies of scale. In connection with the Bank's bid for the Republic’s shares In Creditanstalt,
the parties that make up the current coalition government in Austria reached an understanding that AV-Z
should offer its shares in GiroCredit. The Bank does not believe that the proposed acquisition of
Creditanstalt and any possible offer of shares of GiroCredit by AV-Z will be likely to have a material effect
on the Bank’s joint ventures with GiroCredit. See “The Proposed Acquisition of Creditanstalt”.

The discussion in the remainder of this section of the Offering Memorandum is a description of the
business of the Bank without inclusion of the business of Creditanstali. If the proposed acquisition is
given effect, certain aspects of the Bank's business may be expected to change as the Bank seeks to
realize and build upon the benefits of the acguisition.

Consumer Banking

The Bank provides a full range of banking services to consumers, including loans, mortgage loans,
savings and checking accounts and personal lines of credit (including overdraft facilities) as well as
securities brokerage and custodian services. The members of the Bank Austria Group also offer
consumers products such as credit cards, investment management services, mutual funds, life and
property insurance and automobile leasing. See ' — Other Financial Services''.

As of December 31, 1995, the Bank had approximately cne million customers holding in the
aggregate 4.65 million accounts, of which 2.98 million are passbook savings accounts. The savings
deposits held by the Bank as of December 31, 1995 aggregated ATS 171.3 billion. Based upon
information published by the Austrian National Bank, the Bank believes that such savings deposits
represented approximately 11% of all savings deposits in Austria. Also based upon information published
by the Austrian National Bank, the Bank believes that, as of December 31, 1995, its outstanding loans to
individuals represented approximately 11.9% of all such loans made by Austrian credit institutions.

As of the date of this Cifering Memorandum, the Bank operates 299 branches in Austria. Immediately
after the consummation of the 1991 merger, the Bank had an aggregate of 331 branches. Since that
time, the Bank has closed or consolidated 64 branches and acquired or opened an aggregate of 32
branches, primarily as a result of acquiring smaller banks in various parts of Austria outside of Vienna. The
Bank currently plans to close or consolidate additional branches through the end of 1997, at which time,
in the absence of further acguisitions, it expects to have approximately 280 to 290 branches in Austria.

The Bank is pursuing its strategic goals by rationalizing the range of products offered and improving
the manner in which they are delivered. Previously, the Bank concentrated its marketing efforts based on
the perceived profitability of particular products rather than on an analysis of the needs of its customers.
More recently, the Bank has attempted to research its customers’ needs and to satisfy such needs with a
more streamlined range of both banking and related financial products and services. To facilitate cross-

selling, the Bank has implemented a customer profile data base that identifies and categorizes customers
who may be interested in acquiring specific products. The principal objective of these efforts is to
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strengthen customer rolationships. From 1992 through 1994, the Bank retained McKinsey & Co. to
develop comprehensive management, training and databage programs to establish and support a new
marketing strategy referred to as ““Sales 2000". As a result, the Bank has reorganized ite branch staff to
serve identified segments of customers so that the quality and efficiency of services can be improved and
sustained. Notwithstanding the reduction in the number of its branches, Bank Austria believes that it has
substantially maintained its market share of savings deposits and consumer loans and that the Sales
2000 marketing strategy will help the Bank maintain and expand ite markat share in the long term.

Among the many products being cross-sold to the Bank’s customers are portfolio consulting and
discrationary portfolic management services of BANKINVEST AUSTRIA Bank Austria-GiroCredit
Vermbgensverwaltungsbank Ges.m.b.H. {“BANKINVEST AUSTRIA™), mutual fund products of
Sparinvest Austria Kapitalanlagegesellschaft m.b.H. (“'Sparinvest Austria™}, life and property insurance
provided by UNION Versicherungs-Aktiengesellschaft, and .VISA™ credit cards provided by VISA-
SERVICE Kreditkarten Aktiengeselischaft (**VISA-SERVICE™) (the exclusive licensor of VISA™ cards in
Austria}. See “— Other Financial Services”. The mutual fund products of Sparlnvest Austria and the
portfolic management services of BANKINVEST AUSTRIA are mainly distributed through the branches of
Bank Austria, GiroCredit and those savings banks that use the centralized services provided by
GiroCredit. Recently, VISA-SERVICE has begun to offer VISA™ cards to customers of the savings banks
that use the services of GiroCredit. See ' — Other Financial Services — Cradit Cardg”. Management
believes that the distribution of its products across a wider customer bage will iead to reduced per
transaction costs and to increased revenues. The Bank is exploring other opportunities to sell products
across this expanded customer base.

During 1993, 1994 and 1995, the Bank invested an aggregate of ATS 2.2 billion primarily to build a
new client-server computer architecture for its branches as well as to develop client advice-driven
software and image scanning capabilities and intends to continue making substantial investments to
improve self-service and electronic banking operations during the next several years.

In 1995, the Bank established a joint venture with GiroCredit to develop data processing capabilities,
through an established company called Sparkassen-Datendienst-Aktiengesellschaft & Co. KG
{"'Spardat’’ ), based upon customized computer softwara. The Spardat joint venture is expected to result
in a lower cost of back-office operations for both banks. The Bank ig also using technology to improve the
efficiency of its delivery of products and services by ancouraging its customers to conduct banking
activities without the involvement of a teller. Ag of December 31, 1996 approximately 63,000 of tha
Bank’s customers are using extended-hour talephone banking services, and approximatety 18,000
customers are accessing banking services through their personal computers. The Bank offers for sale a
customized version of Quicken™, a personal financial management software product that permits the
Bank’s customers to obtain current information directly from their accounts. Through use of the foregoing
technologies, the Bank expects to improve its operational efficiency, improve the quality of service and
strengthen its relationghip with its customers. In connection with the Bank’'s bid for the Republic’s shares
in Creditanstalt, the parties that make up the current coalition government in Austria reached an
understanding that AV-Z should offer its shares in GiroCredit. The Bank does not believe that the
proposed acquisition of Creditanstalt and any possible offer of shares of GiroCredit by AV-Z will be likely
to have a material effect on the Bank's joint ventures with GiroCredit. See "'The Proposed Acquisition of
Creditanstalt”.

The Bank is a member of a nationwide consortium of Austrian banks that provides a network of
outdoor ATMs. As of December 31, 1995, the consortium network consisted of approximately 1,993
ATMs across Austria, of which approximately 175 were owned and operated by the Bank. In addition to
the ATMs that are operated by the consortium, the Bank is enhancing its detivery of banking services by
providing automated customer service capabilities in the form of its own ATMs inside its branches.
Currently, the Bank has installed in excess of 225 ATMs inside its branches.
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Corporate Banking

The corporate banking division of the Bank is organized to deliver a full range of banking and related
financial services to corporations and governmental entities through its main offices in Vienna and a
central office in each of the eight other Austrian provinces and the Bank's foreign branches and affiliates.

The Bank extends loans to companies within most sectors of the Austrian economy. At
December 31, 1985, the Bank had domestic corporate loans outstanding of ATS 175.5 billion. The Bank
is also a substantial lender fo the public sector, with Ioans 1o the Republic of Austria and its political
subdivisions of ATS 80.7 billion, or 25% of total domestic loans outstanding at December 31, 1995.

Each regional corporate lending office is the primary basis through which the risk-related client
relationship is managed. The marketing of the Bank's services is done by relationship managers. Credit
application and monitoring is conducted from separate regional lending offices. Credit review and
approval, however, are overseen by the centralized credit committee in its Vienna head office. See
"Selected Statistical Information — Credit Approval and Review Pracedures’.

The corporate iending group works together with the Bank's capital markets group to coordinate
client needs with respect to financing, custodian, treasury and export-import services. In connection with
recent privatizations of certain government-owned enterprises, the capital markets group and
Investmentbank Austria have provided equity and fixed income underwriting services to such enterprises
as well as to a handful of large private sector entities. While these entities 100k 1o the capital markets as
an alternative to commercial bank borrowings, the absolute size of such financings remain small as a
percentage of the total funding needs of corporate entities in Austria; however, the capital markets do
provide a significant funding source for the Republic of Austria and its political subdivisions.

In recent years, corporate loan growth in Austria has been generally flat due to a combination of
moderate economic growth, active competition, and the positive cash flow generating capacity of many
private sector companies. Although the Repubiic of Austria and its political subdivisions have been active
borrowers in recenl years, borrowing activity slowed in 1996, in part due to the Republic’s steps to
comply with the Maastricht criteria. In managing its corporate loan growth, the Bank’s management has
stated that its primary focus is on the credit quality of the borrower and nol on building market share by
pursuing loans to corporate customers on the lower end of the credit spectrum.

The sectors of the economy that have accounted for a significant source of credit demand are the
export-driven industries and the residential construction and mortgage financing businesses. The Bank
has made a concerted efforl 10 capitalize on these two growing sectors of the economy while preserving
its conservative credit standards. The Bank’s management betieves that it has significantly expanded its
market share of the expori-finance business over the past three years.

Growth in residential construction and mortgage financing has been driven by various subsidized
programs of the Republic of Austria and its political subdivisions. Bank Austria has had extensive
experience in financing residential construction and is increasing its activities in mortgage financing. In
recent months, demand for financing from the residential construction sector has softened as market
conditions in that sector have grown weaker.

International Banking

The Bank conducts its international banking activities through its main office in Vienna as well as
through its foreign branches in London, New York, Hong Kong, Moscow (which is planned to be
converted into a subsidiary in 1997) and Singapore (which branch was opened in October 1396),
banking subsidiaries in Switzertand and Eastern and Central Europe and other offices, subsidiaries and
participations located around the world. The Bank's principal international activities consist of trade
financing, including import and export financing, project financing and commercial lending as well as
money market, currency and interest rate swaps, derivatives transactions and other usual treasury
functions. See ' — Other Financial Services''. As of December 31, 1995, the Bank conducted operations
through 23 subsidiary banks, branches and agency and representative offices in 17 countries.
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The Bank's branches are engaged in various forms of lending to financial institutions and commercial
enterprises and, to a limited extent, real estate financing. Besides a broad range of treasury products, a
major marketing focus is on financing exports to Eastern and Central Europe. The London branch and the
Bank’s broker-dealer subsidiary in New York also conduct broker-dealer activities, principally for
customers of the Bank.

Although the Bank’s international asset growth in the past three years has been principally in
Western Europe, the Bank is increasingly focusing on developing its business in the Far East and Eastern
andg Central Europe. The Bank converted its Singapore office to full branch status in October 1996. In
Eastern and Central Eurcpe, the Bank currently has banking subsidiaries in the Czech Republic, the
Slovak Republic, Slovenia and Hungary. In 1996, the Bank also established representative offices in
Croatia and Poland. The Bank plans to convert its representative office in Croatia and its branch in
Moscow into subsidiaries in 1997. Many of the current activities of the Bank’s Far East operations involve
arranging financing for exports to Eastern and Central Europe. The Bank believes the Far East cffers
significant growth opportunities given the sizable demand for icans and commercial banking services
engendered by the region's rapid economic expansion and the consequent favorable margins.

The Bank’s export financing is in most cases secured by the partial guarantee of Oesterreichische
Kontrollbank Aktiengesellschaft (‘“OKB''}, which acts as an agent of the Republic of Austria in providing
export insurance to Austrian exporters and to banks financing such exports. The Bank owns a 35%
indirect interest in OKB. The Bank often provides loans and financial and other services to Austrian
companies in which it holds participations in support of their export business.

Other Financial Services

The Bank Austria Group includes 141 credit, financial and bank-support service companies. See
Note V to the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Bank Austria Group for the year ended
December 31, 1995 and the notes thereto included in Annex B to this Offering Memorandum for a partial
list of such companies. Approximately 120 of these companies provide services to the Bank’'s consumer
and corporate banking customers. The remainder of these companies provide bank-support services to
the Bank Austria Group companies. Set forth below is a description of the principal financial service
companies, as well as of certain departments of the Bank involved in non-credit related services.

Asget Management and Investment Advisory Services. The Bank provides investment advice and
discretionary portfolio management gervices through BANKINVEST AUSTRIA primarily to customers of
the Bank, GiroCredit and the savings banks that use the services of GiroCredit. Since 1994, the Bank and
GiroCredit have each owned 50% of the equity of BANKINVEST AUSTRIA. As of September 30, 1996,
BANKINVEST AUSTRIA had an asset portfalio of approximately ATS 7.7 billion under management.

In September 1995, 75% of the ordinary shares of Sparinvest Austria were acquired by BANKINVEST
AUSTRIA. The remaining 25% is held by various Austrian savings banks. Sparlnvest Austria is the second
largest funds management company in Austria, offering 99 mutual fund products. As of September 30,
1996, Sparlnvest Austria had an asset portfolio of approximately ATS 96.8 billion under management, as
compared to ATS 81 billion under management at September 30, 1895. The assets under management

by Sparinvest Austria represent approximately 24% of the funds under management in Austria as of
September 30, 1008.

Brokerage, Custodian and Related Capital Market Services. Through its branch network as well as
through participations, the Bank provides securities brokerage, custodian and foreign exchange services
directly to consumers and corporate customers. As of September 30, 1996, customers of the Bank
maintained securities accounts with the Bank having an aggregate market value of approximately
ATS 250 billion. During 1995 and the first three quarters of 1996, the Bank’s brokerage, custedian and
foreign exchange services operations produced commission income of approximately ATS 500 million
and ATS 417 million, respectively,
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Credit Cards. The Bank has been the leading provider of bank credit cards in Austria for fifteen
years. The Bank owns 75% of VISA-SERVICE, the processor of VISA™ credit cards in Austria, and it
actively promotes the issuance of VISA™ cards to its customers. As of June 30, 1996, VISA-SERVICE
was responsible for processing transactions for approximately 550,000 VISA™ credit cards in Austria,
which accounted for approximately 43% of all major credit cards issued in Austria. At the end of 19986, the
Bank itself had issued a total of 313,000 credit cards (including VISA™ cards), representing
approximately 25% of the total credit cards issued in Austria. The Bank utilizes its proprietary scoring
profile lo assess the creditworthiness of its current and prospective credit card customers. See “*Selected
Statistical Information — Credit Approval and Review Procedures — Consumer Gredit Scaring”. At
June 30, 1996, VISA-SERVICE's fiscal year end, the company reported total after-tax earnings of
ATS 221 million, after allocations of ATS 45 miltion for credit card sales-related fees to the Bank.

Leasing. The Bank conducts a substantial leasing business through approximately 150
subsidiaries. The leasing business consists for the most part of industrial and commercial real estate
leasing, sale leass-back and, to a lesser extent, equipment leasing. The Bank also provides automobile
leasing to consumers, in addition to customary automobile purchase financing, and it plans to expand this
line of business, including through cooperation with car retailers. At December 31, 1995, the sum of the
present value of future lease payments and the residual value of such leases of the combined leasing
companies was ATS 14.43 billion. In November 1996, the Bank sold Sovereign Finance PLC, which is
engaged in the leasing business in the United Kingdom, as part of its program to focus on core activities
in its chief markets.

Investment Banking. The Bank currently owns 77.6% of the equity of Investmentbank Austria. The
balance of the equity of Investmentbank Austria is held by several institutional and private investors.
Investmentlbank Austria underwrites public offerings of securities, advises public sector entities in
privatizations and provides mergers and acquisitions advice. During 1294, 1995 and 1996,
Investmentbank Austria lead-managed the initial public offerings of Wiener Stadtische Allgemeine
Versicherung Aktiengesellschaft {*'Wiener Stadtische"), VA Technologie, YOEST-ALPINE STAHL and
new issues and secondary offerings of the Austrian companies VAE, OMV, Flughafen Wien and the Polish
company Exbud. In total during this period Investmentbank Austria lead-managed approximately ATS 15
billion.

With regard to fixed income products, Investmentbank Austria lead-managed a convertible bond for
Lenzing Aktiengesellschaft, the largest such bond offering ever completed in Austria, and arranged eight
ATS bonds and one DM bond transaction for PTA Austria, the first asset backed structure in Austria, in an
aggregate amount of ATS 9 billion, From January 1, 1995 to June 30, 1996, Investmentbank Austria lead-
managed some twenty ATS bond issues for borrowers such as Austrian provinces, municipalities,
corporates and foreign entities. '

Investmentbank Austria maintains operations in Hungary, the Czech Republic, Slovakia, Poland,
Croatia, Slovenia and Romania. Investmentbank Austria acts as a primary broker and secondary market
participant in Austria and selected foreign markets where it also provides equity and fixed income
research to Bank Austria Group customers.

Pension Services. The Bank owns a 30% equity interest in Vereinigte Pensionskasse
Aktiengesellschaft (‘'Pensionskasse’), a large multi-employer pension fund operator in Austria.
Pensionskasse operates pension funds for over 400 companies and currently receives contributions from
38,000 beneficiaries. GiroCredit owns a 25% equity interest and Wiener Stédtische a 30% equity interest
in Pensionskasse. As of September 30, 1996, customer assets in pension funds operated by
Pensionskasse totaled approximately ATS 2.0 billion compared to ATS 1.4 billion at December 31, 1995.
Sparinvest Austria acts as securities investment manager for Pensionskasse.

Insurance. The Bank owns a 33% interest in UNION Versicherungs-Aktiengesellschaft (“Union''),
the seventh largest life insurance company in Austria. The balance of the equity in Union is shared equally
between Wiener Stadtische and Hamburg Mannheimer Versicherung Aktiengesellschaft, both of which
hotd capital shares of the Bank. See ""Ownership, Management and Employees™. The Bank generates
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nearly 80% of Union’s life insurance business and approximately 50% of Union’s property and accident
business. Gross premiums as of September 30, 1996 were ATS 1.1 billion. The Bank cooperates with
Wiener Stddtische in selling automobile insurance. Wiener Stadtische also markets certain of the Bank'’s
products, such as private accounts, credit cards and investment funds.

Building Society Savings Contracts. The Bank has a long-standing relationship with Bausparkasse
der dsterreichischen Sparkassen Aktiengesellschaft (““S-Bausparkagse’™), the largest building society in
Austria, pursuant to which the Bank earng a commigsion for arranging deposit contracts with customers.,
Prospective residential mortgage applicants are encouraged, by means of a partial deposit subsidy
provided by the Republic, to enter into a six-year deposit contract with a building society. Completion of
the contract qualifies the applicant for a mortgage loan from such building society. In 1995, the Bank
selected S-Bausparkacse ag ite gole provider of such contracts.

Non-Financial Participations

Bank Austria has a substantial portfolio of equity investments in nonfinancial companies, which it
holds either directly or through holding companies. The non-financial companies generally fall into four
business segments, which are described below. For a listing of the Bank’s material nonfinancial
participations, see Note V to the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Bank Austria Group for the
year ended December 31, 1995 and the notes thereto included in Annex B to this Offering Memorandum.

Industrial and Construction Holdings. At December 31, 1995, the Bank held direct or indirect
equity interests in 16 industrial and construction companies and held direct or indirect majority interests
in six of them. At December 31, 1995, the Bank's largest direct or indirect investments were (i} a 33%
ownership interest in Lenzing Aktiengesellschaft {‘Lenzing”), a leading producer of synthetic fibers and
pulp, (i) a 100% direct interest in UNITECH Aktiengeselischaft, a company active in the automotive
supply industry as well as electronics and communications technology and (iii) a 33% interest
(representing 37% of the voting rights) in Allgemeine Baugesellschaft-A. Porr Aktiengesellschaft
{“Porr'), a construction company. At the end of 1895, former direct interests in Austria Email
Aktisngessellschaft and Wiener Porzellanmanufaktur Augarten Ges.m.b.H., were transferred to Bank
Austria Industrieholding GmbH.

Lenzing is one of the world's leading, fully integrated producer of viscose fibers. Lenzing also
produces pulp, plastics, high guality paper products and some spescialized packaging and magchinery.
Lenzing’s performance is highly dependent on the demand for synthetic and natural fibers. Lenzing is
currently embarking upon the production of a new cellulosic fiber. The Lenzing group had a turnover of
ATS 8.7 billion for the year ended December 31, 1995. Lenzing's shares are listed on the Vienna Stock
Exchange. Porr, Austria’s oldest and one of Austria's largest construction and civil engineering groups,
had a turnover of ATS 14.4 billion for the year ended December 31, 1995. Porr’s activities include
construction of power stations, tunnels, residential and commercial buildings and roads as well as waste
management. Porr's shares are listed on the Vienna Stock Exchange.

Trade and Services Holdings. The Bank's direct and indirect trade and services holdings include
companies that do business in the areas of energy, waste disposal, electronics, technology and
electronic data processing as well as food and agricultural products. In December 1996, the Bank began
restructuring its holding company in this group, Bank Austria Handelsholding Aktiengeselischaft, so that
its holdings will become direct holdings of the Bank.

Tourism and Leisure. Through its subsidiary, Hotel & Touristik Holding Aktiengesellschaft, the Bank
operates a total of 52 inns and hotels (primarily through management agreements}, approximately 280
restaurants and more than 100 travel agency offices in Austria and abroad.

Real Estate Companies. The Bank’s portfolio of investments includes real estate ownership
companies {holding properties used by the Bank and by third parties ), mutual fund companies that offer
real estate investment certificates to the investing public, residential construction companies,
development projects and various construction services companies. A holding company owned by the
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Bank engages in real estate project development, shopping malls management, residential construction,
real estate mutual funds management and property management.

Strategy for the Future.  The Bank's management currently intends to continue selling a substantial
part of the Bank’s invastment in most of its non-financial participations over the next severat years and to
reinvest the proceeds from such sales in the Bank’s core financial services businesses. Management
presently plans to retain the Bank’s investment in companies in the construction and trade and services
sectors, since the financing activities of such companies are believed to complement the Bank's core
businessas. The Bank plans to sell selected real estate holdings as market conditions permit. The Bank
expects to retain an interest of approximately 5% to 10% in selected non-financial companies that are to
be sold where such a retained interest would enable the Bank to maintain a contractual right of first
refusal to provide banking services to such companies.

Accounting for Participations

Under the 1393 Banking Acl and the accounting principles that are applicable to financial
statements beginning with the year ending December 31, 1995, the Bank must publish consolidated
Group financial statements whereby most of its financial participations will be fully consolidated and most
of its investments in non-financiat participations will be accounted for under the equity method. In addition
to the consolidated Group financial statements, the Bank will continue to publish financial statements that
pertain to the Bank onty. The treatment of the Bank’s financial and non-financial participations in financial
statements that pertain only to the Bank are as described in the following three paragraphs.

The Bank’s bagis of its investment in a financial or non-financial company is the original acquisition
cogt to the Bank, with certain limited exceptions. In a limited number of cases, the value of an investment
has been adjusted upward as a consequence of intra-Group transactions; in certain other cases, the
value wags written down to reflect permanent lower market values.

The Bank recognizes dividends received from directly held companies as dividend income on its
profit and loss account. Dividends paid by an indirectly held participation to the intermediate holding
company of the Bank may not be immediately paid to the Bank, but retained at the holding company for
reinvestment or future distribution.

Uipon the sale of a company that the Bank holds directly, the Bank recognizes the gain or loss on the
sale in its profit and loss account. Any gain resulting from the sale of a company held indirectly is
recognized at the intermediate holding company level and has no income statement effect on the Bank
until such time as a dividend is paid by the intermediate holding company to the Bank.

Competition

The Bank and its financial subsidiaries and participations face significant competition in both
consumer and corporate banking businesses from domestic and international competitors. Competition
among financial institutions is equally high in insurance and other financial services areas. The high level
of competition has led to compressed margins when compared to many other markets. As a result,
consolidation in the banking industry is continuing. Austria’s recent admission into the EU has facilitated
the entry of banks based in other EU member countries to enter the Austrian market. To date, this has
resulted primarily in an increase in competition in the commercial and investment banking sectors.

Credit demand by companies and retail customers remained weak in 1995 and 19296, which
contributed to the reduction in domestic lending opportunities. Structural adjustments by Austrian
commerce and industry, necessary in light of the new economic and strategic environment, were an
important factor behind these developments. Economic growth in Austria stalled due to the conjunction
of several factors, such as weakening global economic growth, a sharp decline in tourism and negative
developments in the construction sector. Some sectors were particularly hard hit by these trends. In this
economic environment, characterized by a period of structural change, business developments at Bank
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Austria were nonetheless satisfactory on account of the Bank’s decision to continue to pursue a selective,
profit-oriented and risk-conscious lending policy.

Competition between Austrian banks for lending business based on terms and conditions fully
reflects disparate developments. Austria’s private insolvency law has made careful credit evaluation even
more important, and has increased the competition to lend to high quality borrowers. For customers with
above average credit ratings, already narrow margins thus came under further pressure. Yet despite
weak credit demand, the Bank succeeded in obtaining risk premiums reflecting collateral levels. The fast
pace of structural change, and the challenges this presents, justified the Bank's investments in risk
management systems in recent years, and prompted the Bank to further expand its risk-related early
warning systems and methods to limit risk exposure.

The Austrian market for banking services is currently comprised of 54 joint stock and private banks,
78 savings banks, 718 rural credit cooperative banks, 9 regional mortgage banks, 80 small business
credit cooperatives and 102 special purpose banks and building societies. This fragmented market
structure leads to intense price competition.

Bank Austria's primary domestic market is in the City of Vienna, where it does approximately 61.3%
of its banking business. Management of the Bank believes that, as of June 30, 1996, it had a 14.0% share
of the retail {private customers) business for all of Austria. The Bank believes that its customer retention
programs, such as Sales 2000, will help maintain its existing customer base and expand its market share
in the longer-term.

At December 31, 1995, loans made by the Bank to non-bank borrowers represented 12.8% of all
such loans made by Austrian credit institutions. Within this lending market, the Bank is strongest in the
sector of loans to domestic industry, in which it held 15.6% of the market share as of November 30, 1995,

Administrative and Legal Proceedings

The Bank is currently subject to an audit by the Rechnungshof, the independent accounting office
established by the Austrian Constitution to audit the Republic, the provinces and the major cities,
including companies which are controlled by any of the foregoing. The Rechnungshof audits the
accounting of all of the foregoing entities as well as the legality and efficiency of their financial conduct.
The Rechnungshof reports its findings to the legislature and is required to report criminal offenses to the
authorities. The current audit, which commenced in the summer of 1995, is the first such audit of the
Bank by the Rechnungshof because prior to 1995, it was not clear as a legal matter that the
Rechnungsehof had the autherity to audit the Bank. The Bank has not been infarmed when the definitive
report of the Rechnungshof with respect to ite audit of the Bank will be available.

The Bank is involved in various litigations and claims incident to the normal conduct of its business.
Although it is impossible to predict the outcome of any outstanding litigation, the Bank believes that,
except as discussed below, adverse results in such litigations and claims, individually and in the
aggregate, will not have a material effect on its financial condition.

In 1993 Bank Austria (Schweiz) Aktiengesellschaft (“BACH”}, an 88% directly-owned subsidiary
of Bank Austria Aktiengesellschaft in Switzerland, was named as a defendant in an action brought by
Treuhandanstalt Berlin, the predecessor of Bundesanstalt fir Vereinigungsbedingte Sonderaufgaben
{BVS). Among the claims in the action is that BACH participated in embezzlement of monies. Damages
in the amount of approximately ATS 1.7 billion plus interest of five percent per annum since January 1992
are being sought. The Bank and BACH belleve the claim is without merit. The Bank has agreed to
indemnify BACH for any losses or expenses that BACH may suffer in this action. It is currently anticipated
that the resolution of this action could take several years. A reserve has been established by Bank Austria
to cover the costs to litigate this matter. Bank Austria has not established a reserve to cover any potential
liability as a result of this litigation, based on the Bank's assessment that the claim is without merit.

In 1995, management of the Bank and the Bank’s employees’ council {Betriebsrat) entered into an
agreement under which a portion of the annual wage increases over the next ten years (which wage
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increases are determined by collective bargaining} would be paid directly into the Bank's pension system
rather than to the Bank's employees. The pension systems for employees who retired before the 1995
agreement entitle such employees to increases in their pensions based upon the wage increases
determined by collective bargaining (i.e., without regard to the portion of wage increases after 1995 that
is paid directly into the pension system). Two actions on behalf of retired employees were brought
against the Bank alleging that the 1995 agreement improperly restricted increases in their pension
payments. The Bank lost one of these actions (which had been brought by a single complainant) in two
lower court instances and is currently appealing. The other action, which was brought on behaif of
178 persons, and which is based on a different factual situation, is still pending. It is not possible to
predict the outcome of the litigation. The Bank believes that the current litigation and any possible
subsequent claims of other retirees will not have a material adverse effect on its financiat condition.

Prior to the Republic’s acceptance of the Bank’s bid for the Republic's shares in Creditanstalt,
another bidder filed a complaint with the Commission of the EU that the existence of the guarantee of the
Bank’s obligations by AV-Z (and indirectly by the City of Vienna) violates EU state aid rules and gave the
Bank an unfair advantage by allowing the Bank to make a higher bid than would have been possible
without the guarantee. The Bank believes that this complaint is without merit. See “‘Bank Austria —
Statutory Guarantee” and “The Proposed Acquisition of Creditanstalt’.
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SELECTED STATISTICAL INFORMATION
Average Balances and Interest Rates

The following table sets forth the average balances of assets and liabilities of the Bank for the year
ended December 31, 1995 and, for interest-earning assets and interest-bearing Fabilities, provides the
amount of interest earned or paid and the average rate of such interest. For purposes of the following
table, average balances have been determined based on the beginning and closing balances for each
year. Because of the changes in New Austrian GAAP, comparable figures are not available for the years
ended December 31, 1994 and 1993. For these years, figures prepared under Old Austrian GAAP have
been presented.

Year ended December 31, 1995

Average Interest  Interest
Balance(1) Income Rate
(ATS in millions} {%)
Assets
Claims against credit institutions ......... ... ... i 164,539 8,641 525
Claims against CUSIOMEBIS . ... .. it e 354,805 25073 707
Debt instruments issued by public agencies and bills of exchange
eligible for refinancing at the central bank; Bonds and fixed-interest
BBCUMEIBS . . . . et 83,349 5437 652
Shares and other non-fixed-interest securities, equity interests, shares
IN groUD COMPANIES . . . ..ottt ettt ieaaeenns 26,510 1,030 389
Total income-sarning assets .......covvvvrivrvrrrenna. e 620,203 40,181  6.39
Non-ingcome-earning assets ........ ..ol 28,018
Total ASSBIS .. e 657,221 40,181 6.1
Liabilities
Due to credit institutions . ...... .. o i e 183,582 8,600 474
DUe 10 CUSIOMETS ...ttt et v sannireriaeers 302,862 11,610 3.83
Securitized liabilities ... ... .o e e 109,773 6,564 598
Total expenditure-bearing fiabilities .. ............... ... ... ... 596,217 26,873 451
Total non-expenditure-bearing liabilities. . ............. ... ... ... ... 31,614
Ownfunds (2) ... e 29,390
Total liabilities and own fUnNds ... ... e 657,221 26,873 4.09
Netinterestearned ... ... .. i 12,278
Net interest earned as a percentage of average interest-earning
= 1= 2= =" 7 S OO 2.12%

{1) Average balance igs the average of the amounts at the beginning and the end of the year.
{2) Own funds includes subscribed capital, capital reserves, retained income and liability reserves.
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The following table sets forth the average balances of assets and liabilities of the Bank for the years
ended December 31, 1993 (which figures have been restated to reflect the merger of Wiener Hypo Bank
AG with the Bank) and 1994 and, for interest-earning assets and interest-bearing fiabilities, provides the
amount of interest earned or paid and the average rate of such interest. For purposes of the following
table, average balances have been determined based on the beginning and closing balances for each
year. As mentioned above, this information has been prepared pursuant to Old Austrian GAAP.

Year ended December 31,

Restated 1993 _ 1994
Average Interest Interest Interest
Balance  Income Rate Average Balance Interest Income Rate
(ATS) (ATS) (%) (ATS) {$) (ATS) (%) (%)

{ATS and $ in millions)
Loans 19 and items due from

eredit institutions . . ......... 136,734 7,430 5.43 148,355 13,6804 7.030 654 474
Laans to non-credit institutions 336,227 27,624 822 341,105 31,740 04,753 2,303 7.26
Bills of exchange .,........... 4,754 415 8.73 3.059 285 284 26 9.28
Securities and other interest-

garning assetg . ............ 61,293 3,927 6.41 77103 7174 4,835 459 6.40
Equity interest and syndicate

holdings .................. 20,529 792 3.86 21,834 2,032 970 20 4.44
Total interest-earning assets ., . . 559,837 40,188 7.18 991,456 55,035 37,972 3,533 6.42
Total non-interest-earning

assets .................... 25,835 27,441 2,653
Totatassets . ............. ... 585,372 618,897 57,588
Savings deposits ..., ......... 161,120 7,993 4.96 166,121 15,457 7.215 671 4.34
Due to credit institutions .. .. .. 177,272 9,307 5.5 183,421 17,067 7,902 735 4.31
Duetoothers............ ... 110,756 5,097 4.60 118,718 11,047 4,403 110 3.7

Own floatations, acceptances

and promigsory notee and

ather interest-bearing

liabilites .................. 85,200 5,461 6.40 95,576 8,893 5,758 536 6.02
Total interest-bearing liabilitiss 534,348 27,858 5.21 563,836 52,465 25,278 2,352 4.48

Total non-interest-bearing

fiabilities . ................. 24,244 26,819 2,495
Shareholders’ equity (1)...... 26,780 28,242 2,628
Total liabilities and
shareholders' equity ........ 585,372 616,897 57,588
Net interestearned ........... 12,330 12,604 1,184

Net interest earned as a
percentage of average
interest-earning assets .. .. .. 2.20% 2.15%

{1) Shareholders’ equity includes share capital, participation capital, liability reserves and statutory and
other reserves.
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Changes in Net Interest Earned — Volume and Rate Analysis

The following table sets forth changes in interest income and interest expense of the Bank for the
years ended December 31, 1994 and 1995 prepared under New Austrian GAAP. Because of the changes

in New Austrian GAAP, changes in average volumes, changes in average rates and cross-effects are not
available.

Year ended December 31, 1994 as compared to year ended December 31, 1995
’ Yaar ended
December 31,
1884 1995 Change
{ATS in millions)

Interest income and income from securities and equity interests:
Claims against credit institutions ............. ... ... 8,372 8,641 269
Claims against customers ... .o.oeoeeiii i 24,921 25,073 152
Debt instruments issued by public agencies and bills of exchange
gligible for refinancing at the central bank; Bonds and other

fixed-interest securities . . ... v i e 4767 5,437 670
Shares and other non fixed-interest securities .................. 1,080 1,030 {50)
Ol IMCOME . o oottt e e ee ettt eeniaaeeiarsaeaananas 39,140 40,181 1,041

Interest expense:
Due 1o credit instiutionNS ..o ir i ettt iir e etianearrinenes 7,758 8,699 941
DUE 10 CUSTOMIEBIS L. ittt ie e eaaotinnnacensenanarsnnss 11,489 11,610 121
Securitized li@bilities .. ... ..t 7,198 6,564 (634)

Total interest expense .. ... .. 26.445 26,873 428
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The following tabie segregates changes in interest income and interest expense of the Bank for the
years ended December 31, 1993 and 1994, by changes in average volumes, changes in average rates
and cross-effects. Volume and rate variances have been calculated based on the movement in average
balances and the change in interest rates on average interest-earning assets and average interest-
bearing liabilities, which have been calculated as set forth under "~— Average Balances and Interest
Rates’. The figures have been prepared under Old Austrian GAAP and are therefore not directly
comparable to the figures presented in the prior table. The 1993 figures have been restated to reflect the
merger of Wiener Hypo Bank AG with the Bank.

Year ended Decembeor 31, 1993 (restated) as compared o year ended December 31, 1994

Year ended
Degember 31, Ghange due to
Restated Rate/
1993 1994 Change Volume Rate volume
(ATS in milliang)
Interast Income:
Loans to and items due from credit institutions . . 7.430 7.030 (400) 631 (951) (81)
Loans to non-credit institutions ................ 27,624 24,753 (2,871} 4N (3,225) (47)
Billz of exehange . . ............... F 415 284 {131) (148) 28 (9
Securities and other interest-earning assets ... .. 3,927 4935 1,008 1,013 4) (1)
Equity interests and syndicate holdings ......... 792 970 178 a0 120 g
Total INerest NCGOME ..ot ie e viinnirnna 40,188 37,972 (2,216) 1,947 {4.034) (130)
Interast Expanze:
Savings deposits. .. ...... ... ... 7,993 1.215 (778) 248 (995) (31}
Due to credit institutions ., .....coovvviiiin..n. 4,307 7,902 (1,400} 323 (1,670) (98)
Duetoothers .. ... . ... ... ... ... 5,007 4,403 (694} 366 {989) (71)
Qwn floatations, acceptances and promissory
notes and other interest-bearing liabititics .. ... 5,461 5,758 297 665 (328) (40)
Total interest eXpense . .....o.ooo et iiiinin s, 27.858 25,278 (2,580) 1,602 (3,983) {200)

Lending by Bank Austria

The Bank extends loans to companies within most of the industrial sectors of the Austrian economy.
Bomestic loans accounted for 81.3% of total loans outstanding at December 31, 1995, with the remaining
18.7% being foreign loans. The Bank is a substantial lender to the public sector in Austria, with loans to
the Republic of Austria and its political subdivisions accounting for 25.1% of domestic loans and 20.4% of
total loans outstanding at December 31, 1995. Loans to individuals accounted for 17.7% of domestic
loans and 14.4% of total loans outstanding al Decembber 31, 1995.

The growth in the loan portfolio in recent years has primarily resulted from an increase in loans to the
public sector. Excess liquidity in the banking sector, combined with the conservative credit approach of
the Bank in pursuing new corporate loans, has led to minimal growth in domestic loans, other than credit
to public sector borrowers.
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Loan Portfolio by Borrower. The following table sets forth the breakdown of the loan portfolio of the
Bank among various types of borrowers as of December 31, 1993, 1994 and 1995. The loan balances are
shown net of any accumuiated reserve for potential loan losses. For purposes of this table, loans are
classified ag domestic or foreign based on the location of the particular entity or office to which a loan is

mado.

At December 31,

1993 1994 1995
{ATS) (ATS) {ATS) (3)
(ATS and § in millions)
Domestic Loans: (1)
Loans to non-credit institutions:
AGrGUIRUIE .0 iiis it sranaanissnnsnnnnannrns 268 738 807 751
1 T TP 1,210 1,205 a02 839
ronand steel. .. ovv i vt ireriirrrsronnrsaans 2,995 0414 0,448 2078
Heavy engineering .......cviiievnntssisssanssnns 6,491 6,649 7,885 733.7
Chemicals, petrochemicals and oil, . ..ovviveinennes 4,632 5,380 4,912 457 1
Electrical . ..o oiviiiie it iien i iiraicr it rarannns 2,009 1,622 2,063 191.0
Pulp and paper mills, wood products .............. 5,855 5774 5,643 595.1
TEXbIES oot iin et iiar et arsrnt e 2,650 2,227 2,227 207.2
Other manufacturing. ... ovvvev it iiiirianrronaans 45,122 46,027 45,490 4,232.8
Wholesale and retail trade . ........coiiiev e 20,427 30,226 33,197 3,088.0
Transport and tourisSmM ... vev i ieeiniiravrraonnes 11,065 12,293 12,726 1,184.1
Individuals. . ..o vt i it it e s 53,167 54,659 57,165 53192
Public sector (2) ....coiiriiiiiiirinntereiisnnans 69,881 76,947 80,738 7512.8
L0 42 1= 57,571 56,059 57,213 53236
Total loans to non-credit institutions .. ............... 292043 302,220 313,396 29,161.2
Loans to credit institutions . .. ........ ... ..., 7.301 4,740 8,793 818.2
Total domestic loans ...t 299,344 308,960 322,189 29,9794
Foreign Loans: _
Loans to non-credit institutions ..................... 47,666 46,399 47,233 4,395.0
Loans to credit institutions ..........c.ooiiiniaan. 25,396 25,150 26,905 2,503.5
Total foreign loans ......... ..o 73,062 71,649 74,138 6,898.5
Total domestic and foreign l0ans . ...oovvvreerrsaraes 372,406 378,500 396,327 36,8779

(1) Includes at December 31, 1993, 1994 and 1995, respectively, bills of exchange totalling ATS

3.48 billion, ATS 2.64 billion and ATS 2.50 billion.

(2) Includes loans to the Republic of Austria and its political subdivisions.
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Geographical Distribution of Risks. The following table sets forth the Bank'’s foreign country risk by
geographical region as at December 31, 1993, 1994 and 1995 and as at September 30, 1996. Such risk
figures include all claimg and contingent claims of the Bank against non-residents, including claims
against credit institutions, claims against (corporate and private) customers and investments in
securities and in affiliated companies. The risk figures in the following table are broken down according to
the location of the respective borrowers. Amounts are shown gross, i.e., before provisions for possible
Ingses.

Year ended December 31, At Septembar 30,
1983 1994 1995 1996

{ATS in millions) {%)
Western Europe{1) ............ ... . ... .. 82,990 99,711 115,018 140,599 55.3
Central and Eastern Europe ............... 12,309 12,226 13,086 12,991 5.1
North America(2) ........................ 39,338 39,757 35,750 48,279 19.0
Central and South America(3)............. 6,808 7.554 12,208 9,957 39
FarECast ... ... oo, 17,100 18,951 23,773 26,219 10.3
Southeast Asia........................... 3,695 7,078 8,162 9,655 3.8
Other{4) ..o 4,081 3,785 5,585 5837 2.3
International Organizations(5) ............. 146 911 847 847 0.3
Total ... ... 166,467 189,973 214429 254384 100.0

(1} Excludes Austria.

(2) Includes Canada and the United States only.

(3) Includes Mexico, Gentral America and South America.

{4) Includes the Middle East, the Indian subcontinent, Africa, Australia and New Zealand.

(3) Includes loans to the international Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the European
investment Bank and other such organizations.

Loan Portfolio by Original Maturity. The following table sets forth outstanding claims against credit
institutions and customers as of Decembber 31, 1993, 1994 and 1995, broken down by original term to
maturity. In accordance with Austrian regutations, the Bank submits reports regarding its assets and
liabilities on the basis of original term to maturity and is currently not able to prepare a break-down of the
loan porifolio by remaining term to maturity.

At December 31,
1983(1) 1994 1995
(ATS) (ATS) (ATS) (3)
(ATS and 5 in millions)

Claimg against eredit institutions:

Less than five yeare .. ... ... ... ... ... ....... 123,619 135195 160,558 14,840

More thanfive yvears ...... ... ... ... ... .. ... .... 24,882 22,714 18,349 1,707
Tota! ¢laims against credit institutions . ............... 148,501 157,909 178,205 16.647
Claims against customers;

Llessthan five years ... ..o eiiinniinnnnns 130,984 147,973 162,770 15,146

More than five years ... .oviiiin iy 187,326 212,288 211,257 19,657
Total ctaims against customers .. .................... 318,309 380,261 374,027 34,803
Total claims . ..o e 466,810 518,170 552,932 51,450

(1) Information for the year ended December 31, 1993 has not been restated to reflect the merger of
Wiener Hypo Bank AG with the Bank.
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Fixed and Variable Rate Loans by Original Maturity. The following table sets forth information on the
interest rate sensitivity by maturity for the Bank’s claims against customers. As in the above table, the
basis is original term to maturity rather than remaining term to maturity.

At December 31, 1995

After
1 year
Within but within After
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
(ATS in millions)
Claims with fixed interest rates (1) .................. 0 21,206 48,533 67,739
Ciaims with variable interestrates ................... 229,105 73,015 183,073 485,193
Total claims outstanding. .. ......oreriiiinaraeaan 229,105 94,221 220,606 552,832

{1} Claims include bills of exchange, not eligible for refinancing at central banks, due from credit
institutions, loans and bonds and other fixed interest securities, not listed on exchanges.

Securities

The Bank segregates its securities portfolio under requirements of Austrian law in two categories:
current assets and investments. Current assete are primarily comprised of the trading and liquidity
portfolio of the Bank and are mainly fixed-interest securities of the Republic of Austria and its political
subdivisions. The majority of current assets are marked-to-market, although a small component is carried
at lower of cost or market value. Investments, which are carried at lower of cost or market value, are
securities which the Bank intends to hold to maturity. The majority of the fixed-interest securities included
in investments are obligations of the Republic of Austria and its political subdivisions and international
investment-grade bonds.

The following table provides the book values of the Bank’s securities portfolio by current assets and
investments at December 31, 1993, 1093 (restated to reflect the merger of Wiener Hypo Bank AG with
the Bank}, 1994 and 1995.

At Decamber 31,

Rastated
1993 1993 1994 1995
{ATS) {ATS) (ATS) {ATS) ($)

(ATS and § In millions)
Current assets:

Interest-bearing securities . ................L 35911 36,971 34,846 38,807 3,611

Equity securities. . ... ... ... .ol 4,956 4 956 5,064 5,236 487
Total current assets ... ...coiviiirnnn s iiaenan 40,867 41,927 39,910 44,043 4,098
Investments:

Interest-bearing securities . . ........ .. .. . 23,667 23 567 42,822 48,519 4,329

Equity securities ..........oieiii e 1,260 1,260 967 1,062 98
Total investments . ....... ... ... iiiiiinin. 24,827 24.827 43,789 47,571 4,427
Total securities ......c .ot i e 86,6804 868,754 83,600 01,614 8,525
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The following table provides a comparison between the book value and the market value of the
Bank's securities portfolio at December 31, 1995,

At December 31, 1995
Book value Market value Gain/loss
(ATS in millions)

Current asseta:

Interast-bearing secUrtios. . ... ..ot e 38,807 39,267 460

Equity securities .. ... e 5,236 5,476 240
Total current assets . ... . .. 44,043 44,743 700
Investments:

Interest-bearing securities. . ... i 46,519 46,930 411

Equity secunities oo oot 1,052 636 (416}
Total investments . ... .. .. . 47 571 47,566 {(5)
Total s6CurtiEs v vvvvevinnenns e e e 91,614 92,309 695
Funding

The Bank’s primary source of funds is savings deposits, which amounted to ATS 171.3 billion, or
28.5%, of its total funding base at December 31, 1995. Based on information published by the Austrian
National Bank, the Bank's aggregate savings deposils as of December 31, 1995 represented
approximately 11.1% of all savings deposits in Austria. Amounts due to non-credit institutions were ATS
141.6 bilion at December 31, 1995, representing 23.6% of total funding. Amounts due to credit
institutions were ATS 186.5 billion, or 31.0% of total funding at December 31, 1995,

Breakdown of Funding Sources. The following table presents the sources of the Bank’s deposits
and borrowed funds as of December 31, 1993, 1994 and 1995, broken down by certain major categories.

At December 31,

1093 1094 1995
{ATS) {ATS) {ATS) {$)
(ATS and $ in millions}
Deposits.
Savings deposits «. .. i e 162,669 169.273 171,297 15,939
Dugtoothers oo e 109,010 123,541 141,614 13,177
Due to credit institutions. . ........................ 186,718 180,637 186,528 17,356
Total deposits . ... 458 507 473,451 499,439 46,472
Securitized liabllities:
bondsissued .......... ... 49,781 62,488 66,599 6,197
other securitized liabilities. .. ...................... 5,690 30,222 32,418 3,016
Total securitized liabilities . .......................... 55,471 92,710 99,017 9,213
Supplementary capital . . ... . oL 3,015 3,085 2512 234
Total funding .. ..ot e 517,083 569,246 600,968 55,919
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Breakdown of Deposits by Original Maturity. The following table sets forth, as of December 31,
1995, the maturities and categories of deposits.

At December 31, 1995

Less than Three months More than
three months to one year one year Total
(ATS in millions}
Savings deposits . . ... ... ... e 33.465 53,971 83.861 171,297
DUB tOOMNBIS . ... . i iinneens 132,695 4,711 4,008 141,614
Due to credit institutions . .................... 112,997 28,792 44779 186,528
Total deposits ............ ... il 279,357 87,434 132,648 499,439

Credit Approval and Review Procedures

Following the 1991 merger, management of the Bank initiated a complete review of the loan portfolio
of the former Z-Bank and OLB with the goal of combining and providing consistency between the credit
approval and loan review procedures of the predecessor institutions. The outcome of such review was the
astablishment of a revised credit approval and loan review policy 1o reflect management’s conservative
approach in allocating cradit. ‘

Creadit Approval Procedures. The Bank maintaing a centralized credit committee in its Vienna head
office (the “Credit Committee’') which is responsible for setting the Bank's policies regarding
discretionary lending limite and assessing the creditworthiness of each loan applicant. The Credit
Committee has formulated an internal borrower classification system, which rates, on a scale of A {the
highest rating for the best quality borrowers) through E, the economic situation of the borrower, not the
quality of an individual loan, and therefore, the classification system does not take into account any
collateral securing a particular loan. The Credit Committee has also established an internal loan
classification system for rating individual loans that takes into account the rating of the borrower and the
quality of any collateral. The Credit Committee has granted lending authority of up to ATS 15 million to
sach of the Bank’s seven regional lending departments, and up to ATS 20 million to each of the Bank's
lending departments for the Vienna region. Any loan in excess of ATS 15 million, in respect of loans made
by a regional lending department, and in excess of ATS 20 million, in respect of loans made by one of the
three lending departments in Vienna, must be approved by one of the two senior members of the Credit
Committee. In addition, a loan in excess of ATS 40 million must be approved by one or two members of
the Managing Board, depending upon the size of the loan, while a ioan in excess of ATS 100 million
requires full Managing Board approval. A loan in excess of ATS 300 million also requires approval of the
Supervisory Board's credit subcommittee, and a loan in excess of ATS 1 billion requires approval of the
entire Supervisory Board. The Bank’s credit approval procedures are identical for domestic and foreign
loans, as well as for loans to participations.

Loan Review Procedures. The frequency of review of outstanding loans is based on the Bank's
internal loan classification system. Each loan is reviewed at least once a year. Depending on the size of
the credit and the classification of the company, loans are reviewed at the regional level, by the Credit
Committee or by the Managing Board. The Credit Committee reports the evaluation of aill D and E loans
as reviewed to the Managing Board. The Bank reviews annually the criteria for its internal loan
classification procedures and revises such criteria as deemed necessary.

Consumer Credit Scoring. The Bank has developed a credit reference scoring profile to assess the
creditworthiness of its current and prospective customers. The Bank formed a joint venture in
February 1996 to assess the performance and expand the use of the scoring profile. The Bank has
implemented the scoring profile for private customers and is in the process of implementing the scoring
profile for commercial customers.
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Loan Loss Experience and Allowance for Passible Loan Losses

The Banrk’s accounting and reserve procedures regarding problem credits differ significantly from
those followed by banks in the Uniled States. See "“The Austrian Banking System — Reguiation and
Supervision” and “Summary of Principal Differences Between Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
in Austria and in the United Stateg™.

The Bank’s allocation to provisiong for potential loan logseg is evaluated on a loan-by-loan basis. As
there is no legal or regulatory definition of a “problem’ loan or “*non-perfarming” Ioan in Austria and no
legal requirernent that “problem™ or ‘“‘non-performing’ loans be reported to Austrian regulatore or
accorded a particuiar accounting treatment, the Bank internally evaluates the potential for repayment
associated with each loan and allocates a provision based on management’s expectation of a potential
loss. The Bank has historically had what it considers to be low direct write-offs for bad debts due to ite
policy of prudently establishing loan loss reserves. Although related to some extent, the internal borrower
classification syslem mentioned praviously is not the basis on which the Bank provides for potential
losses. The borrower classification system is based on the economic condition of the borrower, which
may include multiple loans. The system is not meant to gauge the probability of loss on a particular loan
or group of loans. In addition, the borrower classification system does not take into account the value of
the collateral backing the loan. Therefore, a borrower may be classified as E becausge of the conditions in
the borrower's industry, but may not be provided for due to the collateral backing the loan.

The Bank records customer loans on itg balance sheet net of the allowance for possible ioan losses.
The establishment of an allowance is reflected in the Bank’s profit and loss account by a provision
recorded as a component of "'Balance of expenditures /income from the valuation and dispogal of claims,
securities held in the liquidity reserve and from contingent liabilities and credit risks’.

The Bank establishes provisions in respect of credits whose repayment has become doubtful.
Generally, the Bank establishes a provision for a credit if: (i) a loan payment is migsed and the grace
period following the missed payment expires (generally 30-60 days): (ii) ingolvency proceedings are
commenced against the borrower; (iii) the Bank initiates proceedings against the Borrower; or {iv) the
Bank determines for any reason that recovery of the loan could be doubtful or that the financial
soundness of the borrower is questionabie. In this regard, the Bank's Credit Committee performs industry
anatyses, raviews annual and, in cases of certain borrowers, quarterly or monthly financial reports and
discusses potantial problems with borrowers in order to identify problem credits as they are developing.

Once a problem credit has been identified, the Credit Committee analyzes the problem credit to
determine what provision would be appropriate. Although the level of any provision depands upon a
variety of factors, the Bank typically establishes provisions for up to the maximum level of potential loss
related to a particular credit. Final decisions regarding all provisions are made by the Bank’'s Managing
Board.

Bank Austria generally wriles off loans only when the loss has become final and certain. Interest on a
loan ts no longer accrued once the locan has been declared due (accelerated); only interest actualiy
received with respect to such credits is recorded on the Bank's profit and loss account. Thus, write-offs
of loans in respect of which a provision has been established generailly have a minimal effect on the
Bank’s profit and foss account. In addition, a write-off of a loan generally has a minimal effect on the
Bank's balance sheet because (i) the Bank records loans on its balance sheet net of the allowance for
possible loan losses, and (ii) generally establishes provisions at a level which the Bank considers (o
represent the expected risk of loss for a particular loan.
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The following table sets forth the Bank's loan loss experience (direct write-offs and use of provisions
for bad debts as a percentage of total customer loans including bills of exchange, or *'write-off ratio’ ) for
the years ending December 31, 1993, 1994 and 1995.

Year ended December 31,
1993 1994 1995

0.62% 0.50% 0.36%

The write-off ratio does not always correlate with the actual quality of the loan portfolio at a given
time as a result of the time lag between the date of provisioning and the date of actual usage of
provisions. On average, the time lag exceeds three years.

The following table sets forth the Bank's direct write-offs and use of provisions with respect to
country risk as a percentage of total loans, bills of exchange and securities for the years ending
December 31, 1923, 1994 and 1885.

Year ended December 31,
1993 1994 1995

0.06% 0.36% 0.04%

The figure was greater in 1994 because the Bank participated in several sovereign debt
restructurings and sold a number of loans in the secondary market in that year.

The Bank’s net allocation to provisions for doubtful debts {which includes allocations to provisions
established for individual risk and country risk for the bank’s lending and securities business included in
items 11/12 and 13/14 of the profit and l0ss account) increased to ATS 3.41 billion in 1995 from
ATS 2.52 billion in 1994 and ATS 3.03 billion in 1993. The increase in 1995 over 1994 was due primarily
to developments in the domestic lending business. The Bank expects that its total net allocation to
provisions in 1996 will be equal to or slightly lower than the total net allocation to provisions in 1995.

The following table shows changes in the Bank’s cumulative provision for loan losses, excluding the
country risk and strategic risk provisions (described below), and direct write-offs for the years ended
December 31, 1993, 1994 and 1995.

Year ended December 31,
1993(1) 1994 1995
(ATS) {ATS) (ATS) (3)
{ATS and § in millions)

Cumulative provision for loan losses at the beginning of the

=2 S e 10,648 11,886 12,784 1,180
Effects of mergers, exchange rate differentials and other

adiustments .. ... e 54 {62) 165 14
Use of provisions forbad debts........................0. (1,844} (1,557) (1,067) (99)
Allocations to provisions ...... ... it i 4,117 3,262 4545 423
Reversals of provisions ......... ... i (1.089) (745) (1.134) (108)
Net allocation to provisions for doubtful debts ............. 3,028 2517 3,411 317
Cumulative provision for loan losses at the end of the year.. 11,886 12,784 15,283 1,422

Direct write-Of S . . . . i et 281 257 330 31

(1) The information for the year ended December 31, 1993 has not been restated to show the effect of
the merger with Wiener Hypo Bank AG because the effects of mergers and cther adjustments are
shown above for each year.

As an alternative to maintaining allowances for risks related to particular credits, the Bank maintains
allowances for possible lcan losses arising from liquidity and other problems in the country of the
borrower, At December 31, 1995, the Bank had a country risk provision equal to approximately 64% of its
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total exposure to borrowers in countries experiencing liquidity problems. A substantial portion of the
Bank's country risk provisions are related to exposure to borrowers in the countries of Eastern Europe and
Russia. For exposures to countries which the Bank considers to entail a high degree of risk, the Bank
generally establishes country risk provisions of up to 100% of the principal amount of the exposure.

The Bank is permitted, in accordance with the 1993 Banking Act, lo provide for risks associated with
the overall banking business. Such reserve, referred to as the strategic reserve, may not exceed 4% of
toans outstanding.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The goals of risk management for the Bank are to monitor and control the size and concentration of
ricks arising from interest rate and exchange rate fluctuations, ae well ag from liquidity sensitivity, in
respect of its ageets, liabilities and off-balance sheet transactions.

The Bank's risk management policies are formulated by its Managing Board and are supervised by
the independent risk control unit within the Planning Division. The Bank observes a “global treasury”
policy pursuant to which the Bank's risk management for its global network is implemented and
supervised by the Treasury Department in its main office in Vienna. Day-to-day risk management for the
Bank's domestic operations is administered in Vienna; risk management for banking and financial
subsidiaries and the Bank's foreign operations is administered locally, within risk limits established at its
main office in Vienna,

The Bank strictly distinguishes between positions (mismatches) held for trading and those used for
purposes other than trading (asset-fiability management). All financial risks are measured and reported
by the risk control unit.

frading Activities. The management of market risk of trading aclivities takes place through
established and written trading policies that define the acceptable risk amount within which traders can
buy and sell in their respective markets.

A key element is the estimation of potential losses a portfolic may experience arising from adverse
changes in market conditions. The Bank employs a 'Money-at-Risk’” methodology, which, using a 97.5%
confidence interval, employs statistical historical data to measure the loss that would result from an
adverse, one-day shift in market prices. For less liquid markets, the Bank assumes a holding period
longer than one day. The Bank’s methodology includes what management believes to be a conservative
correlation batween different risk parameters.

The Bank has established separate volume limits, option limits and counterparty limits for the trading
aclivities of the Bank in light of various stress scenarios. The limit system covers the trading activities in
interest rate, foreign exchange and equity markets. Adherence to the various limits is menitored by the
risk control unit in Vienna.

Asset-Liability Management Activities. The Bank monitors earnings exposure to interest rate risk
arising from asset-liability management activities and aims to keep such exposure within appropriate
limits.

The risk from gap mismatches is measured by evaluating the effect of major interesi rate
movements. Economic "Money-at-Risk'' 18 estimated assuming certain immediate changes in rates.

The primary objective of the Bank's asset-liability function is to maximize net interest income while
maintaining acceptable levels of interest-rate sensitivity. The Asset-Liability Committee, which
determines certain market rigk positions within the Bank’s book of business, sets gap limits {volumes for
each time bucket) and risk limits (Money-at-Risk limits). Other exposures created by differences in
repricing dates are taken into account in determining the timing of changes in interest rates on the Bank's
assets in response to market movements.
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The Bank controls its interest rate risk with the selective use of off-balance sheet instruments,
especially swaps. All derivatives are included either within the trading limits or the asset-liability
management limits.

As a general matter, the Bank seeks to match its foreign currency-denominated assets with liabilities
in the same currencies. With the exception of some strategic and structural positions, all open foreign
exchange positions are part of the trading book and within the trading limits. The strategic and structural
positions are mainly positions cpened for the purpose of taking advantage of interest rate differentials
between currencies. Based on present market conditions, these positions are mainly in Dautsche Mark
and Austrian Schilling, as the Bank considers the foreign exchange risk as minimal.

interest Rate Sensitivity. The Bank manages interest rate exposure with a view to limiting the
impact of adverse interest rate movements cn profitability. Risks may arise when there is an imbalance
between assets and liabilities (including off-balance sheet transactions) with respect to the timing or
caleulation of interest rate changes. The Bank addresses the risk of changes in interest rates, particularly
of a short-term nature, by monitoring levels and interest-rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and certain
off-balance sheet transactions. Other exposures created by differences in maturities or repricing dates
are taken into account in determining the timing of changes in interest rates on the Bank’s assets in
response to market movements. In addition, the Bank makes regular use of interest rate swaps, options
and other hedging strategies 1o limit interest rate exposure.

Exchange Rate Sensitivity. The Bank manages its exposure to exchange rate fluctuations in order
to minimize the effect of exchange rate movements on its profitability. As a general matter, the Bank
secks to match its foreign currency-denominated assets with liabilities in the same currencies. To a
limited extent, to take into account differences between assets and liabilities remaining following the
Bank's effort to match positions in currencies, the Bank uses a variety of hedging instruments, including
currency swaps, futures contracts, options and other instruments designed to minimize the effect of
exchange rate fluctuations on the operating results of the Bank.

The following table shows the international proportion of assets and liabilities (including assets and
liabilities generated outside Austria and in respect of non-residents) and the proportion of assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than Austrian Schilling (transiated into Austrian Schilling) at
December 31, 1995.

International
Proportion Foreign Currencies
{ATS) % {ATS) %
(ATS in millions}

Assets
Debt instruments issued by public agencies ................. 6,754 1.0 6,754 1.0
Claims against credit institutions ... ... ... ... .. ... ...... 133.835 19.7 131,621 19.4
Claims against CUSTOMIBIS .. ...ttt iir it iie i nrennenras 51,892 7.7 50,694 7.5
Debentures and other interest bearing (fixed-interest)

ES L= o U | £ T S 11,983 1.8 11,991 1.8
Other POSIHIONS. .. .. i i e i 6,456 09 8,369 1.2
Total . . 210,820 311 209,429 309
Liabilities
Liabilities against credit institutions ... ...... ... ... ... . ..., 115,243 17.0 117,772 17.4
Liabilities against customers ........... ... i 36,496 54 68,582 101
Liabilities in negotiable instrument form ..................... 24,645 3.6 24,929 3.7
Other POSItIONS. .. ..o i it et ittt 10,057 1.5 11,319 1.7
I 1< | 186,441 275 222802 329
Total A88BtS . .. i e e e e 677,863 677,863



Liguidity Sensitivity. The primary function of the Bank's liquidity management is to satisfy the
demand for current and future funding requirements, including the replacement of existing funds as they
mature or are withdrawn. The Bank's objective is to maintain a proper balance between maturity
distributions, given the stability and diversity of different sources of funds, the characteristics of different
investor groups and the types of instruments involved. A substantial portion of the Bank’'s assets,
especially in Austria, is funded by customer deposits.

The medium- and long-term liquidity status and plan for the Bank is the responsibility of the Asset-
Liability Committee and is reported regularly to the Managing Board.

Liquidity risks are also reduced by the Bank's high proportion of liquid assets, including inter-bank
assets (which are diversified by currency, maturity and source), money market instruments and short-
term loans. In addition, the Bank has signilicant credit lines availabie. For medium- and long-term assets,
the Bank has significant sources of medium- and long-term funds, including customer savings deposits
and certificates, bank obligations, loans documented by certificates of indebtedness, Eurobonds,
certificates of deposit and medium-term noies.

Austrian Banking System — Capital Adequacy Directive. In addition to its own risk management
policies, the Bank must comply with certain risk ratios established by Austrian regulatory and supervisory
bodies. Because the Bank currently uses the Money-at-Risk approach for its trading activities, the Bank
expecls to be permitted to comply with the EU capital adequacy directive by using its own internal
models.

The following table sets forth the original term to maturity of certain assets and liabllities of the Bank
at December 31, 1995, As in previous lables, in accordance with Austrian regulations, the Bank submits
reports regarding its assets and liahilities on the basis of original terms to maturity, rather than remaining
terms to maturity.

At December 31, 1995

Three Between More
Payable Less than months one and than
on demand three months 1o one year five years five years Total
(ATS in millions)
Assate
Claims against credit institutions 25,428 29,775 74 420 30,924 18,349 178,905
Claims against customers. ... ... 44,711 26,632 28,130 63,207 211,257 374,027
Liabilities
Due to credit institutions. .. ..... 27,585 85,412 28,752 9,873 34006 188,528
Due to customers:
a) eavings deposite ......... 28,795 4,669 53,971 72,200 11,661 171,208
b} other liabilities ........... 65,837 67,059 4,711 3,019 080 14186156
Other securitized liabilities .. .. .. 0 2,824 2,873 17,738 8,983 32,418
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Capital

The following table presents the components of the Bank's capital and capital adequacy (solvency)
ratios at December 31, 1993, 1994 and 1995.

At December 31,

1993 1994 1995
(ATS) (ATS) (ATS) (%
(ATS and $ amounts in millions)

Tier 1 capital:

Share capital less book value of own shares ........ 5718 5,621 5,736 534

Liability reserve . . ... .. ... 8,135 8,613 9,373 872

Statutory, voluntary and other reserves ............. 13,381 13,406 14,438 1,343

Less: book value of intangible assets .............. (132) (442) {506) (47)
Total Tier 1 capital .. ...... ..ot 27.102 27,198 29,041 2,702
Tier 2 capital;

Supplementary capital. . ... .o viiii i ir e s 3,085 3,085 2,512 234

Participation capital less book value of own

participation certificates ....vvvvvirrririerrronne 572 587 451 42

Subordinated capital ..........cciiiii it 8,247 10,396 9,801 912
Total Tier 2capital . . ... ... . i 11,904 14,068 12,764 1,188
Less: book valueof holdings .. ...... ... ... ......... (1,378) (1.424) {1,697) {158)
Total capital . . ... ... ... 37,628 30,842 40,108 3,732
Risk-weighted agsets ...................ooiia, 383,628 370,433 388,487 36,148
Tier 1 capitalratio .. ...... ... .. . i 7.48 7.34 7.48 7.48
Totalcapitatratio .. .......... ..o i 10.35 10.76 10.32 10.32

Pursuant to the 1993 Banking Act, the Bank is required to maintain total capital, or own funds, of 6%
of risk-weighted assets, including off-balance sheet assets. The computation of total capital is subject to
the limitation that Tier 2 capital may not exceed Tier 1 capital. See “The Austrian Banking System —
Regulation and Supervision — Capital (Solvency) Ratios''.
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OWNERSHIP, MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES
Principal Shareholders

With the exception of the ordinary shares of the Bank held by AV-Z and by the employees’ council,
the Bank’s capital shares and participation certificates are held in bearer form. Therefore, the Bank is
unable to determine by reference to its records the ownership of its issued and cutstanding capital shares
and participation certificates. A person or a group that holds at least 5% of either ordinary or preferred
shares outstanding is required by the Austrian Stock Exchange Act to make certain limited reports
concerning its ownership of such securities to the Bank. No such obligation exists with respect to holders
of participation certificates. Based on such reports and other information available to the Bank, the
following tables set forth as of December 31, 1996 certain information concerning ownership of the
Bank’s issued and outstanding ordinary shares and preferred shares with respect to its principal holders.
Based on information available to the Bank, all Supervisory and Managing Board members and executive
officers of the Bank as a group own in the aggregate less than 1% of ordinary shares and preferred
shares.

Ordinary Shares

Numbar of Percent Percent
Ordinary CQwnership of of Total
Shares Owned  Ordinary Sharas  Share Capital(1)
AV Z {2 ... 25,991,895 45.15% 39.93%
Post und Telekombetailigungsverwaltungs-
gesellschaft (3) ... 10,883,050 18.90 16.72
Westdeuteche Landesbank Girozentrale .......... 5,800,000 10.07 8.91
Wiener Stadtische Allgemeine Versicherung AG ... 3,625,310 6.30 7.59
Cagea di Rigparmio delle Provincie
Lombarde S.p.A. .. .. e 2,500,000 4.34 3.84
Wiener Holding AG (2) ........... ... . ..., 2,300,000 4.00 3.53
Other ... e 6,471,335 11.24 19.48
Total .....oovviinann, e ceevees 97,671,590 100.00% 100.00%

(1) Percent of Total Share Capital represents the percentage of ordinary and preferred shares
outstanding.

(2} AVY-Z owns a controlling interest in Wiener Holding AG. Accordingly, the ordinary shares owned by
wiener Holding AG are controlled by AV-Z.

(3) These shares were formerly held directly by the Republic, which owns Post und Telekombetei-
ligungsverwaltungsgesellechatt (*'Posthelding™).

Prefetred Shares

Number of Percent
Pretemred Cwnership of
Shares Dwned Preferred Shares
Wiener Stadtische Allgemeine Versicherung AG ... .. ... .. ... 1,317,190 17.50%
Hamburg Mannheimer Versicherung AG........................ 1,100,000 14.62
L84 o T 5,109,310 67 .88
0] 1 G 7,626,500 100.00%

Any holder of ordinary shares in registered form (currently AV-Z and the employees’ council) has
the ability to prevent certain significant resclutions affecting the Bank from being passed at a
shareholders meeting. Holders of registered shares may not transfer such shares without the approval of
the Bank’s Supervisory Board and the Managing Board.
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AV-Z is a corporate entity, created under Austrian iaw, that does not have any shareholders. The City
of Vienna, the spongoring community under the law which created AV-Z, acting through the City Council,
has the statutory right to nominate saven of the eight members of AV-Z's Supervisory Board. In addition,
the Mayor of the City of Vienna serves ex officio ag the sighth member of the Supervisory Board and as ite
Chairman. The Supervisory Board also currently includes a deputy mayor of the City of Vienna. The
Supervisory Board of AV-Z nominates the Managing Board of AV-Z.

The Bank's Supervisory Board currently includes four members who are also members of the
Supervisory Board of AV-Z. Three of the six members of the Bank's Managing Board are the three
members of the Managing Board of AV-Z. See ""— Supervisory Board and Managing Board™’.

From time to time, the current and preceding governments of the Republic have publicly discussed
their intention to sell some or all of the ordinary shares of the Bank held by the Republic. On January 17,
1997, the Bank published formal notice based on information received by it that the Republic’'s ordinary
shares had been acquired by Postholding, which is owned by the Republic. In connection with the
selection of the Bank as the successful bidder for the Republic’s shares in Creditanstalt, the parties that
make up the current government coalition in Austria reached an understanding that the Republic would
dispose of its shares in the Bank in 1997. See “'The Proposed Acquisition of Creditanstalt’.

The Bank and Cassa di Risparmio delle Provincie Lombarde S.p.A. (“'Cariplo”)} have had
discussions concerning Cariplo’s acquiring additional ordinary shares of the Bank_ It is currently proposed
that any such transaction would take the form of an exchange of participation certificates held by Cariplo
and surrendered to the Bank in retum for ordinary shares and would ocour by June 30, 1998 or, if earlier,
within six months of an initial public offering of shares of Cariplo.

Supervisory Board and Managing Board

Like all Austrian joint stock corporations, Bank Austria has a two-tiered board. The Managing Board
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Bank and the representation of the Bank with
respect to third parties, while the Supervisory Board appoints and removes the members of the Managing
Board. The Supervisory Board may not itself make management decisions, but under the Austrian Stock
Corporation Act and the By-Laws of the Bank, the Managing Board must obtain the consent of the
Supervisory Board for certain actions.

The Managing Board must submit regular reports on the operations and the condition of the Bank to
the Supervisory Board, and the Supervisory Board is also entitled to request special reporte on the
operations of the Bank. The members of the Managing Board are all full-time employees of the Bank. The
members of the Supervisory Board are elected by the holders of ordinary shares, except for one-third of
the members who are appointed by the employees’ council of the Bank pursuant to Austrian labor laws.
In certain very limited circumstances, holders of preferred shares may participate in the elections of the
members of the Supervisory Board. The members of the Supervisory Board who are elected by the
holders of ordinary shares are not full-time employees of the Bank. The members of the Supervisory
Board who are appointed by the empioyees’ council are full-time empioyees of the Bank. The Austrian
Stock Corporation Act prohibits simultaneous membership on both the Managing Board and the
Supervisory Board.
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The current memibers of the Supervisory Board of the Bank are listed below. Those members who are
appointed by the employees’ council of the Bank are denoted with an asterisk.

Name Principal Qccupation

Dkfm, Dr, Siegfried Sellitsch, Chairman  Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ’"), Wiener Stadtische
Allgemeine Versicherung AG

Dkfm. Dr. Erich Meyringer,

Deputy Chairman ................. Ratired CEO of Bull AG

Walter Nettig, Deputy Chairman ...... President of the Chamber of Commerce in Vienna

Dr. DieterFalke .................... Board Member, Westdeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale

Gunther W, Havranek ............... Tax Advisor

Rudolf Humer ...................... CEO, Palmers Textif AG

Dir. Mag. Dr. Ewald Klinger .......... Managing Director, Entsorgungsbetriebe Simmering
Ges.m.bH.

Dr. Sandro Molinari ................. CEO, Cassa di Risparmio delle Provincie Lombarde S.p.A.

Friedel Neuber . .................... CEQ, Westdeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale

Dr, Walter Petrak ............cc0000 CEOQ, Versicherungsanstalt der sterreichischen
Bundeslinder Versicherungsaktiengesellschaft

Dr, Helmut Andreas Schuster ........ CEQ, Ankerbrot AG

Dr. Hugo Michast Sekyra ............ Board Member, Auricon Beteiligungs Aktiengesellschaft

Ir. Willem A. Wielens ................ CEO, Osterreichische Philips Industrie Ges.m b H.

Hedwig Fuhrmarnn®* .............. ...
Wolfgang Heinzl* ...................
Heribert Kruschik* ..................
Wolfgang Lang™ ....................
Thomas Schlager* ..................
Walter Schiggi*. ....................
Dr. Komnelia Urban™ .................

The members of the Managing Board of the Bank, and their offices, are listed below.

Name Office

Dkim. Gerhard Randa ............... Chairman and CEO
Karl Samstag....................... Deputy Chairman
Heinrich Gehl ...................... Board Member
HelmutJdell.......... .. . o iiiiat. Board Member
Mag. Friedrich Kadrnoska. .. ......... Board Member
Mag. Franz Zwickl .................. Board Member

Remuneration of Supervisory and Managing Board Members

in 1995 the total remuneration paid to the Bank's Managing Board, including retiring members of the
Managing Board, amounted to ATS 55.0 million and retired members of the Managing Board or their
surviving dependents received payments aggregating ATS 30.8 million. Payments to members of the
Supervisory Board aggregated ATS 3.2 million, including attendance fees and expenses.

Loans granted to members of the Managing Board and the Supervisory Board outstanding on
December 31, 1995 totalled ATS 1.6 million and ATS 14.4 million, respectively. No guarantees were
issued for the benefit of members of the Managing Board or the Supervisory Board, nor were any salary
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advances made to them. Loansg to the Supervisory Board members include those made to members
nominated by the employees. The maturities of such loans to members of the Managing Board and
Supervisory Board range from five to ten years. The interest rate payable on such loans is based on the
interest rate charged for loans made to employees of the Bank.

Employees

At December 31, 1995, the Bank (not including its subsidiaries and participations) employed 8,953
employees. During 1995, the average number of employees of the Bank was 9,005. Management
congiders employee relations to ba good.

THE REPUBLIC OF AUSTRIA
General

The Republic of Austria is situated in Central Europe, bordered by Switzerland and Liechtenstein on
the west, Germany and the Czech Republic to the north, Hungary and the Slovak Republic to the east
and Slovenia and ltaly to the south. The population of the Republic according to 1998 micro census
figures is approximately 8.1 million, with approximately 1.6 million living in the capital city of Vienna. Since
1994, Austria hag been a member of the European Economic Area (“EEA™), which was established
among the EU and several European Free Trade Area (“EFTA") member states. Austria became a
member of the EU effective January 1, 1995,

Form of Government

Under the Austrian federal constitution, Austria is a democratic and federal republic, with legislative
and executive powers divided between the federal government and the nine federal provinces.

The legistative power of the federal government is vested in a bicameral legislature consisting of the
Nationalrat and the Bundesral. The Nationalrat is the main fegislative body. lts memberg are eiected for a
period of four years by direct popular vote under a system of proportional reprasantation. The Nationairat
may be dissolved before the completion of its four-year term by its own action or, in certain
circumstances, by the federal Presigent. The present Nationalrat was elected in Dacember 1995 for a
four-year term. The Bundesrat reprasents the nine provinces and has certain approval rights with respect
to proposed legislation. The members of the Bundesrat are elected by the legislatures of the nine
provinces in proportion to the populations thereof.

The executive powers of the federal government are vested in the federal President and the Cabinet,
which is headed by the Chancellor. The federal President is elected by direct popular vote for a gix-year
term. Dr. Thomas Klestil assumed the office of federal President on July 8, 1992, The chief constitutional
powers of the federal President include the appointment of the Chancellor and his Cabinet and the
dissolution of the Nationafrat. A number of new members were appointed to the present Cabinet in
January 1997, which was originally formed in March 1996 by a coalition of the Austrian Social Democratic
Party and the Austrian People’s Party. Mag. Viktor Klima of the Austrian Social Democratic Party is the
current Chancelior and Dr. Woligang Schilssel of the Austrian People's Party is the Vice-Chancellor.

THE CITY OF VIENNA
General

The City of Vienna (the “City”) is the capital of, and the largest city in, Austria. The City has
approximately 1.6 million inhabitants and covers an area of 415 square kilometers. All of the important
government head offices for the Republic are situated in the City, including the federal parliament, the
federal ministries, the federal Chancellor’s office, the federal President's office and the highest courts.
The Austrian National Bank, the headquarters of almost all the major Austrian commercial banks, and
insurance companies, and the only stock exchange in Austria, are also located in Vienna. The City is
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Austria’s financial and administrative center and is one of the most important crossroads for European
east-west trade. The City is a direct guarantor of AV-Z and an indirect guarantor of the Bank’s
obligations. See "'Bank Austria — Statutory Guarantee™.

Municipal Administration

Under the Austrian federal constitution, the City has the legal status of both a municipality and a
federal province. The federal constitution provides that all powers not expressly given to the federal
government are to be exercised by the federal provinges. This means that the City has those legislative
and executive powers and duties of a province under the federal constitution.

The Vienna City Gouncil consists of 100 members who are elected for a term of five years. The
Councll sits as a provincial assembly in matters relating to the City as a province, and as a City Council in
matters relating to the Gity as a municipality. The Mayor is the head of the Gity administration. The Mayor
also acts as the head of the Province of Vienna. Following elections on October 13, 1996, a coalition of
the Austrian Social Demacratic Party and the Austrian People's Party was formed. The present mayor,
Dr. Michael Haupl, who has been in office since November 7, 1994, was reelected. The deputy mayors
are Grete Laska and Dr. Bernhard Gorg.

Economy

The City’e principal industries include etectronicg, machinery, food and consumer goods, and the
automotive and chemical industries. Vienna'e industry is characterized by a predominance of small and
medium-gized companies. In addition, tourism is a major source of income for the City.

Revenues of the City

Under Austrian law, the City, as a federal province and a municipality, is entitled to a portion of the
income from federal taxes which are apportioned between the federal government, the federal provinces
and the municipalities. The City of Yienna also receives revenues from various provincial and city taxes,
including trade laxes, payroll taxes, land taxes, beverage taxes, employers’ levies and usage levies.

THE AUSTRIAN BANKING SYSTEM
Overview

The Austrian banking system, not unlike that of other continental European countries, embraces a
diverse array of financial institutions of various sizes and with various primary businesses. The Austrian
banking system is divided into the following five '‘sectors’™ according to the legal status of a bank and
membership in a sector agsociation: (i) joint stock bankg and private banks; (ii) savings banks;
(iil} regional martgage banks; (iv) rural credit cooperativeg; and (v) emall businese credit cooperatives.
Building societies and special purpose banke do not have their own '‘sectore™. Each building society and
apecial purpoge bank ie 2 member of one of the five sectors listed above, such membership having been
designated upon the organization of such buitding society or special purpose bank. The Bank is a
member of the savings banks sactor.

During the past two decades, the original differences between the sectors have become less
distinct. Currently, Austrian banks generally engage in all types of banking operations. While joint stock
banks, private banks, savings banks and credit cooperatives may have different business policies, they
conduct substantially the same types of operations.

Integration with the European Union

Austria became a member of the EU effective January 1, 1995. As a result of Austria’'s membership
in the EU, Austrian faws are in the process of being harmonized with the EU banking directives,
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continuing the process that began in connection with Austria’s membership in the EEA. See
“— Regulation and Supervision''.

Membership in the EEA (and consequently in the EU) requires the compliance with all EU banking
directives, including the Second Banking Directive, which significantly loosened restrictions on the
Austrian operations of banks and financial institutions based in other EU and EEA member states. At the
same time, banks in Austria gained access to the Common Market.

Regqulation and Supervision

The 1893 Banking Act contains most of the essential regulations for '‘credit institutions', as banks
are designated in the 1993 Banking Act. The minimum reserves are regulated in the National Bank Act
1984. Savings banks are further subject to the Savings Bank Act of 1979. Bonds backed by mortgages
are governed by the Mortgage Bond Act of 1927.

The 1993 Banking Act, most of the provisions of which became effective on January 1, 1994, was
enacted in view of Austria’s membership in the EEA. The Act adopted EU banking directives and
recommendations into Austrian law, in particular the first and the second banking directives, the directive
relating to own funds, solvency ratios and banks’ annual accounts, as well as the directive on
consolidated supervision of 1992

An amendment to the 1993 Banking Act, which became effective on August 23, 1996, implemented,
among other things, the EU directives on large exposures and deposit-guarantees and the consolidation
directive. A further amendment to the 1993 Banking Act, which, among other things, effects compliance
with the EU directives on investment services and on capital adequacy, was enacted on December 30,
1996 and has effective datee of January 1, 1997, July 1, 1997, and January 1, 1998,

Federal Minister of Finance. The Federal Minister of Finance (Federal Ministry of Finance) is the
supervigory authority that monitore compliance with the 1993 Banking Act, the Savings Bank Act of 1970
in most cases and other relevant legislation (including related regulations) for Austrian banks and
financial institutions in their activities in Austria and abroad.

Pursuant to the 1993 Banking Act, the Federal Minister of Finance must appoint a State
Commissioner and a Deputy State Commissioner for any bank having mere than ATS 5 billion in assets.
The State Commissioners are entitled to participate in the meetings of the sharehclders and the
Supervisory Board of the bank to which they are appointed and have the obligation to object to
resolutions which, in their view, viclate federal laws or regulations. Any such objection made by the State
Commissioners suspends the validity of such regolutions until 2 determination of the Federal Minigter of
Finance as to its validity. Dr. Rudoph Glickel is the State Commigsioner for the Bank. Dr. Gerhard
Scharitzer is the Deputy State Commigsionar.

Fursuant to the Mortgage Bond Act of 1927, the Bank is subject to inspection by a Trustee and a
Deputy Trustee appointed by the Federal Minister of Finance. The Trustee and the Deputy Trustee are
responsible for determining that the legal requirements for the registration of certain mortgage assets are
met by the Bank. The Trustee for the Bank is Dr. Gunther Pullez. The Deputy Trustee is Dr. Alois
Ramoser. In addition, a State Cover Fund Controlier, who is appointed by the Federal Minister of Finance,
is responsible to ensure that the fegal requirements for segregation and security of certain asset-backed
debt obligations of the Bank are met. The Bank’s Controller is Mag. Karl Benes.

The Federal Minister of Finance is empowered to (i} request interim reports, auditing reports and
other information from the boards of a bank on all business matters, (i} inspect the books, documents
and data carriers of banks and (iii} require special audits to be made by bank auditors or experts. The
Federal Minister of Finance may also appoint special auditors or require the Austrian National Bank to
audit banks and their branches and representative offices outside Austria. If a bank in Austria is found not
to be in compliance with the legal requirements, the Federal Minister of Finance may issue decrees with a
maximum validity of 18 months which (i) prohibit withdrawals of capital or profits from the bank,
(ii) appoint a government commissioner who is authorized to prohibit all business which could be
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prejudicial to the safety of the interests of customers of the bank, (iii) prohibit further management of the
bank by such bank’s existing managing board or {iv} prohibit {in whole or in part) further business of the
bank.,

The 1993 Banking Act (as amended) imposas, among others, the following requiraments:

1.  Regular reports. Regular reports must be filed Dy every bank in Austria immediately following the
end of each calendar month and of each quarter with the Federal Minister of Finance. In addition, reports
on large exposures {when incurred) and annual reports on hidden reserves are required. The reports
must be in the format prescribed by implementing decrees. The Austrian National Bank receives these
reports and must give an opinion to the Federal Ministry of Finance whether the reguiations on solvency,
own funds, liquidity, open positions, large exposures and participations have been observed.

2. Capital {Soivency) Ratios. The own funds of any bank and any group of banks must be at least 8%
of the bank's assessment basis, which is calculated as the sum of the bank's risk-weighted and off-
balance sheet assets. Own funds censist of paid-up capital, disclosed reserves and funds for general
bank risks, which constitute the “core capital'' {commonly referred to as Tier 1 capital), as well as
supplementary capital, participation capital, subordinated capital, revaluation reserves and the
commitments of members of cooperative banks to make additional contributions quantified in relation to
their shareheoldings {commonly referred to as Tier 2 capital). So-called "hidden reserves” and
revaluation reserves constitute additional elements of own funds listed in the 1893 Banking Act, but the
Bank has not included hidden reserves and revaluation reserves in calculating its capital (solvency)
ratios, Creditanstalt, however, has included an amount for revaluation reserves in calculating its capital
(solvency) ratios. See ''Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information — Unaudited Pro Forma Capital
Data”, The EU capital adequacy directive, which was implemented in Austria at the end of 1996,
expands and supplements the foregoing criteria (with effective dates of January 1, 1997, July 1, 1997,
and January 1, 1998). Starting in 1998, among other things, the Bank will be required to meet the capital
requirements regarding position risk as well as settlement and counterparty risk according to a trading
book approach. As a complementary measure, short-term subordinated capital will be accepted as own
funds {commeonly referred to as Tier 3 capital). For a discussion of the potential future consolidation of
the entire AV-Z group at the level of the Bank for purposes of determining compliance with capital
adequacy reguirements, see "The Proposed Acquisition of Creditanstalt’’.

3. Liguidity. Banks must meet their payment obligations. Every bank must estahlish a financial and
liquidity pilan that enables the bank to react to possible digparities between incoming and outgoing
payments and to changes in market conditions. Banks must structure the terms of their claims and
obligations and provide for changing interest rates and maturity trends. In addition {o these general
regulations, banks must retain minimum liquid resources of first degree and of second degree. The 1983
Banking Act requires a detailed calculation plan for the foregoing.

4. QOpen Positions. The difference between asset and liability items of a bank in a foreign currency is
defined as the bank's open position. At the end of any business day, any ong open .pasition may not
exceed 30% of the bank's own funds. The total of all open positions may not exceed 50% of the bank’s
own funds at the close of business of any day. Similar restrictions are applicable for open positions
regarding items that become due within a specific calendar quarter and any half year period.

5. Llarge Exposures. Under the 1993 Banking Act, a large exposure exists if the risk-weighted assets
and off-balance sheet items with regard to a single client or group of connected clients exceed 15%
(10% as of January 1, 1999) of the own funds of a bank or a group of banks. Large exposures require
the prior consent of the bank’s supervisory board. A single large exposure may not exceed 40% (25% as
of January 1, 1999) of the own funds of a bank or a group of banks and may not exceed 30% (20% as of
January 1, 1009) if made to the parent company or a subsidiary of the parent or the bank. The total of
large exposures of a bank or a group of banks may not exceed 800% of its own funds. Exceptions apply
for, among others, exposures to the Republic and the provinces.
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6. Participations. The 1993 Banking Act governs qualified participations, which are direct or indirect
holdings of at least 10% of the capital or voting rights, or the possibility to exercise a significant influence
over the management of a company. Generally, no qualified participation in a non-bank may be held by a
bank or a group of banks if the bock value of the participation exceeds 15% of the own funds of the bank
or a group of banks. The entire book value of qualified participations may not exceed 60% of the own
funds of a bank or a group of banks. The limitations may be exceeded under certain circumstances.
Exceptions exist for shares which are held (i} temporarily in connection with a company's financial
restructuring, (ii} to fulfill a placement obligation for newly issued securities, (i} in the name of the bank
but for the account of a third person or (iv} as a nen-permanent investment.

Central Bank of Austria. The Austrian National Bank is the central bank of Austria. The main task of
the Austrian National Bank is to regulate the volume of money and to provide for the settlement of
payments abroad. It is also responsible for maintaining the domestic purchasing power of the Schilling, as
well as its relation to the stable currencies of foreign countries.

Pursuant to the 1993 Banking Act and other financial laws, the Austrian National Bank reviews
reports and makes recommendations to the Federal Ministry of Finance. The Austrian National Bank
compiles detailed foreign currency statistics concerning the foreign currency position of all Austrian
banks and, therefore, has an indication of the business volume of all large Austrian banks. This detailed
information acts as a de facto regulatery mechanism since the figures in these reports and the information
provided by the banks must be consistent. Apart from the duties performed for the Ministry of Finance,
the Austrian National Bank has independent responsibilities in exercising its functions as central bank,
which include conducting discount, Lombard and open market transactions.

The Austrian National Bank prescribes minimum reserves by general decree pursuant to the Central
Bank Act. All banks must report monthly on their compliance with reserve requirements to the Austrian
National Bank on a prescribed form. If a bank does not meet the minimum reserve requirement, it may be
charged interest, at a rate equal to 3V percentage points above the discount rate of the Austrian National
Bank, for 30 days on the amount of any deficit. Generally, required reserves consist of 5% for sight
deposits, 3% for time deposits and savings deposits and other securitized liabilities with a notice period
or term of less than 12 months, 3% for time deposits and savings deposits and other securitized liabilities
with neither a notice period nor a term shorter than 12 months, 3% for debt securities having a term of
less than 24 months, and 0% for debt securities having a term between 24 and 60 months.

As the lender of |ast resort to banks in Austria, the Austrian National Bank continuously evaluates the
condition of the banks.

Deposit Protection Program. Any bank which receives deposits must join the deposit protection
facility of its banking sector. See "—Overview''. If a bank is not a member of the deposit protection
facility, its license to conduct a deposit-taking business lapses. If the protection facility of a particuiar
gector is called upon to make a payment to restore protected deposite, each member bank in that sector
will be required to contribute to the protection facility in an amount that is determined in proportion to the
aggregate amount of such bank’s deposits, but not in excess of one-third of its liability reserve. If the
payment due from the protection facility exceeds the aggregate maximurm amount that its members can
be called upon to contribute, the deposit protection facilities of the other banking sectors each will
contribute a pro rata portion of the amount then remaining unpaid, but not in excess of one-third of their
liability reserves. If the deposit protection facilities are unable to repay the protected deposits in full, the
deposit protection facility that was primarily obligated to repay such protected deposits must issue
bonds, for which the Republic may accept liability, in order to repay any amount then remaining unpaid.
Under this deposit protection program, deposits are insured up to ATS 260,000 or equivalent per
depositor. Deposits of legal persons are guaranteed up to ninety percent. Small clients receive preferred
treatment up to an amount of ATS 26,000. The Notes do not constitute deposits and therefore do not
benefit from this deposit protection program.

Audits and Financial Statements. Austrian auditing reguiations are generally adapted to the EU
standards. The audited financial statements, as well as the auditing reports thereon, must be submitted
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by banks (and the branches of foreign banks) within six months after the end of the busineas year to tha
Federal Ministry of Finance and the Austrian National Bank. In addition, the data of the financial
statements must be transmitted to the Austrian National Bank on electronic data carriers in standardized
forms.

The financial statements of a bank must be audited by a bank auditor who is either a certitied public
accountant or the auditing entity associated with one of the specialized auditing institutions (e.g., the
Savings Banks’ Auditing Association) .

The final audited financial statements must be published either in the official Austrian government
daily newspaper or In a generally available publication gazette in Austria. The contante of the publication
are prescribed by law.

In addition, the bank auditors must examine the correctness of the valuation of the ascete of the bank
as well as the timely and complete compliance of the bank with all relevant banking iaws, in particular
laws concerning the supervision of the Bank. The result of this audit must be included in a separate bank
supervision audit report that is communicated 1o the managing and supervisory boards of the bank and
the supervisory entities of the federal government.

71




THE AUSTRIAN ECONOMY

The information, including statistical data, contained in this section has been taken from official
publications of, or otherwise provided by, the Austrian National Bank and the Austrian Institute for
Economic Research (WIFO).

Gieneral

Austria has an industrialized economy, comprised primarily of diversified industriai and service
sectors. Trade and service {public and private), which include the transport, telecommunications,
banking, insurance and commerce (including tourism) industriee, as well as a variety of production-
related services, comprised approximately 39% of the 1995 gross domestic product (“GDP"}. Industry
and mining, construction, power and water, along with the small scale trade sector, formed approximately
39% of the GDP, with agriculture, public and other services accounting for the remainder. Adjusted for
inflation, the 1994 GDP growth was 3.0% over 1993, 1993 showed a 0.4% growth in GDP over 1892 and
1992 showed a 2.0% growth over 1991. The 1995 GDP growth over 1994 was 1.8%.

Austria’s economy is competitive with other industrialized nations in terms of productivity, inflation,
domestic expenditure, savings and several other key economic indicators. With productivity in industry
growing 163% from 1971 through 1994, Austria experienced the second fastest growth rate in the
Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development ('OECD”}. inflation in 1995 {measured as the
increase in the consumer price index) was at 2.2%, below the EU average of 3.2%. Austrian inflation
rates in 1994 and 1993 were, respectively, 3.0% and 3.6%.

Germany is by far Austria’s most important trading partner, and, consequently, events in Germany
have an impact on the Austrian economy. The percentage of Austria’s total exports represented by
exports to Germany was approximately 38% in 1994, 39% in 1993 and 40% in 1992, while approximately
40% of its total imports during 1994, 41% in 1993 and 43% in 1992 came from Germany. Germany's
trade relationship with Austria is the primary reason that the Austrian National Bank has followed a policy
of maintaining a stable exchange rate between the Austrian Schilling and the Deutsche Mark, supported
by a tight monetary policy. The condition of the Austrian economy has been influenced significantly by
various factors including (i) the government's policy of privatizing state-owned industry, (ii) the opening
up of Eastern Europe and (iii) Austria’s entry into the EU, which are discussed below.

Since 1987, the Austrian government has actively pursued a policy of privatizing industries which
initially had been nationalized under the Nationalization Acts of 1946 and 1947. From 1987 to 1994, the
government sold state owned shares in excess of ATS 24 billion in various industries, including cil, coal,
iron ore, electrical power, manufacturing and banking. In 1996 and 1996, privatization proceeds were
ATS 5.9 billion and ATS 4.6 billion, respectively.

The political and economic changes in Eastern and Central Europe, after decades of planned
economy, have exerted a strong influence on the Austrian economy, particutarly in terms of exports and
direct investments. From 1989 to the end of 1994, Austrian exports to Hungary, the Czech and Slovak
Republics and Poland increased by 230%, compared to a 19.4% growth in aggregate exports for the
same period. While in 1992, the EU accounted for approximately 66.1% and Eastern Europe for 11.6% of
all Austrian exports, in 1993 and 1994 the export figures for Eastern Europe had risen to 12.7% and
13.6%, respectively, while exports to the EU were 63.6% and 682.9%, respectively. Austrians are provided
with a mechanism for direct investment in Eastern Europe through a series of invastment programe.
Austrian direct investment in Eastern Europe at year-end 1993 totalied ATS 18.5 billion, while at year-end
1995 it had climbed to ATS 38 billion, representing approximately 10.0% of the aggregate foreign direct
investment in Eastern Europe.

Austria formally joined the EU on January 1, 1895. The Austrian government expects Austria’s entry
to lead to increased trading and direct investment activities between Austria and the other EU member
states. It is further expected that Austria's entry will reinforce its unigue role as liaison between Westarn
and Eastern Europe.
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interest Rate Environment

The interest rate environment in Austria has undergone significant changes from 1992. Between
1992 and the end of 1993, the 10-year secondary market yields in government bonds declined from a
high of 8.5% to a low of 5.9%. Baginning in early 1984, yields increased to a high of 7.7%. Yields
subsequently increased to a high of 7.8% in the first quarter of 1995, and then decreased to 5.9% by
December 1996. Short-term rates have decreaged since August of 1992,

The Current Economie Situation

The deceleration of economic growth observed since the spring of 1995 (the growth rate in 1995
was 1.8% compared to a growth rate of 3.0% in 1994} continued into early 1996, when cyclical
sluggishness spilling over from major trading partners in western Europe was exacerbated by adverse
weather conditions in an extended winter period. As a result, the growth rate in 1996 was expected to be
0.8%. In the sacond half of 1996 a recovery set in (the real growth rate in the third quarter was 1.0%),
which ig, however, unlikely to unfold quickly. The recovery was underpinned by substantial market growth
outaide western Europe (particularly in East-Central Eurepe and the USA) on the one hand, and by a
marked improvement in export price competitivenags due to a lower effective Schilling exchange rate
(eince the beginning of the year, espacially against the Lira and the U.S.§), on the other. Merchandise
exports are axpactad to rise in volume (in real tarms) by 4.2% and 8.0% in 1996 and 1997, respectively.

The expected improvement in the domestic tourism industry has not yet developed. Overnight stays
declined further during the 1996 summer season ({from January to November 1098, overnight stays
declined 4.2% compared to the same period in 1995). From January to November 1996, foreign currency
receipts declined by 0.2%, while foreign currency expenditures for Austrian tourist spending abroad
increased by 9.3%. [n part due to this devalopmeant, the 1996 balance of paymants is expected to close
with a negative valua of almost 29% of GDP. Slight improvements in the tourism indusatry and the balance
of paymanta ars axpacted for 1997 Both trands will allow the Austrian current aceount to improve. On EU
iabor force survey definitions, the unemployment rate will go up to 4.2%. The annual inflation rate, which
foll from 4.1% to 2.2% between 1992 and 1995, reached 1.6% for the first gix months of 1996. Due to
increases in the inflation rate in the second half of 1996, the annual inflation rate was 1.9%. The inflation
rate is now expected to be 1.9% in 1997,

{Source: Austrian Institute for Economic Research)

The Budget

Pursuant to the Federal Government’s budget drafts for 1996 and 1997, the central government
deficit ie projected to be reduced to around ATS 68 bition, equivalent to 2.7% of GDP. If hudgetary
projections are met, general government borrowing in 1997 would not exceed 3%, as stipulated by the
Maastricht convergence criteria. Two thirde of the deficit reduction would be achieved by public
expenditure rastraint, and one third by raising additional revenues, mostly from taxes.

(Source: Austrian Institute for Economic Research)
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DESCRIPTION OF THE NOTES

The following is a brief summary of certain terms and conditions of the Notes and of the Fiscal
Agency Agreement (as defined below) with respect thereto and of certain related information. This
summary does not purpor to be complete and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference to the
Fiscal Agency Agreement (which includes the form of the Notes}. The Fiscal Agency Agreement is
available for inspection by holders of the Notes at the principal office of the Fiscal Agent in the City of
New York, currently located at 450 West 33rd Street, 15th Floor, New Yark, NY 10001-2697.

General

The Notes will be issued by the Bank in accordance with a Fiscal Agency Agreement to be dated as
of February 6, 1997 (the “Fiscal Agency Agreement”) between the Bank and The Chase Manhattan
Bank as fiscal agent (the "'Fiscal Agent’) for the Notes. The Notes will be limited to $700,000,000
aggregate principal amount and will be issued only in fully registered form, without interest coupons, in
minimum denominations of $250,000 and multiples of $1,000 in excess thereof. The Notes will initially be
issued in the form of one or more permanent global certificates (together, the “Gilobal Note™ ) registered
in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company ("'DTC'). Interests in the
Notes will be held through financial institutions acting on behalf of holders of such interests as direct or
indirect participants of DTC. Except in limited circumstances, investors will be required to hold the
interests in Notes purchased by them through DTC and owners of interests will not be entitled to receive
physical delivery of Notes in definitive form. See "— Book-Entry System; Delivery and Form™ below.

The Notes will mature on February 16, 2017 (the “‘Date of Maturity™*), unless earlier redeemed in the
avent of certain changes in Austrian tax laws. See **-—— Tax Redemption.

The Notes will bear interest at the rate per annum set forth on the cover page of this Offering
Memorandum from February 11, 1997 until payment in full of the principal of the Noteg hag been made or
duly provided for. Interest on the Notes will be payable semi-annually in arrears on February 15 and
August 156 of each year, commencing on August 15, 1997, and ending on the Data of Maturity, or, if any
such date ig not a Buginess Day, on the next succeeding Business Day (“Interest Payment Dates”) to
the person or persons (a ‘‘Holder”) in whose name such Notes are registered in the Note Register (as
definad below) at the close of business on the February 1 and August 1, respectively, immediately
preceding such interest Payment Dates {a "Regular Record Date''), except that interest not go
punctually paid or duly provided for, if any, will be paid to the persons in whose names the Noteg (of one
or more predecessor Notes) are registered as of the close of business on a gpecial record date to be
fixed by the Bank (a “'Special Record Date™ and, each Regular Record Date and Special Record Date, a
“Record Date’'). Interest on the Notes will be calculated on the basig of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day
months. For the purposes hereof, the term “‘Business Day'' means a day on which banks in the City of
New York are not authorized or required by law to be closed.

For so long as Notes are represented by the Global Note, the registered owner of the Global Note, in
accordance with the terms of the Notes, may be treated at all times and for all purposes by the Bank and
the Fiscal Agent as the sole owner with respect to such Global Note with respect to all payments on the
Notes and for all other purposes under the terms of the Notes and the Fiscal Agency Agreement.

Status of the Notes

The Notes will constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Bank
and will rank pari passu without any preference among themselves and at least equally with all other
present and future unconditional, unsecured and subordinated obligations of the Bank. See
"*— Subordination’’.

The Notes are not being registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission and are offered
pursuant to an exemption from registration pursuant to Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended. No indenture is required to be, and none is being, qualified under the Trust indenture Act of
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1939, as amended. The Notes are not deposits and are not insured by FDIC or any other government
agency. The Notes will be issued outside Austria.

Book-Entry System; Delivery and Form

Except as set forth below, the Notes may be transferred, in whole and not in part, only to another
nominee of DTC or to a successor of DTC or its nominee. Investors may hold their Notes directly through
DTC, if they are participants in DTG (“Participants™), or indirectly through organizations that are
Farticipants.

Upon the issuance of the Notes, DTC will credit, on its book-entry registration and transfer system,
the respective principal amount of the Notes represented by the Global Note to the accounts of
Participants. The Global Note will be deposited on the date of the closing and sale of the Notes with, or on
behalf of, DTC and registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC. The accounts 1o be
credited will be designated by the Initial Purchasers. Ownership of beneficial interacte in the Notes will be
limited to Participants or persons that may hold interests through Participants. Ownership of interests in
such Notes will be shown on, and the transfer of those ownership interests will be effected only through,
records maintained by DTC (with respect to Participants’ interests} and such Participants (with respect
to the owners of bencficial interests in such Notes). The laws of some jurisdictions require that certain
persons take physical delivery in definitive form of securities. Consequently, the ability to transfer
beneficial interests in a Note to such persons may be limited.

Persons who are not Participants may beneficially own Notes held by DTC only through
Participants or indirect Participants. So long as Cede & Go., as the nominee of DTG, is the
registered owner of the Global Note, Cede & Co. for all purposes will be considered the sole
Holder of the Notes. Except as provided below, owners of beneficial interest in the Global Note
will not be entitled to have Notes registered in their names, will not receive or be entitled to
receive physical delivery of Notes in definitive form and will not be considered the holders
thereof.

Each person owning a beneficial interest in the Global Note must rely on the procedures of DTC and,
if such person is not a Participant, on the procedures of the Participant through which such person owng
its interest, to exercise any rights of a Holder of Notes under the Fiscal Agency Agreement and the Global
Note. DTC may grant proxies and otherwise authorize Participants to take any action that DTC, as the
holder of the Global Note, is entitled to take under such Global Note and the Fiscal Agency Agreement.
The Bank understands that under existing industry practice, in the avent the Bank requests any action of
Holders of Notes or an owner of a beneficial interest in the Global Note desires to take any action that
DTC, as the holder of such Global Note, is entitled to take, DTC would authorize the Participants to take
such action, and the Participants would authorize beneficial owners owning through such Participants to
take such action or would otherwise act upon the instructions of beneficial owners owning through them.

Payment of principal of, and interest and any Additional Amounts (as defined below) on, the Notes
will be made by the Bank in immediately available funds to Cede & Co., the nominee for DTC, as the
registered owner of the Global Note. Neither the Bank nor the Fiscal Agent will have any responsibility or
tiability for any aspect of the records relating to or payments made on account of beneficial gwnership
interests in the Global Note or the maintaining, supervising or reviewing of any records relating to such
beneficial ownership interest.

Upon receipt of any payment on the Global Note, DTC, under its current practice, will immadiately
credit Participants' accounts with payments in amounts proportionate to their respective beneficial
interests in the principal amounts of the Global Note as shown on the records of DTC. Payments by
Participants to owners of beneficial interests in the Global Note held through such Participants will be
governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as ie now the case with securities held for
the accounts of customers registered in “street name™, and will be the responsibility of such Participants.
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Because DTC can only act o behalf of Participants, who in turn act on behalf of indirect Participants
and certain banks, the ability of a Holder of the Notes to pledge such Notes to persons or entities that do
not participate in the DTC system, or otherwise take actions in respect of such Notes, may be affected by
the lack of a physical certificate for such Notes.

DTC has advised the Bank that it will take any action permitted to be taken by a holder only at the
direction of one or more Participants to whose account with DTC Notes are credited and only in respect of
such portion of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes as to which such Participant or Participants
has or have given such direction.

DTC has advised the Bank as follows: DTC is a limited purpose trust company organized under the
laws of the State of New York, a member of the Federal Reserve system, a *‘clearing corporation’” within
the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code and a “‘clearing agency™ registered pursuant to
the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act'). DTC was created to hold securities for its Participants and to facilitate the clearance and
settlement of securities transactions among its Participants through electronic book-entry changes in
accounts of its Participants, theraby eliminating the need for physical movement of certificates.
Participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies and clearing corporations and
may include certain organizations such as the initial Purchasers. indirect access to the DTC systam also
is available to others such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies that clear through or maintain
a custodial relationship with a Participant, either directly or indirectly.

Same-Day Settlement and Payment

Settlement for the Notes will be made by the Initial Purchasers in immediately available funds. The
Notes will trade in DTC's Same-Day Funds Settlement System. Accordingly, so long as DTC continues to
make its Same-Day Funds Settlement System available to the Bank, all payments of principal and interest
will be made by the Bank in immediately avaitable funds or the equivalent, and secondary market trading
activity in the Notes will be required by DTC to settle in immediately available funds.

Definitive Notes

The Global Note shall be exchangeable for definitive Notes only if: (a) DTC notifies the Bank that it is
unwilling or unable to continue as depository and a successor depository is not appointed within 90 days
or if at any time it ceases to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act and a successor
depository is not appointed within 90 days; (b) the Bank in its sole discretion determines that such
Global Note shall be exchangeable for definitive Notes; or (c) an Event of Default (as defined below)
shall have occurred and is continuing and any person having an interest in the Global Note advises the
Fiscal Agent, through DTC, in writing, that it wishes to exchange its interest for definitive Notes. Notes so
issued in definitive form will be issued in denominations of $250,000 and multiples of $1.000 in excess
thereof and will be issued only in registered form, without coupons. Such definitive Notes shall be
registered in the name or names of such person or persons as DTC shall instruct the Fiscal Agent. it is
expected that such instructions may be based upon directions received by DTC from its Participants with
respact to ownership of beneficial interests in such Global Note. The registration or transfer of any Notes
in definitive registered form may be effected only on the Note Register (as defined herein}.

The principal amount of the Notes in definitive form will be payable on the Date of Maturity or earlier
redemption date, as the case may be, in immediately available funds in the City of New York upon
presentation and surrender of the Notes at the office of the Fiscal Agent in the City of New York or at such
place or places in the Borough of Manhattan, the City of New York as may be designated from time to
time by the Bank and interest on the Notes and any Additional Amounts (as defined below) payable
thereon will be payable to the persons in whose names such Notes {or one or more predecessor Notes)
are registered at the close of business on the relevant Record Date. Such payments will be made by wire
transfer in immediately available funds to a bank aceount in the United States designated by such person
in a written notice received by the Fiscal Agent (a) in the case of a payment of interest, prior to the
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Record Date immediately preceding the Interest Payment Date on which such payment is due and (b} in
the case of payment of principal on the Date of Maturity, prior to the Record Date immediately preceding
the Date of Maturity, or in the case of payment of principal on an earlier redemption date, no later than the
fifteenth day prior to such earlier redemption date, provided that in the case of such payment of principal,
the Notes shall have been surrendered to the Fiscal Agent for payment together with such notice. If no
wire information has been furnished, payment will be made by check mailed to the registered address of
the Holder.

Registration; Transfer and Exchange of Definitive Notes

The Fiscal Agent will maintain at its principal office in the City of New York, currently located at
450 West 33rd Street, 15th Floor, New York, New York 10001-2697, a note register (the “Note
Register”} with respect to the Notes. The name and address of the registered Holder of each Note and
the amount of each Note will be recorded in the Note Register and the Bank and the Fiscal Agent may
treat the person in whose name the Note is registered as the owner of such Nole for all purposes.

Any Notes in definitive form may be presented for exchange or registration of transfer at the office of
the Fiscal Agent in the City of New York, subject to the limitations and requirements set forth in the Fiscal
Agency Agreement and the Notes. See “Notice to Investors’. Any Note presented for exchange or
registration of transfer shall be accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form and with
guarantee of signature and evidence of authority satisfactory to the Fiscal Agent and the Bank and with
payment by the transferor of any stamp or other tax or governmental charge payable in connection with
such transfer (or evidence that such tax or charge has been paid) and with such tax identification
number or other information for each person in whose name a new Note is to be issued as the Fiscal
Agent may reasonably request to comply with applicable law. No exchange or registration of transfer of
any Note shall be made after the fifteenth day immediately preceding the Date of Maturity or on or after
the date upon which a notice of redemption of such Note is mailed to the Holder,

Subordination

In the event of the liquidation or bankruptcy (Abwicklung oder Konkurs) of the Bank,
payments in respect of the principal of, and interest and any Additional Amounts (as defined
below) payable on, the Notes will be subordinated to the prior payment in full of the deposit
liabilities of the Bank and all other liabilities of the Bank, except those liabilities which by their
terms rank equally with or are subordinated to the Notes. As of December 31, 1995, the Bank had
approximately ATS 598 billion ($55.7 billion) in amounts due to customers and to credit
institutions and securitized liabilities to which the Notes would be subordinated in right of
payment. THE OBLIGATIONS OF THE BANK TO WHICH THE NOTES ARE SUBORDINATED ARE
NOT LIMITED TO SUCH AMOUNT, AND THE FISCAL AGENCY AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO
WHICH THE NOTES WILL BE ISSUED WILL PERMIT THE BANK TO INCUR AN UNLIMITED
AMOUNT OF ADDITIONAL DEPOSIT AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS (NOT LIMITED TO
OBLIGATIONS FOR MONEY BORROWED)} TO WHICH THE NOTES WOULD BE SUBORDINATED
IN RIGHT OF PAYMENT. THE SUBORDINATION PROVISIONS OF THE NOTES WILL BE
GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE REPUBLIC OF AUSTRIA.

The Bank shall not be entitled to withhold any payments in respect of the principal of, and
interest and any Additional Amounts payable on, any of the Notes on the grounds of set-off
against any amount owed to it by the Holder nor shall any Holder be entitled to exercise or claim
any right of set-off in respect of any amount owed by it to the Bank against any amount in respect
of the principal of, and interest and Additional Amounts payable on, the Notes owed to it by the
Bank.
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Taxation; Additional Amounts

All payments of the principal of and interest on the Notes by the Bank will be made without deduction
or withhelding for or on account of any present or future tax, duty or charges of whatever nature imposed
or levied by or on behalf of the Republic of Austria or any political subdivision or any authority thereof or
therein having the power to tax {the ‘'Taxing Jurisdiction') unless such deduction or withholding is
required by law. If any such deduction or withholding is required, the Bank will pay to the Helder such
additional amounts (‘'Additional Amounts''} as may be necessary in order that each net payment on a
Note after such deduction or withholding will not be less than the amount provided for in such Note to be
then due and payable; provided, however, that the foregoing obligation to pay Additional Amounts will not
apply if: (i) the Holder is subject to such tax, duty or charge for any reason other than the Holder's
ownership of, or receipt of payments in respect of, such Note, (ii} the Note is presented for payment
(where presentation is required) more than 30 days after the due date of the payment (or, if payment is
not provided for when due, any later date when notice that such payment is available has been given)
except to the extent that the Holder would have been entitled to such additional amount on presenting
the Note for payment on the last day of such 30-day period or (iii) the actual beneficiary of payments
under the Note is entitled to an exemption from withholding but fails, after having received a request to do
g0, to provide a certificate required to confirm that the beneficiary is sc entitled.

Tax Redemption

The Notes may be redeemed at the option of the Bank in whole, but not in part, on giving not less
than five years' notice in accordance with the Notes {which notice shall be irrevocable )}, at their principal
amount, together with interest accrued (if any) to the date fixed for redemption, if (i} the Bank has or will
become obliged to pay Additional Amounts referred to above as a result of any change in, or amendment
of, the laws or regulations of a Taxing Jurisdiction, or any change in the application or official
interpretation of such laws or regulations, which change or amendment becomes effective on or after
February 11, 1997 and {ii) such obligation cannot be avoided by the Bank taking reasonable measures
available to it, provided that (x}ne such notice of redemption shall be given earlier than 90 days prior to
the earliest date on which the Bank would be obliged to pay such Additional Amounts were a payment in
respect of the Notes then due and (y) the notice period shall be 90 days only (instead of 5 years} if the
Bank shall, prior to the redemption of the Notes pursuant to Section 6 of the Notes have raised capital at
least in the redemption amount {or in the Austrian Schilling equivalent thereof or in its countervalue in any
other freely convertible currency) and of at least equal own funds quality (as defined in Art. 23 of the
Austrian Banking Act (Bankwesengesetz} ). Prior to the mailing of any notice of redemption pursuant to
Section 7 of the Notes, the Bank shall deliver to the Fiscal Agent a certificate signed by two directors of
the Bank stating that the Bank is entitled to effect such redemption and setting forth a statement of facts
showing that the conditions precedent of the right of the Bank so to redeem have occurred and an
opinion of independent legal advisers of recognized standing to the effect that the Bank has or will
become obiiged to pay such Additional Amounts as a result of such change or amendment.

Events of Defauit

Events of Default. I any of the following evenis (“'Events of Default''} shall occur and be
continuing:

(a) default being made for a period of seven days in the repayment of principal of, or 15 days in the
payment of any interest upon, any of the Notes when and as the same become due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the Notes; or

(b) the Bank failing to perform or observe any covenant, condition or provision binding on it
contained in the Notes (other than any obligation for the payment of principal or interest in
respect of the Notes) or the Fiscal Agency Agreement and on its part to be performed and
observed and such failure not being remedied within 45 days following the service on the Fiscal
Agent of a notice by any Holder requiring the same to be remedied; or
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{c} any other indebtedness for moneys borrowed of the Bank amounting singly or in the aggregate
to $20,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency or currencies) (i) not being paid when
due or within any grace period applicable to such indebtedness, or (i) becoming or becoming
capable of being rendered due and payable before its scheduled maturity by reason of a
default by the Bank, or {iii} if payable on demand, not being paid when demanded except
where, in any case, the same is being contested in good faith by the Bank, or any guarantee or
indemnity given by the Bank in respect of any indebtedness for moneys borrowed of any other
person amounting singly or in the aggregate to $20,000,000 (or its equivalent in any other
currency or currencies) not being henored when due and called upon; or

{d) the security for any indebtedness for moneys borrowed of the Bank or for any guarantee or
indemnity given by the Bank in respect of any indebtedness for borrowed money of any other
person becoming enforceable and the creditors entitled thereto taking steps to enforce the
same; or

(e} the Bank being adjudicated or found bankrupt or insolvent or any order being made by any
competent court or administrative agency, or any effective resolution being passed for (i) the
Bank to be wound up, liquidated or dissolved or {ii) for the judicial appointment of an Official
Controller to supervise the management of the Bank with binding authority with the effect of a
temporary moratorium (Geschédftsaufsicht) in relation to the Bank or a substantial part of its
assets, in the case of cither (i) or (ii} otherwise than for the purposes of a reconstruction,
merger or amalgamation effected with the prior approval of an Extraordinary Resolution of
Holders {save that no reconstruction, merger or amalgamation of the Bank shall give rise to an
Event of Default or shall require the approval of an Extraordinary Resolution of Holders provided
that the Notes shall, following such reconstruction, merger or amalgamation, continue to have
the benefit of the statutory guarantee of the City of Vienna pursuant to section 2(1) of the
Austrian Savings Bank Act (Sparkassengesetz) of 1979, as amended),

any Helder may, at its option, by notice to the Bank through the Fiscal Agent, take only the actions
described below in *'— Action Upon Event of Defauit”.

Action Upon Event of Default

it an Event of Default shall eccur and be continuing, any Holder may, at its option, by notice to the
Bank through the Fiscal Agent, take only the following steps:

(i) in an event as contemplated in subparagraph (b} of “*— Events of Default” above, institute
judicial proceedings against the Bank ag it may think fit to enforce the performance or
observance by the Bank of any covenant, condition or provigion contained in the Notes: or

(i) in any event contemplated in subparagraph (a), (c¢), (d} or {e) of "— Events of Default”
above, inform the Federal Ministar of Finance of the happening of such event and request that
he apply to the competent court in Vienna for the commeancement of bankruptcy proceedings
against the Bank subject to the statutory requirement that such court declares that the Bank
has become insolvent, and only if such declaration is made shall the Notes become due and
repayable as hereinafter described; or

(i} if bankruptey proceadinge are commenced in euch court against the Bank (on the application
of any person other than a Holder acting solely in such capacity), file an application In such
court demanding repayment of all principal amounts due under the Notes together with
accrued interest and any Additional Amounts.

If the competent Austrian court declares the Bank insolvent, all claims due to the Holders by the
Bank of principal and/or interest and any Additional Amounts shall be considered due and payable
according to paragraph 14 of the Bankruptcy Act (Konkursordnung) in Austrian Schilling on the date
such insolvency is published by judicial notice, converted at the rate of exchange applicable on the day
preceding such date for the purchase with Austrian Schilling in Vienna of the amounts due.
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If bankruptey procesdings are commenced against the Bank, the Notes will cease to bear intarest
from the date on which judicial notice of such insolvency is published.

The Bank shall not be required to pay to the Holders any amounts necessary to compensate them for
any difference between the principal amount and any accrued interest in respect of the Notes and, if less,
the dollar eguivalent of any Schilling amounts paid 1o a Holder in bankruptcy proceedings calculated at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the date such payment is made to the Holder.

The Holders will be represented in any judicial action or bankruptcy proceedings instituted in Austria
against the Bank by an attorney (Curator) .appeinted by and responsible to the Commercial Court of
Vienna under the statute of 27th April, 1874, Imperial Legislation Gazette no. 49. Such Curator will be
obliged to take any action and make any declarations required to the effect that the Holders will in the
event of a liquidation or bankruptcy (Abwicklung oder Konkurs) only receive payments after the claims of
depositors and all other unsubordinated creditors of the Bank shall have been satisfied.

Amendments

The Fiscal Agency Agreement and the Notes may be amended by the Fiscal Agent and the Bank
without the consent of the Holders to cure any ambiguity or to correct or supplement any provision
therein which may be inconsistent with any other provision of the Fiscal Agency Agreement or the Notes,
provided that such action will not adversely affect in any material respect the interests of the holders of
the Notes, or to cure any manifest error. The Fiscal Agency Agreement may otherwise be amended, and
the rights and obligations of the Bank and the rights of the Holders under the Notes may be modified,
with the consent of the holders of more than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Noles
outstanding, except that the consent of ail Holders is required in order to change the Date of Maturity of
any Note, to change the definition of Interest Payment Date, to reduce the principal amount of or rate of
interest on any Note, to change the obligation under Section 5 of the Notes to pay Additional Amounts or
the option or obligation under Section 6 of the Notes to redeem the Notes, to change the place of
payment where, or the coin or currency in which, principal or interest on the Notes is payable, to modify
the subordination provisions of the Notes in any manner adverse to the Holders, to reduce the percentage
amount of Notes outstanding the consent of whose holders is required in order to amend the Nolss or the
Fiscal Agency Agreement, and to modify the provisions of the Notes or the Fiscal Agency Agreement
governing the amendment of the Netes or the Fiscal Agency Agreement, except to increase any such
percentage or to provide that other provisions of the Fiscal Agency Agreement or the Notes cannot be
medified without the consent of the holder of each outstanding Note. Any consent or waiver given by a
Holder shall be conclusive and binding upon such Holder and upon all future holders of such Note and of
any Note issued upon the registration of transfer thereof or in exchange therefor or in lisu thereof, whether
or not notation of such consent or waiver is made upon the Note. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither
the Fiscal Agency Agreement nor the Notes may be amended in a manner that would result in a violation
of the subordinated capital requirements set forth in Article 23(8) of the 1993 Banking Act.

Governing Law and Jurisdiction

The Notes shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of the State of New York,
except that the subordination provision will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of
the Republic of Austria. In relation to any suit, action or proceeding arising out of or based on the Notes,
the Bank has irrevocably submitted to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the United States federal and state
courts located in the Borough of Manhattan in the City of New York and has appointed its New York
branch as its authorized agent for service of process.
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TAXATION
Austrian Tax Considerations

Under Austrian law as currently in effect, payments of principal and interest on the Notes to a non-
rasidant of the Republic of Austria that does not maintain a permanent establishment in the Republic of
Austria are generally exempt from any Austrian income or withholding tax. In certain circumstances, an
investor may need to certify ag to its non-resident status in order to avoid Austrian tax in respect of
payments on the Notes.

Gains realized on the sale or other disposition of the Notes by a nonresident of the Republic of
Austria that doeg not maintain a permanent establishment in the Republic of Austria are not subject to
any Austrian income or withholding tax. Non-residents of the Republic of Austria are not subject to
Austrian inheritance or gift taxes in respect of the Noteg provided the deceased or the donor has no
connaction with the Republic of Austria other than the mere holding of the Notes.

There are no Austrian stamp, igsue, registration or similar types of duties applicable to the Notes,

Prospective holdare of the Notes are advised to consult their tax advisers with regard to the tax
effectg of their holding of the Notes.

United States Federal Income Tax Consgiderations

Tha following is a summary of certain L).S. fedaral income tax considerations that may be relevant to
a holder of a Note that ig (i) a citizen or regident of the United States, or (ii} 2 U.S. domestic corporation,
(iii} a trust subject to the control of a .S, fiduciary and the primary supervision of a U.S. court, or
(iv) otherwise subject to U.S. federal income taxation on a net income basis in respect of a Note {a "U.S.
holder’’). This summary deals only with purchagers in the initial offering that will hold Notes as capital
asgete, and doeg not address tax considerations applicable to investors that may be subject to special
tax rules, such as banks, insurance companies, dealers in securities or currencies, persons that will hold
Notes ag part of a hedge, straddle or conversion transaction for tax purposes, or persons that have a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar. The summary is based on laws, regulations, rulings and
decigions now in effect (or, in the case of certain Treasury regulations, now in proposed form}, all of
which are subjoect to change. The summary doeg not discuss tax considerations arising under any other
national, state or local iaws.

Investors should consult their own tax advisors in determining the tax conseguences to them of
holding Notas, including the application to their particular situation of the tax considerations discussed
below.

Payments of Interest

Payments of stated interest on a Note (including Additional Amounts) will be taxable to a U.5.
holder ag ordinary interest income at the time that such payments are accrued or are received (in
accordance with the U.S. holder’'s method of tax accounting}. Interest on a Note will be income fram
sources outside the United States. A U.S. holder will be able, subject to generally applicable limitations,
to cigim a foreign tax credit for any Austrian withholding taxes imposed on interest.

Purchase, Fxchange or Ratirament of Notes

Upon the sale, exchange or retirement of a Note, a U.S. holder generally will recognize capital gain or
loss equal to the difference between the amount realized on the sale, exchange or retirement (less any
accrued interest, which will be taxable as such) and the U.S. holder’s tax basis in such Note. A U.S.
holder's tax basis in a Note generally will equal the cost of the Note te such holder.

Gain or loss recognized by a U.S. holder an the sale, exchange or retirement of a Note generally will
be fong-term capital gain or loss if the U.S. hoider has held the Note for more than one year at the time of
disposition. Gain generally will be treated as income from U.S. sources. Although the matter is not free
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from doubt, loss may be treated as foreign source loss by reference to the source of interest on the
Notes.

Non-U.S8. Holders

Holders of Notes that are not U.S. holders {“non-U.S. holders™} generally will not be subject to U.S.
federal income tax on payments of interest (including Additional Amounts} on the Notes unless such
interest is effectively connected with the conduct of a trade or business within the United States.

A non-U.S. holder will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax or withholding tax on gain realized on
the sale or other disposition of the Notes unless (i) the gain is effectively connected with the conduct of a
trade or business within the United States or (ii) the holder is an individual who was present in the United
States for at least 183 days during the taxable year of the sale and certain other conditions are met.

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding

Payments of interest and the proceeds from redemption or other dispositions of the Notes received
by non-corporate holders may be reported to the United States Internal Revenue Service and a 31%
backup withholding tax may apply unless the holder provides a correct taxpayer identification number or
a certificate of foreign status or otherwise establishes a basis for exemption. The United States Treasury
Department recently proposed regulations that, if finalized, would change the requirements for
establishing an exemption from information reporting and backup withholding.

EXCHANGE CONTROL REGULATIONS

The current exchange control regulations of the Austrian National Bank in respect of securities grant
a general permission for all forsign exchange transactions covered by the regulations of the Austrian
Foreign Exchange Act (Devisengesetz) on the condition that certain reporting requirements are
observed, which mainly serve statistical purposes and must be observed by banks, financial institutions
and non-banks when, inter alia, banking connections exist with non-residents {including clearing
accounts, the maintenance of deposit accounts abroad and credit/loan accounts for and with non-
residents) and where transaction volumes exceed certain thresholds. Upon establishing a business
relationship, Austrian banks and financial institutions must establish the residential status of their
customer. Non-residents must declare their identity. In implementation of the relevant United Nations
embargoes, the general permission for foreign exchange transactions for or with residents of Irag and
Libya has been sugpended.

NOTICE TO INVESTORS

Because of the following restrictions, purchasers are advised to consult legal counsel prior to making
any offer, resale, pledge or transfer of Notes offered and sold in reliance on Rule 144A.

The Notes are being initially offered and sold by the Initial Purchasers only to persons reasonably
believed by the Initial Purchasers to be Qualified Institutional Buyers (as defined in Rule 144A under the
Securities Act) in a transaction exempt from, or not subject to, the registration requirements of the
Securities Act.

Each prospective purchaser of Notes (a ""144A Offeree” ), by accepting delivery of this Offering
Memorandum, will be deemed to have represented and agreed as follows:

(1} Such 144A Offeree acknowledges that this Offering Memorandum is personal to such
144A Offeree and does not constitute an offer to any other person or to the public generally to subscribe
for or otherwise acauire the Notes. Distribution of this Offering Memorandum, or disclosure of any of its
contents to any person other than such 144A Offeree and those persons, if any, retained to advise such
144A Offeree with respect thereto is unauthorized and any disclosure of any of its contents, without the
prior written consent of the Bank, is prohibited.
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(2) Such 144A Offeree agrees to make no photocopies of this Offering Memorandum or any
documents referred to herein and, if such 144A Offeree does not purchase the Notes or the offering is
terminated, to return this Offering Memorandum and all documents referred to herein to the Initial
Purchager or the affiliate thereof who furnished this Offering Memorandum and such documents to it.

Each purchaser of Notes will be deemed to have represented and agreed as follows (terms used in
this paragraph that are defined in Rule 144A or in Regulation S under the Securities Act are used herein
as defined therein):

{1) The purchaser {A) is a Qualified Institutional Buyer, (B) is aware, and sach beneficial owner of
such Notes has been advised, that the sale to it is being made in reliance on Rule 144A and (C) is
acquiring such Note for its own account or for the account of a Qualified Institutional Buyer.

{2) The Notes are being offered only in a transaction not involving any public offering in the United
States within the meaning of the Securities Act, the Notes have not been and will not be registered under
the Securities Act, and that, if in the future the purchaser decides to offer, resell, pledge or otherwise
transfer such Notes, such Notes may be offered, sold, pledged or otherwise transferred only (A) to a
person whom the seller reasonably believes is a Qualified Institutional Buyer in a transaction meeting the
requirements of Rule 144A, (B} in an offshore transaction in accordance with Rule 903 or Rule 204 or
Regulation § or (C) pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Securities Act provided by Rule
144 thereunder (if available), in each case in ascordance with any applicable securities laws of any state
of the United States or any other jurisdiction.

{3) The Notes will bear a legend to the following effect unless the Bank determines otherwise in
compliance with applicable law:

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES
ACT OF .1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT"') OR WITH THE SECURITIES REGULATORY
AUTHORITY OF ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION OF THE UNITED STATES, AND THESE
SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED, SCLD, PLEDGED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT
(A) TO A PERSON WHOM THE SELLER REASONABLY BELIEVES IS A QUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL
BUYER WITHIN THE MEANING OF RULE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT IN A TRANSAGTION
MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS OF RULE 144A, (B) IN AN OFFSHORE TRANSACTION IN
AGCORDANGCE WITH RULE 303 OR RULE 904 OF REGULATION 3 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR
(G) PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION PROVIDED BY RULE 144 UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT (IF AVAILABLE), IN EACH CASE IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE
SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATE OF THE UNITED STATES OR ANY OTHER JURISDICTION. NO
REPRESENTATION CAN BE MADE AS TO THE AVAILABILITY OF THE EXEMPTION PROVIDED BY
RULE 144 UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT FOR RESALES OF THE SECURITIES.
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The Bank and the Initlal Purchasers have entered into a Purchase Agreement, dated as of
February 6, 1997 (the “Purchase Agreement”). Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the
Purchase Agreement, the Bank has agreed to sell to each of the Initial Purchasers, and each of the Initial
Purchasers has severally agreed to purchase, the principal amount set forth opposite its name below.

Initial Purchaser Principal Amount
SAlOMON Brothers INC ... v vt i ieee it reinrraress e $156,250,000
LENMEN BIOThErS INC. ...ttt t sttt ieire e arrsrneraneaaneeanaeennes $156,250,000
Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation .......c.ciiieirnerenss e $156,250,000
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated............. e $156,250,000
Deutsche Morgan Grenfell InG, ... vvvvnvnnns, et $ 25,000,000
Goldman, Sachs & Co v vvr it i it racn i, e $ 25,000,000
SBC Warburg . ....oovvvhenn et et ree ey $ 25,000,000

1 12 AU $700,000,000

The Purchase Agreement provides that the obligations of the Initial Purchasers are subject to certain
conditions precedent and that the Initial Purchasers will be obligated to purchase all of the Notes if any
are purchased.

The Bank has been advised by the Initial Purchasers that the Initial Purchasers propose initially to
offer and sell the Notes at the offering price sat forth on the cover page of this Offering Memorandum only
to persons reasonably belisved by the Initial Purchasers to be Qualified Institutional Buyers (as defined in
Rule 144A under the Securities Act) in a transaction exempt from, or not subject to, the registration
requirements of the Securities Act.

The Bank has agreed to indemnify the several Initial Purchasers against certain liabilities, including
liabilities under the securities laws of the United States, or to contribute to payments that the Initial
Purchasers may be required to make in respect thareof.

Certain of the Initial Purchasers and their affiliates may be customers of, engage in transactions with,
and perform services for, the Bank and its subsidiaries in the ordinary course of buginess.

The Notes are a new issue of gecurities with no established trading market, and no assurance can be
given a¢ to the liquidity of the trading market for the Notes.

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the Securities Act and may not be offered
or sold within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. pergons except in certain
traneactions exempt from, or not subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities Act. See
“Nuotice to Investors”™.

Each Initial Purchaser has acknowledged that (i) no governmental or regulatory action has been, or
will be, taken in any country or jurigdiction that would permit a public offering of the Notes (or the
possession or distribution of this Offering Memorandum or any other offering material relating to the
Notes), in any country or jurisdiction where governmental or regulatory action for that purpose is
required, and (ii) the Notes may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this Offering
Memorandum nor any circular, form of application, advertisement or other offering material relating to the
Notes may be distributed in or from or published in any country or jurisdiction, except under
circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the Notes will be passed upon for the Bank by Milbank, Tweed, Hadley & McCloy, New
York, New York, and by Dr. Karl Tambornino, a General Counsel of the Bank. Certain legal matters will be
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passed upon for the Initial Purchasers by Cleary, Gottlieb, Steen & Hamilton, Frankfurt am Main, and by
Strommer Reich-Rohrwig Karasek Hainz, Vienna, Austria, Austrian counsel for the Initial Purchasers.

Milbank, Tweed, Hadley & McCloy will rely, without independent investigation, upon Dr. Karl
Tambornino and Cleary, Gottlieb, Steen & Hamilton will rely, without independent investigation, upon
Strommer Reich-Rohrwig Karasek Hainz, with respect to matters governed by Austrian law.

Counsel to the Initial Purchasers may also perform services for the Bank and its subsidiaries.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Audited Financial Statements of the Bank and the notes thersto appearing in this Offering
Memorandum at December 31, 1993, 1994 and 1995, and for the years then ended, and for the Bank
Austria Group at December 31, 1995 and for the year then ended, have been audited by cach of
Sparkassen-Priifungsverband (the Savings Bank Auditing Association, Auditing Board), Osterreichische
Wirtschaftsberatung Ges.m.b.H., Wirtschaftspriifungs- und Steusrberatungsgesellschaft (Deloitts &
Touche, Austria) and Europaische Treuhand u. Wirtschaftsberatungsgesellschaft m.b.H.
Wirtschaftsprifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft (Emst & Young, Austria), as sel forth in their
report thereon appearing elsewhere herein, and are included in reliance upon such report given upon the
authority of such firms as independent auditors.

SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DIFFERENCES BETWEEN
GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
IN AUSTRIA AND IN THE UNITED $TATES

{Beginning with the year ending December 31, 19895, the Bank was required to prepare its audited
financial staterents under the provisions of the 1993 Banking Act and New Austrian GAAP. For the years
ending December 31, 1994 and 1993, the Bank was required to prepare its audited financial statements
under the provisions of the 1979 Banking Act and Old Austrian GAAP.)

The principal differences in Austrian GAAP {New Austrian GAAP as well as Old Austrian GAAP) as
applied by the Bank and U.S, GAAP are described below.

1. Entity Reported

The financial statements presented for 1993 and 1994 include only accounts of the legal entity Bank
Austria. In accordance with Old Austrian GAAP, neither the equity nor consolidation methods of
accounting are applied to the other companies in the Bank Austria Group. Dividends from other
companies in the Bank Austria Group are only shown if received by the Bank. Beginning with the year
ending December 31, 1995, the Bank was required to prepare consolidated financial statements under
Austrian GAAP, although only the Bank’s financial subsidiaries were accounted for on the consolidation
method and the Bank's non-financial subsidiaries were accounted for on the equity methed. The
consolidated financial statements of the Bank Austria Group as of December 31, 1995, which were
prepared under the principles of consclidation described above, are attached as Annex B.

U.S. GAAP requires preparation of consolidated financial statements to include the accounts of all
majority owned (over 50%) subsidiaries, with certain exceptions related to an inability to exercigse
operating control over the subsidiary. Equity investments of between 20% and 50% are to be accounted
for by the equity method.

2. Valuation of Loans and Interest Accrual

In accordance with the 1993 Banking Act, the Bank can value claims against credit institutions as
well as loans to non-cradit institutions and some securitiee at a lower value than would result from the
general application of the Austrian Commercial Code in order to consider particular risks associated with
the banking business. The difference in valuation between the Austrian Commercial Code and the 1993
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Banking Act may not exceed 4% of the total amount of loans. The valuation can be maintained until the
Bank decides to adjust the valuation. There is no obligation to disclose such an undervaluation. No similar
valuation adjustment is allowed under U.S. GAAP.

The Bank reports on the balance sheet loans to customers net of the related reserve for possible loan
losses and does not provide details of the reserve in the footnotes. The manager’'s report provides
information on such reserves since 1995. The reserve is calculated by evaluating the loans on a loan-by-
loan basis, and, therefore, no general provision is made. Interest income is recognized on a loan that has
been reserved if payments are subsequently received.

Under U.S. GAAP, loans are recorded both on a “gross’ basis, without giving effect to the reserve
for possible loan losses, and on a ‘“‘net"’ basis, taking into account such reserve.

Under U.S. GAAP, reserves for possible loan losses are based upon management’s judgment,
historical experience, and an analysis of the specific terms and conditions of individual loans. Loans are
written off when collection is deemed improbable. Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 114, as amended, a loan is deemed impaired when it is probable that a creditor will be
unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the loan. An impaired loan should
be valued at the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest
rate, or as a practical alternative, at the loan's observable market valug or the fair value of the loan's
collateral if the loan is collateral dependent.

Under U.S. GAAP, loans are generally placed on non-accrual status when they are 90 days past due.
Previously accrued interest is generally reversed when a loan is placed on non-accrual status, uniess both
principal and intarest are ultimately protected by sound collateral values and are in the process of
collection. If the ultimate collectibility of principal is in doubt, any payments received on a loan on which
accrual of interest has been suspended is accounted for as a reduction of the principal balance to the
extent necessary to eliminate such doubt.

3. Gain on Sale angd [ease Back

Property, plant and equipment are reportad at the net value of cost less depreciation. The Bank has
sold a portion of its property, plant and equipment to a related party within the Bank Austria Group and
leased back the same assets. Under Austrian GAAP these assets were revalued, and the Bank
recognized the profit on the sale as of the date of sale and leaseback.

Under U.S. GAAP, the Bank would have recognized the profit on the sale subsequent to the
leaseback in accordance with the terms of the lease agreement and the items of the agreement would be
disclosed in the financial statemnents.

4.  Valuation and Classification of Securities

The Bank classifies securities on the balance sheet by the type of asset and no specific disciosure is
made as to what securities are “‘available for sale" or are held as ‘‘trading securities'’. Equity securities
can be carried at cost even if the Bank does not have any influence over the issuer. Securities held in the
trading account are not marked to market in all instances. Investments can remain as “held to maturity”
even if a portion of a single investment is sold prior to maturity.

Under U.S. GAAP, investments in equity securities that have a readily determinable fair value
(excluding investments for which the equity method applies) and all investments in debt securities are
classified in three categories and generally accounted for as follows:

a) debt securities classified as “held to maturity securities’ are reported at amortized cost
{unless a decline in value below cost is other than temporary);

b} debt and equity securities classified as ‘'trading securities’ are reported at fair value, with
unrealized gains and losses included in earnings; and
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C) debt and equity securities classified ag “available for sale securities' are reported at fair value,
with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in a separate
component of stockholders’ aquity.

Further, under U.S. GAAP, government and government guaranteed securities held for investment
are valued on the bagis of cost.

5. Valuation of Derivatives

The method for valuing traded derivatives is currently in transition. Since 1994, most of the
derivatives are marked to market if held as “trading securities’. The Bank discloses certain information
regarding derivatives, including the basic principles of evaluation as well as the nominal amounts of
derivatives.

U.S. GAAP requires extensive disclosure related to derivatives, including classification of the nature
of the derivatives (for trading purposes or held or issued for purposes other than trading). Derivatives
held for trading purposes are measured at fair value and gains and losses are recognized in the income
statement. Disclosures for derivatives classified as trading securities include: the average fair value of
those derivatives during the period, presented together with end of the period fair value, distinguished
between assets and liabilitics and net gains and losses arising from trading activity segregated by
category.

Realized and unrealized gains and losses on derivatives designated as effective hedges of interest
rate exposure are deferred and recognized as interest income or interest expense over the lives of the
hedged assets or fiabilities. Unrealized gains and losses on effective hedges against foreign currency
commitments are deferred. Disclosure for derivatives that are held or issued for purposes other than
trading include: the entities’ objectives for holding the derivatives and a description of how the securities
are reported in the financial statements, Including recognition and classification of related gains and
losses. For derivatives accounted for as hedges of forecasted transactions required disclosures include: a
description of the anticipated transaction, a description of the class of derivatives used to hedge the
anticipated transaction, an amount of hedging gain and loss explicitly deferred and a description of
transactions or events that result in recognition in earnings of gains or losses deferred by hedge
accounting. Other quantitative disclosures are encouraged and presented in practice.

6. Recording of Provisions and Reserves

Since under Austrian law a company's financial statements are used as the basis of its tax accounts,
tax considerations heavily influence their preparation. Companies therefore may tend to apply more
conservative valuation methods in their financial statements than they might otherwise use. Austrian
GAAP permits the recagnition of accruals or provisions for uncertain liabilities and loss contingencies. The
amount of such accruals or provisions represents the anticipated expense to the Bank. In addition,
property, plant and equipment are depreciated to the maximum amount allowed each year under tax law.

Under L.5. GAAP an accrual for a loss contingency is recorded by a charge to income if it ig both
probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability has been incurred and the minimum amount of logg
can reasonably be estimated. Unspecified liability raservas for future losses, costs or risks do not meet
criteria for accrual under U.S. GAAP. Under Austrian GAAP, however, provisions, reserves and valuation
adjustments previously established may also be released in subsequent periods, which will increase
reported profits in the subsequent period. Under U.S. GAAP, property, plant and equipment typically are
not depreciated as quickly as under Austrian GAAP.

7. Pensions, Severance and Anniversary Accruals

Austrian GAAP provides for pension costs and similar obligations based upon actuarial studies that
use the entry age method as defined by the Austrian Commercial Code. The difference between the
actuarial calculation for pension costs and the provision in the balance sheet as of December 31, 1992,
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can be amortized over 20 years. The pension liabilities are mostly unfunded. See the notes to the Audited
Financial Statements of the Bank for a description of the accounting method used.

U.S. GAAP is more prescriptive, particularly as to the use of actuarial assumptions, and requires that
a different actuarial method be used. The difference between the accounting methods reflects different
actuarial caleuiations employed.
8. Recognition of Profits

The Bank recognizes all loan fees and associated costs as they are incurred. U.S. GAAP requires
these items to be deferred and amortized over the loan period as an adjustment 10 the yield.
9. Deoferred Taxes

Defarred taxes are calculated at the Bank Austria Group level and no deferred taxes are recognized
at the Bank level.

Under U.S. GAAP, deferred taxes are provided for temporary differences between the book and tax
basis of assets or liabilities at currently enacted tax rates. For deferred tax assets, a valuation allowance
is to be establiched if it is more likely than not that some portion of such assets will not be realized.
10. Treasury Shares

The Barik clagsifies treasury shares asg an asset.

Under U.S. GAAP, the treasury shares would be classified as a debit balance in the equity section.

11. Repurchases of Debt Issues

The Bank classifies ite own debt securitieg acquired in the public securities market as an asset and
defers the related gain or Ioss on “extinguishment”.

Under U.S. GAAP, such debt may be considered extinguished for financial reporting purposes if
certain criteria are met and the gain or loss recognized at the date of repurchase regardless of whether
the securitieg are canceled or are held as treasury securities.

12. Trust Transactions

The Bank reported under Old Austrian GAAP loans on a trust basis at third party risk as a separate
itam on its balance sheet. Under New Austrian GAAP there is no item for fiduciary loans.

Under U.S. GAAP, banks do not record trust assets and liabilities on the balance sheet.

13. Participation Capital

See the explanation of the Bank's participation capital in the notes to the Audited Financial
Statements of the Bank included elsewhere herein.

14. Supplementary Capital

Supplementary capital refers to funds placed at the disposal of the Bank for at least 8 years and are
subordinated to the claims of other non-subordinated creditors. Interest may be paid on these funds only
to the extent that it is covered by the annual surplus.

No such capital exists for U.S. GAAP purposes.

15. Liability Reserve

The Bank currently forms a liability reserve in an amount equal to a percentage of weighted assets in
accordance with regulatory requirements (risk-weighted assets). As of December 31, 1993, the
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reguiatory requiremants called for a liability reserve equal to 1.5% of total assets. The 1993 Banking Act
requires that by December 31, 1994, the Bank's liability reserve must equal 2.5% of risk-weighted assets,
although credit institutions are allowed a phase-in period until December 31, 1986. As of December 31,
1985, the Bank’s liability reserve was equal to 2.40% of risk-weighted assets, which was in compliance
with the applicable regulatory requirement.

Under U.S. GAAP allocations to specific reserves is not required.

16. Untaxed Reserves

The reserves with respect to the Ausgtrian Income Tax Act are untaxed raserves, allocated voluntarily
by the Bank.

17. Interest Income

Interest income under Old Austrian GAAP includes amounts received as dividends in respect of the
Bank's participation in companies, including Bank Austria Group companies.

Under U.S. GAAP, amounts received as dividends from non-subsidiary companies would not be
considered to be a part of interest income regardless of whether a dividend had been declared by, or
received from, such subsidiaries.

18. Income/Loss from Valuation and Trading Activities

Under Old Austrian GAAP the income statement line item ““Net earnings/expenses from valuation
and disposal of loans and securities, including securities trading'' nets gains and losses on securities
trades against additions to the Bank’s allowance for possible loan losses and additional investment-
related risk provigions. For a discussion of the corresponding item under New Austrian GAAP, see
“Summary of Principal Diffarances baotween New Austrian GAAP and Old Austrian GAAP™,

Under U.S. GAAP, gains and losses resulting from securities transactions and additions to the
allowance for possible loan losses are reflected on two separate line items on the income statement.

19, Expenditure for Materials

This income statement fine item includes expenditures for occupancy, data processing, profesgional
services, telecommunication and marketing.

20. Extraordinary Items

Under Austrian GAAP, the Bank has recorded certain income and expense items as “'extraordinary”’.
The majority of these items relates to the difference between the funded and unfunded portion of the
pension accrual; see the notes to the Audited Financial Statements of the Bank included herein for further
information.

Under U.S. GAAP, such income and expense items would not be classified as extraordinary, but
would be considered in the determination of the Bank's operating profit.

21. Earnings per Share

Earnings per share is calculated pursuant to the methodology set forth by the Austrian Financial
Analyst Association (the "O.V.F.A. method). Under the O.V.F.A. method, eamings are adjusted to
eliminate the effect of non-recurring income and expenses and to provide for the tax effect of certain
altocations to reserves. The O.V.F.A. method is intended to make earnings per share data comparable
across years and institutions. The share basis for calculating O.V.F.A. earnings per share is period-end
shares outstanding less any shares held as treasury shares.
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Under U.S. GAAP in general, eamnings per share is calculated based on net income available o
common shareholders divided by average common shares and common share equivalents outstanding
for the period.

22. Accounting for Leases

Austrian GAAP requires the recording of capital leases if certain criteria are met. All other leases are
accounted for as operating leases.

Under U.S. GAAP, a lease that transfers substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership is
accounted for as a capital lease; all other leases are accounted for as operating leases.

D13, Information about Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Under U.S. GAAP, information about the fair value of financial instruments (assets and liabilities ) is
required to be disclosed in accordance with SFAS No. 107,

Under Austrian GAAP, such disclosures are generalty not required, except far fair value information
concerning certain investments.

24, Translation for Foreign Currency Financial Statements

Under Austrian GAAP, unrealized gains and losses from translating foreign currency financial
statements of branches and consolidated subsidiaries are recognized in eamings currently.,

Under U.S. GAAP, such transactions gains and losses are excluded from earnings and are reported
as a component of stockholders’ equity.

25. Mortgage Banking - Loan Servicing Rights

U.S. GAAP requires the capitalization of acquired loan servicing rights and amortization of the
capitatized value in proportion to and over the period of estimated net servicing income. Under Austrian
GAAP, such amortization is performed only in certain cases.

26. Financial Statements - Presentation and Disclosure

The required form and content of financial statements for banks differ under Austrian GAAP and
U.S. GAAP. U.S. GAAP requires a statement of stockholders’ equity and a statement of cash flows to be
included as part of the basic financial statements. These statements are not required under Austrian
GAAP and U.S. GAAP footnote disclosure requirements differ significantly in many areas. The following
summarizes certain of the more significant additional disclosure requirements under U.S. GAAP in
addition to those described above:

Loans and Deposit — disclosure of concentration of credit risks, details of loans and maturity
information, interest lost on non-performing assets and troubled debt
restructuring and other matters.

Borrowings — disclosure of five-year repayments of long-term borrowings and other
information.
Segment Reporting — disclosure of revenues, net profit and assets for each reportable segment

for all pericds presented.
Pension Information — actuarial information and cther detailed information.

Capital Requirements — details of and compliance with regulatory capital requirements.
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL DIFFERENCES BETWEEN
NEW AUSTRIAN GAAP AND OLD AUSTRIAN GAAP

Pursuant to the 1993 Banking Act, the presentation of the financial etatemente have been brought
inta conformity with European standards, and the ability to make more meaningfui comparisons of credit
institutions in Austria with credit institutions in other European countries has been improved. The new
presentation requirements of the 1893 Banking Act became applicable for years ending subsequent to
December 31, 1994. In Bank Austria’s case, this means that the new requirements initially applied to the
Bank's financial statements for the year ending December 31, 1995,

The presentation under New Austrian GAAP varies considerably from the format prescribed under
Old Austrian GAAP, Set forth below is a description of certain of the more significant changes.

Balance Sheet

The item "'securities" is broken down under New Austrian GAAP mainly into the following categories:
(i} "debt instruments issued by public agencies"; (ii) “bonds and other interest-bearing securities’’;
and (iii) “shares and other non-fixed-interest securities’

The items “‘due from credit institutions™ and “loans to credit institutiong'”, which were shown
separatety under Old Austrian GAAP, are combined under the item ''claime against credit institutions”
under New Austrian GAAP.

With regard to the item “equity interests and syndicate holdings'’ under Old Austrian GAAP, the item
is divided into “'equity intereste” and “‘shares in group companies’ under New Austrian GAAP.

Goodwill, lgasehold agreements and capitalized software costs, which were included under various
balance sheet items under Old Austrian GAAP, are combined within a separate item called “intangible
non-current assets" under New Austrian GAAP.

Under Old Austrian GAAP, “loans on a trust basis at third party risk’” were reflected on both the
assets and liabilities sides of the balance sheet. Under New Austrian GAAP, there is no item for fiduciary
loans.

Under Old Austrian GAAP, “own floatations'’ were shown as a separate item. Under New Austrian
GAAP, such amounts are shown under “securitized liabilities” and “subordinated liakilities'”.

The item "'reserves” that was presented under Old Austrian GAAP is divided into ‘capital reserves’,
“retained income’ and "‘untaxed reserves’ under New Austrian GAAFP.

Profit and Loss Statement

Under New Austrian GAAP, the presentation of the “profit and loss account’' does not include the
concept of “partial operating profit” that was formerly presented under Cld Austrian GAAP. Earnings
from equity interests and from neninterest-bearing securities are no tonger shown under “interest and
similar earnings”, but rather are shown under “income from securities and equity interests’.
“Income fexpenses from financial transactions” under New Austrian GAAP consists of a component of
earnings/expenses from trading.

Under New Austrian GAAP, “‘operating income”, which formerly reflected only banking activities
under Oid Austrian GAAP, includes the results of financial transactions and income from non-banking
activities.

Under New Austrian GAAP ‘‘operating expenditure' includes expenditures from non-banking
transactions, which were formerly shown under QOld Austrian GAAP under '‘other operating expenses’',
but it no longer includes taxes and levies.
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Unlike *partial operating profit” under Old Austrian GAAP, “‘operating results™ under New Austrian
GAAP includes the results of financial transactions and non-banking transactions, but does not include
tax expenses.

Under New Austrian GAAP, the resuite from tha valuation and disposal of Ioans and securities carried
as current assets which are not part of the trading portfolio, as well as additions to and reversals of
provigions for contingent liabilities and cradit rigks are included in “value adjustments on claims and
additions to provisiong for contingent liabilities and credit risks™ and “income from the reversal of value
adjustments on claims and releases of provisions for contingent liabilities and credit risks™.

Under New Austrian GAAP, the earnings/expenses from the vaiuation and disposal of holdings
under Old Austrian GAAP are shown in “value adjustments on securities valued as non-current financial
assets, as well as on equity interests in group companies™ and “income from value adjustments on
securitios valued as non-currant financial assets, equity interests and interests in group companies’™.

Under the new presentation requirements, “Results from ordinary business activities’" (item V) are
shown separately from extraordinary items ag defined under Section 233 of the Commercial Code.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BANK AUSTRIA AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

Assets

1.

1.

12.
13.

14,

Yault cash

Balances with central banks and

postal giro offices . ...

Debt instruments issued by public agencies

and bills of axchange eligible for

refinancing at the centrat bank

a) debt instruments issued by public
agencias and similar sseurities ... ...

b) bills of exchange eligible for
refinancing at central banks.........

Craims against credit institutions
a) dueondemand ...................
by otherclaims................. .. ...

Claims against customers . ............
Bonds and other fixed-interest securities
a} issued by public borrowers..........
b} iseued by other borrowers ... .......
of which:
ownbonds.............. I
Shares and gther non fixed-interest
SECUNHOS .. ..o
Equity interest . ........................
of which:
in credit institutions ... ...l
Shares in group companies ..............
of which:
in credit institutions .......... ... ...
Intangibla non-current assets . ............

. Tangible fixed assets............covvness

of which:

land and buildings used by the credit
institution for its own business operations . .
Treagury shares and interagts, interests in a
contralling company, interests in a
company holding a majority interest . ......
of which:

parvalue ......... ...
Other @sse1s . ovvviii i vane e,
Subscribed capital, which is due but not
VL PaId ... e e
Accrued items .. ...l

Total Assets. .o irviiniii i e

BALANCE SHEET

1994* (in ATS
31st December 1005 (in ATS) thousands)
8,335,337,815.66 10,286,585
42,165,966,091.20 49,640,655
173,406 32040  44,330,462,411 60 1631,217 51171872
05,427 803,207.17 17,994,773
153,447,349,159.62 178,905,152,366.79 139,914,400 157,908,173
374,026,994 487 77 360,261,353
10,381,178,447.93 1,284 315
14,641,052499.73 2502223094766 12465754 13,750,069
281,747 883.06
£6,288,139,186.55 5,916,236
5,692,8672.401.12 6,257,600
1,760,043,391.69
14,037 .586,920.77 14,626,952
2,282,235 535.63
596,450,296.681 632,533
2,184,783,696.75 2,063,153
329,672,730.88
287,074,174.48 265,818
72,637,319.00
16,547,728,650.93 11,878,242
1,619,451 585.48 1,350,611
677,863,265,252.35 636,679,250

*Previous year's figures have been adapted to the new presentation scheme under the Austrian Banking
Act.



Liabilities

BALANGCE SHEET

313t December 1995 (in ATS)

1994 (in ATS
thousands)

1. Due to credit institutions

a)
b)

due on demand
subject to an agraed term or pericd
of notice

2. Due 1o cuslomers

a)

savings deposits

of which;

44}
bk}

o)

other labilities

dugondemand ..............
subject to an agreed term or
period of notice. . .............

of which;

ad)
bb)

dugondemand ..............
subject lo an agreed term or
period of notice ... ... ... ...

3. Securitized liabhities

a)
D}

4. Other fiabilitieg
Deferred items

o

8. Provisions
a)
b)
c)
d)

honds issued

. Fund for general bank risks

provigions for saveranca payments . ..

pension provisions
provisions for taxes

othar

7. Subordinated liabilties . .. ...............

8. Supplementary capital
Q. Subscribed capital
. Capital reserves

subject to legal restrictions.
ather

a)
&)

a)
&

e)

12.

. Retained income
siatutory reserve

reServes pursuarnt 16 the bys-laws ...
ather reserves

Liability reserve pursuant to § 23(6),

Austrian Banking Act (BWG) ............

13,
14
a)

b)

Nelprofitfloss... ... ... .. .........
Untaxed reserves

valuation reserve due to special
devaluation

of which;

aa)

bb)

ce)
dd)

Total Liabilities

investment reserve pursuant to
§9 1992
1988 Income Tax Law 1993
invastment aliowance pursuant

rent reserve pursuant to § 11,
1988 income Tax Law

reserve carried forward pursuani
to § 12, 1988 Income Tax Law

27,585,542,711.57

158,942,242,423.66

171,206,630,961.81
78,795,440,498.41

142,501,190,462.40
141,614,524,219.59

65,837.028,906.70
75,777,495,313.19

66,5699,435,560.00

32417 893,433 .56

1,507,098,943.25
14,040,470,304.00
176,744,339.93
2.306,187,720.54

11,122,309,776.69
4,173,116.00

137,269.077.18

1,069,210,723.13

1,879.981,504.67
25,820,305.00

14,500,000.00
10,720.000.00

78.029.00
522,276.00

186.527,785,135.23

312.811,155,181.70

99,017,128,993 56

17,033,501 325.25
302,597 .916.02

18,030,481,307.72

10,579,950,000.00
£,912,000,000.00
6,474,258,000.00

11,126,482,892.69

1,406,479,800.31

9,372,648,000.00
662,894,850.20

1,905,811,809.67

677,863,265,252.35

28,723,178

151,813,783

169,272,569

123,541,053

62,488,550

30,221 582

1,415,168
12,836,507
189,134

1,970,979

10,839,746

137,269

1,244,011

1,140,057

44,998

180,636,961

292,813,622

92,710,132

9,821,450
313,822

16,411,788

11,641,313
3,085470
6,474,258

10,838,746

1,361,280

8,613,305
851,057

1,189,093

636,579,259




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BANK AUSTRIA AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
BALANCE SHEET SUB-ITEMS

J1st December 1895 (in ATS) 1994 (in ATS thousands)
Aspets
1. Foreignassets....................... 210,919,793.458 B0 193,350,489
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1.

BALANCE SHEET SUB-ITEMS

1994 (in ATS

315t December 1995 (in ATS) thousands)
Liabilities

Gontingent fiabilities
of which:
a) acceptances and endorsement liabiiities

ariging from circulated bille of exchange .... 14,360,083,085.80 14,498,207
b) liabilities from guarantees and

collateral provided ....................,.. 40,306,431,800.28 54,716,515771.08 39,894,101 54,392,308
Credit risks......... Ve e, 65,056,797,549.98 *
of which:
liakilities from repurchase agreements ... .. ... ... B,2B0,726,000.00
Liabilities from transactions on a trust basis ..., ... 1,644,701,651.34 1,885,083
Own funds to be taken into acesount pursuant to
§ 23 of the Austrian Banking Act (BWG) in
connection with § 29 of the Austrian Banking
Act (BWG)Y ..., 40,108,363,171.41 39,842,808
Assessment basis pursuant to § 22 of the
Austrian Banking Act (BWG) ............ e 388,487,450,832.34 370,432,870
Foreign fiabilities .......... ... ... ... . ... ..... 186,441,218,242.72 182,340,843
Deficit pursuant to Art. X (3), Accounting Law . .. 3,601,344,000.00 3,922,086

This has been required since 1995.
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13.¢
14.

FINANGIAL STATEMENTS OF BANK AUSTRIA AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT

Interest and similar earmings ........
of which:

from fixed-interest securities ........
Interest and similar expenses . ......

Net Interast Earnad ... ... ...
Income from securities and equity
interests
a) income from shares, other
ownership interests and
non fixed-interest securities. . ..
b} incoms from equity interests ...
c) income from shares in group
COMPANIBS . vvrrveneieans

Commission iNCome +....vvevvevias
Commission expenses .............
Income/expenses from financial

aNSACHANG «vvvvvvvirarrasianns
Other operating income ............

Operating Income . ...............
General administrative expenses
a)  personnel expenses ..........
of which:
aa) wages and salaries ......
bb) expenditure for statutory
social contributions and
compulsory contributions
refated to wages and
salaries ...l
6¢) other social expenditure ..
dd) expenditure for retirement
benefits ................
ee) allocation to the pension
provigion .. .............
ff}  allocation to the provision
for severance payments ..
b) other administrative expenses
(expenditures for materials) . ..
Depreciation on asset items 9 and 10
Other operating expenses .. ........

Operating Expenditure ...........
Operating Results ................

Balance of expenditure/income from
the valuation and disposal of claims,
sacurities held in the liquidity reserve
and from contingent liakbifities and

creditrisks ......... ...

Balance of expenditure/income from
the valuation and disposal of

securities valued as non-current fixed
assets, and from equity interests and
shares in group companies

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

1995 (in ATS) 1994 (in ATS thousands)
39,151,182,792.65 38,059,265
5,437,074,814.90 4,768,584
(26,872.971,010.90) (26.445,362)
12,276,211.781.75 11,614,583
156,359,004.72 168,843
194,878,503.16 180,072
£79,255,800.35 1.030,493,488.23 720,890 1,079,805
3.371,708.592.88 3.273.825
{496,943,876.72) (367.728)
005,160,957 97 175,858
393,860,029.80 306,076
17,480,490,073.99 16,082,419
(7,408.B71.668.87) (7,143,163)
{4,860,358,401.84) (4,607,924)
(705.604,859.16) (756,672)
{141,655,043.69) (179.020)
(657,836,923.93) (571,245)
(973.254,703.00) (852,958)
(70,161,848 25) (91.344)
{4,156,152,690.48) (11,564,024 360.35)  (3,854.678) (11,003,841)
(713,952,308.71) (681.758)
(350,976,440.758) {243,212)
(12,628,955,118.81) (11,928,811)
4,851 ,535,855.18 4,153,608
(4,518,719,727.19) {1,175,965)
2,194,072,987.26 (1,430,631)



1995 (in ATS) 1994 {in ATS thousands)

V. Results from Ordinary Business

Activities .. ... ... ... ... ....... 2526,889,115.25 1,547,012
15, Extraordinary income .............. 7,298,196.63 4,238
16.  Extraordinary expenses ..........., (299,460,779.83) (350.092)
17, Extraordinary results (sub-total of

items 15and 16) ................. (292,162,583.20) {345,854)
18. Taxes on income and eamnings .. ..., (33,652,307 .49) (22,342)
19, Other taxes not incluged

underitem 8., (33,258,757.51) (37.364)

18A. Expenses from allocations to the
fund for genaral banking risks ... ... — —

¥YI.  Annual Surplus/Deficit ............. 2,167,817 487 .05 1,141,452
20. Changes in reserves............. - (1,909,472,476.81) (503,458)
VII. Profit/Loss for the Year ............ 658,344,990.24 637,994
21, Profit/Loss brought forward from

previous year ............ et 4,549,599.96 13,063
VIll. Nat Profit/Net Loss .. .............. 662,894,800.20 651,007

Vienna, 26th March 1996

The Managing Board:

GERHARD RanDA KARL SAMSTAG HeLmuT JELL FriEDRICH KADRNOSKA
{Chairman) { Deputy Chairman)

Based on an audit performed in accardance with our professional duties, the accounting records and
the financial statements of the bank are in compliance with legal requlations. The financial statements
pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles give a reasonable presentation of the bank’s assets
and liabilities, its financial position and resuits. The management report is in accordance with the financial
statements.

Vienna, 20th May 1996

Savings Bank Auditing Association
Auditing Board

PeTER BUCHBINDER Kiaus GoscriLer
Ostarraichische Wirtechafteberatung GmbH Européische Treuhand- u.
Wirtschaftsberatungsgesellschaft m. b. H.
Wirtgchaftspriifungs- und Wirtschaftsprifungs- und
Steuerberatungsgesellschaft Steuerberatungsgesellschaft
WOLFGANG GASSNER G. E. Tichy
WOLFGANG RIEDL Konrap TorFL
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Supervisory Board was regularly informed by the Managing Board of the progress and financial
position of Bank Austria Aktiengeselischaft and, in its meetings, performed all its tasks as defined by the
law and the bye-laws.

The accounts, the financial statements for 1995, the notes to the financia! statements and the
management report were examined by the Européische Treuhand- und Wirtschaftsberatungsgesellschaft
m.b.H., the Osterreichische Wirtschaftsberatung GmbH. Wirtschaftsprifungs- und Steuerberatung-
sgesellschaft and the Auditing Board of the Savings Bank Auditing Association. As they were found to be
in full compliance with legal requirements and the examination showed no cause for objections, the
auditor's certificate was presented without qualification. The Supervisory Board has endorsed the
findings of this audit, agreed with the annual report and the use of eamings presented by the Managing
Board, and approved the 1995 financial statements, which are thereby adopted pursuant to §125 (2) of
the Joint Stock Companies Act.

Vienna, 21st May 1996

The Supervisory Board:

SIEEGFRIED SELUITSCGH
Chairman
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
I. General Information

The 1995 financial statements were prepared pursuant to the provisions of the Commercial Code,
and took into consideration the relevant requirements of the Austrian Banking Act and the Joint Stock
Companies Act which apply to credit institutions. The presentation of the balance shest and the profit
and loss account was made pursuant to the forms contained in Annex 2 to § 43, Banking Act. The new
presentation method differs considerably from that formerly used under Annex 1 to § 43, Banking Act.
Attention is in particular drawn to the following differences:

New presentation method due to new Banking Act requirements

On the aggels gide of the balance sheet the former item securities has been broken down and
classified as foliows:

— debt instruments issued by public agencies eligible for refinancing at the central bank,

— bonds and other fixed-interest securities admitted for trading on the stock exchange (not
including the above-mentioned debt instruments issued by public agencies),

— bonds and other fixed-interest securities not admitted for trading on the stock exchange
(contained under claims against credit institutions and claims against customers)

— ghareg and other non fixed-interest securities

The items due from banks and loans to banks, previously presented separately, are now combined
under the item claims against cradit institutions. With regard to equity interasts, a distinction is now being
made between shareg in group companies and other interests. A separate item has been created for
intangible non-current assets such as goodwill, leasshold interests and software previously carried under
various items.

Loans on a trust basis at third party risk should only be included in balance-sheet items if they are
held in the company's own name but for the account of another party, and do not give the fiduciary the
right of recapture in the case of bankruptey. The new form does not contain a separate item for loans on a
trust bagie at third party risk.

Charactarigtic for the new presentation mathod on tha liabilities side of the balance sheet is the fact
that securitized liabilities are to be prasented in one individual item as long as they are not subordinated.
Subordinated liabilities are likewise to be presented as an individual item. The item formerly used to
present raserves has now been separated into capital reserves, retained income and untaxed reserves.

The concept of partial operating profit, which formerly appeared in the profit and loss account, is no
longer used by the new presentation method. Income from equity interests and other asset-related
securities are no longer to be included under interest and similar earnings, but rather under income from
equity interests and non fixed-interast securities. The item income/expenses from financial transactions
comprises the results from transactions in securities in the bank’s trade inventory and from foreign-
exchange transactions and trade trangactions with foraigh notes and coing, precious metals and financial
fnstruments.

Operating results, unlike the formerly-applied partial operating profit, include the resuits from
financial transactions and non-banking business, but do not include tax expenditures other than levies on
wages and salaries contained under personnel expenses.

ltems 11 and 12, which have been set off, contain earnings from the valuation and disposal of claims
and securities held as current assets which do not belong to the trade inventory, as well as additions to
and reversals of provisions for contingent liabilities and credit risks.

Earnings trom the valuation and disposal of shares in group companies, equity interests and
securities held as fixed assets are to be presented initems 13 and 14, which have been set off. Under the
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

new presentation method results from ordinary business activities are now kept separate from
extraordinary items as defined in § 233 of the Commercial Code. To permit the comparison of balance
sheet and profit and loss figures, figures from the previous year have been presented pursuant to the new
presentation method

II. Information Regarding Accounting and Valuation Methods

The financial statements were prepared pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles which
require a reasonabie presentation of a company’s assets and liabilities, its financial position and results.
Assete and liabilities were evaluated conservatively, as required under Commercial Law, taking into
consideration the peculiarities of the banking business.

In evaluating loans, due diligence was exercised in evaluating the known and anticipated financial
position of the borrower as well as the enforceability of claims with due consideration being given to
collateral. This task was facilitated by preselection via a risk classification system. Certain lending
categories for the retail lending business were evaluated pursuant to statistical risk characteristics.
Caution was taken to ensure that appropriate vaiue adjustments and provisions were made for all
recognizable risks.

The creation of a provision for country rigk, regarding loans to borrowers in countries with serious
economic problems, was made in accordance with the relevant opinions submitted by the chamber of
accountants’ expert committee for commercial law and auditing.

Securities now spread among ‘‘debt instruments issued by public agencies and bills of exchange
eligible for refinancing at the central bank"”, “claims against credit institutions”, "claims against
customers™, “bonds and other fixed-interest securities’ ag well as "shares and other non fixed-interest
securities', are categorized as to whether they serve ag fixed assets, liquidity reserves or trade inventory.

Pursuant to § 55 (2), Banking Act, securities used for long-term business operations were classified
as fixed assets. The head of the securities division has prepared and documented a decision in this
regard. These securities are valued at cost.

Securities carried as trade inventory are valued at the purchase price or lower market value. Those
carried as liquidity reserves are valued using the iower of cost or market price method.

Altogether, Bank Austria held securities classified as fixed assets which were valued at
ATS 47,571 mn (31st Dec. 1994: ATS 43,784 mn ), and securities classified as current assets amounting
io ATS 44,043 mn (31st Dec. 1994: ATS 39,215 mn).

Equity interests and shares in group companies were valued at their purchase price pursuant to the
provisions applicable to fixed assets. Write-offs and value adjustments were made for those investments
whose value was permanently impaired due to continuing losses.

The excess of fair values of assets and liahilities acquired over book values resulting from mergers is
included under the item intangible non-current assets, and is being depreciated over a five-year period
uging straight-line depreciation. The excess of fair values of assets and liabilities acquired over book
values resulting from the purchase of savings banks ig, analogous to goodwill, being depreciated over a
fifteen-year peried using straight-line depreciation. For computer software, the average useful life is
estimated at four years for depreciation purposes.

Tangible fixed assets are valued at purchase price less scheduled depreciation. Real estate is
depreciated at a rate between 2 percent and 4 percent per year, according to use. For computer
equipment, the average useful life is estimated at four years for depreciation purposes. Other office
furniture and equipment, with the exception of items of minor value fully deducted the year they were
purchased, are depreciated over periods from five to ten years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Accrued interest, with the exception of interest earned on securities which is included under the
relevant securities item, is shown under other assets. The same method was followed on the liabilities
side of the balance sheet.

Discounts and premiums on liabilities in the form of bonds, municipal bonds and mortgage bonds
were depreciated over the period to maturity. The net-value approach, on the other hand, was taken with
regard to zero-coupon bonds.

Fixed-interest securities purchased above par and carried as fixed assets are depreciated to their
redemption value spread over the period to maturity.

Currencies were generally converted at the prevailing mean rate of exchange on 30th December
1994. Swaps and forward transactions for currencies were valued principally according to the accrual
method. Cash in foreign currencies was converted at the applicable bid rates.

Heldings in financial futures, options and forward rate agreements were appraised at market value.
Insofar as interest hedging transactions were effected, results have been reflected in interest income or
expense.

In 1995 the London branch, which had valued derivatives using the lower of cost or market price,
changed to the mark to market method.

in making provisions for severance payments the calculation method used was in line with expert
opinion number 78 of the chamber of accountants. An interest rate of 6 percent was selected for
calculation purposes. In determining the pension provision, the accrued benefit valuation method (using
a 4 percent discount rate pursuant to the Ettl-Pagier table) was uniformly applied to the disparate
pension claims resulting under the internal service regulations of Zentralsparkasse und Kommerzialbank
AG and Osterreichische Landerbank AG. Pursuant to the Accounting Law, the gap in the pension
provision resulting from the new calculation procedure will be amortized over a twenty-year period (1992
to 2011).

Ill. information Regarding Individual Balance-Sheet ltems

Breakdown of Malurities

Claims against and amounts due to credit institutions and customers which are not due on demand,
as well as other securitized liabilities, have the initial maturity periods or agreed periods of notice below
(calculations are made pursuant to the requirements of the ordinance on monthly reports, Federal
Gazette 679/1095 in line with the reporting guidelines of the Austrian National Bank).




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Overview of Maturities

J1st Dec. 1995 Jist Dec. 1994

{in ATS mn)
Claims against credit ingtitutions
uptothreemonths ... .. ... ... .. .. i 29,775 26,080
between three months andoneyear .......................... 74,429 70,997
betweenone and fiveyears . ....... .. ... Lol 20,924 20,123
more than five years .. ... .. 18,349 22,714
Claims against customers
uptothree MOMhs .. ... .. . i aennans 26,632 29,791
between three months andoneyear .......................... 26,130 25,532
between one and five years .. .. ... ... .iiii e 63,297 63,408
more than five years ... ... ... .. . ... . . i 211,257 212,288
Due to credit institutions
up tothree Mmomths . .u et i s i ens 85412 88,644
between three months and cne year ..oovvv v irinieensrrassnnss 28,752 22,530
betweenoneand five years .....coovviiiii i iiiiii i 9,873 8,660
more than five years ... v it iriienrisneriiniersaninanren 34,906 32,080
Due to customers
a) savings deposits
uptothreemonths ... ... . . .. 4,669 2,877
batween threa months andoneyear . ... ... ... ... ... ..., 53,971 41,707
between oneand fiveyears......... ... i 72,200 83,177
more than fiva years ... ... ... e 11,661 B.BO6
b) other liabilities
uptothree months ... ... L. 67,059 66,145
between three monthe andone year .......... ... . i in et 4,711 3,908
between one and five years . ... ...t i s 3,019 2,999
more than five years . ... ... ... i i 989 1,895
Other securitized liabilities
UP O three MOMhS .. i i i isirresrearsccanannnnn 2,824 839
between three monthsand one year ........cvviiiiiiiareenss 2873 5,943
between one and five Years . .......ociiiii i i it 17,738 17,663
More than five YearS ... .uv . vrir e tivs e orsroonsrrarnerss 8,983 5,787

In 1896 claims in the form of bonds and other fixed-interest securities totaling ATS 4,468.8 mn, and
bonds issued of ATS 7,460.6 mn, become due and payable.

Trust Monies

The item savings deposits includes trust monies totaling ATS 540 mn.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Claims and Amounts Due to and against Group Companies
and Companies in which there is an Ownership Interest

Group Companias Equity Interesta
31st Dec. 1995 31st Doc. 1994  31at Dee. 1995  31st Dec. 1994
(in ATS mn)

Claims
Debt instruments issued by public

agencies and bills of exchange eligible

for refinancing at the central bank . ... 311 52
Claims against credit institutions , .. ... .. 13,629 14,118 3,650 7,183
Claims against customers.............. 29,730 26,947 4,274 307
Bonds and other fixed-interest securitics 530 847
Liabilities
Due to credit institutions .. ............. 10,846 7,842 2,087 4,084
Duetocustomers..................... 2,634 4,371 1,681 251
Securitized liabilities . .. ................ 2114

Trust Transactions

As of 31st December 1995 there were no trust transactions which needed to be carried as assets or
liabilities.
Securities

Securities admitted for trade on the exchange can be seen in the following breakdown:

Listed Not listed Total

{in ATS mn)
Bonds and other fixed-interest securities ... .. ... . ... 25,022 25,022
Shareg and other non fixed-interest securities .. . ... ... ... ...... 3,034 2,355 6,289
Equity interaste . . 2,423 3,270 £,603
Shareg in group Companies .. ... ... ... e 189 13,849 14,038
Total e e 31,568 19,474 51,0427

Securities listed on the exchange are divided between fixed assets and current assets as follows:

Fixed Asseis Current Assets Total
{in ATS mn)
Bonds and other fixed-interest securities ... .............. 13,818 11,204 25,022
Shares and other non-fixed interest securities . ... _........ 1,013 2,921 3,934
=17~ P R 14,831 14,125 28,956

For bonds and other fixed-interest securities carried as fixed assets and whose purchase price
exceeds the repayment amount, the difference is written off over the period to maturity pursuant to
§ 56 (2) of the Austrian Banking Act. As of year-end 1995 the difference to be spread out over the
remaining period to maturity amounted to ATS 382,530,497.60.

Equity Interests and Shares in Group Companies

Companies in which Bank Austria holds at least a 25 percent interest and which are to be included in
the Notes to the Financial Statements pursuant to § 238 item 2 of the Commercial Code are shown in
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

connection with § 265 (2) of the Commaercial Code in the appendix entitled *'The Bank Austria Group™,
which is an integral part of this annual report.

Customary banking relationships were maintained in large part with group companies. Financings
using equity capital substitutes were used in part. As of 31st December 1995, agreements for passing on
profits and losses to Bank Austria were maintained with the following companies:

— Bank Austria Handelsbank Aktiengesellschaft

— Bank Austria Treuhand & Beteiligungsfonds Aktiengesellschaft
-~ Bank Austria-Finanzservice Ges.m.b.H.

— GANYMED Immobilienvermietungsgesellschaft m.b.H.

— Garage Am Hof Geselischaft m.b.H.

— HYPERION Immobilienvermistungageselischaft m.b.H.

— Konzern Service und Beratung GmbH

— VISA-SERVICE Kreditkarten Aktiengesellschaft

Tangible Fixed Assels

As of 31st December 1995 the value of land on which buildings stand amounted to
ATS 153.014,261.65 (31st Dec. 1994: ATS 154,362,483.65). The item intangible non-current assets
includes computer software valued at ATS 101,659,394.00 (31st Dec. 1994: ATS 77,843,497.00) which
was acquired from a group company.

Treasury Shares

The table “‘Trade Inventary Developments of Treasury Shares and Participation Certificates’ shows
the treasury shares held in 1995 by the bank, a dependent company or a company of which the bank is
majority shareholder. Transactions in treasury shares and participation certificates were effected in the
course of the bank's activities as market maker in order to protect the market’s ability to function. Sales
proceeds were applied toward normal banking activities.

The share capital of Bank Austria remained unchanged during the reporting year at a nominal
ATS §,772,145,600.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The largest amount of own common and preferred shares held by the bank amounted to
358,186 shares or 0.62 percent (with sharc capital represented by 57,721,456 shares). The largest
amount of own participation certificates held by the bank totaled 660,120 certificates or 9.40 percent
{with participation capital represented by 7,021,124 certificates ). The nominal capital share of additions
and disposals is calculated on the basis of the weighted average.

Trade Inventory Developments of Treasury Shares and Participation Certificates

Par Value Percent of
Number in ATS Naminal Gapital

Common shares

Initial inventory ,...... Creeean e e 116,153 11,615,300 0.23
Additions . .... st e e e e e 906,337 90,633,700 1.81
Disposals ............. e e e e 1,009,663 100,966,300 2.1
Ending inventory . ... ... .. 12,827 1,282,700 0.03
Preferred shares

Initial inventory .. ... ... .. ... 08,485 9,848,500 1.31
AddItions ... ... ... 451 505 45,150,500 6.00
Disposals ......... ... . 496 564 49,656,400 6.60
Ending inventory .. ... . 63,426 5,342,600 0.71
Participation certificatas

nitial Inventory .. ... ... ... 287,826 28,782,600 410
Additions ... ... 680,497 68,049,700 9.69
Disposals . ... ... 308,203 30,820,300 4.39
Ending inventory . ... 660,120 66,012,000 9.40

Common shares were purchased at an average price of ATS 796.22; the average sales price was
ATS 808.95. Preferred shares were purchased at an average price of ATS 466.43; the average sales
price was ATS 463.87. Participation certificates were purchased and sold at the average price of
ATS 362.75 and ATS 362.28, respectively.

On 31st December 1895 the bank’s portfolio of own holdings included subordinated bonds it had
issued which were valued at ATS 29,511,786.33,

Fixed Assels

Purchase price 31¢t Doce. 1904 Additians Disposals Reclassifieatione 312t Dee. 1095
{in ATS thousand)

Securities. . ... ... 45,611,665 44645870 38,580,478 (2,050,184) 48,628,753

Equity inlerests . ................. 7,529,848 532.790 255,346 {246,276) 7.561.016

Shares in group companies ......., 17,998,076 1,521,898 2,010,591 246,287 17,756,670

Intangible non-current assets ... .. 1,296,697 242 505 13,558 1,626,734

Tangible fixed assels

a) land and buildings ............ 945718 109,824 53,029 1,002,513

b} other tangible fixed assets.. ... 4,520,003 504,421 320,946 4,703,478

Equity interests include profit participation claims which are shown in the item claims against
customers. Securities inciude assets from the items debt Instruments issued by public agencies and bills
of exchange eligible for refinancing at the central bank, claims against credit institutions, claims against
customers, bonds and other tixed-interest securities, and shares and other non-fixed interest securities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Cumulative Book Value Book Value Deprecistion

Residual Book Values Writs-ups Depreciation 31st Dec. 1993  31at Dec. 1994 For Guirent Year
{in ATS thousand)

Qecuritios . . ... ..., 2 055 565 47 571,188 43,789.082 37.782
Equity interests. .. ............... 4,618 880,910 6,604,924 7,204,226 562,663
Shares In group companies ... .... 3,719,083 14,037 587 14,826,059 611,006
Intangible non-current assets . ... .. 929,283 596.451 632,534 274675
Tangible fixed assets
a) land and buildings ........... 376,320 628,193 581,065 19,6892
b} other tangible fixed assets . . .. 3,164 B87 1,538,591 1,481,197 430,584
Other Assels

This position contains accrued interest and commissions totaling ATS 9,667.1 mn (31st Dec. 1904:
ATS 7,649.5 mn).

Subordinated Assels

1995 1094
{in ATS mn)

Ciaime against credit institutions . ............ ... .. ...l 96 115
of which against equity interests . ............ ... ...l 23 29
of which against group companies ... 13 86

Claima against cUstomers ............. ... . i 375 620
of which against equity interests
of which against group companies

Bonds and other fixed-interest securities ............ ... ... ... ... 216 148
of which against equity interests ...............c. . il 94
of which against group companies .............c..c.oiiiiiiiiin 30

Asseis Sold under a Sale and Repurchase Agreement

The book value of actual assets sold under sale and repurchase agreements totaled ATS 614 mn as
of 31st December 1995, Asset items will continue to be shown as assets, and the consideration received
as liabilities.

Subordinated Liabliitles

Subordinated liabilities as of 31st December 1995 include four schilling-denominated bonds, Two of
these bondgs mature in 1998, with the other two maturing in 1989. The item also encompasses twelve
foreign-currency denominated bonds, most of which have an average term-to-maturity of ten years. The
currencies involved are USD, AUD, CHF and JPY. Altogether, on 31st December 1995 subordinated
capital totaled ATS 10,579,950,000.00. The concept of subordination is based on § 51 (9), Banking Act.

Suppiementary Caphial

The bank’s supplementary capital is shown under item 8 on the liabilities side of the balance sheet,
pursuant to § 23 (7), Banking Act. The value of this item declined by ATS 573.5 mn as against 31st Dec.
1994 on account of the drop in the term-to-maturity to under three years.

Other Liabilities

This item contains accrued liabilities amounting to ATS 7,787.8 mn (31st Dec. 1994: ATS 7,836.7
mn).
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Equity Capital

The bank’'s subscribed share capital carried in the balance sheet as of 31st December 1995
remained unchanged at ATS 5,772,145 600 and consists of:

Shares ATS (nominal}
OMIMON SIS . .. i et e e 50,194,956 5,019,495,600
Prafarred shares ... 7,526,500 752,650,000

The bank’s common shares incorporate the full range of shareholder rights pursuant to the Joint
Stock Companies Act. The company issued non-voting preferred shares pursuant to § 115 of the Joint
Stock Companies Act. When the profit is distributed, preferred shareholders are given priority over
common shareholders, but they rank after the holders of participation certificates in receiving a 8 parcent
dividend an the nominal value of their holdings. By virtue of its bye-laws the bank reserves the right to
issue new shares with preferred or equal status pursuant to § 117 (2) of the Joint Stock Companies Act.

Authorized capital. The managing board is authorized pursuant to § 6 (4) of the bye-laws to
increase the share capital by a nominat amount of ATS 1,876,119,400 by bth October 1996 against
contributions in cash or contributions in kind, and to determine the issue price and the terms and
conditions of issue with the approval of the supervisory board.

Contingent Capital. if holderg of participation certificates, supplementary capital bonds, convertible
bonds, option rights or warrants which have already been issued by the bank, or will be issuad by the
bank in the future, choose to exercigse their conversion or subscription rights, share capital will be
increased by an additional nominal ATS 2,682,755,000. In 1994 a nominal ATS 150 mn of the bank’s
contingent capital was utilized for a 3.75 percent, DM 250 mn equity warrant bond 1994/2001, and the
ensuing 1,500,000 warrants. Each warrant holder may exercise the right to acqguire one common share of
Bank Austria, each with a par value of ATS 100, for ATS 1,020 per share until 7th June 1999,

Participation capital.  The bank issued righte within the meaning of § 240 item 7 of the Commercial
Code, representing participation capital in the amount of ATS 702,112,400 in nominal terms, which is
shown in the balance sheet as of 31st December 1985 (31st Dec. 1994/1et Jan. 1995:
ATS 702,112,400). The participation certificates of the bank reprasent participation capital pursuant to
§ 23 (4) of the Austrian Banking Act (BWG). When the profit is distributed, the certificates are entitled
to a preferred dividend of 6 percent on their par value before the preferantial dividend is paid to holders of
prefarred shares. The dividend may only be paid out of distributable profits. If the preferred dividend for a
business year cannot be distributed in whole or in part, the arrears shall be paid in accordance with the
profit of subsequent years that is available for distribution. If a resolution is adoptad for the distribution of
an extra dividend to holders of preferred shares, the dividend to holders of participation certificates shall
be increased by the same percentage.

In the event the company is liquidated, payment of the liquidation proceeds shall be made to the
holders of participation certificates up to the nominal amount of the participation capital before the
payment of such proceeds to the shareholders. Liquidation proceeds in excess of the nominal amount of
the participation capital shall be paid to the shareholders to the extent that they receive the nominal
amount of the shares. Any residual amount from the liquidation proceeds shall be distributed to
shareholders and holders of participation certificates on an equat parity basis.

Supplementary capital. Pursuant to § 23 (7) of the Austrian Banking Act, supplementary capital
consists of those paid-in capital resources at the disposal of the credit institution for a contractual period
of at least eight years where the rights to the statutory period of notice and premature termination have
been walved, where interest may be paid on such resources to the extent that they are covered by the
annual surplus (before changes in reserves ), which may only be paid back prior to liquidation less pro-
rata deductions made for net losses suffered during the maturity period, which are subordinated pursuant
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to § 45 (4) of the Austrian Banking Act, for which the remaining term-to-maturity is at least three years
and for which the bank auditors have confirmed that the above conditions have been fulfilled.

Developments in the Valuation Reserve and other Untaxed Reserves

Valuation reserve

Resarve pursuant to § 12,
Income Tax Law:
Securities ... vv e
Equity intereats .. ... ...
Shares in group companies
Land and buildings........
Other tangible fixed assets

318t Dec. 1984

Reversals /Reciassification

Additions

J1at Dec, 1995

260,218,483.51
104,314,213.22
756,232,989.00

1,375,700.00

1,048,656.00
1,123,190,041.73

(7,322,311.71)

(7,322,311.71)

750,136,046.52

1,003,032,218.2
104,314,213.22
756,232,969.00
1,375,700.00
1,048,656.00

750,136,046.52

1,866,003,776.54

Valuation reserve
pursuant to § 8 and § 122,
Incomea Tax Law:

Land and buildings........ 8,272,209.13 8,272,209.18
Other tangible fixed assets 8,595,041.00 (2,879,622.00) 5,715,5619.00
16,867,250.13 (2,879,622.00) 13,987,728 13

1,140,057,291.86 {10,201,833.71) 750,136,046.52  1,979,991,504.67

2. Other untaxed reserves
Reserve pursuant t¢ § 9,
Income Tax Law:

1891 ...l 11,500,000.00 (11.,500,000.00)

1992 .t 14,500,000.00 14,500,000.00
1993 ...l 10,720,000.00 10,720,000.00
Reserve pursuant to § 10,

Income Tax Law:

1991 .. 938.666.00 (9936,886.00)

1992 ... 78,020.00 78,029.00
1993 ... 522,276.00 522,276.00
Reserve pursuant to § 4

(10) item 3a, Income Tax

Law: ..viiieniinniinnn 6,7.38,966.00 {6,738,966.00) *

Tot@l 2 .oovviviiiiiaa 44,998,157.00 (19,177,852.00) 25,820,305.00
Grand Totat .............. 1,185,055,448.86 (29,379,685.71) 750,136,046.52  1,905,811,809.67

* Amounts reclassified to other capital reserves not affecting resuits.

Provisions

The deficit determined pursuant to Art, X (3} of the Agcounting Law in the pension provision
calculated pursuant to § 211 {2) of the Commercial Code is being amortized in equal instaliments over a
twenty-year period. The deficit resulted from the fact that until 19292 the figures used for tax purposes
were included in part in the financial statements which were prepared pursuant to commercial law, The
shortfall as of 31st December 1995 amounted to ATS 3,691 mn (31st December 1994; ATS 3,922 mn).
Deficits for severance and anniversary bonus provisions amounted to ATS 61 mn on 31st December 1995
(31st Dec. 1994: ATS 123 mn).

Other provisions totaled ATS 2,306 mn (31st Dec. 1994: ATS 1,971 mn). Provisions made for
impending losses on equity interests, contingent liabilities and the risks of legal action amounted to
ATS 989 mn. An amount of ATS 1,317 mn was ailocated for indeterminate liabilities, and in particular
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includes provisions for expenditures on personnel and materials, for anniversary bonuses and
unconsumed vacation days, and for charges likely to result from the fiscal audit.

Contingent Liablilities

1995 1994
(in ATS mn)
Contingent liabilities fromown drafts . ........ ... ... . .. .. .. . ... 12,487 11.864
Endorsement liabilities from endorsed bills of exchange. . ................... 1,878 2,634
Contingent liabilities from documentary credits .................. . ... .. 2,533 2,213
Liabilitiss from guaramees . ... ... .. 37.824 37.681
Assets Serving as Coliateral
Pursuant to § 64 (1) item 8, Banking Act
{in ATS mn)
Cover fund for trust monies included in liabilities item 2a) ............ .. ... .. ..., 600.0
Cover fund for the following instruments included in liabilities item 3a)
MO A0 OO . . e 6,773.0
MUNICIDAl DONAS . ... 26,082.0
oW DONAS . L. 18,168.0
MEdIUM-TEIM OIS . e e 216.0
<17 51,839.0
Foreign exchange security deposit with the Austrian National Bank.................. 510.0
Arrangemeant security deposit with the Oesterreichische Kontrollbank AG  ........... 90.8
Margin requirement at the Austrian Futures and Options Exchange (OETOB) ....... 140.0
Margin requirement for derivative financial and securities transactions .............. 2488
Other foreign branches (local legal standards) ... ... .. ... . o it 969.1
=1 €= 1,967.5
Grand Total ................. h e e e e e e £3,806.5

IV. Data on the Profit and Loss Account

The item income from shares in group companies contains earnings of ATS 248 mn from equity
interests through arrangements for passing on profits. The item balance of expenditure /income from the
valuation and disposal of equity interests includes ATS 2,386 mn in profit from group companies. This
resulted largely from the disposals of DZ-Donauzentrum Betriebs- u. Vermietungs AG and GET
Management Gesellschaft fir Gesundheit, Energie u. Technik.

Significant extraordinary expenditures consist almost exclusively of the allocation to the deficit
portion for 1995 of the pension provision and the provisions for severance payments and anniversary
bonuses.

Other operating expenditures and earnings contain both personnel expenditures and
reimbursements for seconding staff to subsidiaries which amounted to ATS 300 mn.

The changes in untaxed reserves had no impact on the item taxes on income and earnings.
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Breakdown of Earnings at Foreign Branches

London New York Hong Kaong Moscow Total
{in ATS thousand)

Interest income . .................... 1,729,830 1,674,090 856,170 33,416 4,203,506
Income from securities and eqguity

interests ............ e 18,528 18,528
Commission income . ................ 51,488 10,867 13,113 57.711 133,179
Eamings/expenses from financial

transactions ...................... 279,301 67,354 42,866 (1,255) 388,260
Other operating income .............. 43 16,726 2,316 128 19,213

V. Additional Data
Total Expenditures from the Use of Non-Capltaiized Tangible Fixed Assets

The utilization of tangible fixed assets not shown in the balance sheet (in connection with rent and
leasing obligations) will result in expenditures of which ATS 1,1885 mn (31st Dec. 1994: ATS
741.7 mn) will be due for payment in the following year. A total of ATS 5,106.0 mn (31st Dec. 1994: ATS
3,757.6 mn) will be due for payment over the next five years.

Foreign Currency Business as a Porcontage of Total Assels

Assets denominated in foreign currency accounted for 30.9 percent or ATS 209,429,424 819.24
(1994: 29.5 percent or ATS 188,520,810,661.96) of the bank’s balance-sheet total, while liabilities
denominated in foreign currency accounted for 32.8 percent or ATS 222,601,907,493.03 (1994:
32.5 percent or ATS 207,566,698,830.33) of the balance-sheet total.

Unsettled Forward Transactions

Like all active participants on international money and foreign-exchange markets, Bank Austria deals
actively in a number of derivative financial products related to currencies and interest rates. These
instruments are used both for hedging (price and interest-rate hedging) and for trading purposes. Since
derivative instruments are considered standard financial management tools, Bank Austria offers its
customers the complete range of these innovative financial instruments. (See page F-21 for a breakdown
of open derivative financial transactions)

1. Currency instruments. For a number of years Bank Austria has been one of the leading Austrian
banks handling forward foreign exchange transactions in all major international currencies and the
schilling. To complement the traditional foreign exchange business the bank also handles currency
options, primarily in USD, DEM, CHF and GBP, and focuses exclusively on OTC trading. The bank's
business partners are mostly internationally renowned market participants, particularly on the financial
centers in London, Frankfurt, Zurich, New York, Hong Kong, Singapore and Tokyo. Due to the complexity
of the options trade, the bank makes significant efforts to advise commercial customers,

Z. Interest-rate instruments.  With regard 1o derivative interest-rate products, Bank Auslria is aclive
on both the OTC market and the standardized futures market. The bank acts as market maker in the OTC
sector for FRA’s (forward rate agreements) for USD, DEM, CHF, and ATS transactions. Bank Austria also
uses closely-related products such as IRG's (interest rate guarantees), primarily for hedging and
arbitrage strategies.

Futures transactions are effected exclusively on the highly liquid exchanges in Chicago (CME and
CBT), London (LIFFE) and Paris (MATIF), Singapore (SIMEX) and the Vienna Stock Exchange
(OETOB). Interest rate swaps (IRS} and cross-currency swaps (CCS) are very relevant for long-term
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interest-rate transactions. The bank’'s business partners for FRA and swap transactions consist entirely of
large banks in Europe and the U.S,

Breakdown of Total Volume of Open Derivative Financial Transactions

Nominal Amounts by
Term-19-maturity Total

<1Year 1-5Years -0 Years 31at Dec, 1995 3J1st Dec. 1994
{in ATS bn)

A) Interest-rate agreements
OTC products
FRA'S ........... ... .......... 425.4 6.7 432.1 374.4
Interest swaps ................. 62.5 86.7 47.3 196.5" 107.8
interest-rate options — long .. ... 4.4 29 04 7.7 54
Interest-rate options — short . ... 80 24 0.3 10.7 4.6
Other comparable agreements . .. 0.8 0.2 1.0 1.0

Products traded on the

exchange

Interest-rate futures . ............ 81.6 2.8 84.4 11.2
Options on interest-rate futures ..

B) Exchange-rate agreements
OTC products
Forward foreign exchange :
transactions.................... 2416 241.6* 2198
Currency swaps ................ 27 8.9 12.6 24.2* 16.1
Currency options — long........ 277 : 277 6.8
Currency options -— short . ... ... 380 38.0 9.8
Other comparable agreements

Products traded on the
exchange

Currency futures

Options on currency futures

C) Securities-related transactions
OTC products
Securities swaps
Share/index options — long.. ... 28 28 1.0
Share/index options — shert . ... 0.6 0.6 0.3
Other comparable agreements

Produets traded on the

exchange

Share/index futures

Share/index options ............ 0.3 0.3 0.1

D) Merchandise contracts
OTC products
Merchandise options — long. .. .. 0.2 0.2

Total ... 895.6 111.4 60.8 1,067.8 758.3

* These amounts represent the volume of the buying contracts.
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The volume of all open financial transactions, which is to be included in the assessment basis for the
own fund requirement and is weighted by creditworthiness pursuant to § 22 of the Austrian Banking Act,
amounted at year-end 1995 to only ATS 3.8 bn (1994: ATS 2.3 bn}. The own fund requirement thus
totaled ATS 307.9 mn (1994: ATS 183.2 mn).

¥YI. Data on Personnel and Executive Bodies

In 1995 the bank employed an average of 8,508 white-coliar employees (1994: 8621) and
497 blue-collar employees (1994: 512).

Loans granted to members of the managing board totaled ATS 1,606,686.12 on 31st December
1995 (31st Dec. 1994: ATS 2.827.681.98). Loans granted to members of the supervisory board
amounted to ATS 14,446,164 .70 (31st Dec. 1994: ATS 13,427,294 .90). No guarantees were issued for
the members of the managing board or supervisory board, nor were any salary advances made o them.
Loans to the supervisory board include those made to members of the employees’ council. The maturities
of the loans range from five t0 ten years. The interest rate payable on these loans is based on the rate
charged empioyees of Bank Austria.

Severance payments and pensions include allocations to and retirements from the provision for
pensions and the provision for severance payments. Allocations for members of the managing board,
senior executives and their survivors totaled ATS 37,281,891.37 in 1995, while allocations for other
employees and their survivors amounted to ATS 1,006,134,450.88.

The term “'senior executives’ comprises general managers, heads of divisions, and the heads of the
regional head offices and their deputies.

In 1995 total remuneration of members of the managing board amounted to ATS 54,996,535.91.
A significant part of this amount was for severance payments to board members who left the bank in
1995. Remuneration for activities on behalf of group companies came to ATS 679,400.00.

Payments to former members of the managing board or their survivors totaled ATS 30,818,240.32.
Total remuneration to members of the supervisory board in the 1995 business vyear totaled
ATS 3,214,250.00. Payments for activities on behalf of group companies amounted to ATS 88,224.00.
Amounts mentioned above include profit sharing payments and bonus payments, reimbursements for
out-of-pocket expenses and commissions.

Vil. Data on Mortgage Banking

1995 was the first full business year in which Bank Austria pursued mortgage banking activities,
which include raising long-term funds via the issue of mortgage bonds and municipal bonds, and making
these funds available in the form of long-term financings (mainly for residential construction, public-
sector financing and infrastructure). These activities are handled by an independent organizational unit.
Resuits in the 1995 fiscal year were above average.

Claims against Customers

Cover loans and other loans carried in this item totaled ATS 32,824,307,046.46 as of year-end 1995,
and thus increased by 22.5 percent or ATS 6,035,618,755.48 relative to the previous year.
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Securitized Liabilitles

Own mortgage banking issues. At year-end 1995 mortgage and municipal bonds in circulation
amounted to ATS 31,328,084,000.00, an increase of 12.8 percent or ATS 3,645,063,000.00 over year-
end 1904 At this time ATS 1,573,000.00 had already been drawn for redemption. The following table
contains a list of outatanding individual series:

Outstanding mortgage bonds

Series Year of Issue Matures Par Value
(in ATS thousand})

19 L. 1971 01.01.1996 56,625
20 .. 1972 01.01.1997 80.896
2l e 1973 01.01.1998 84,036
U 1974 01.10.1998 41,575
23 1974 01.12.1998 102,125
4 i 1975 01.02.2000 143,065
25 . 1976 01.03.2001 82,510
26 1976 01.07.2001 99,128
-4 1977 01.05.2002 312,815
2B e 1978 01.10.2003 524,320
29 e 1978 01.10.2003 32,131
30 . 1979 01.04.2004 70,662
4 1979 01.04.2004 85,786
¥ 1980 01.11.2004 23,061
o0 e 1982 01.10.1997 9,162
51 1983 01.02.1996 288,889
5 7 1983 01.02.1998 57,249
54 .. 1984 01.02.1999 18,6894
56 .. 1965 01.01.2000 26,814
o7 1986 01.07.1997 562,056
98 e 1987 01.12.1998 125,697
89 . 1988 01.02.2001 114,241
60 ... 1988 01.09.2000 692,331
B1 .. e 1989 01.09.1926 618,765
B2 .. i 1991 01.04.2000 255,600
B3 ... 1991 01.08.1299 120,900
64 ... 1992 01.08.2002 243,395
B ... e 1993 01.02.1996 370,000
66 ........ ..., 1994 15.01.2000 160,000
& 1994 01.05.2000 41,000
B8 e 1994 01.09.2000 90,000
B0 e 1995 01.01.2001 880,000
Total ...... ... ............. 6,415,748
Plus series drawn for

redemption.,............. 1,063
Grandtotal. ................ 6,416,811
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1006 1004 Change
{in ATS thousand)
6,416,811 5,804,908 +611,803
Outstanding municipal bonds
Series Year of lssue Matures Par Valua
{in ATS thausand)

1 1 1971 01.01.1006 128,484
18 e 1972 01.01.1997 77,050
2 1076 01.03.1596 88,779
2 1976 01.07.1866 101,477
28 i e 1977 01.05.1997 166,917
27 i i 1978 01.10.1908 14,260
P22 1978 01.10.1598 102,899
30 e 1979 01.04.1699 55,665
K 3 E e 1979 01.04.1999 85,663
32 i Ceevenies Cerbe 1979 01.07.1909 317,397
A 1980 01.11,1899 213,073
38 i 1982 01.10.1597 6,667
L 1983 01.06.1996 1,473,692
. 1985 01.10.2000 47,419
1 1986 01.01.2001 144,910
] 1986 01.11.1996 151,847
B e 1987 01.08.1998 331,586
5 e 1987 01.08,1998 200,626
B e 1687 01.03.2000 118,664
B e 1987 01.06.1998 143,940
P 1987 01.06.1999 137,450
Lo 1987 01.10.1998 232,739
B8 .. 1987 01.10.2002 340,120
BO 1988 01.01.1999 397,610
B0 ... 1988 01.01.2003 457,403
B3 . 1988 01.10.1999 166,354
B4 e 1989 01.01.1997 134,720
B e 1989 01.04.1999 239,422
BB e 1989 01.06.1998 815,037
BT i 1989 01.09.1999 758,000
B8 ., 1990 01.01.1997 152,348
B9 ... 1990 15.01.1998 359,625
TO e 1990 01.02.2001 10,000
7 1990 01.03.1997 1,330,800
T2 . 1990 20.04.2000 57,400
2 1990 15.07.1997 487,300
£ T 1991 01.01.1998 1,148,700
T6 ... 1991 01.01.2000 94,200
T 1992 0t1.01.1999 134,010
78 i 1992 15.01.1999 765,809
7O . 1992 01.05.2002 595,801
80 ... 1992 01.10.1997 380,700
81 1992 01.11.1997 295,000
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Series Year of lasue Matures Par Value
. (in ATS thousand}
82 . 1992 15.12.2002 346,500
83 .. 1993 01.01.1998 470,000
84 L. 1983 01.03.2000 440,000
BS 1993 01.04.2003 1,220,000
86 ... ... 1983 01.06.1998 540,000
87 . 1993 15.09.2000 195,000
88 ............... . 1993 01.11.2003 357.000
89 1994 01.01.2004 1,100,000
0 1994 15.05.2006 1.610,000
91 1994 01.10.2000 1,140,000
Q2 . 1995 01.01.2007 1,360,000
Q3 1995 01.02.2003 650,000
Q4 .. 1995 01.05.2003 210,000
95 L. 1985 01.06.2007 500,000
A6 e 1995 01.06.2003 280,000
1 1995 01.06.2010 500,000
98 1995 15.09.2003 518,760
Fo 1977 01.05.1997 12,050
Total ... . o 24,910,763
Plus series drawn for
redemption............... 510
Grand total ................. 24,911,273
1995 1994 Change

(in ATS thousand)
24,911,273 21,978,123 +2,933,150

Issues in 1995

Mortgage and Municipal Bonds Issued

Variable-rate series with initial interest rates of 5.75 percent to 6.375 percent .. 1,870,266,000.00
Fixed-rate series with interest rates of 6.5 percent to 7.375 percent........... 3,028,494 ,000.00
Total issues N 1005 Lo i e e e e e 4,8098,760,000.00

Cover for Mortgage Bonds amnd Municipal Bonds

Ineluding series drawn for redemption, the total volume ot outstanding mortgage bonds and
municipat bonds amounted to ATS 31,328,084,000.00.

Classification of Assets Held as Cover

Mortgage loans serving as cover for mortgage bonds. .............. ... ... 8,772,620,149.72
Loans serving as cover for municipal bonds ......... ... 24,583,375,466.03
Substitute cover other loans for municipal bonds. .. ....... ... ..o L L. 1,500,000,000.00
Assets whose use is subject to restriction.............o oo oLl 32,855,895,615.75
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Mortgage Banking Business

Interest and similar earnings..... e e e et i 2,245,071,447.79
Interest and similar eXPeNSES . . vvvv it iiiv e iini e iasn e e e (2,207,328,363.67)
Commission INGOMe ..ot iiiiisirsrinrreaninnsns vt ety 10,237,609.19
Commission expenses ....... e e e e (3,723,482.64)
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Assets

1.

Cash reserves:

a) wvaulteash ...l

b) Dbalances with the Austrian National
Bank and the Austrian Postal
Savings Bank ........ .. ... ...,

Chacks, cash ifems in procass of
collection ...
Due from credit institutions, .............
of which monies due on demand or in
less than 30 days......................
of which monies due in not less than
30 days but less than 6 months ... ... ...
Bils ofexchange ......................
af which rediscountable with the Austrian
National Bank .........................
Securities:
a} fixed-inlerest securilies ............
of which listed on exchanges. . ... ..
D) shares...........................
of which listed on exchanges.......
ey others ... ...,

of which eligible as collateral for

Augtrian National Bank advances, . ..

of which from ewn figatations ......
Loans to eredit institutions, .............
of which covered by guaranteas of the
Republic or the Provinges . vovviviiana,
Loans to other borrowers:
a) 1o the Repubiic and the provinces, ..
D) QOMErsS.....o i

of which covered by guarantees of
the Republic or the provinges,......
of which lendings acearding to
mortgage banking ruies. ...........
Loans on a trust basis at third party risk . .
Eauity interasts and gyndicate holdings:
a) Incredit institutions ........... ...
b} inother companies.......... ... ..

of which interests held on behalf of
participation funds ... ... e

Amount carried over. .., .o

ANNEX A

BALANCE SHEET

as of 31st December 1994 (Austrian Schillings)

1993 (in thousands) "

4117.802 47410

6,168,407,730.76

31494,210,240.63

39779.211,779.44

1531,216,954.97

77,668,074,013.14

56,834,886,242.81
4,724,033.830.22

3904,767,818.87
1,807,322,066 74

39,790,786.063.75

2,687,404,836.53

15,231,269,279.60

61.,305,000,235.84
284.671,404,336.20

31,684,818,782.79

26,852,604,080.68

3.719,575,766.84
18,361,238,100.73

10.286,310,204 .86

64,354,261.09
123,839,747,140.17

2,641,851,358.76

83,600,430,900.10

29,890,380,139.30

345,976,404.572.04

1,685,082.785.69

22.080,813,887 57

620,365,274 245,58

3,683,110
6,051,767 9,734,867
84,445
110,270,670
3,475,461

60,537,730

4,573,464
1,642,670 66,753,854
30,607,368

54,183,470
262,039,626 336,233,096
1,865,062

3,856,264
17,730,507 21,586,771
582,711,604

*) adjusted vatues following the merger of Wiener Landes-Hypothekenbank AG with Bank Austria as of

1st January 1994
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Liabllities

1.

Savings deposits:
a) due on demand
b)  subject to a period of notice of less
thanémonthe. ... ................
¢)  subject to a period of notice of not
less than 6 months
Due to credit institutions:
a} from the refinancing of export cradits
with Oesterreichische
Kontrollbank AG ..........c.ocenees
b)  from lombard transactions with the
Austrian National Bank .............
c) from other deposits by credit
institutions . ... L.

of which monies due on demand or in
less than 30 days..................
of which monies due in not less than
30 days but less than 6 months . .. ..
Duetoothers,...............cooieennn.
of which monies dug on demand of in less
than 30 days . ................... ...
of which monies due in not tess than
30 days but less than 6 months ..........
Own acceptances and promissory notes
outstanding ...l
Own floatations:
a) morgagebonds...................
D) municipal bonds ...................
G} BONOS ..o e
d} medium-termsnotes ...............
a) profit part. shares, convertible and
profit-sharing bonds purs. to § 174,
Joint Stock Companies Act .........
1) profit participation shares within the
meaning of the Participation Funds
Aot .
g) oher.......o.i

Loans on a trust basis at third party rigk . _ .

Provisions:

a}  pension provision ..................
of which taxed

D) for severance payments ............

e) other. ... ...

Share capital:
a) commonshares ...................
b) preferredshares...................

Amount carried aver.........................

as of 315t December 1994 (Ausirian Schillings)

1993 (in thousands)*

35,540,571,048.27

133,731,998,009.27

36,557,556,015.95

148,740,115,330.60
£8,054.146,006.13
56,382,524, 250,23
71,075,847,001.76
26,351,671,473.44

5,804,308,000.00

21,978,123,000.00

53,474,132,597.80

15,116,764,000.00

12,836,506,601.00

98,012.00
1,415,168,295.00
2,930,324 521 25

5,019,495,600.00
7562,650,000.00

169,272,669,057.54

186,207 673,356 45

126,412,774,724.40

314,246,070.05

96,376,927 597 .80
1,885,982,785 .69

16,481,590,417.25

5,772,145,600.00

601,814,318,608.18

36,910,455
126,049,581 162,969,036

39,115,922
142,427 105 181,543,027
111,023,087
513,763

6,084,510

18,803,922

47,463,991

11,654,492
— 84,026 475
1,865,062

12,138,521

1,302,065
2,166,213 15,607,789

5,019,408
752,650 5,772,146
563,320,395

*) adjusted values folfowing the merger of Wiener Landes-Hypothekenbank AG with Bank Austria as of

1st January 1994



Assets
Amount brought forward ...
10. Land and buildings:

a} for own business operations . ...
by other ...

11. Office furniture and equipment .......

12. Qutstanding contributions to share
capital of which called up
contributions. . ........... ... ...

13. Treasury share par value .....vvvvias

14, Interests in a controlling company, or
in a gompany holding a majority
intarest

18, Oher @s8ets v vn i iarian
16. Accrueditems .....................

17, Net loss:
a) loss/profit brought forward from
the previous year..............
b)  profit trancferred to controlling
COMPany .......oovvevienaann.
¢)  loss/profit for the year ...

BALANCE SHEET

as of 31st December 1994 (Austrian Schillinge)

1983 (in thousands)*

620,365,274 249.58

332.235,202.93
249,720,194.60 581,955,397.53

1,716,866,754.34

21,463,825.00 150,667,896.13

14,163,021,516.97
1,359,610,350.27

638,337,406,164.24

336,077

187,674

582,711,604

523,951
1,658,029

54,564

14,252,503
355,176

599,455,947

*) adjusted values foliowing the merger or Wiener Landes-Hypothekenbank AG with Bank Austria ag of

1t January 1994
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Liabilitieg
Amount brought forward .....................

9.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14,
15.
16.

Participation capital pursuant to § 23 (4),
Austrian Banking Act (BWG) ............
Fund for general banking risks pursuant to
§ 57 (3), Austrian Banking Act (BWG) ...
Supplementary capital pursuant to § 23
(7}, Austrian Banking Act (BWG)........
Liabifity reserve purs. to § 23(6), Austrian
Banking Act......... faes
Reserves:

a) statutory reserve. ... ...l
of which premium from issue of
participation capital ..._............

b) reserve pursuant to § 11, Income Tax
Law (§4(7) 1972 Income Tax Law)

c) resenve pursuant to § 12, Income Tax
Law ...

d) investment reserve pursuant to §9,
Income Tax Law:

IR

e} investment allowance pursuant o
§ 10, Income Tax Law.
1990 o

1)  valuation reserve due to special
depreciation ... i
g) wvoluntaryreserve ..................
h) otherreserves.....................
i} reserve pursuant to § 13,
Reconstruction Law ...............
i} reserve purs. to § 1(3), Mergers &
Acquisitions Law...................
Other liabilities ..................o0000e
Deferred items _........................
Profit available for dividend:
a)  profit/loss brought forward from the
previous year. .. ........... ...
b)  profit transferred to controling
COMPANY +.vvvrnvniinrinrsinenns
¢)  profit for the year before dividends for
participation capital ................
less amount required for dividends for
participation capital ................

as of 31st Decomber 1994 {Austrian Schillings)

1993 {In thousands)*

601,614,318,608.18

702,112,400.00
3,085,470,000.00
8,613,305,000.00

9,404,647 821.25

1,123,190,041.73

11,500,000.00

14,500,000.00

10.720.,000.00

938.886.00

78,029.00

522,276.00

16,867,250.13

1,244,010,723.13

1,460,413,767 67
118,602,260.06  13,406,081,055.87
9,821,451,790.63
313,821,050.75

13,063,231.00

637,994,127.81

(70,212.00000) 567,782,127 81 580,845,358 81

638,337,406.164.24

563,320,395

702,112

3,085,470

8,135,152
9,404,648
1,176,761
8114
11,500
14,500
10,720
26,612
1,167
78
502
17,087
1,130,011
1,278,563
181,851

118,602 13,380,776

9,829,542

545.261
11,322

445917 457,239

690,465,947

*) adjusted values following the merger of Wiener Landes-Hypothekenbank AG with Bank Austria as of

1st January 1994
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ADDITIONAL BALANCE SHEET DETAILS

Assete

iB.

19.

20.

21,

22.
23.

24,

25,

Foreign assels, .........................
of which covered by guarantees of the
Republic or the provinces ............. ..
Assets subject to disposition restrictions:
a)  cover fund for funded bank bonds ...
b}  cover fund for mortgage bonds and
municipal bonds . ...
¢)  cover fund pursuant to § 230a,
Austrian Civil Cade. ................
Claims, including rights of recourse, against
a) credit instit. in which equity interegtg
areheld ...
b} other companies in which equity int.
arehald ...
c) persons referred to In § 28, Austrian
Banking Act {(BWG} ...............

Total ameunt of equity interests pursuant to
§29(2), Austrian Banking Act (BWG) . ...
Subordinated claims ...
Contingent claims against:

a) creditinstitutions .........LL
D) other. ... ...

Assats sold under a sale and repurchasa
agreement, .. ... e
of which sale and repurchase agreements
with the Austrian National Bank ... ........
of which sale and repurchase agreements
with credit institutions . ..................
Agsets bought under a gale and
TEpUrChase agreement, ..................
of which from credit institutions . ..........

as of 31st December 1984 {Austrian Schillings)

1903 (in thousanda}*

29,051,103,015.47

6.368.000,000.00

250,000,000.00

2,984,033.44

18,647,050,000.00

28.064.094.879.84

600,000,000.00

26,063,995,675.02

31,328,099,696.03

8,395,892,268.11

4,810,405,457.95

48,831,962,622.56

193,350,488,971.17

48.311,144,824.84

65,787,947,639.16

11,625,763.180.47
890,379,123.30

93,641,968,080.51

7,147,960,000.00

2,964,033.44

22,397,913

23,039,536

461,168

30,361,373

26,677,858

19,211,148

5,210,692

48,460,605

162,941,649

47 8RB B17

76,240,379

11,302,781
4,239,290

53,671,297

6,991,696

6,845

*) adjusted values following the merger of Wiener Landes-Hypothekenbank AG with Bank Auslria as of

1st January 1994
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Liabilitles
17, Foreign liabilities .....oooovviiiin i,

18.
19.

20.

21.
. Feserves:

23.

24,

23

Contingent liabilities from guarantees. .. ...

Other contingent liabilities from:

a}  own drafts outstanding ......vv0ihin
of which ERP biffs. .............. ..

B)  own endorsement liabilities. . ........

C) OB e

Liabilities towards:

a)  credit instit. in which equity interests
arsheld ...

b) other companies in which equity int.
are held

Trust meney savings deposits ......... -

a) capitalresenves....................
b} profitreserves................

Own funds to be taken into account
pursuant to § 23 of the Austrian Banking
Act (BWG) in connection with § 29 of the
Austrian Banking Act (BWG)
Basis for computation of own funds
pursuant to § 22, Austrian Banking Act
(BWG), c oo iiiiiii i
hereof weighted assets,
hereof weighted off-balance sheet iteme . ..
Amount pursuant to Art. X(3), Accounling

as of $1st Decembor 1964 {Austrian Schillings)

1993 (in thousands)*

11,869,779,995.29

1,030,251,232.00
2,634,478 3722 73
750,339,374.00

32,506,106,293.75

3,851,192,671.38

10,839,745,806.70
2,:506,335,249.17

318,479,887,692.23
51952082747 12

182,340,043,193.37
39,143,760,763.03

19,245,546,691.40

36,357,299,165.13
452,957 618.94

13,406,081,055.67

39.842,807.790.22

370,432,870,439.35

3,822,055,944.00

155,215,183
99,444 847
11,301,844
2,779,496
494685 14,576,025
93,153,072
3,035,897 36,188,909
402,345
10,839,745
2,541,030 13,380,776
37,628,805
363,528,426
4,152,765

*) adjusted valtues following the merger of Wiener Landes-Hypothekenbank AG with Bank Austria as of

1st January 1994
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Interest and similar earings from:

a) loang and investments .. ... ...
of which from mortgage loans. .
of whigh from munigipal leans , .

b) seeurities................. ...

¢} holdings in companies ........

Intereat and similar expenses from:
a) deposit business .............
b) own floatations...............

of which for mortgage bonds ..
of which for municipal bonds . .

Net Interest Eamed

fitem tlessitem2)........

Net commission income

a) commissions and other income

k)  ommissions and other
OXPENSAS. ... .. ...l

of which from mortgage
banking buginges. .. ..........

Qperating Income
(total | +/—item3) .............
Personnel expenses ...
af which:
a) wages and salaries ...........
b} expenditure for etatutory social
confributions and compulsary
contributions related to wages
and salaries .............. .
G}  other social expenditure . ......
d}  expenditure for retirement
benefite ........ ...
e) allocation to the pension
provision ...
{)  allocation 1o the provision for
SEVETAnce payments..........
Expenditures for materiale ..........
of which rent and leasing expenseg. .
Depreciation and value adjustments
on fixed assets...... P
Taxes and lavies {if not shown under
ems 4and 28) ..o.ovvvveiiviiinrns

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

1994 (Austrian Schillings)

1993 (in thousands) *

471.580,595.96
1,493,351,185.22

473,642,854.61
1,419,410,770.77

2003,073.64

4,697,024,364 .08

756,673,459.13
179,018,700.68

571.243.774.34
852,957,658.00
31,344,354.74

706,727,006.59

32,066,965,680.48

4,935,403,759.83

969.582,335.08

19,519,409,192.43

3.273,623,874.22

(367,727,980.31)

7,149,163,313.97

3,854,677,921.03

534,510,217.66

37,364,411.65

37,971,851,684.19

25,277 562,097 69

12,694,388,686.50

2906,095,884.91

15,600,484 571.41

35,469,041

3927.018

792,272

22,403,939

5,454,549

2,970,428

(344,343)

6,366,386

3,567 674

446.238

£39.267

40,188,331

27,858,488

12,326,843

2,626,085

14,955,928

*) adjusted values following the merger of Wiener Landes-Hypothekenbank AG with Bank Austria as of

1st January 1994
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1.

12.

13,
14,

*)

Operating Expenditure
(Totalof itens &§t0 7) .. ... . . ..

Partial Oparating Profit

{Total ll less Total NI)............
Ordinary eamings from non-banking
DUSINBSS ... .. ... . ...,
Ordinary expenses from non-banking
business .........................
Earnings /expenses from the
valuation and disposal of loans and
securities, as well ag from trading
ransactions ......................
Earnings/expenses from the
valuation and disposal of heldings . . .
Other extraordinary expenses .. .. ..
Other extracrdinary eamings........
Balance of other samings/expenses
(items 8-13) .....................

15. to 21, Trading in goods.............

1994 (Austrian Schillings)

1999 {in thousands)*

(11,575,724,864.31)

4,024,759,707.10
268,316,612.42

(225,516,511.50)

(2.761,636,2665.46)

193,179,738.21
(367.306,960.19)
41,997 .566.18

{2,860,965,821.34)

(10,619,567)
4,336,361
212,008
(170,456)
(2.127.770)
{336,076)
(515,830)
63.302
(2,874,824)

adjusted values following the merger of Wiener Landes-Hypothekenbank AG with Bank Austria as of

1st January 1994



PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT, Continued

1994 (Austrian Schillings) 1993 (in thousands)*

22. Expenses from agsumption of Iosses .. ... - -
#3. Allocations to the fund for general banking

ASKE Lt e e — —
24, Reverssle from tha fund for ganaral

banking fisks ., ... coe e — -

V. Annual Surplus / Deficit

(before taxes and changss in reserves)

{Total IV 47— jtem 14, 22.04) ... .. .. 1,163,793 885.76 1,461,537
25. Taxes on income. earnings and property . . (22,342,140.24) (63,33%)

Vi Annual Surplus/Deficit
(before changes in reserves) ........... 1,141,451,745 52 1,408,202
26. Changes in reserves ................... Allocations (—) Reversals {1} A(—)YR (1)
a)  liability 1856MYe ui i (478,152,513.55) — (827,425)
b) statutoryreserve.................. — — (25,112)
¢) generalreserve fund .............. — — -
d) fax reserves
pursuant to § 9, Income Tax Law ... — 8,114,187 88 (9,820)
nursuant to § 10, Income Tax Law .. - 26,839,453.31 54,731
pursuant te § 11, Income Tax Law .. — — —
pursuant o § 12, Income Tax Law .. — 53.571,090.65 21.275
&)  valuation reserve due to
special depreciation ............... — 170,164.00 (934)
£} voluntary regerve ... ... (114,000,000.00} — (118.000)
g} otherreserves.................... — — -

Balance of changes in raserveg . ......... (592,152 513.55) 88,694 895 .84 (503,457 617.71) (905,285)

27. Dividends for holders of participation
cerlificates ... (70,212,000.00) {57,000}

Yii.  Profit/Loss for the Year....... beirrans 567,782,127 81 445,017
28. +/— Profit/loss brought forward from

Previous Year. . ... ... 13,063,231.00 11,322
20, Profits paid on the basis of a profit

pooling arrangement or a profit transfer

agreement . ... - -

Yill. Net Profit/Netboss................... i 580,845,358 81 457,239

Vienna, 21st March 1895
The Managing Board:

ReENE ALFONS HAIDEN GERHARD RANDA
WALTER HEINRICH HewmuT JELL Joger Rapp RoMuALD RIEDL KARL SAMSTAG
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Based on an audit performed in accordance with our professional duties, the accounting records and
the financial statements of the bank are in compliance with legal regulations. The financial statements
pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles give a reasonable presentation of the bank’'s assets
and liabilities, its financial position and results. The management report is in accordance with the financial
statements.

Vienna, 28th March 1995

Savings Bank Auditing Association
Auditing Board

PETER BUCHBINDER KrLaus GoscHLer
Osterreichische Wirtschaftsberatungs GmbH SOT Siud-Ost Treuhand Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftspriifungs- und Wirtschaftspriifungs- und
Steuerberatungsgesellschaft Steuerberatungsgesslischaft
WoLrcang GASSNER G, E. Tichy

WoLraang RiepL Konrao ToiFe
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Supervisory Board was regularly informed by the Managing Board of the progress and financial
position of Bank Austria Aktiengeselischaft and, in its mesetings, performed all its tasks as defined by the
law and the bye-laws.

The accounts, the financial statements for 1994, the notes to the financial statements and the
management report were examined by the SOT Sid-Ost Treuhand AG Wirtschaftsprifungs- und
Steuerberatungsgeselischaft, the Osterreichische Wirtschaftsberatungs GmixH Wirtschaftspriifungs- und
Steuerberatungsgesellschaft and the Auditing Board of the Savings Bank Auditing Association. As they
were found to be in full compliance with tegat reguirements and the examination showed no cause for
objections, the auditor’s certificate was presented without qualification. The Supervisory Board has
endorsed the findings of this audit, agreed with the annual report and the use of earnings presented by
the Managing Board, and approved the 1994 financial statements, which are thereby adopted pursuant
to § 125 (2) of the Joint Stock Companies Act.

Vienna, 29th March 1995

The Supervisory Board:
Siegfried Sellitsch

Chairman




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
l. General Information

The 1994 financial statements were prepared pursuant to the provigions of the Commercial Code as
contained in the 1980 Accounting Law, and to the forms contained in Annex 1 to § 43 Part 1 of the
Banking Act. In addition, thoge requirements of the Banking Act which already apply to the 1994 financial
statements were also taken into consideration.

in order to improve the ability to compare balance sheet and profit and loss figures, figures from the
previous year were presented in accordance with § 223 (3) of the Commercial Code, and were
determined by taking into account the merger between Bank Austria AG and Wiener Landes-
Hypothekenbank AG ag of 1st January 1994, The key effects of the merger are presented in condensed
form in the table on the following page.

Wiener Landes-Hypothekenbank's profit for the year as of 31st December 1993, which totaled
ATS 25.1 million, was allocated to the statutory reserve when the bank’s operative business activities
were brought into Wiener Landes-Hypothekenbank AG, and were then included in the changes in
reserves in the previous year's profit and loss account when this bank was merged with Bank Austria AG.

Il. Information Regarding Accounting and Valuation Methods

In evaluating loans, due diligence was exercised in evaluating the known and anticipated financial
position of the borrower as well as the enforceability of claims with due consideration being given to
collateral. This task was facilitated by preselection via a risk classification system,

The valuation of loans to borrowers in countries with serious economic problems (high risk
countries) was made in accordance with the relevant opinions submitted by the chamber of public
accountants’ expert committee for commercial law and auditing.

Securities carried as financial assets are valued at cost, provided that no permanent impairment of
value has occurred, whereas those carried as current assets are valued using the lower of cost or market
price method.

Pursuant to § 55 (2), Banking Act, securities used for long-term business operations were classified
as financial assets. The competent head of the securities division has presented a filed and documented
decision in this regard.

Altogether, Bank Austria held securities classified as financial assets which were valued at
ATS 43,784 million (1st Jan. 1994; ATS 25,597 million), and securities classified as current assets
amounting to ATS 39,915 million (1st Jan. 1994: ATS 41,157 miliion). {See below “Securities Listed on
the Exchange’}

Equity interests were valued at their purchase price provided that there was no permanent
impairment resulting from continuing losses.

The bank's real estate is depreciated at a rate between 2% and 4%, according to use. For computer
equipment, the average useful life is estimated at four years for depreciation purposes.
Securities Listed on the Exchange
tn ATS million, classification pursuant to § 64 (1) item 11, Banking Act

Fixed Current
Assetis Asseots Total
Bonds and other fixed-interest securities .............. ... ... ... 7,284 6,466 13,750
Shares and other non fixed-interest bearing securities ........... 935 3,105 4,040
1 - EE R R TR TR RRR 8,219 9,571 17,790




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Balance Sheet

merger-retated
31st Dee. 1993 changes 1st Jan. 1994

(in ATS million)

Assets
Due from credit institutions ........... ... . oot 110,015 266 110,261
Secunties ... oo e 65,694 1,060 66,754
Loans to other borrowers. ............... .. ...t 311,979 24,254 336,233
Other assetsitems ............... .. cccoiiivnnnnn. 85,104 1,084 86,188
Total . 572,792 26,664 590,456
Liabilities
Due to credit institutions . ....... ... .. ... ......... 182,442 (899) 181,643
Savings deposits and due to others . ............... 273,784 208 273,992
Own floatations ... ... ... .. ... .. ............ 59,138 24 B8Y B4,027
Share capital ... ... ... .. ... ... 5,702 70 5,772
Supplementary capital .. ................. ... .. ..., 3,015 70 3,085
Liability reserve and other reserves . ......._........ 21,248 268 21,516
Other liability items .. ............ ... ... .......... 27,463 2,068 29,521
Total o e e 572,792 26,664 509,456
Profit and Loss Account
1993 1003
excl. Wr. Landes- incl. Wr. Landes-
Hypothekenbank + /- Hypothekenbank
{in ATS miltion}

Netinterestearned.............................. 12,083 247 12,330
Net commission iNCOME .. .....ovntii i, 2,700 (74) 2,626
Operatingincome ..., ... ... . ... L. 14,783 173 14,956
Operating expenditure . ........... ... ... ... ... 10,5677 43 10,820
Partial operating profit ... ... ... ... ............. 4,206 130 4,336
Balance of expenses from other profititems ........ 2,879 (4) 2,875
Surplus for the year before taxes and changes in

S BIVES .o et e e 1,327 134 1,461
Taxes on income, earnings and property .. ......... 9 44 53
Surplus for the year before changes in reserves..... 1,318 90 1,408
Changesinreserves. ... ......... ... ... ... 815 90 905
Dividends for holders of participation certificates . ... 57 — 57
Profit for the year ...t i e, 446 — 446
Profit brought forward . ... ... ... .. .. ... 11 — 11
Netprofit. ... ... .. . 457 — 457

Other office furniture and equipment are depreciated over periods from five to ten years.

Analogous to goodwill, the excess of fair values of assets and liabilities acquired and goodwill, if any,
over book values, resufting from the purchase of savings banks are depreciated over a five or fifteen year
period using straight-line depreciation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Accrued interest is shown under “Other assets’. The same method was followed on the liabilities
side of the balance sheet.

Discounts and premiums on liabilities in the form of bonds, municipal bonds and mortgage bonds
were depreciated over the period to maturity. The net-value approach, on the other hand, was taken with
regard to zero-coupon bonde.

Fixed-intereat sacuritios purchased above par and carried as financial assete are depreciatad at their
redemption value spread cver the period to maturity.

Currencies were generally converted at the prevailing mean rate of exchange on
30th December 1994. Swaps and forward transactions for currencies were valued principally according
to the accrual method. Cash in foreign currencies was converted at the applicable bid rates.

Holdings in financial futures, options on these futures, other options and forward rate agreements
were appraised at market value. Insofar as interest hedging transactions exist, results have been
reflected in interest income or expense.

In making provisions for both severance payments and anniversary bonus payments the calculation
method used was in line with the expert opinion of the Chamber of Public Accountants. An interest rate of
6% was selected for calculation purposes. In determining the pension provision, the accrued benefit
valuation method (using a 4% discount rate pursuant to the Ettl-Pagler table} was uniformly applied to
the disparate pension claims resulting under the internal service regulations of Zentralsparkasse und
Kommerzialbank AG and Osterreichische Landerbank AG. Pursuant to the Accounting Law, the gap in
the pension provision resulting from the new calculation procedure will be amortized over a twenty-year
period (19292 to 2011).

Overview of Maturities

31st Dac. 1994 1gt Jan. 1994
{in ATS million)

a) claims other than due on demand

up to three months notice ... ... .. o i i 33,582 54,878
between three months andoneyear ... ... .. .. ... ... .. ... 30,915 26874
between one and fiveyears ... .. .. i 68,944 58,714
more than five years .. ... ... L e 230,827 230,399
b) due from credit institutions other than due on demand

up to three monthe notice ... ... ... L 23,698 42171
between three months andoneyear ............. ... ...t 66,081 41,738
between one and five years .. ... ... . i i e 15,083 6,672
more than five years ... ... i e 1,204 1,210
¢) obligations other than due on demand

up to three menths notice . ... .. .. ... ... . . ... 191,312 153,805
between three months andoneyear ....... ... ... ... ........... 73,877 81,851
between one and five years .. .. ... ... .. e 121,515 99,515
more than Ve Years . .. .. e 113,663 112,237

Il Information Regarding Individual Balance-Sheet ltems
1. Breakdown of Maturities

Credit balances not due on demand (i.e., bills of exchange, non-listed fixed-interest securities, loans
to credit institutions and other borrowers), and amounts due and obligations (savings deposits, due to
credit institutions and others, own acceptances and promissory notes outstanding and own floatations)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

have the above initial maturity periods or agreed periods of notice (calculations are made pursuant to the
reguirements of the ordinance on monthly reports, Federal Gazette 1986/622 in line with the reporting
guidelines of the Austrian National Bank ).

In 1995 claimg in the form of bonds and other fixed-interest securities totaling ATS 1,085 million, and
other securitized liabilities of ATS 15,104 million, become due and payable.
2. Securities

The itermns listed in the following table are based on § 51, Banking Act, in connaction with Annex 2 to
§ 43, Banking Act.

Securities
listed not listed total
(in ATS million}
Bonds and other fixed-interast securities ... ... ... ... .. ... .. 13,750 —_ 13,760
Shares and other non fixed-interest bearing securities .......... 4,040 1,876 5,916
Equity interests . . ... ... . . .. 2,491 3,767 6,258
Holdings in group companies . ...... ... ... .. ... ... ... .... 189 14,638 14,827
Total. o e e 20,470 20,281 40,751

3. Equity Interests

Companies in which Bank Austria hoids at least a 25% interest and which are to be included in the
Notes to the Financial Statements pursuant to § 238 item 2 of the Commercial Code are shown in the
appendix to tha Notes to the Financial Statements, which is an integral part thereof. Customary banking
relationships were maintained in large part with group companies.

Financings using equity capital substitutes were used in part. As of 31st December 1094,
agreements passing on profits and losses to Bank Austria were maintained with the following companies:

+ Bank Austria Beteiligungsfonds Aktiengesellschaft

» Bank Austria Handelsbank Aktiengeseliechaft

- Bank Austria Kapitalanlagegeselischaft m.b.H.

» Bank Austria - Finanzservice Ges.m.b.H.

¢  GANYMED Immobilisnvermistungsgesellachaft m.b.H.

» Garage Am Hof Gesellschaft m.b.H.

* HYPERION Immochbilienvermietungsgeselischaft m.b.H.

» Konzern Service und Beratung GmbH

«  VISA — SERVICE Kreditkarten Aktiengesellschaft

»  7-HAUSDIENSTE UND KUCHENBETRIEB Gesellschaft m.b.H.

s /-Treuhand u. Vermogensverwaliungsgeasallschaft m.p.H.

Reciprocally interlinked interests as defined in § 2 item 2, Banking Act, do not exist.
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4. Land and Buildings

As of 31st December 1994 the wvalue of land on which buildings stand amounted to
ATS 162,555,414.65 (1st Jan. 1994: ATS 96,742,911.98).

5. Office Furniture and Equipment
This item includes intangible assets amounting to ATS 77,843,497 (1st Jan. 1904:
ATS 132,502,465) which were acquired from a group company.

6. Treasury Shares

The table “‘Trade Inventory Developments of Treasury Shares and Participation Certiticates” shows
the treasury shares held in 1994 by the bank, a dependent company or a company of which the bank is
majority shareholder.

Transactions in treasury shares and participation certificates were effected in the course of the
bank's activities as market maker in order to protect the market’s ability to function. Sales proceeds were
applied toward normal banking activities.

Trade Inventory Developments of Treasury Shares and Participation Certificates

LY Percent of
Par value Nominal
Number in ATS Capital
Common shares
Imitial inventory ... L 3,950 305,000 0.01
Additions . .. ... .. . i 1,430,016 143,001,600 2.85
Disposals . ...... ... ... 1,317,822 131,782,200 2.63
Endinginventory ....... ... . i 116,153 11,615,300 0.23
Preferred shares
Initial inventory . ... ... . . e 77,705 7,770,500 1.14
Additions . ... ... . e 997 562 99,756,200 14.25
Disposals ........ooiiiii i s 976,782 97,678,200 13.95
Ending inventory ... ... . ... o ool 08,485 9,848,500 1.3
Participation certificates
Initial inventory . ... ... i 385,312 36,531,200 5.20
Additions . ... ... ... 2,182,880 218,288,000 3100
Digpoeale . . . ... .. il 2,260,366 226,038,600 32.19
Endinginventory ... ... .. ... ... ... . iiii.. 287,826 28,782,600 4.10

The largest amount of own common and preferred shares held by the bank amounted to 1,071,082
shares or 1.88% (with share capital represented by 57,021,456 shares). The largest amount of own
participation certificates held by the bank totalled 700,537 certificates or 9.98% (with participation
capital represented by 7,021,124 certificates).

The nominal Gapital share of additions and disposals is calculated on the basis of the wsighted
average.

Common shares were purchased at an average price of ATS 974.79; the average sales price was
ATS 989.67. Preferred shares were purchased at an average price of ATS 603.44; the average sales
price was ATS 608.34. Participation certificates were purchased and sold at the average price of
ATS 424 .29 and ATS 418.98, respectively.

On 31st December 1994 the bank’s portfolio of own holdings included subordinated bonds it had
issued which were valued at ATS 56,751,143.60.
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7. Fixed Assots

1st Jan. 1994 Additions Disposals Reclassifications 31st Dec. 1994
(in ATS thousand)

1. Purchase price

Securities
a) fixedinterest............ ... ... 23,629,310 32,016,004 10,985 515 — 44,668,709
by shares ... ... .. ... ... ... 1,084,171 —_ 111,385 — 972,786
[ I - — — — - —
Equity interests .......... .. ... oLl 24,829,055 2,140,600 1,491,002 — 25,578,553
Land and buildings
a) for own business operations ..... 660,837 14,965 1,743 — 674,059
by others....... ... .l i 402,847 181,453 312,641 — 271,659
Office furniture and equipment ... ......... 4,446,430 665,737 104,971 — 5,007,256

Other assels
a) excess of formar equity interests

over book values from mergers . . . 471,103 279,115 30,183 — 720.025
) other assel ems . vvvvvviiviaess 99,603 513 760 — 99,356
cumulative book value book value depreciation for

writc-ups depreciations 31st Dec.1994  1at Jan.1994 current year

2. Residual book values

Saecurities
a}) fixedinterest................. -— 1,847,962 42,810,837 24,513,052 83,332
by shares....................... — — 479,786 1,084 171 —
c) others....... ... ... ... ... _ —_ — — —_
Equity INterests. ... vvivvriennacanianas 72,524 3,570,263 22,080,814 21,586,771 253,491
Land and buildings
a) for own business operations ... — 341,824 332,235 336.077 18,9201
B) others.........ovvivvievninns — 21,939 249,720 187,873 8,686
Office furniture and equipment .......... 658 3,201,057 1,716,857 1,658,000 404 534

QOther agsets
a) excess of former equity
interests over book values from
margers .................... _ 332,447 387.578 264,422 155,959
L) otherassetitems ............. — 95,814 13,542 17,585 4,556

8. Other Asset ltems

This position contains accrued interest and commission totaling ATS 7,649.5 million.

9. Obligations

As of 31st December 1994 there were four outstanding subordinated schilling bonds issued by the
bank, two of which mature in 1995, and the other two in 1999. There are fourteen subordinated
foreign-currency denominated bonds which are outstanding, with a term in most cases of ten years. The
foreign currencies include Can$, US$, Aus$, Sfr and Yen.

Altogether, subordinated bonds, excluding supplementary capital, amounted to ATS
11,641,312,767.

The concept of subordination is based on § 51 (9}, Banking Act.

The bank's supplementary capital is shown under item 17 on the liabilities side of the balance sheet,
pursuant to § 23 {7), Banking Act.
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10. Other Liabilities

This item contains accrued liabilities amounting to ATS 7,836.7 million.

11. Own Funds

The bank’s subscribed share capital as of year-end 1993 carried in the balance sheet as of J1st
December 1993 for the amoumt of ATS 5,702,145,600 changed as follows during the business year:
By virtue of the authorization granted to it in accordance with the bye-laws, the managing board adopted
a resolution on 30th August 1934, which was approved by the supervisory board on 8th
September 1994, to increase the bank’s capital by ATS 70,000,000. The capital increase was
implemented through the issue of 700,000 preferred shares. The shares. each with a par valie of
ATS 100, were issued against contributions in kind from the merger of Wiener Landes-Hypothekenbank
AG with Bank Austria as of 1st January 1994,

In light of the above-mentioned increase in capital made from authorized capital in 1994, the
subscribed capital amounted to ATS 5,772,145,600 on 31st December 1994, The subscribed capital is
made up of 50,194,956 common shares, each with a par value of ATS 100, and 7,526,500 preferred
shares, each with a par value of ATS 100.

The company issued non-voting preferred shares pursuant to § 115 of the Joint Stock Companies
Act. When the profit is distributed, preferred shareholders are given priority over common shareholders,
but they rank after the holders of participation certificates in receiving a 6% dividend on the nominal value
of their holdings. By virtue of its bye-laws the bank reserves the right to issue new shares with preferred
or equal status pursuant to § 117 (2) of the Joint Stock Companies Act.

Authorized Capital:

As already mentioned in the notes to the share capital, in 1984 a total of 700,000 preferred shares,
each with a par value of ATS 100 (i.e., total nominal amount of ATS 70,000,000), were subscribed from
the bank’s authorized capital. After taking this subscription into account, the managing board is
authorized pursuant to § 6 (4) of the bye-laws to increase the share capital by a further nominal amount
of ATS 1,976,118,400 by 5th October 1996 against contributions in cash or contributions in kind, and to
determine the issue price and the terms and conditions of issue with the approval of the supervisory
board.

Contingent Capital:

If holders of participation certificates, supplementary capital bonds, convertible bonds, option rights
or warrants which have already been issued by the bank, or will be issued by the bank in the future,
choose to exercise their conversion or subscription rights, share capital will be increased by an additional
nominal ATS 2 582,755,000.

In 1994 a nominal ATS 150 million of the bank’s contingent capital was utilized for a 3,75%, DM 250
million equity warrant bond 1994/2001 issued by Bank Austria, and the ensuing 1,500,000 warrants.

Each warrant holder may exercise the right to acquire one common share of Bank Austria, each with a par
value of ATS 100, for ATS 1,020 per share until 7th June 1999,

Participation Capital:

The bank issued rights within the meaning of § 240 item 7 of the Commercial Code, representing
participation capital in the amount of ATS 702,112,400 in nominal terms, which is shown in the balance
sheet as of 31st December 1984 (31st Dec. 1993/ 1st Jan. 1994: ATS 702,112,400). The participation
certificates of the bank represent participation capital pursuant to §12 (6) of the old Banking
Act (KWG) and § 23 (4) pursuant to the Austrian Banking Act (BWG). When the profit is distributed,
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the centificates are entitled to a preferred dividend of 6% on their par value before the preferential
dividend is paid to holders of preferred shares. The dividend may only be paid out of distributable profits.
i the preferred dividend for a business year cannot be distributed in whole or in part, the arraars ghall ba
paid in accordance with the profit of subsequent years that is avaiiable for distribution. If a recolution is
adopted for the distribution of an extra dividend to holders of preferrad shares, the dividend to holders of
participation certificates shail be increased by the same percentage.

In the event the company is liquidated, payment of the liquidation proceeds shall be made to the
holders of participation certificates up to the nominal amount of the participation capital before the
payment of such proceeds to the sharenolders. Liquidation proceeds in excess of the nominal amount of
the participation capital shall be paid to the shareholders to the extent that they receive the nominal
amount of the shares. Any residual amount from the liquidation proceeds shall be distributed to
shareholders and holders of participation certificates on an equal parity basis.

12. Revalualion Reserve and Untaxed Reserves
The following tabte shows developments affecting the revaluation reserve and untaxed reserves
in 1994.

Developments in the Revaluation Reserve
and other untaxed Reserves

1st Jan. 94 Reversals Additions 31st Dec. 94
in ATS
1. Revaluation regarve
Reserve pursuant 1o § 12, Income Tax Law:
B EOURIES . . vt e ettt et e e e s 302,769,574.16 42,571,090.65 —  260,218,463.51
Eauity intaraste ... 871,547,202.22 11,000,000.00 —  BBD547,202.22
Real BSlale ... .. e 1,375,700.00 —_ -_— 1,375,700.00
Office furniture and equipment .. ... i 1,048,656.00 — — 1,048,656.00
1,176,761,132.38 53,571,080.65 — 1,123.190,041.73
Revaluation reserve pursuant to § 8 and § 122, Income Tax Law:
Office furniture and equipment .._........... ... .. ... ........ 876520500 170,164.00 — §,595,041.00
Realestate ....covviniiiininenin, P 827220913 - — §,£72,209.13
17,037 41413 170,164.00 —_ 16,867,250.13
Total Revaluation reserve .. ...................ooiiiiiiin... 1,193,798 546.51 53,741,254 .65 — 1,140,057,291.86
2. Other untaxed reserves
Reserve pursuant to § 9, income Tax Law:
100 8,114,187.68 8,114,187.88 —_ 0.00
L 2 11,500,000.00 - — 11,500,000.00
1982, O 14,800,000.00 — — 14,500,000.00
L 10,720,000.00 — — 10,720,000.00
Reserve pursuant to § 10, Income Tax Law:
1990....... . .. e 26,611,542.31 26,611,542 .31 — 0.00
L T e 1,166,797.00 227,911.00 — 938,866.00
1802, A 78,020.00 — — 78,028.00
1903 522,2716.00 —_— _ 522.276.00
Reserve pursuant to § 1 (3), Mergers and Acquisitions Law ..,.  118,692,260.96 - —  118,692,260.96
Liability reserve pursuant to § 23 (6), Banking Act ............. 8,135,152,486.45 —  478,152513.55 8,613,305,000.00
Total other untaxed reserves . ... i i 8,327,057 579.60 34,053,641.19 47815251355 8,770,256,451.96
Grand Total (1-H2) ..o e i s 9,520,856,126.11 88,694,895.84 478,152,513.55 9,910,313 743.82
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13. Provigions

The deficit determined pursuant to Art. X (3) of the Accounting Law in the pension provision
calculated pursuant to § 211 (2) of the Commercial Code will be amortized in equal installments over a
twenty-year period. The deficit resulted from the fact that until 1992 the figuree used for tax purposes
were largely included in the financial statements which were prepared pursuant to commercial law. The
shortfall as of 31st December 1994 amounted to ATS 3,922 million. Deficite for severance and
anniversary bonus provisions amounted to ATS 123 million on 31st December 1994 (1st Jan. 1994:
ATS 184 million). The bank reduced the burden of pension payments in 1994 by further harmonizing
pension rights. Employees receiving global overtime allowances eligible for pension benefits were given
access to part of these allowances, in order to enable them to make private retirement contributions,
thereby reducing the bank’s pension obligations.

Other provisions totaled ATS 2,230 million (1993: ATS 2,166 million). Provigions made for
impending losses on equity interests, securities, contingent liabilities and the risks of legal action
amounted to ATS 1,067 million.

The remaining other provisions {ATS 1,163 million) were for indeterminate liabilities, and in particuiar
include provisions for expenditures on personnel and materials, deferred taxes and charges likely to result
from the fiscal audit, as well as for anniversary bonuges and unconsumed vacation days.

The item also includes provisions of ATS 70 million that were made for dividends to be distributed to
holders of participation certificates. This represents a dividend payment of 10% on the nominal value
entitled to dividends.

IV. Data on the Profit and Loss Account

The item "Interest and similar earnings from holdings in companies” includes aarnings from equity
interests through profit pooling arrangements (ATS 440 million) and through other group companies
(ATS 259 million).

The item balance of earnings from the valuation and disposal of holdings includes ATS 178 million in
profit from group companies.

Significant extraordinary expenditures in 1994 include the amortization of the deficit in the pension
provision and the provisions for severance payments and anniversary bonuses.

Other operating expenditures and earnings (non-banking business) contain both personnel
expenditures and reimbursements for seconding staff to subsidiaries which amounted to ATS 186 million.

The changes in untaxed reserves had no impact on the position *“Taxes on income and earnings’’.

The table below contains a breakdown of earnings by geographic markets, which differ significantly
due to the bank's organizational structure.

Earnings at Foreign Branches and the Riezlern Branch*)

London New York Hong Kong Riezlern Moscow Total
{in ATS thousand)

Interest income .......... 1,622,220 1,397,589 598,891 66,379 10,006 3,595,085
Income from securities and

equity interests ... ... .. —_ 2,295 —_ — — 2,295
Commission income ... ... 50,417 8,288 12,021 17,496 36,130 125,052
Earnings /expenses from

financial transactions ... 104,263 57,968 8,260 —_ {(276) 170,215
Other operating income. . . 1,099 18,864 4 — 674 20,641

*) the Riezlern Branch is located in the Kleines Walsertal customs exempt territory
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V. Additional Data

1. Total Expenditures from the Use of Non-capitalized Fixed Assels

The utilization of fixed assets not shown in the balance sheet (in connection with rent and leasing
obligations } will result in expenditures of which ATS 741.7 million (1st Jan. 1894: ATS 761 miillion} will
be due for payment in the following year. A total of ATS 3,767.8 million {1st Jan. 1094:
ATS 3,809 million} will be due for payment over the next five years.

2. Foreign Business as a Percentage of Total Assels

Assets denominated in foreign currencies accounted for 29.5% or ATS 188,620,810,661.96 (1993
30.1% or ATS 180,283,416,304.22) of the bank’s total assets, while liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies accounted for 32.5% or ATS 207,566,698,830.33 (1993: 29.2% or ATS 175,171,062,734.66)
of total assets.

3. Unsettled Forward Transactions

Bank Austria deale in a number of derivative financial products reigted to currencies and interest
ratec. Theee ingtrumente are used both for hedging and trading purposes, and refiect tha bank’s desire
to offer its customers a broad range of modern financial ingtruments in the treasury area.

a} Currency Instruments;

Bank Austria has won global recognition as market maker in connection with forward foreign
exchange transactions in major currencies and the schilling. The main exchanges are London, Frankfurt,
Zurich and New York, and Hong Kong and Singapore, the main markets in £ast Asia.

The total volume of unsettled forward foreign exchange transactions on 31st December 1994
amounted to ATS 219.8 billion (1st Jan. 1994: ATS 233.8 billion) for long contracts and ATS 218.8 billion
{1st Jan. 1994: ATS 233 billion) for short contracts.

In respect of currency and interest rate swaps, volume totaled ATS 15 billion for buying contracts
and ATS 16.1 biliion for selling contracts.

Activities related to currency options, which are becoming increasingly important for international
foreign currency trading, focus almost entirely on the bank’s commercial customers. The bank’s main
business partners are large banks in London, Frankfurt, and the United States. For certain currencies
{principally, of course, for the Austrian schilling) Bank Austria acts as market maker.

b) Interest-Rate instruments

With regard to derivative interest-rate products, Bank Austria ig active on both the OTC market and
the standardized futures market. Futures transactions are effected on the highly liquid exchanges in
Chicago (CBT, CME), London (LIFFE} and Paris (MATIF).

The bank also acts as market maker in the OTC sector for FRA's (forward rate agreements) for US$,
DEM, SFR, and ATS transactions. Bank Austria also uses new, closely-related products such as IRG's
(interest rate guarantees), primarily for hedging and arbitrage strategies.

Interest rate and cross-currency swaps are assuming greater relevance for long-term interest-rate
transactions. Together with caps, floors and similar products, these instruments are used to solve
complex financial structures in conjunction with financial engineering.
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YhL Data on Personnel and Executive Bodies

In 1994 the bank employed an average of 8,621 white collar employees {1993: 8,835) and 512 blue
collar employees (1993: 545). Loans granted to members of the managing board totaled
ATS 2,627,681.98 on 31st December 1994 (1st Jan. 1994; ATS 3,098,222.92). Loans granted to
members of the supervisory board amounted to ATS 13,427,294.90 (1st Jan. 1994: ATS 7.594.659.82).
No guarantees were issued for the members of the managing board or supervisory board, nor were any
salary advances made to them. Loans to the supervisory board include these made to members of the
employees’ council. The maturities of the loans range from five to ten years. The interest rate payable on
these loans is based on the rate charged employees of Bank Austria AG.

Expenditures for severance payments and pensions include allocations to and retirements from the
provision for pensions and the provision for severance payments. Expenditures for members of the
managing board, senior executives and their survivors totaled ATS 58,152,802.77 in 1994, whils
expenditures for other empioyees and their survivors amounted to ATS 886,149,210.01. The term *‘senior
executive' comprises executive directors, heads of divisions, and the heads of the regional head offices
and their deputies.

In 1894 total remuneration of members of the managing board amounted to ATS 31,100,776.72;
remuneration for activities on behalf of group companies came to ATS 984,250,

Payments to former members of the managing board or their survivors totaled ATS 30,647,069.40.
Total remuneration to members of the supervisory board in the 1994 business year totaled
ATS 2,364,500. Payments for activitics on behalf of group companies amounted to ATS 265,340.
Amounts mentioned above include profit sharing payments and bonus payments, reimbursements for
out-of-pocket expenses and commissions.

Vil. Data on Mortgage Banking

Following the merger between Wiener Landes-Hypothekenbank AG and Bank Austria as of
1st January 1994, an independent organizational unit has pursued all mortgage banking activities —
particularly fund raising activities via issues (mortgage bonds and municipal bonds), long-term
financings (mainly residential construction and public-sector financing), managing and administering
substitute cover assets and liquidity.

1. Own Mortgage Banking lssues

At year-end 1994 mortgage bonds amounted to ATS 5,804,256,000, or some ATS 280,254,000 less
than at year-end 1993 (31st December 1993: ATS 6,084,510,000). The circulation of municipal bonds
climbed from ATS 18,803,922,000 (as of 31st December 1993) by ATS 3,173,475,000 to
ATS 21,977,397,000 as of 31st December 1994. Please refer to the following table ''Qutstanding Series™
for a listing of individual series as of 31st December 1994.

Outstanding Series (in ATS thousand)

Series Year of lasue Matures Amount

a) Municipal bonds

16 . e 1970 01.01.1995 117,574
17 1971 01.01.1996 128,484
18 . 1972 01.01.1997 77,050
24 1976 01.03.1996 88,779
25 1976 01.07.1996 101,477
26 1977 01.05.1997 166,917
- 1978 01.10.1988 14,260
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Year of Issue Matures Amount
1978 01.10.1998 102,899
1979 01.04.19329 95,565
1979 01.04.1999 85,663
1979 01.07.1999 317,397
1980 01.11.1999 213,073
1982 01.10.1997 10,000
1983 31.05.1996 1,473,692
1985 01.03.1295 269,503
1985 01.10.2000 56,887
19686 01.01.2001 169,283
1286 01.11.1996 151,847
1967 01.08.1398 331,586
1887 01.08.1998 200,626
1987 01.03.2000 118,654
1987 01.06.1998 143,940
1987 01.06.1999 137,450
1987 01.10.1998 232,739
1987 01.10.2002 340,120
1988 01.01.1999 397,610
1988 01.01.2003 457,403
1988 01.07.1995 168,260
1988 01.09.1995 29,310
1988 01.10.1999 166,354
1989 01.01.1997 134,720
19869 01.04.1989 239,422
1989 01.06.1999 815,037
1989 01.09.1999 758,000
1990 01.01.1997 152,348
1990 15.01.1928 359,625
1990 01.02.2001 10,000
1990 01.03.1997 1,330,800
1990 20.04.2000 57,400
1990 01.05.1995 470,200
1990 15.07.1997 487,300
1991 01.01.1998 1,148,700
1991 01.01.2000 94,200
1992 01.01.19998 134,010
1992 15.01.1999 765,809
1992 01.05.2002 595,801
1992 01.10.1997 380,700
1902 11.11.1987 295,000
1992 15.12.2002 346,500
1993 01.01.1998 470,000
1993 01.03.2000 440,000
1993 01.04.2003 1,220,000
1903 01.06.1998 540,000
1993 01.11.2003 357,000
1994 01.01.2004 1,100,000
1994 15.05.2006 1,599,734
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Series an of lssue Matures Amount

1 o 1004 01.10.2000 1,137,079
F o i 1977 01.05.1997 18,120
S 1980 01.11.1905 __ﬂ
Total. .. e e 21,977,397
b) Mortgage bonds

£ - 2 1970 01.01.1995 44,808
1 2 1971 01.01.1996 56,625
20 . e e 1972 01.01.1997 80,896
. N 1973 01.01.1998 84,036
NN 1974 01.10.1998 41,575
P TN 1874 01.12.1998 102,125
- 1975 01.02.2000 143,065
P2 S 1976 01.03.2001 82,510
P2 T 1976 01.07.2001 99,128
2 1977 01.05.2002 312,815
= 1978 01.10.2003 524,320
P21 1978 01.10.2003 32,131
B0 e 1979 01.04.2004 70,662
I 1879 01.04.2004 85,786
7= P 1980 01.11.2004 23,081

. 1980 01.09.1995 18,678
30 . i e 1980 01.09.1995 1,177
T 1982 01.10.1997 13,748
5 1983 01.02.1996 288,089
B i e e e 1983 01.02.1998 76,282
L 1984 01.02.1999 23,603
] 2P 1985 01.01.1995 163,615
] 1985 01.01.2000 40,716
L 1986 01.07.1997 562,056
L= 1987 01.12.1998 125,697
B 1988 01.02.2000 114,241

B0 .. 1988 01.09.2000 692,331

= 1989 01.09.2000 618,765
2 1991 01.04.2000 255,600
B3 .. e 1991 01.08.1099 120,900
B . e 1992 01.08.2002 243,305
BE e 1093 01.02.1908 370,000
BB . e e 1994 15.01.2000 160,000
BT o 1094 01.05.2000 41,000
BB . .. e 1994 01.09.2000 90,000
Total 5,804,266

2. Cover for Mortgage Bonds and Municipal Bonds

Including series drawn for redemption, the volume of outstanding mortgage bonds amounted to
ATS 21,978,123,000, and that of municipal bonds to ATS 5,804,908,000. Thus the total volume of these
issues amounted to ATS 27,783,031,000.
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Assets held as cover for outstanding mortgage bonds and municipal bonds are classified in the
following table:

Mortgage loans serving as cover for mortgage bonds......................... 6,007,024,801.28
Loans serving as cover for municipal bonds ...........oiviiii i 20,845,628,110.40
Substitute cover in the form of securities. .. ... . i i i i i i e 1,211,441,918.16

Assets whose use is subject to restriction. ... .. ... . ... ... 28,064,094 829.84
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THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP AT A GLANCE

This overview ig an integral part of the Notes to the Financial Statements. The figures have been
prepared for publication pursuant to § 238 Item 2 of the Commercial Code. Figures are not stated where
disclosure is not required under § 241 Para. 2 ltem 1 of the Commercia! Code. '

Name of Gompany, Place of Domicile

Banks, Financial Services and Allfinanz
Companies

Bank Austria Batsiligungsfonds Aktiengesellschaft,

Vienna. ... ...

Bank Austria Handelsbank Aktiengeselischaft, Vienra

Bank Austria Kapitalanlagegesellschaft mb.H, Vienna

Bank Austria Wohnbaubank Aktiengesellschaft,

EB und HYPO-Bank Burgenland AG, Eisenstadt . ...,
- Factor-Bank Aktiangesellschalt, Vienna . ... ...
Investkredit Holding Gesellschaft m.bH., Vienna ... ..
$C1-GZB Beteilgungsgeselischalt, mb.H., Vienna ...
OKB-Holdinggesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna ............
VISA-SERVICE Kreditkarten Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna

Bank Austriad. d., Ljubljana.......................
Bank Austria (CR} a. 5., Prague.................04
Bank Austria {Switzerland) Ltd., Zurich. ............
Europai Kereskedeimi Bank RT, Budapest...........

UNION Varsicherungs-AG, Vienna ... ... .
Vereinigte Pensionskasse Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna

Bank Austria Leasing GmbH, Vienna ...............
LB-Leasinggeseltschaft m.b.H,, Yienna..............
OLB Holdings {UK) Ltd., London ..................

Z Leasing Immobilien Holding Gesellschaft m.b.H.,
Vienna.................

BFAG-Holding Gasellschatt mb.H._, Vienna..........

Z-Treuhand und Vermogensverwaltungsgesellschalt
mbH., Vienna. ..o e

Produstion

AEG Austria Gesellschaft mbH., Vienna............
Austriz Email Akliengaselischaft, Vienna ............
Bank Austria Industrieholding Gesellschaft m.o.H.,
VIBnna. ..o e
J. M. Voith Aktiengesellschaft, St. Poiten............
Lenzing Aktiengeselischaft, Lenzing ................
UMITECH Aktiengessllschaft, Kirchdorf/Krems ., ... ..
Waagner-Bird Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna............
Wiener Porzellanmanufaktur Augarten Gessllschaft
mbH., Vienna. . ...
Aktiengagalischaft fiir Bauwasen, Vienna .. .._..... ..
Allgemeine Baugeselischaft-A, Porr Aktiengeselischaft,
Vienna ., .. ..o e e e
Wiener Betrisbs- und Baugeselischaft m.b.H., Vienna

Balance
Interosts Equity intoresis Equity Sheat
direct indirect >350% <50% Cumency Caphal Results Date
in 000’3
X 100.00 ATS 416,931 33141 311294
X 100.00 ATS 257,068 19,018 311294
X 100.00 ATS 123,081 127741 311204
X 89.98 ATS 143,423 (1,931) 31284
X 3880  ATS 520,300 (28.736) 31.1294
X 4035 ATS 800,003 4768 311293
X X
X X
X X
X X
X 75.00 ATS 169485 172748 30.06.94
X 9569 SIT 2,381,655 30683 311294
X 67.33 GSK 923,430 83309  31.12.94
X 2300 SFR £2,507 217 31.12.04
X 5000  HUF 2,168,028 330,111 31.12.93
X 33  ATS 161,788 52211 311293
X 30 )
C X X 100.00 ATS 1,330,231 64288 31.1294
X 100.00 ATS (68,805) 2,183 31.12.94
X 100.00 GBp 20,348 2135 311294
X 100.00 ATS 32,530 (33375) 31.1204
X X
X 100.00 ATS 47,100 23,839 1294
X X
X 2.0 ATS 103,143 5098 311293
X 100.00 ATS 2,184,697 (16,398) 31.12.93
X 2500 ATS 359,748 (2.338) 30.09.93
X 3340  ATS 1,502,582 (188,310} 31.12.93
X X 99.96 ATS 325,343 (8,732} 31.12.93
X 76.74 ATS 357,424 42792 311293
X X X
X X 9988 ATS 36,236 698 311293
X 2.6 ATS 572,183 80,757  31.12.93
X X 100.00 ATS 173,815 46,854 311293

*} The merger was made with retroactive effect fo 1st January 1994: financial statements as of 31st
Dec. 1994 were not available at time of going to press.
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Name of Company, Place of Domicile

Trade and Services

Bank Austria Handelsholding Geseltschaft m.b.H.,

N ONa . . i e e
Bank Augtria Aktiengaseiischaft & Co. Rechenzentrum
KG, VIBMMAL i ie e i
DATASERVICE Holding Ges.m.b.H., Vienna ........,
DATASERVICE Informatik Geemb H., Vienna. .. ...
DATASERVICE Qrganisations- und
Datenverarbeitungs Ges.mbH., Vienna.............
Gewigta Werbegesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna . .........
LB-Beteiligungs-Aktiengeseltschaft, Biet.............
TSG EDV-Terminal-Service Ges.m.b.H., Vienna ......
Vienna Trage Gesm.b.H. Vienna .. ................
Wiener Hafen und Lager, Ausbau und
Vermdgensverwaltungsges.m.b.H. {(WHV), Vienna ...
Wiener Messen und Congrass Gesellschaft m.b.H.,

R L= 11

Tourism and Leisure

CLS Beteiligungs-Gesellschaft m.o.H., Vienna .......
Heilbad Sauerbrunn Betriebsgesellschaft mb.H. & Ce.
KG. Sauerbrunn ...
Hoted & Touristik Holding Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna . .
LT8 Beteiligungs-Gesellschaft mb H., Vienna........
Palais am Stadipark Hotelbelriebs AG, Vienna ... ....
Ruster Hotel Bau- und Betriebsgesellschaft m.b.H.,
Vienna ..o

Heaith
GET Management Gesellschaft fir Gesundheit,
Energie und Technik GmbH, Vienna ............ ...

Real Estate and Residential Construction

ARWAG Holding-Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna .........
Bank Austria Akliengeseitschaft-
Liegenschaftsverwertung OHG, Vienna .............
Bank Austria Immobhilienfonds AG, Vienna ... ......
Bank Austria Wohnbau Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna. .. .
Campustar {Hong Kong} Ltd., Central Hong Keng ...
Ekazent Bautenverwallung Gesellschaft m.b.H.,

R L1107
Ekazent Realititengesellschatt mb.H., Vienna .......
Erete Wiener Hatel-Aktiengesellschalt, Vienna ... ....
GANYMED Immabilienvermietungsgeselischaft mbH,
R
GEWOG Gamainniitzige Wohnungsbau-Gesslischaft
MLEH, VIBINE. e e
HYPERION immobilienvermistungsgeselischaft m.b H.,
Vienna. ...
IMMOTRUST Anlagen Aktiengesellschait, Vienna. .. ..
Interring Gesellschaft mb.H., Vienna ...............
KLEA Terrain- und Bau-Gesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna ..
Kommerz-Real Lisgenschaftsverwertungsgeselischaft
mbH, Vienna. .. ...
LassallestraBe Holding Gesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna. ..
WED Holding Gesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna...........
Wiener Bautrdgergesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna .._.....
Wohnbauerrichiungs- und verwertungs-
Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna. ...
Z-Betailigungsholding Gesellschaft mb.H., Vienna ...

Equity

Balance
Interests Equity Interests Eduity Sheet
direct indirect >850% <&0% Cumency Capital Results Date
in 000's

X 8.1 ATS 572,953 £7,190 31.03.93
X 100.00 AT3 13,219 414 31.12.93
¥ X
X X
X X
X 51.00 ATS 127,306 27,322 311293
X X
¥ X
X X
¥ ¥ 100.00 ATS 48,576 15,680 311201
X X
X X
X 98.97 ATS 36,847 12,488 31.12.93
X 74,98 ATS 1,230,972 (14,688) 31.12.93
X X
X 80.00 ATS (47,321)  (23.453) 311293
X X -
X X 78.95 ATS 275,751 13617 31.12.93
¥ ¥ 100.00 ATS 75,117 (21,738) 31.12.93
X X
X 100.00 ATS 100,563 1,219 311293
X 100.00 ATS 97,921 66,168 31.12.93
X X 100.00 ATS 191,706 10,640 31.12.93
X 99.00 HKD 27,187 (146) 31.12.93
X X X
¥ X 100.00 ATS 423470 57,230 311203
X 4490 ATS (19,889} (5662) 31.1293
¥ ¥ 100.00 ATS 750,448 11,087 311294
X X
X X 100.00 ATS 589,738 10,352 311294
X X 33.81 ATS 538,009 17,566  31.12.93
X 100.00 ATS 157,670 19,001 31.12.03
X X 100.00 ATS 907,830 14,894 31,1293
¥ X X
X 100.00 ATS 169,487 (84) 31.1293
X X
X X 100.00 ATS 100,676 2838 311283
X X 100.00 ATS 81,274 {452) 31.12.93
X 100.00 ATS 173,398 6519 311094
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Asaets

Cash reserves:

a) wvaulteash . ... ...

b) balances with the Ausirian National Bank and the

Austrian Postal Savings Bank ......................
Checks, cash items in process of colection . .......covveis

Due from banks,

of which monies due on demand or in less than 30 days, of

which monies due

in not less than 30 days but lese than B months. . .........

Bills of exchange,

of which rediscountable with the Austrian National Bank .. ..

Securities:
a) fixed-interest securities,

of which listed on exchanges................
b} shares,

of which listed onexchanges.......................

BALANCE SHEET

as of 31st December 1953 (Austrian Schillings)

1992 (in thousands)

3,679.411,301.54

6,005,174,520.20  9,684,585830.74

84,444,485.01
110,014,793,660.05

36,008,840,026.83

35,884,038,104.37
3,474 866,067 .85

2,206,428,550.88

59,478,287,154.73

39,052,664,801.03
4,573,464,272.45

4,185,256,655.36

3,561,100

2,283,453

45,238,609

4,765,346

5,844,553

122,260
95,916,012

6,031,867

c} others 1,642,330,007.44 65694,081,434.62 1,425,039 51,428,994
of which gligible as collateral for
Austrian National Bank advances, 31,506,663,216.96
of which from own floatations .................... ... 2,147,322 843.03
6. Loan to banks, 32,690,141 ,662.63 32,123,605
of which covered by guarantees
of the Republic or the proviness .................ooeee 13,972,766,247.72
7. Loans to non-banks:
a) tothe Republic and the provinces .................. 42,000,252,149.3¢ 38,200,183
DY toOthers, .. e 269.979,169,102.27 311.979.421.25166 275615113 313,014,206

of which covered by guarantess
of the Republic o the provinces .................... 31,660,091,144.03
8. Loans cn a trust basls at third party risk.................. 1,864,847,333.31 1,573,886
9. Equity intarests and syndicate holdings:
8) NDanKS ... s 3,856,264,479.35 3,308,364
b) immonbanks ... .. 17,706,711 185141  21,562,075,864.46 16,186,483 10,404,847

of which interests held on behalf of participation funds -

10. Land and buildings:

a) for own business operations ...._.................. 336,076,969.29 462,234

D) others... oo e ___187,873,709.43 523,950,678.72 _  70.228 541,462
11, Office furniture and equipment ............c.oiiiien 1,549,107.795.59 1,511,969
12. Qutstanding contributions to share capital,

of which called up contributions ......................... _
13. Treasury shares 94,563,551.18 43,441

parvalue ... ... s 8,166,400.00

Amount carmied over ... ..., ... e e 559,162,779,442.93 520,548,092
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BALANCE SHEET, continued

Liahilities
1. Savings deposits:
a) subject to the statutory period of notice ............
D) gubject 10 a period of notice of lass than 6 months ..
G) Subject to a period of notice of not less than
BmMOnths ... e s

2. Dug 1o banks:
a) from the refinancing of export credits with
Ossterreichische Kontrollbank AG .................
b) from lombard transactions with the Austrian National

c)  from other depogits by banks,
of which monies due on demand gr in Igss than
Bdays ..o
of whictt monies dua in not less than 30 days but
lessthan 6 months o..ovii i ii i ien i
3. Due to non-banks,
of which manies due on demand or in less than 30 days, ..
of which monies due in ot less than 30 days but less
thanGmonths ... ... ..
Own acceptance and promissory notes outstanding ...,

Own floatations:

A} DONOS ... .. ...
b}  medium-termnotes ... .ol
e} GenuBecheina. .. ... ... ... ...
Q)Y OINEr.

6. Loans on a trust basis at third party risk ..._............

7. Provisions:
a}  PERSIoN PIrovision, ... . e
ofwhichtaxed ........... ... .. i,
b) forseverance payments . ....... ... .. ...
C) ORI e e

8. Share capitai:
a)  ordinary SRArES v v s e
b) preference shares .. ... ... ...l
9. Parlicipation capital pursuant to §12 {81 ...
10, Supplementary capital pursuant to §12 (73" .. ... ...
11, Liabllity reserve purstant 1o § 12103 ... ...
12. Reserves:
a) statutory reserve,
of which prermum from issue of participation capital
b} reserve pursuant to
§13, Reconstruetion Law .. .......................
G)  reserve pursuant o
§1({3}, Mergers and Acquisitions Law ........... ..
d) reserve pursuant to
§12, INCOME TAK LAW .o vvvvvrvrrenrneinness.
e} investment reserve pursuant to § 9, Income Tax Law;

1) Austrian Banking Act

as of 31st December 1993 (Austrian Schillings)

1992 (in thousands)

£3,877,806,874.69
60,632,113,805.55
68,086,665,274.11

28,415,581,086.61

51,803.00
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24,130,797 868.61
12,768,370,460.73

125,960,736,914.97

38,115,821,858.55

143.325,607.368.37

47 483,550,930.24
11,654,492,000.00

12,139,521,231.00

1,298.720,485.00

2,146,262,985.15

5,019,495,600.00

£82,650,000.00

9,404,647 ,821.25

179,814,758 .67
118,692,260.96

1,164,969,47¢.88

114,187.88

162,868,907 ,244.31

182.441.529.226 92

110,915,072,398.04

513,762,465.08

§9,136,042,230.24

1,864.847,333.31

15,584,504,701.15

£,702,145,600.00

702,112,400.00
3.015,470,000.00
7,938,897,783.90

550,685,292,082.93

18,630,477
14,645,218

125,554,240

41,869,300

128.692.581

42,062,733
10,564,070

11,609,423

1,191,893

1,916,223

4,665,207

682,650

7,404,868

178,815
118,692

1,176,235

159,138,935

171,561,881

110,468,717

250,769

92,626,823
1,573,886

14,317,539

5,347 857

828,401
3,015,010
7,136,898

526,266,716




BALANCE SHEET, continued

Assely
Amount brought forward ... ....... ...l

14, Other 8s8ets . ...ovn i ii it iin e sis et ira s
15. Accrueditems ... ... ... i
16. Net loss:
a) loss/profit brought forward from the previous year..
b) loseiprofitforthawear ..........................

17. Foreign assets,

of which covered by guarantees

of the Republic or the provinces ... ....................
18. Assets subject to dispaosition restrictions:

a)  cover fund for funded bank bonds .........

b) cover fund pursuant to § 230a, Austrian Civil Code
19. Claims, including rights of recourse against:

a) banks in which the bank has a holding, of which

GiraCradit Bank AG der Sparkassen ..............

b) non-banks in which the bank has a holding ........

¢}  persons referred to in § 17, Austrian Banking Act...
20. Investments pursuant to § 15, Auetrian Banking Act .....
21. Subordinaled claims ............ciiiviriiiiniiain
22. Contingent claims against:

a) banks....... ...

b} nonbanks............ooiiiiiiii
23. Assets sold under repurchase agreements,

of which to the Austrian National Bank .................

of which o non-banks .........oovciiviiniiiieiiian
24. Assets bought under repurchase agreements,

of which from

a8 of 31at Decomber 1093 (Austrian Sehillings)

1992 (in thousands)

559,182,779,442 93

13,262,626,504.00
326,108,798.18

572,791,516,825.87
162,941,639,365.23

30,360,472,429.80

22,397,913,000.00

451,168,005.50  22,840,081,095.50

30951,072,644.53

13,400,923,786.04

26,677,340,763.86
19,211,148,096.29  76,239,861,704.68
23,662,115,335.58

4,259,298,100.01

5,210,691,556.33

45,450,896,360.27  53,661,667,916.60
7,415,594,161.71
§.,095,000.000.00

762,731,639.70

6,844,702.12
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528,548,092

16,089,241
263,057

544,900,300
148,726,470

24,947,644
451,748 25,390,302
392,545,860

29,059,906
20,090,363 81,705,149
21,612,548

4,972 388

5,318,327
43,484,554 53,802,881

11,416,180

10,370



BALANCE SHEET, continued

Liabifities

3.
14.
15.

19.

20
21.

zz.

23
24.

1)

f)  investment allowance pursuant to § 10,
Income Tax Law:

g) valuation reserve due to special depreciation........

D) VOIUNIATY TBSEIYE + ot v ersaaiarsvisiisnnionsierte
i} otherreserves.........ciivviiiiiii e

Other liabilities ....ooviv i

Deferred items ... ... ...

Net profit

a) profit/loss brought forward from the previous year. ..

b) profit for the year before dividends tor participation
capital ...
less amount reguired for dividends for participation
eapital ..

. Foreign liabities. . .. ... o i
. Contingent liabilities from guarantees ...................
. Dther contingent fiabilities from:

a)  own drafts outsianding,

of whichERP bills ......coovvviiiiiiiiien s
b)Y own endorsement Biabilitios ............. ..ol
C)  OIRBr . o i

Liabilities towards:

@) banks in which the bank has a holding, of which
GiroCredit Bank AG der Sparkassen ...............

b) non-banks in which the bank has aholding .........

Trust monay savinge deposite . ... .
Liable capital pursuant 0 § 12"........ocooeviiiennn,
of which participation capital ......................
of which supplementary capital . ...................
Basis for calgulating liable capital requirements pursuant 1o
§12 (23
a)  assets subject to liable capitat requirements pursuant
12 (2)N0. 1 e
b) contingent liabilities subject to liable capital
requirements pursuant to § 12{2)no. 2............
Subordinated liabilities ...
Amount pursuant to Art. X (3), Accounting Law .........

Austrian Banking Act

1092 (in thousands)

as of 313t December 1993 (Austrian Schillings)

550,685,292,082.93

26,611,542
1,166,797.00
14,607,180.13
1,190,010,723.13
1,278,562,400.00 13,300,187,157.21
7,040,057 830.58
499,740,405.99

11,322,448.01
502.916.901.25

(57.000.000.00) 445.916.901.25 457,239,349 26

572,791,516,826.97

156,215,162,656.90
30,435,238,617.40
11,301,844,499.00
2,006,344,499.00
2.779.495,950.20
494,664.903.00  14,576,025,352.20
33,158,071,773.97
1,804 504 695,02
_3.035,837,162.40  36,186,908,936.37
402,345,159.53
30,417,685,416.32

£68,470,801.09
2,956,243 121.71

572,766,040,951.79
46,495,375,690.60

12,372,862,767.00
4,152,765,117.00
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526,266,716

49,797
32,044
1,167
14,657
1,088,011

1841484 11,856,770

6,086,111
352,784

20,135

507,874 528,009

544,800,390

150,716,267
40,122,531

10,479,114

3,315,504

637.944 14432162

29,958,970

3,912,387  33.871.3%

331,424
27,613,682

544,850,317

42,180,024
7,336,508
4,383,474




PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

1063 (Austrian Schillings) 1092 {in thousands)

Interest and similar earnings from

a)  loans and investrments .. ... 33,445 155 308.33 35,818,028

b)  SeCURlBS ... ... 383862068198 4,630,242

G)  holdings in GOMPANIES .....coovvvivnveeriieinaiieenns 792,186,556.10  36.075,971,56641 1,329,289 41,786,559
Interest and similar expenses from

a) deposit business.......... e 22,373,545,490.44 26,805,728

11.
12.
13.
14.
e 21 Trading in goods ..o
2

V.

23.

by ownflotations ........... .. 3,619,823,717.43  25993,369,207.87 4,018,814 130,824,542

Net Interest Eamed
(tem1lessitem2) .. ... .. ... ... .. ... .............
Net commission income

a)

b)

commissions and other income ... ... ... ... .. ...
commissions and other expenses . ............c.o.vvnns

Opaerating Income

(Towml I +/—item3)......... ... ...
Personnel expenses,

of which:

2)
b)

c)
)
o)
1)

wages and salanes................ ...,
expenditure for statutory social contributions and

compilsory contributions related to wages and salanies . ..
other social expenditre ................cccieiiens
expenditure for retirernent benefits ... ... vveiiieiiiiiis
allocation to the pension provision ...._................
allocation to the provision for severance payments ... ...

Expenditures for materials. . ... i
of which rant and leasing axpenses .........................
Depreciation and vaiue adjustments on fixed assets...........
Taxes and lavies (if not shown under items 4 and 23) ........

. Oparating Expenditure

(Totaloftems 410 7) ...

. Partial Operating Profit

{Total {l loss Total ) ................
Ordinary eamings from non-banking business ................
Ordinary expenses from non-banking business. ...............

. Eamings/expenses from the valuation and disposal of loans and

securities, as well ag from trading transactione ._..._..... ...
Eamings/expenses from the valuation and disposal of holdings
Other extraordinary eXPenSEs. ... vvvit it iviveriiinnrenerss
Other extraordinary eamings —.............. v iiiviiirninnas
Balance of other eamings/expenses (items 81013)..........

Expenses from agsumption of losses ........................

Annual Surplus /Deficit

{befors taxes and changes in reserves)

(Total IV +i~Ttem 14 loas 22) .. ... ...................
Taxes on income, earnings and property .............ovvhens

12,082,602,360.54

3,044,417,077.67
(344,167571.18)  2,700,249,506.49

14,782.851.867.03
6,341,371,897.97

4,592,009,369 42

701,030,166.01
146,590,356.75
§17,293,523.79
299,389 6805.00
85.058,977 .00
3,558,506,621.57
621,964,168 62
445,238,843.60
231,585,218.89

{10,576.702.782.03)

4,206,148,085.00

233,766,076.40
(192,235,451.99)

(2,131,432,032.80)
(336,078,081.53)
(915,660,246.76)
62,467.767.20
(2.879.179,971.20)

1.326.969,113.80
(8,629,169.69)
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2,018,906

{428.313)

7,478,202

2,796,279

829.194
229,994

172,803
{109,010)

(4,225,915)
3,074,672

(524,876)
809,324

10,062,017

2,490,593

13.452.610

£11,335,759)

2,116,851

(803,002)

1,313,849
(16,668}



PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT, continued

1993 (Austrian Schillings}

1992 {in thousands)

V. Annuat Surplus /Deficit
{before changes in resarves)
Changes in reserves. .. .. P
a) liability reserve pursuant (e §12 (10), Austrian Banking

24

b} raserve pursuant ta § 13, Recongtruction Law
G)  SlALUIONY TESEIVE .. .ttt ii s e i ininnenaa s
d}  tax reserves:
purguant to § 11, Income Tax Law
pursuant 1o § 9, Income Tax Law
pursuant to § 10, Income Tax Law
purguant 10 § 12, Income Tax Law .....................

g) valualion reserve due 1o special depreciation
fy  voluntary reserve. ... ...
g)  other reserves

Allocations (—)

800,000,000.00

92,000,000.00

Balanca of changas in reserves

882,000,000.00

23,
Yil,
26.
27.

Dividends for holders of participation Gertificates .. vvvvvvvauiry
Profit/Loss forthe Year. ...........ocoviviiiiiiiiiniinens
PrefitHloss brought forward from previous year................
Profite paid on the basie of a profit pooling arrangement or a

profit fransier aQreBmMEN .. .o v i e e i e
YIENet Profit/iNet LoSS .. ........c oo ens

1,318,339,944 11
Reversats (1) A(—)R(T)
— — 685,500
— + 5982
— + 374
55,951,357.34 + 154,826
21,275,225.00 + 38,287
50,374.80 + 9,337
— - 215,982
76,576,957 14 (815,423,042 86)
{57,000,000.00)

445,916,901.25
11,322,448.01

Vienna, 29th March 1994
The Managing Board

Rent ALFons Halben

WALTER HEINRICH Joser Rarp

GERHARD RANDA
RomuaLp Riepu

KARL SAMSTAG

1,297,180

(699,306)

(90,000
507,674
20,135

528,009

Based on an audit performed in accordance with our professional duties, the accounting records and the financial
statements of the bank are in compliance with legal regulations. The financial statements pursuant to generally
accepted accounting principles give a reasonable presentation of the bank's assets and liabilities, its financial
position and results. The management report is in accordance with the financial statements.

Vienna, 3rd May 1994

Savings Bank Auditing Association

Auditing Board

Peter BucHBINDER

BDO Osterreichische Wirtschaftsberatung GmbH
Wirtschaftspriifungs-und
Steuerberatungsgesecilschaft

WorLreang GASSNER
WolLraanag RiEDL
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Supervisory Board was regularly informed by the Managing Board of the progress and financial
position of Bank Austria Aktiengesellschaft and, in its meetings, performed all its tasks as defined by the
law and the bye-laws.

The accounts, the financial statements for 1993, the notes to the financial statements and the
management report were examined by the SOT Siid-Ost Treuhand AG Wirtschaftspriifungs- und
Steuerberatungsgeselischaft, the BDO  Osterreichische  Wirtschaftsberatungs ~ GmbH
Wirtschaftsprufungs- und Steuerberatungsgeselischaft and the Auditing Board of the Savings Bank
Auditing Association. As they were found to be in full compliance with legal requirements and the
examination showed no cause for objections, the auditor’s certificate was presented without qualification.
The Supervisory Board has endorged tha findings of this audit, agreed with the annual report and the use
of earnings presented by the Managing Board, and approved the 1993 financial statements, which are
thereby adopted pursuant to § 125 (2) of the Corporation Law.

Vienna, 4th May 1994

The Supervigory Board:

Siegfried Sellitsch
Chairman
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. General Information

The 1993 financial statements ware prepared pursuant to the provisions of the Commercial Code
and the Banking Act as contained in the 1990 Accounting Law (Federal Gazette 475, dated 28th June
1990).

Il. Information Regarding Aceounting and Valuation Methods

In evaluating loans, due diligence was used in evaluating the known and expected economic
development of the borrower as well as the enforceability of claims with due congideration being given to
collateral. This task was facilitated by preselection via a risk classification system. The valuation of Joans
to borrowers in countries with serious economic problems {high-risk countries) was made in accordance
with the relevant opinions submitted by the chamber of public accountants’ expert committee for
commercial law and auditing.

Securities are carried at the bank pursuant to the cost averaging method. At year-end 1903, the
bank held investment securities amounting to ATS 24,827 million {(31st Dec. 1992: ATS 21,099 million),
valued at cost, provided that no permanent impairment of value has occurred. All remaining securities, or
ATS 40,867 million (31st Dec. 1992: ATS 30,330 million), were again valued using the lower of cost or
market price method.

Equity interests were valued at their purchase price provided that there was no permanent
impairment resulting from continuing losses.

The bank’s real estate is depreciated at a rate between 2% and 4%, according to use. For computer
equipment, the average useful life is estimated at four years for depreciation purposes. Other office
furniture and equipment are depreciated over periods from five to ten years.

Analogous 1o goodwill, the excess of fair values of assets and liabilities acguired over book values
and goodwill, if any, resulting from the purchase of various savings banks are depreciated over a fifteen-
year period using straight-line depreciation.

Accrued interest is shown under “Other assets’”. The same method was followed on the liabilities
side of the balance sheet. The item "'Other assets’ includes the excess of former equity interesis over
book values from mergers which are depreciated over a five-year period.

Discounts on liabilities were capitalized pursuant to § 198 (7) of the Commercial Code, and
depreciated over the period to maturity. The corresponding method was followed on claims. The net-
value approach, on the other hand, was taken with regard to zero-coupon bonds.

Currencios were generally converted at the prevailing mean rate of exchange on 30th December
1093. Swape and forward transactiong for currencies were valued principally according to the accrual
method. Cash in foreign currencies was converted at the applicable exchange rates.

Holdings in financial futures, options on these futures, other options and forward rate agreements
were appraised at market value. While this appraisal procedure differs from the procedure used last year,
it did not have any significant impact on determining the results. Insofar as hedging transactions exist,
results have been reflected in interest income or expense.

In making provisions for both severance payments and anniversary bonus payments the calculation
method used was in line with the expert opinion of the chamber of public accountants. An interest rate of
6% was selocted for calculation purposes. In determining the pansion provision, the accrued benefit
valuation method (using a 4% discount rate pursuant to the Ettl-Pagler table) was uniformly applied to
the disparate pension claims existing under the internal service reguiations of Zentralsparkasse und
Kommerzialbank AG and Osterreichische Landerbank AG. Pursuant to the Accounting Law, the gap in
the pension provision resulting partly from past service costs will be amortized over a twenty-year period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
lll. Information Regarding Individual Balance-Sheet ltems
1. Credit balances and Due from banks
Credit balances not due on demand (i.e., bills of exchange, fixed-interest securities, loans to banks
and loans to non-banks) have the following initlal maturity periods or agreed periods of notice

{calculations are made pursuant to the requirements of the ordinance on monthly reports, Federal
Gazette 1986/622 in line with the reporting guidelines of the Austrian National Bank).

a) Periods to Maturity for Credit Balances not due on Demand
31st Dec. 1992  31st Dec. 1993

in ATS million
up tothree MONths ... o i i e 31,306 54,878
between three monthe andoneyear ...............ccviinann... 43,291 26,784
betweenone andfiveyears .......... ... i e, 62,200 57,000
more than five years ... ... ... ..ottt 235,647 246,812

b) Periods to Maturity on Amounts due from Banks but not due on Demand
31st Doe. 1002  31st Doc. 1003

in ATS million
up to three months ............. Cerereerees 17,746 41,905
between three months and one year ........vvveviviinviieennes. 43,961 41,738
between one and five years........... Cerirresaaes Ce i anerran 8,645 6,672
more than five years ...t iiiiirneiinnnsenniinnneines 885 1,210

2. Equity interests

Companiasg in which Bank Augtria holds at least a 25% interest and which are to be included in the
Notes to the Financial Statements pursuant to § 238 item 2 of the Commercial Code are shown in the
appendix to the Notes to the Financial Statements, which is an integral part thareof. Customary banking
relationships are maintained in large part with majority-owned companies. Financings using equity capital
substitutes were used in part. As of 31st December 1993, agreaments passing on profits and losses to
Bank Austria were maintained with the following companies:

Bank Austria Beteiligungsfonds AG
Euro-Handelsbank AG

Bank Austria Kapitalaniage GmbH

Garage Am Hof GmbH

Konzemn Service und Beratungs GmbH

VISA Service Kreditkarten AG

Z-Hausdienste und Kiichenbetriebs GmbH

Z-LB Kapitalaniagen Beratungs GmbH

Z-Treuhand und Vermégensverwaltungsges.m.b.H.

3. Land and buildings

The value of land on which buildings stands is ATS 96,742,911.98 (31st Dec. 1992:
ATS 101,208,805.96).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. Office furniture and equipment

This item includes intangible assete amounting to ATS 132,502,465 (31st Dec. 1992
ATS 33,089,036) which were acquired from a majority-owned company.

5. Treasury shares

The table *Trade Inventory Developments of Treasury Shares and Participation Certificates’ shows
the treasury shares held in 1993 by the bank, a dependent company or a company of which the bank is
majority shareholder.

Transactions in treasury shares and participation certificates were carried oul in the course of the
bank’s activities as market maker in order to protect the market's ability to function. Sales proceeds were
applied toward normal banking activities. The largest amount of own ordinary and preference shares held
by the bank amounted to 710,187 shares or 1.33% (with share capital reprasented by 53,478,573
certificates). The largest amount of own participation certificates held by the bank totalled 812,568
certificates or 9.83% (with participation capital represented by 8,264,007 certificates).

In 1993 there were two share capital increases (one of which was from the conversion of
participation certificates into ordinary shares).

The nominal capital share of additione and disposals is calculated on the basis of the weighted
average. Ordinary shares wers purchased at an average price of ATS 1,034.72; the average sales price
wase ATS 1,065.07. Prefarence shares were purchased at an average price of ATS 548.65: he average
sales price was ATS 662.16. Participation certificates were purchased and sold at the average price of
ATS 353.85 and ATS 367.47, respectively.

Trade Inventory Developments of Treasury Shares and Participation Certificates

Percent
Par value of Nominal
Number in ATS Capital

Ordinary sharos
Initial inventory .. ... 4,822 482,200 0.01
Additions ... ... . 387.898 38,789,800 0.80
Digpogals ... ... . 368,761 38,876,100 0.80
Ending Inventory . ... .. 3,959 395,900 0.01
Preference shares
Initial inventory .. ... 81,025 5,102,500 1.19
Additions . ... ... 2,521,743 252,174,300 36.94
DISPOSAlS . . .. 2,525,063 252,506,300 36.99
Ending Inventory .......... ... 77,705 7,770,500 1.14
Participation certificates
Initial IRVENtONY . . s 137.074 13,707,400 1.66
ADItiONS ... 1,646,130 164,613,000 20.43
DIGPOSAIS . . .ot 1,417,892 141,789,200 17.60
Ending INVENtOnY ... ... e 365,312 36,531,200 5.20

8. Liabilities
Subordinated liabilities (including supplementary capital) amount to ATS 12,372,852,767.

Liabilities not due on demand (to banks and non-banks, own acceptances and outstanding
promissory notes as well as own floatations) have the initial maturity periods or agreed periods of notice
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

as shown in the table (calculations are made pursuant to the requirements of the ordinance on monthly
reports. Federal Gazette 1986/622 in line with the reporting guidelines of the Austrian National Bank).
Periods to Maturity for Liabilities not due on Demand

31et Dee. 1002 31st Dec. 1003
in ATS millien

up to three months ....... RN 86,252 153,420
between three months and one year .....ovvvivivirivienieiineness 112,030 81,763
between one and five years . ... vvi vttt ivir i irareniies 94,597 96,986
more thanfiveyears ............c.cooviiiiinnins. 86,409 89,664

7. Provisions

The deficit determined pursuant to Art. X (3) of the Accounting Law in the pension provision
caloulated pursuant to § 211 (2) of the Commercial Code will be amortized in equal installments over a
twenty-year period. The deficit resulted from the fact that the figures used for tax purposes were largely
included in the financial statements which were prepared pursuant to commercial law. The effect of the
changes in the bank's pension scheme is discussed in section IV. (Data on the Profit and Loss Account).
The shortfall as of 31st December 1993 is noted under item 24. Deficits for severance and anniversary
bonus provisions amounted to ATS 184 million (31st Dec. 1992; ATS 245 million) on 31st December
1993.

Other provisions totaled ATS 2,146 million, some ATS 630 million higher than in the pravious year.
Provisions made for impending losses on equity interests, securities, contingent liabilities and the risks of
legal action amounted to ATS 912 million. The remaining other provisions (ATS 1,234 million) were for
indeterminate liabilities, and in particular include provisions for expenditures on personnel and materials,
deferred taxes and charges likely to result from the fiscal audit, as well as for anniversary bonuses and
unconsumed vacation days.

The item also includes provisions for ATS 57 million that were made for dividends to be distributed to
holders of participation certificates. This represents a dividend of 8% on the nominal valug entitled to
dividends.

8. Equlty Capital

The bank’s subscribed share capital as of year-end 1892 carried in the balance sheet as of
31st December 1992 for the amount of ATS 5,347 ,857,300 changed ac followe during the business year:

By virtue of the authorization granted to it in accordance with the bye-laws, the managing board,
after receiving the approval of the supervisory board, adopted a resolution on 20th April 1993 to increase
the bank’s capital by ATS 230,000,000. The capital increase was implemented through the issue of
2,300,000 new ordinary bearer shares. The shares, sach with a par value of ATS 100, were issued
against contributions in kind from the merger of Kommerz Holding Gesellschaft m.b.H. with the bank.

The managing board, after receiving the approval of the supervisory board, adopted a resolution on
2nd June 1993 to further increase the bank’s capital in accordance with the bank’s bye-laws. The capital
increase was implemented through the issue of 1,242,883 ordinary bearer shares. The shares, each with
a par value of ATS 100, were issued at a per share price of ATS 997. The issue was exclusively for
holders of participation certificates who took advantage of the opportunity to convert these certificates
into shares.

In light of the increase in share capital made from authorized capital in 1993, the subscribed capital
amounted to ATS 5,702,145,600 on 31st December 1993. The subscribed capital is made up of
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

50,194,956 ordinary shares, each with a par value of ATS 100, and 6,826 500 preference shares, each
with a par vaiue of ATS 100.

The company issued non-voting preference shares pursuant to § 115 of the Stock Corporation Law.
When the profit is distributed, preference shareholders are given priority over ordinary shareholders, but
they rank after the holders of participation certificates in receiving a 6% dividend on the nominal value of
their holdings.

By virtue of its bye-laws the bank reserves the right to issue new shares with preferred or equal
status pursuant to § 117 (2) of the Stock Corporation Law.

Authorized Gapital

As aiready mentioned in the notes to the share capital, in 1993 a total of 3,642,883 ordinary bearer
sharas, each with a par value of ATS 100, were subscribed from the bank's authorized capital for the total
nominal amount of ATS 354,288,300. After taking thig subecription into account, the managing board is
authorized pursuant to §6 (4) of the bye-taws to increass nominal share capital a further
ATS 2,046,119,400 by 5th October, 1996 at the latest against contributions in cash or contributiong in
kind, and to determine the issue price and the terms and conditions of issue with the approval of the
supervisory board.

Contingent Capital

if holders of participation certificates, supplementary capital bonds, convertible bonds, option rights
or warrants which were issued by the bank cheose to exercise their conversion or subscription rights,
share capital will be increased by an additional ATS 2,582,755,000.

Participation Capital

The bank issued rights within the meaning of § 240 ltem 7 of the Commercial Code, representing
participation capital in the amount of ATS 702,112,400 in nominal terms, which is shown in the balance
sheet as of 31st December 1993 (31st December 1992: ATS 826,400,700). The participation
certificates of the bank represent participation capital pursuant to § 12 (8) of the Austrian Banking Act
and § 23 (4) pursuant o the new Banking Act. When the profit is distributed, the certificates are entitled
to a preferred dividend of 6% on their par value before the preferential dividend is paid to holders of
preference shares. The dividend may only be paid out of distributable profits. If the preferred dividend
cannot be distributed for a business year in whele or in part, the arrears shall be paid in accordance with
the profit of subsequent years that is available for distribution. if a resolution is adopted for the
distribution of an extra dividend tc holders of preference shares, the dividend to holders of participation
certificates shall be increased by the same percentage.

In the event the company ig liquidated, payment of the liquidation proceeds shall be made to the
holders of participation certificates up to the nominal amount of the participation capital before the
payment of such proceeds to the shareholders. Liquidation proceeds in excess of the nominal amount of
the participation capital shail be paid to the shareheolders to the extent that they receive the nominal
amount of the shares. Any residual amount from the liquidation proceeds shall be distributed to
shareholders and holders of participation certificates on an equal parity basis.

IV. Data on the Profit and Loss Account

The item Interest and similar earnings from holdings in companies includes earnings from subsidiary
companies through profit pooling arrangements {ATS 283 million) and through other majority-owned
companies {(ATS 311 million}.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Changes in the bank’s pension scheme made in 1993, which take effect on 1st January 19295,
foresee the gradual increase in contributions made by active and former employees 1o their retirement
accounts to 10% by the year 2004. This resulted in 2 markedly lower allocation to the pension provision in
1993 (ATS 299.4 million compared to ATS 1,380.1 million in 1992). This reduction in the allocation was
the result of the one-off extraordinary effect of some ATS 735 million, which came in large part from
provisions for current pension payments, and from a reduction in allocations to provisions for active
employees (around ATS 535 million).

The item Balance of earnings from the valuation and disposal of holdings includes ATS 242 million in
expenditures on majority-owned companies, resulting largely from mergers between such companies and
Bank Austria.

Significant extracrdinary expenditures were incurred in 1993 through the allocation of shortfalls to
the pension provision and the provisions for severance payments and anniversary payments as well as for
the risk of legal action.

The changes in untaxed reserves had no impact on the position “Taxes on income, sarnings and
property.”

Developments in the Revaluation Reserve and other untaxed Reserves

Merger of
31t Doc. 1992  Z-Kapitalmarid* Dissolutions Additions 31et Doc. 1993
in ATS
1. Revaluationh reserve
Reserve pursuant to § 12, Income
Tax Law:
Securities ........ ... 296,363,143.66 0.00 15,375,225.00 0.00 280,987,918.66
Equity interests ................ 871,547,202.22 0.00 0.00 000  871,5947,202.22
Realestate.................... 7,275,700.00 0.00 5,900,000.00 0.00 1,375,700.00
Office fumniture and equipment . . . . 1,048,656.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,048,656.00
1,176,234,701.88 0.00 21,275,225.00 0.00 1,154,950,476.88
Revaluation reserve pursuant to
§8 and § 122, Income Tax
Law:
Oftfice furniture and equipment . . .. 11,616,438.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11.616.438.00
Realestate.................... 3,041,116.03 0.00 50,374.80 0.00 2,990,742.13
14,657,554.93 0.00 50,374.80 0.00 14,607,160.13
Total revaluation reserve ........ 1,190,802,256.81 0.00 21,325,699.80 0.00 1.169,566,657.01
2. Other untaxed reserves
Reserve pursuant to § 9,
Income Tax Law:
1980 ... ... 0.00 114,187.88 0.00 0.00 114,187.88
Reserve pursuant to § 10, Income
Tax Law:
1989 ... 49,796,7900.08 0.00 40,706,709.08 0.00 0.00
1990 ... 32,044,340.89 21,758.78 5,454,557.36 0.00 26,611,542.31
1901 .. 1,166,797.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,166,797.00
Reserve pursuant to § 1 (3),
Mergers and Acquisitions Law: 118,692,260.96 0.00 0.00 0.00 118,692,260.96
Reserve pursuant to § 12 (10),
Banking Act: ................ 7.138,897,783.90 0.00 0.00 800,000,000.00 7,938,897,78380
Total other untaxed reserves .... 7,340,597 98273 135,946.66 55,261,357.34  800,000,000.00 8,08548257205
Grand Total (1+2) ........... 8,531,490,239.54 135,046.66 76,576,957.14 800,000,000.00 9,255,049,229.06

(*) from the merger between Z-Kapitalmarkt FinanzierungsberatungsgesmbH and Bank Austria
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
V. Additional Data

1. Total expenditures from the use of non-capilalized fixed assel.

The utilization of fixed assets not shown in the balance sheet (in connection with rent and leasing
obligations) will result in expenditures of which ATS 761 miliion (31st Dec. 1992: ATS 843 miliion) will be
due for payment in the following year. A total of ATS 3,802 miliion (31st Dec. 1992; ATS 4,213 million)
will be due for payment over the next five years.

2. Foreign currency-denominated business as a percentage of lotal assels

Assets denominated in foreign currencies accounted for 31.5% or ATS 180,283,416,304.22
{1992; 28.3% or ATS 154,269,037,542.10) of the bank's total assets, while liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies accounted for 30.6% or ATS 175,171,062,734.66 (1992, 30.6% or ATS
166,856,902,505.64) of total asssts.

3. Unsettled Forward Transactions

Bank Austria actively deals in a number of derivative financial products. These instruments are used
for both hedging (against price and interest rate risks) and trading purposes.

With regard to instruments traded on the stock exchange, activities are limited exclusively to
interest-rate futures and options thereon. The main exchanges are in Chicago (CBT, CMF), London
{LIFFE) and Paris (MATIF).

With regard to instruments not traded on the stock exchange (OTC contracts), Bank Austria’s
activities focus on the following areas:

a) Currency Instruments

Bank Austria acts as market maker in connection with foreign exchange forward transactions in
major currencies and the schilling. The main exchanges are located in Europe (London, Frankfurt,
Zurich) and Fast Asia (Hong Kong, Singapore). The total volume of foreign exchange forward
transactions still open on 31st December 1993 amounted to ATS 233.8 billion (31st Dec. 1992:
ATS 182.3 billion) for buying contracts and ATS 233 billion (31st Dec. 1992: ATS 173.2 billion) for
selling contracts. In respect of currency swaps, volume totaled ATS 9.3 billion in each case.

Activities related to currency options focus almost entirely on the bank's commercial customers. The
pank's main business partners are large banks in London and Frankfurt,
b) Interest-Rate Instruments

The bank also acts as market maker in the area of forward rate agreements, with an emphasis on
US$, DEM and SFR transactions. In regional terms, the European market is of the greatest significance to
the bank. Interest has also been recently growing in warrants on forward rate agreements (“interest rate
guarantees’’ ), which Bank Austria uses primarily as a hedging instrument.

In the financial engineering area, interest rate and currency swaps, as well as caps and flioors, serve
as long-term hedges against price and interest-rate risks for customers and the bank’'s own positions.
VI. Data on Personnel and Executive Bodies

in 1993 the bank employed an average of 8,835 white-collar employees (1992: 8,993) and
545 blue-collar employees (1992: 560}

Loans granted to members of the managing board which were outstanding on 31st December 1993
totalled ATS 3,098,222.92 (1st January 1993: ATS 2,652,382). Loans granted to members of the
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)

supervisory board amounted to ATS 7,594,659.82 (1st January 1993: ATS 15,333,794). No guarantees
were issued for the members of the managing board or supervisory board, nor were any salary advances
made to them. Loans to the supervisory board include those made to members of the employees' council.
The maturities of the loans range from five to ten years. The interest rate payable on the loans granted to
the bank’s executive bodies is based on the rate charged employees of Bank Austria Aktiengesellschaft.

Expenditures for severance payments and pensions include aliocations to and retirements from the
provision for pensions and the provision for severance payments. Funds earmarked for members of the
managing board, senior executives and their survivors were reduced by ATS 8,163,976.09 in 19983, while
expenditures for employees and their survivors amounted to ATS 392,612,953.09.

The term “‘senior executives' comprises executive directors, heads of divisions, and the heads of
the regional head offices and their deputies. In 1993 total remuneration of members of the managing
board amounted to ATS 26,122,923.21; remuneration for activities on behalf of majority-owned
companies came to ATS 808,000, Payments to former members of the managing board or their survivors
totalled ATS 30,146,009.82. Total remuneration to members of the supervisory board totalled ATS
4,248,546.50, Payments for activities on behalf of associated companies, which include profit-sharing
payments and bonus payments, reimbursements for out-of-pocket expenses and commissions,
amounted to ATS 87,008.
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THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP AT A GLANCE

This overview is an integral part of the Notes o the Financial Statements. The figures have been
prepared for publication pursuant to § 238 ltem 2 of the Commercial Code. Figures are not stated where

disclosure is not required under § 241 Para. 2 ltem 1 of the Commercial Code.

Name of Gompany, Equity holdings _Equity holdings Equity
Place of Domicile direct indirect >50% <50% Cumency Gapital

Balance
Resulis  Sheet Date

(in 000°s)

Banks, Financial Services and
Allfinanz Companies

Euro-Handelsbank AG, Vienna......... X 100.00 ATS 277,000
EB und HYPO-Banik Burgenland AG,

Eisenstadt ..., X 40.34 ATS 639,485
Factor-Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna X X

Investkredit Holding Gesellschaft

mb.H, Vienna ..........oiainn % X
Mercurbank Aktiengeselischaft, Vienna X 100.00 ATS 524,636
OCI-GZB Beteiligungs-

. gesellschaft mb.H., Vienna ......... X X
OKB-Holdingsgeselischaft m.b.H.,

VIBINE. v v v v rarr i i s X X
Z-Linderbank Bank Austria Investment

Bank AG, VIENNZ .o vvv v ivicninars X 70.68 ATS 410,056
Bank Austria Bateiligungefondg AG,

VIBNMNA . ot ee i arnes X 100.00 ATS 204 429
Bank Austria Kapitalanlagegesellschaft

mbH., Vienna ... _................ X 100.00 ATS 134,415
Bank Austria Leasing Gesellschaft

mb.H., Vienna .................... X X 100.00 ATS 1,331,077
BFAG-Holding Gesellschaft m.b.H.,

Viemna . o e X X
KABAG Holding Gesellschaft m.b.H.,

VIBMNA . v e e i s X X
LB-Leasinggesellschaft mb.H., Vienna X 100.00 ATS (28,919)
Ringturm Kapitalanlagegeselischaft

mbH., Vienna ... ... ... X X
VISA-SERVICE Kreditkarten

Aktiengeselischaft, Vienna . ......... X 75.00 ATS 152916
7 Leasing Immabitien Hoiding

Gesellschaft mb.H., Vienna .. ....... X 100.00 ATS 48,941
Z-Treuhand u. Vermdgensverwaliungs-

geselischaft m.b.H., Vienna ......... X 100.00 ATS 61,231
Bank Austria — Wiener Stadtische

Pensionskassen AG, Vienna......... X 50.00 ATS 71,429
UNION Versicherungs-AG, Vienna. .. ... X 33.33 ATS 144 533
Bank Austria (CR) a.s., Prague ....... X 67.33 CZK 825,000
Bank Austria d.d., Ljiukljana ........... X 89.17 ATS 67,701
Bank Austria (Switzerland) Ltd., Zurich X 88.00 SFR 51,990
Europai Kereskedelmi Bank Rt.,

Budapest ... ... X 50.00 HUF 1,837,917
OLB Holdings (UK) Ltd., London...... X 100.00 GBP 18,213
Production
AEG Austria Gesellschaft m.b.H.,

RV 1= 210 - P X X
Austria Email Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna X 25.01 ATS 120,165
Bank Austria industrigholding

Gesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna . ........ X 100.00
J. M. Voith Aktiengesellschaft, St

POEN v viveve e in e X 25.00 ATS 359,748
Lenzing Aktiengesellschaft, Lenzing . .. . X 33.40 ATS 1,570,883
Waagner-Bird Aktiengeselischaft, Vienna X 76.74 ATS 329,056
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20,000 31.12.93
05,039 31.12.02

60,179 31.12.93

14,080 31,12.93"

34,335 31.12.92
70,744 31,1203
33,424 31.12.93"

(32,112) 31.12.92

159,377 30.06.93
(2,647} 30.09.93
14,376 30.09.93

{4,355) 31.12.92
21,983 31.12.92

60,876 31.12.93
1,185 31.12.92
1,064 311293

302,124 31.12.92
{1,428) 30.06.93

29,562 31.12.92
3)
{2,339) 30.09.93

(93,001) 31.12.92
16,845 31.12.92




Name of Company, Equity hoidings _Equity holdings Equity Balance

Place of Domicile divect indirect >50% <50% Curency Capital Rosults  Sheet Date
(in 000°s)

Wiener Porzeflanmanufaktur Augarten

Gesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna . ........ X X
Aktiengesellschaft fir Bauwesen, Vienna X X 99.88 ATS 36,466 3.865 31.12.92
Allgemeine BaugesellschoB-A. Porr

Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna .......... X 33.29 ATS 539,963 75947 31.12.92
Wiener Betriebs- und Baugeselischaft

mb.H, Vienna ............... ... X X 100.00 ATS 136,385 9073 31.1282
Trade and Services
Bank Austria Handelsholding

Gesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna......... X 85.62 ATS 427,790 (76,160} 31.03.93
Dataline Datenverarbeitungs-

Ges.m.b.H., Vienna ................ X 100.00 ATS 72,168 (14,581) 31.12.902
Dataservice Holding Ges.m.b.H., Vienna X X
Dataservice Informatik Ges.m.b.H.,

Vienna................. e X X
Dataservice Organisations- und

Datenverarbsitungs-Ges.m.b.H.,

Vienna..... ... ... ... .. X X
Dataservice Organisations- und

Datanverarbaitungs-Ges.m.b.H.

Rechenzentrum OHG, Vienna ... ... X 100.00 ATS 12,805 (183,921) 31,1292
Dataservice Systemhaus Ges.m.b.H.,

Vienna. ... ... ... X X
Gewista Werbegessllschaft m.b.H.,

Vienna. ... oL X 51.00 ATS 135,511 28,976 31.12.92
LB-Beteiligungs-Aktiengeselischaft, Bie! X X :
SZKI Intelligens Software

Szamitastechnikal Fejlesztd, Gyarto

es Ertekesitd Rt., Budapest ......... X X
TSG EDV-Terminal-Service Gesellschaft

mbH., Vienna .......oiciiiinn . X X
Vienna Trade Geg.m.b.H., Vienna .... .. X X
Wiener Hafen und Lager Ausbau- und

Vermdgensverwaltungsges. m.b.H.,

vienna................... .. ...... X X 100.00 ATS 89,0590 80,035 31.12.92
Wiener Kiihlhaus Frigoscandia

Gesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna . ... .. ... X X
Wiener Messen und Congress

Gesellschaft mbH., Vienna ... ...... X X
Tourism and Leisure
CLS Beteiligungs-Geselischaft m.b.H.,

Vienna. ............ ... ........... X
Heilbad Sauerbrunn Betriebsgesellschaft

m.b.H. & Co. KG, Sauerbrunn ... .... X X
Hotet & Touristik Holding

Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna .......... X 74.98 ATS 885511  (1,594) 31.12.92%
LTB Beteiligungs-Gesellschaft m.b.H.,

Viennma.......ooeii i, X X.

Palais am Stadtpark Hotelbetriebs AG,

Vienma. .o.ooi e i X 80.00 ATS (21,693) (27,345) 31.12.92
Ruster Hotel Bau- und

Betriebsgesellschaft m.b.H.

&Co. KG,Vienna .................. X X
WIGAST Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna .... X X 100.00 ATS 265,074 (8,534) 31.12.92
Health

GET Management Gesellschaft fiir
Gesundheit, Energie und Technik
mbH, Vienna .. .................... X X 100.60
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Name of Company, Equity holdings _Equity holdings Equity Balance

Plage of Pomicile direct inlirest > 50% <90% Cumency  Capital Resuits  Sheet Date
{in 000°s)

Real Estate and Residential

Construction
ARWAG Helding-Aktiengesellschaft,

Vienna. ... ... ... ... ..., X X
Bank Austria-Akliengeselischatft -

Liegenschaftsverwertungs OHG,

Vienna. ... .. ... ... ..., X 100.00 ATS 101,105 (27) 31.12.92
Bank Austria Wohnbkau AG, Vienna..... X X 100.00 ATS 191,706 10,640 31.12.83
Campustar (Hong Kong) Ltd., Central

HONG KON «ovevvniienniraronins T 99.99 HK$ gez 298 31.12.92
Ekazent Bautenverwaltung Gesellschaft

mbH., Vienna .................... X X X
Ekazent Realitdtengeselischaft mb.H.,

Vienna............ ... .o, X X X
Erste Wiener Hotel Aktiengesellschalft,

Vienna................. ... X 44.90 ATS 43,102 8,855 31.12.92
GANYMED

Immobilienvermietungsgeselischaft

mbhH, Vienna ..., ... X X 100.0 ATS 753,574 (7.676) 31.12.92
GEWOG Gemeinniitzige Wohnungsbau-

Gesalischaft mb.H., Vienna .. ... ... X X
HYPERION

Immobillenvermistungagesellechaft

mbH, Vienna .................... X X 100.00 ATS 584,852 (6,398) 31.12.92
IMMOTRUST Anlagen

Aktiengeseilschaft, Vienna .......... X X 33.90 ATS 520,833 4,002 311292
Interring Gesellschaft m.b.H. Vienna.... X 100.00 ATS 167,700 16,932 31.12.92
KLEA Terrain- und Bau-Ges. m.b.H.

VIBIMNB . + e vetveererniaeenrnns X X 100.00 ATS 1,050,531 2,729 31.12.92%
Kommerz-Real

Liegenschaftsverwertungs-

gesellschaft mb.H. Vienna .. ..,..... X X X
LassallestraBe Holding Gesellschaft

mbH., Vienna ...... o X 100.00 3
LB-Bauconsult Holding Ges.m.b.H.

VIBNMNA. oo st iiiiiiinannen X X
“NEUE HEIMAT" Gemeinniitzige

Wohnungs- und Siedlungsgesellschaft

GmbH, Wr. Neustadt ............... X X
WED Holding Gesellschaft m.b.H.,

ViEnNa. ...t X X
Wiener Bautrager Gee.m.b.H., Vienna .. X X 100.00 ATS 106,586 9176 311292
wohnbauerrichtungs- und- verwertungs-

Aktiengesellachaft, Vienna .......... X X 100.00 ATS 105,192 (882) 31.12.92
Z-immobillenfonds Akliengesellschart,

Mienna. ..o e X 100.00 ATS 60,887 71,304 241202
1) Abbreviated financial year from 1st Oct. to 31st Dec. 1993.

2) Newly-formed company: financial statements as of 31st Dec. 1993 are not yet avaitable.

3) Restructurings resuited in significant changes in 1993; financial statements as of 31st Dec. 1993 are
not yet available.

4) Now Bank Austria investment Bank AG.
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ANNEX B

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP

Asgots

1.

11

12,
13.

14,

Yauit cash,

Balances with central banks and postal

girooffices ...

Debt instruments issued by public

agencies and bills of exchange eligible

for refinancing at the central bank:

a) debt instrumernits issued by public
agencies and similar securities . . ...

b}  bille of exchange aligible for
refinancing at central banks .......

Claims against credit institutions
a) dueondemand............ ...
b) otherclaime ........... ... ... ...

Claims against customers ..............
Bonds and other

fixed-interest securities

a} issued by public borrowers .. ......
b) issued by other borrowers.........

of which:

ownbonds ..... ... ..l
Shares and other non fixed-interest
gecurities .. ... L
Equity interests
of which:
in credit ingtitutions .. ... ... ...
Equity interests; valued at equity...... ..
Shares in group companies
of which:
increditinstitutions ........... ... ..
Shares in group companies:
valued at equity. .. ... ... .. ... ..
Intangible non-current asseis . ..........

. Tangible fixed assets ..................

of which:

land and buildings used by the credit
institution for its own business operations
Treasury sharas and interests, interests in
a controlling company, interests in a
company holding a majority interest

of which:

DA VAIUE . o v e ee s i
Otherassets ...........0ciieeein.
Subscribed capital, which is due
butnotyetpaid ...........oovivvnnn
Accrued items ... ... ... ... ... ...

Total Assets . ..... .. .o i

BALANCE SHEET

31st December 1995 (in ATS thousand)

1994 (in ATS mn)

B.577.832
49,729,053
2,173,426 44,202,542
25,205,409
152,944 652 178,149,961
380,074,382
10,663,258
15,172,994 25,736,252
432,635
6,417,466
6,440,042
1,622,607
992,186
8,032,473
196,189
7,627,301
1,047,607
10,506,231
6,526,006
287,074
72,637
16,795,313
1,683,728

687,650,904

B-1

10,498
51,105
1,531 52,726
18,148
139,069 157.215
363,956
2,688
18,386 21,072
6.649
6,833
9,183
1,435
10,089
266
11,323
454
851,701




Liabilitles

1.

o ne

o e~

11.

12.

13.
14,
15.

Due 10 credit institutions
a) dueondemand.................,
b) subject to an agraed term or

period of notice . .................

Bue to customers
a) savings deposits .................
of which:
aa) duc ondemand.....
bb) subject to an agreed term of
period of notice . ............
b) other liabilities .. .. _._.... ... ...
" of which:
az) dueondemand.............
bb) subject to an agreed term or
" period of notice .. ...........
Securitized liabilities
a) bondsissued ....................
D) other securitized liabilities . ........

Other liabilities . .......................
Deferred items.,................c0vu. .
Provisions

a) provisions for severance payments
b} pension provisions . _._..........,

G) provisions for taxes...............
dy ether .......... ... ... ........

- Fund for general bank risks ............

Subordinated fiabilities .................
Supplernentary capital .................
Subscribed capital ....................

. Capital reserves

a) subject to legal restrictions ........
o) other ... ........... .ol

Retained income

a} statutory reserve...... Trrariesan
b) reserves pursuant to the bye-laws. .
G) Other reserves ................ o

Liability reserve pursuant to § 23 (6),
Austrian Banking Aet (BWG)...........
Equity of other shareholders ... .........
Netprofit ............................
Untaxed reserves
a) valuation reserve due to special
depreciation ... ............. ...,
B}  other untaxed reserves ...........

of which:

aa) investment reserve pursuant
to §9, 1988 Income Tax Law

bb} investment allowance
pursuant to § 10, 1988
Income Tax Law ,...........

cc} rent reserve pursuant to § 11,
1988 Income Tax Law .......

dd) reserve carried forward
pursuant to § 12, 1988
Income Tax Law ............

ee) other untaxed reserves ... ...

Total Liabilities, . ..........................

BALANCE SHEET

31st December 1895 (in ATS thousand)

1884 (in ATS mn)

26,953,469

155,172,665

172,625,004
29,286,238

143,339,066
144,807,824

66.676.731
78,231,093
69,145 481

37,154,517

1,546,835
14,050 546
222,362
2,442,731

11,000,777
4.173

152,852

1,403,924

1,958,101
124,408

25,220

97,970

1.218

B-2

181,126,334

317,533,628

106,299,998

18,306,752
746,976

18,270,474

10,389,277
2,277,819
6,474,068

11,004,950

1,356.776

9,457 446
1,460,912
662,895

2,082,909

687,650,904

28,981

154,928

170,698

125,500

B7.150

11,554

1,458
12,857
130

2,193

10,863
1

137

465

1,216
153

183,909

205,207

98,704

10,594
920

16,638

11,641
2,867
6,474

10.864

602

8,771
1,490
651

1,369

651,701



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP

BALANCE SHEET SUB-ITEMS

31st December 1995 (in ATS thousand) 1994 (in ATS mn)

Assets
1. Foreignassets. ... ... ... ... ... ... 224,741 687 200,999
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LiabHities
1.  Contingent liabilities ............... Ve
of which:

~No

a) acceptances and endorsement
liabilities arising from circulated bills
ofexchange . ... ... ... ... ... ...

b) labilities from guarantees and
Gollateral provided .., v v ivervirnaas

Craditrigks. ... ... ... ... ..........

of which:

ligbilities from repurchase agreements ...

Liabilities from transactions on a trust

basis ... o

Own funds to be taken inte account

pursuant to § 23 and § 24 of the Austrian

Banking Act (BWG) in connection with

§ 29 of the Austrian Banking Act (BWG)

Agssesement basie pursuant to § 22 of the

Austrian Banking Act (BWG)...........

Foreign liabilities ........o000iiannas vee

Deficit pursuant to Art. X (3},

Accounting Law. ......................

* This has been required since 1995.

31t December 1995 (in ATS thousand)

1994 (in ATS mn)

56,902,246

14,423,464

41,340,516

65,848,458

8,260,726

2,936,540

41,905,364

391,568,881
200,428,122

3,753,002

B8-4

36,064

14,528

40,760

2,959

41,321

372848
197,014

4,046



=No o

&

&
10.
.
v,

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Interest and similar axpengag. . ..............
NetInterest Earned .. .. ...................
Income from securities and equity Interests
a) income from shareg, other ownership
interests and non fixed-interest securities
b) ingome from equity interests ...........
¢) income from interests in associated
COMPANIBS ... i een e
d) ingome from interests in group
cCOMPAnias ... ... .. ... ..
Commission iNCome . ............ooovuevunnn
COmMmMISRION BXPEaNSBS . . ... .. ..o
Ingome/ expenses from financial transactions . .
Other operating income ....................
Operating income ... ... ... ..............
General administrative expenses
a) personnel expenses of which: ..........
23) wages and calaries ..............
bb) expenditure for statutory social
contributions and compulsory
contributiong related to wages

and salaries . ...
cc) other social expenditure ... ...

dct) expenditure for retirement benefits
ee) allocation 10 the pension provision
#)  allocation to the provision for
saverance payments . ... ... ..
D)} other administrative expenses
{expenditures for materials) ...........

Yalue adjustments on asset items 9 and 10...
Other operating expenses ..................
Operating Expenditure .. ..................
Cperating Results ..... PN

11./12. Balance of expenditure/income from the

valuation and disposal of claims, securities
held in the liquidity reserve and from
eontingant liabilities and credit rigke. . ...... ..

1995 (in ATS thousand)

1994 (in ATS mn)

40,441,876
5,488,702
(27.398,190)
13,045,660
171,147
90,004
314,967
161,990 738.128
4,400,249
(790.332)
1,054,048
1,121,708
19,666,487
(8,101,750)
(5.394.673)
(821,213}
(161,421)
(671,690)
(974,550)
(78,212)

(3,604,159) (11,795,018}
(1,671,024}

(860,636)

(14,327 ,578)

5,338,900

(4,602,993)

191
100

324

84

(8,060)
(5.428)

(893)
(199)
(585)
(855)

(100)

(3,443)

39,301

(26,882)
12,419

699

4,801
(573}
262
1411
18,819

(11,503)
(1,649)
(961)

(14,113)
4,708

(1.430)




CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT {CONTINUED)
1996 1994

(in ATS thousand)} (in ATS mn)

13./14. Balance of expenditure/income from the valuation and disposal of securities valued

as non-current fixed assets, and from equity interests and shares in group companies 2,244,603 (1.277)
V. Results from Ordinary Business Activities. . ............ ... ... ... ... ... ...... 2,980,519 1,030
LTI =t 1=V e g L Aot 11 2 8,331 3
16,  EXtaordinary @XpenSES . ..\ttt ittt ettt e e e e {300,773) (394}
17. Extraordinary results (sub-total of items 15 and 18) . ... ... ... ... .. ............. (292,442) (363}
18, Texesonincome and €armings ........covvvuenn.. e e (54,275} (49)
19. Other taxes not included underitem 18 .. ... .. . ... .. ... ... {46,615} (53)
19A. Expenses from aliocations to the fund for general banking ricke ... ... ... ........ — —
¥ Annual Surplud. oo s e e e e 2,567,187 1474
20, CRanges N reSBIVES . .. ... ittt ettt e e e, (1,986,131) (855)
Vil. Profit for the Year ... ... .. A 801,068 619
21, Profit Drought forward . ... ..ottt v s st e e e 202,429 94
22, Profit portion of ather shareholders. .. .. ... i ittt iareennnns (140,590) (62)
VI Net Profit . ... ... 662,805 651

Vienna, 9th May 1996
The Managing Board

GerHaRD Ranpa  KaARL SamsTag Hemnz Geme Hetmut JELL FriEDRICH Franz ZwICKL
{Chairman) {Deputy KADRNOSKA
Chairman)

Based on an audit performed in accordance with our professional duties, the consolidated finangial
statements are in compliance with legal regulations. The consclidated financial statements pursuant to
generally accepted accounting principles give a reasonable presentation of the group's assets and
liabilities, its financial position and results. The management report of the Bank Austria Group is in
accordance with the consolidated financial statements.

Vienna, 20th May 1996
Savings Bank Auditing Association
Auditing Board

PETER BUCHBINDER KLAUS GOSCHLER
Osterreichische Wirtschaftaberatung GmbH Européische Treuhand- u,
Wirtschaftepriifungs- und Wirtschaftsberatungsgesellschaft m. b. H.
Steuerberatungsgesellschaft Wirtschaftspriifungs- und
WolLraang GASSNER Steuerberatungsgesellschaft
Worraang RiEDL G. E. TicHy

KonraD ToOIFL



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP

I. Genera!l Information

In the previous year Bank Austria voluntarily prepared, and published in its annual report,
consolidated financial statements which largely complied with the provisions of the Austrian Banking Act
which came into effect on 1st January 1995, The consolidated balance sheet as of 315t December 1995
was prepared using the initial consolidation as of 1st January 1995 which was made pursuant to statutory
requirements. The figures from the previous year reflect the status as of 31st December 1894 and are
" thus only of limited use for comparisons with figures from the 1995 financial year. In international terms,
the financial statements of the Bank Austria Group are based on guideline seven for the harmonization of
company law and on EU regulations concerning balance sheet guidelines for banks,

Il. Gompanies to be Consolidated

Legal framework. The companies to be fully consolidated are determined pursuant to § 359,
Austrian Banking Act. All members of the credit institution group must be included in the full
consolidation. This compriges credit and financial institutions in which a controlling interest exists in
connection with § 30, Austrian Banking Act. Credit institutions are defined as all domestic credit
ingtitutions, EU credit institutions and foreign companies which take deposits from the public and grant
loang for their own account. Financial institutions include, in particular, leasing companies.

Furthermore, pursuant to § 59, Austrian Banking Act, companies providing bank-support services for
the credit institution group (e.g., data processing services for the Bank Austria Group by the
DATA-SERVICE Group) and companies providing near-bank services (e.g., Bank Austria-Finanzgervice
Ges.m.b.H., which also handles transfer transactions by phone) must be included in the full
consolidation.

All other companies (e.g., production, trade and tourism enterprises) are not included in the full
consolidation. In cases where equity interests result in significant economic influence, interesls were
valued under the equity method. The equity method is a special valuation method used for equity
interests, and differs from the method used for fully consolidated companies where all assets and
liabilities are included in the consolidated balance shest after consolidated transactions are deducted.
Insignificant companies were not valued at equity. A distinction must be made between companies to be
consolidated and group companies. Group companies are all those companies within the Bank Austria
Group which are controlled by the group parent company {Anteilsverwaltung-Zentralsparkasse ) within
the meaning of & 30, Austrian Banking Act.

Fully-consolidated companies. The group of companies fully consolidated with Bank Austria
compriges

15 credit institutions
105 financial institutions
21  companies providing bank-support services or near-bank services.

Changes from the voluntary 1994 consolidated financial statements. Significant changes with regard
to the companies to be consolidated resulted from the disposals of BA-GC Investmentbank Austria and
its subsidiaries, of Bank Austria Kapitalanlagegesellschaft and of Bank Austria Aktiengesellschatt & Co.
Rechenzentrum KG; Bank Austria (SR} a.s. in Bratislava should be mentioned as a significant addition.
Bank Austria Beteiligungsfonds AG and Z-Treuhand und VermbgensverwaltungsgesellschaftmbH were
merged to form Bank Austria Treuhand & Beteiligungsfonds AG.

In terms of the influence of subsidiary companies on the consolidated financiat statements and the
profit and loss account, the above-mentioned disposals resulted in significant changes in the items bonds
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP (Continued)

and other fixed-interest securities (minus ATS 1 bn), other tangible fixed assets (minus ATS 944 mn)
and commission income {minus ATS 353 mn).

lll. Consclidation, Presentation and Valuation Principles

Consolidation Methods. A significant objective of the consolidated financial statements is to
present the assets and liabilities, financial position and results of the congolidated companies ags if these
firms were one company (§ 250 (3) of the Commercial Code). The full consolidation thus generally
leads to the inclusion of all assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of the subsidiary companies in the
consoltdated financial statements. Transactions within the group, however, are netted.

In line with this “‘one-company” principle, the book value of equity interests of the parent company
was netted against the pro-rata equity capital of the subsidiary for capital consolidation purposes.
Pursuant tc § 254 (1) of the Commaercial Code companies may choose between the book value method
and the new valuation mathod. The Bank Austria Group uses the book value method. The time at which
the subsidiary companies waere first included in the consolidated financial statements serves as a
reference date for capital consolidation (§254 (2), Commercial Code). Consolidation differences
resulting on the assets side of the balance sheet wers set off against consolidated retained income, while
differences on the liabilities side of the balance sheet were agsigned to retained income. Goodwill, which
wags get off against reserves in the initial consolidation and thus did not affect results, will be deducted
from earnings from disposals in the final consolidation, thereby affecting results.

Claims and liabilities between consolidated subsidiaries were set off, Likewise, expenditures and
income of consolidated companies were offset against each other. The Bank Austria Group opted to take
advantage of §256 (2} of the Commercial Code with regard to the intra-group results of securities
trading. Thus if a delivery or service is provided at the going market rate and the cost of ascertaining its
value is disproportionately high, the elimination of an intra-group result can be waived,

Uniform Presentation and Valuation. The “one-company theory” behind the consolidated financial
statements calls for the uniform valuation of assets and liabilities as required by §260 (2) of the
Commeréial Code.

An exception is made for differences resulting from this procedure which have only an insignificant
impact on the group's assets and liabilities, financial position and results.

The Bank Austria Group applied the valuation provisions of the Austrian Banking Act relevant to the
parent company Bank Austria Aktiengesellschaft to all subsidiaries in the concolidated finanecial
statements. To the extent that value adjustments were nacessary, these have been made under the
transition process from individual financial statements of the subsidiary (Trade Balance Sheet 1) to the
consolidated balance sheet (Trade Balance Sheet If).

The standard presentation method used throughout the EU, Annex 2 to § 43, Austrian Banking Act,
formed the basis for the presentation method used. Subsidiary companies using either the Commercial
Code’s presentation method for their balance sheet or a foreign presentation method convert data
regarding their balance sheet and profit and loss account to the format used by the group parent
company.

§252 (2) of the Commercial Code requires that the financial statements of the subsidiary
companies included in the consolidated financial statements be prepared as of the reference date of the
consolidated financial statements. Where this is not the case, an interim financial statement must be
prepared for the consolidated financial statements. In the Bank Austria Group, statements for
VISA-SERVICE Kreditkarten AG, KSG Karten-Verrechnungs- und Servicegesellschaft m.b.H., and LB
Holding GmbH are prepared as of reference dates differing from that of the consolidated financial
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP (Continued)

statement. In the case of the first two companies mentioned, audited interim financial statements were
used.

For companies valued at equity use was made of the voluntary provision under § 264 (5) of the
Commercial Code, which does not require value adjustments for these companies. The book value
mathod pursuant to § 264 (1) item 1 of the Commercial Code was used to ascertain the value of equity
interoste. Consolidated financial statements were utilized to the extent to which they were available for
equity valuation purposes.

Since the methods of presentation and valuation used for both the individual financial statements of
Bank Austria Aktiengesellschaft, the group parent, and the consolidated financial statements of the Bank
Austria Group are virtually identical, the details regarding these methods can be found in the notes to the
financial statements of Bank Austria Aktiengeselischaft. The main difference in balance sheet and
valuation methods between the individual and consolidated financial statements regards the leasing
business. In the consclidated financial statements the present discounted value of leasing claims
replaces the values of assets serving the leasing business. Instead of depreciation and leasing income,
interest income attributable to these present values is realized.

For converting currencies, the modified balance-sheet date rate of exchange method was used.

Profit and loss items 11 and 12 were set off pursuant to § 53 (3) of the Austrian Banking Act. This
also applies to profit and loss items 13 and 14, which were set off pursuant to § 54 (2) of the Austrian
Banking Act.

V. Notes to the Gonsolidated Balance Sheet and
Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Maturity Strueture of Claims and Amounte Due
The following table presents the maturities of claims and amounts due based on their original terms:

Overview of Maturities

J1st Dec. 1993 J1st Dec. 1994
(in ATS thousand)

Claims against credit institutions

uptothreemonths ..o o 31,197,858 26,957,140
between three monthsand one year ... vvi el 74,744,590 71,223,069
between one and five years . ... i e 20,788,130 10,403,667
more than five YBars ... oottt 17,213,974 21,484,806
Claims against customers
uptothreemonths ... ... i 30,006,776 32,628,994
betwsen three months and oneyear .............o ity 31,767,515 28,248,844
betweenoneandfiveyears......... .. . .ol 63,670,393 64,198,768
more than five years ... ... ... e 210,494,691 210,224,257
Due to credit institutions
uptothree months ... ... ... 82,920,397 86,892,993
between three months andone year .. ... .. ................ 28,849,627 22,062,592
betweenoneand five years......... ool 9,558,084 7,957,972
more than five years .. ... ... ... 33,844,757 38.014,341




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP (Continued)

et Dec. 1005 31st Dec. 1004

{in ATS thousand)

Due to customers

a) savings deposits
uptothree months ...ttt i iiiane s 5,348,433 3,598,513
between three months and one year ......oovviiiiiiiiinnnsen, 54,129,536 41,793,946
between one and five Years . ...ovviiiiiiiinnir i 72,200,452 83,176,972
more than five years ...ttt iiiiiinarssrsrrrrsssstan 11,661,135 8,805,664

b) other liabilities ,
uptothreemonths ............ccvviiiiinns veesains PPN 67,994,339 66,560,197
between three months and one year ........0ovvivvvrinnnes ceas 5,250,773 4,605,567
between one and five years........vevns et rre e aaas 3,644,133 3,247,885
more than five Years .. vuuveiiiiiieiiiiiinnnsrarrsssotonerss 1,341,848 2,605,236

Other securitized liabilities
up tothree months ..............ccc0uvt e rareare e 6,828,466 3,122,993
between three months and one year ....v.vvvvvvninns.. Ceanes 2,873,273 6.020,285
between one and five years ........covuvrrinns Cerserreererens 17,738,606 1,302,844
more than five years ........... R Cerrraaes e irraenane 9,714,172 1,108,177

In 1996 “bonds and other fixed-interest securities” totaling ATS 4.7 bn become due and payable
(1994: ATS 1.4 bn). Under the item “bonds issued”, ATS 8.9 bn will also become due and payable
in 1996 (1994: ATS 15.1 bn).

Claims and Amounts Due to and against Group Companies and Equity Interesis

Group Companies* Equity Interests
3ist Dec. 1985 3ist Dec. 1994 3181 Dec. 1995 31st Dec. 1994
{in ATS thousand)

Claims
Debt instruments issued by public

agencies and bills of exchange aligible

for refinancing at the central bank . . .. 3N 52,000
Claimg against credit institutions . . ... ... 9,322894 10,092,141 3,660,491 7,104,128
Claims against customers . . ............ 15,627,672 12,254 321 4,415,991 446,706
Bonds and other fixed-interest securities 530,286 4012 846,786
Total o e 25,381,163 22,402,474 8,923,268 7,640,834
Liabilities
Due to credit institutions . .. ..........., 2,865,862 1,772,512 2,128,976 4,089,917
Duetocustomers..................... 1,740,176 2,755,530 1,719,308 250,698
Securitized liabilities. ... ............... 2,113,929
Subordinated liabilities. ... .............
Total ... e 4,606,038 4,528,051 5,962,213 4,340,615

*Claims and liabilities between consolidated subsidiaries are set off against each other in the
consolidation of debt; thus the remaining amounts concern only those group companies which are not
fully consolidated.

Transactions with group companies largety comprised customary banking transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP (Continued)

Present Value of Leasing Claims

In 1995 the present value of future jeasing claims totaled ATS 11.4 bn (1894: ATS 11.8 bn}. Leasing
transactions effected within the group of companies are deemed not to exist. The item does not include
loans to and equity interests in leasing companies.

Securities

Pursuant to § 64 (1) item 10 of the Austrian Banking Act securities are classified as either listed or
unlisted, and must be presented for all the balance-sheet items contained in the table below. “'Listed™
securities are those admitted to the official market or the over-the-counter market on the Vienna Stock
Exchange, or which are listed on comparable foreign markets.

Listed and Unlisted Securities

Listed Not Listed
31st Dec. 1995 315t Dec. 1994 315t Dec, 1995  J1st Dec. 1994
(in ATS thousand)

Bonds and other fixed-interast securities .. 25,736,252 21,072,468
Shares and other non fixed-interest

securities .. ... ... .. ... 3,969,110 4,609,352 2,448,356 2,040,117
Equity interests . ... ... ... ... ... 2,423,342 2,490,549 4,016,700 4,343,962
Sharas in group companies ... ... ... ... 188,745 527,008 7,843,728 8,665,662
TOtal . e e e 32,317,449 28,699,465 14,308,784 15,039,744

Securities carried as fixed assels were valued at cost, and current assets were valued at the lower of
cost or market price method. The distinction made between fixed assets and current assets is based on
§ 55 (2) of the Austrian Banking Act, where securities used for long-term business operations were
classified as fixed assels. The competent officers of the parent company and the individual subsidiaries
have prepared and documented decisions in this regard.

Securities Listed on the Exchange

Fixed Asgsets Currant Accate
91st Dec. 1005  31st Dec. 1994 31st Dec. 1995  31st Doe. 1994
(in ATS thousand)
Bonds and other fixed-interest securities 14,153,176 8,758,198 11,583,076 12,314,270
Shares and other non fixed-interest
SECUrties ... ... 1,163,393 1,106,628 2,805,717 3,602,723

Total ... o 15,316,569 0,864,827 14,388,793 15,816,993

For bonds carried as fixed assets and whose purchase price differs from the repayment amount,
§56 (2) and (3} of the Austrian Banking Act require such differences to be shown in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. As of year-end 1995 the premium in the Bank Austria Group amounted
to ATS 382.5 mn {1994: ATS 6.6 mn}.

Pursuant to § 56 (4) and (5) of the Austrian Banking Act, the difference between the purchase
price and the higher market value must be stated for listed securities not carried as fixed assets. The
Bank Austria Group values such securities at the purchase price or lower market value, resulting in a
difference between the purchase price and the higher market value of ATS 10 mn (1994: ATS 223 mn).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP {Continued)

Since Bank Austria Aktiengesellschaft is the only company in the Bank Austria Group to carry
treasury shares and participation certificates in its securities trade inventory, information on such shares
and participation certificates can be found in the notes to the financial statements of the parent company.

Fixed Assels

Unlike the individual financial statements, the consolidated financial statements must show any
changes in the companies included in the full consolidation. These changes reflect additions and
disposals of companies included in the full consolidation during the financial year. Furthermore, currency
differences, caused by the inclusion of subsidiaries with financial statements denominated in foreign
currency, are allocated to the relevant purchase and production costs, and to the cumulative depreciation
of the individual capital goods.

Purchase price ist Jan. 1995 Changes* Additions Disposals  Reclassifications 31st Dec. 1995
(in ATS thousand)
Securities ... ........ 47,227 466 (1,042,690)44,942 486 38,941,992 (2,050,194) 50,135,076
Equity interests. ... .. 8,629,173 (6,071) 5A72,123 853,929 37113 8,378,409
Shares in group
companies ........ 8,943,614 (3,047) 1,838,801 1,966,836 (63.418) 8,749,114
Intangible non-current
assels............ 2,830,678 (212,805) 304,221 633,096 (9.811) 2,329,187
Tangible fixed assets
a) land and
buildings ....... 8,387,546 {15.006) ©86,638 149,308 (443) 8,909,427
b) other tangible .
fixed assets..... 7,231,218 (199,809) 1,232,168 1,946,311 10,657 6,327,923

* Changes in companies included in the fuil consolidation.

Equity interests include profit participation claims which are shown in the item claims against
customers. Securities include assets from the items debt instruments issued by pubiic agencies and bills
of exchange eligible for refinancing at the central bank, claims against credit institutiong, claims against
customers, bonds and other fixed-interest securities, and shares and other non fixed-interest securities.
During the previous year, the schedule of fixed assets of the Bank Austria Group with regard to securities
included only the last two items mentioned.

Cumulative Book Value Book Value Dapreciation

Regidual Book Values Write-ups  Depreciation  J1st Dec. 1995  1st Jan. 1995 For Cumrent Year
(in ATS thousand)

Securities . ..... ... ......... _ 2,072,722 48,062,354 45,365,696 39,257
Equity interests. . ............ 4,818 946,315 7,432,004 8,266,194 602,250
Shares in group companies . .. 716,641 8,032,473 8,489,389 305,949
Intangible non-current assets . . 1,281,586 1,047,601 1,603,736 531,806
Tangible fixed assets

a) land and buildings ....... 1,081,602 7.827.825 7,466,947 162,491
b) other tangible fixed assets 3,649,517 2,678,406 2,805,853 987,727



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP {Ceontinued)

Value of developed property. The land value of developed property must be shown separately
under § 225 {7), Commercial Code.

31st Dec. 1995 31st Dec. 1994
(in ATS bm)

Used for own buginess operations ... ... i i i 1.4 1.4
O N e 0.5 0.5

Intangible Non-Current Assels

Intangible non-current assets were acquired from group companies in the form of computer software
valued at ATS 48.7 mn (1994: ATS 78 mn).

Subordinated Assels

Pursuant to § 45 (2) of the Austrian Banking Act, all subardinated assets are to be shown as
sub-items on the assets side of the balance sheet, and classified as to whether they involve group
companies or companies in which equity interests are held.

315t Dec. 1925 st Dec. 1994
(in ATS thousand)

Debt instruments isgued by public agencieg and billg
of exchange eligible for refinancing at the
central bank

Claime against credit ingtitutions ........... ... ... 93,670 112,561
of which against group companies................ 73,125
of which againsat equity interests ............... L. 33,490 39,210

Claims against CUSIOMErS ... ...ovvivr i nin, 475,628 729,934
of which against group Gompanies
of which against equity interests ................. 100,880 109,690

Bonds and other fixed-interest securities
a) from public borrawers

I3) from other bormowers. ... i 224,728 101,570
of which against group companies . .............. 29,612 3,308
of which against equity interests ................

C) OWNR DONAS .o i e 53,401

Total .. e 794,226 997,420

Breakdown of other Assefs and Liabilities

Pursuant to § 64 (1) item 12 of the Austrian Banking Act the most important individual amounts
found in the item “‘other assets” are to be presented separately, insofar as the amounts are of
significance for the evaluation of the financial statements. In this regard the Bank Austria Group has
acorued assets totaling ATS 9.6 bn which invoive interest and commission income. The item ‘“'other
liabilities" contains accrued liabilities with a total value of ATS 8.7 bn.

Asseils Sold under Repurchase Agreements

The book value of repurchase agreements pursuant to § 50 (4) of the Auslrian Banking Act totaled
ATS 1.1 bn.

B-13




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP (Continued)

Provisions

The Bank Austria Group is utilizing the transitional provision under Article X (3) of the Accounting
Law regarding cover for deficits in provisions for pensions, severance payments and anniversary
payments. The deficit in the pension provision will be amortized in equal amounts over the next sixteen

years. As of 31st December 1995 the deficit in the pension provision totaled ATS 3.7 bn
{1994; ATS 3.9 bn), and that of the provision for severance payments and anniversary payments
ATS 61 mn (1994: ATS 123 mn).

Other provisions amounting to ATS 2.4 bn (1994: ATS 2.2 bn) contain provisions of ATS 403.9 mn
for losses related to equity interests, guarantees and documentary credits.

The consolidation measures did not result in any latent taxes.

Subordinated Loans

With regard to subordinated loans, § 64 (1) item 5 of the Austrian Banking Act requires that a
disclosure must be made regarding liability items 7 and 8 (subordinated liabilities and supplementary
capital} if any single loan exceeds 10 percent of the total volume of subordinated fiabilities. This was not
the case within the Bank Austria Group. The total amount of subordinated liabilities came to ATS 10.4 bn
(1994: ATS 11.6 bn). The concept of subordination is based on § 51 (9) of the Austrian Banking Act.
Procedures used with regard to supplementary capital are based on the criteria found in § 23 (7) of the
Austrian Banking Act. '

Equity Capital

The initial consoligation of the fully-consolidated companies in capital consgolidation differences on
the assets side of the balance sheet amounting to ATS 855.7 mn and on the liabilities side of ATS 1.5 bn
on 1st January 1995. The above differences do not appear directly in the consclidated balance sheaet,
since they were set off against retained earnings. For companiog valued at equity, such differences on
1st January 1995 amounted to ATS 2.6 bn on the assets side, and ATS 945.5 mn on the liabilities side.

Minority interests represent — in cases where the parent company does not hold a 100 percent
interest in the subsidiary's equity capital — the equity of other shareholders. n 1995 this amounted to
ATS 1,460.9 mn {1994: ATS 1,489.7 mn).

Developments in the Valuation Reserve

1ot Jan. 1995  Reversals Additions  31st Dec. 1995
(in ATS thousands)

Reserves pursuant to § 12,
Income Tax Law

SOCUNLIES ...t e 260,218 7,322 750,136 1,003,032
Equityinterests ........................ 104,314 104,314
Shares in group companies.............. 760,553 760,553
Tangible fixed assets ................... 74,034 2770 4,942 76,206
Total....oo i 1,199,112 10,092 755,078 1,944,105
Valuation reserve pursuant to § 8 and

§122, Income Tax Law ............... 17,092 3,096 13,996




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP {Continued)

Trust Transactions

The following table provides an overview of trust transactions pursuant to § 48 (1) of the Austrian
Banking Act. In these transactions the trustee acted in its own name but for the account of another party.
The trustor (customers) may never have the right of recapture in the case of bankruptcy.

Trust transactions

J1st Dec. 1999 J1st Dec. 1994
(in ATS thousand)

Trust assets

Claims against credit institutions. . ... ... ... .. .. ... .. .. ... ... 244 896
Claims against CUSIOMErs . . ... ... .. . . 8,991 128,655
Bonds and other fixed-interest securities . ........... .. ... .. .....

Equily interests . . . 111,000
Shares in group COMPanI®s .. ... ...t

<= 8,991 484,551
Trust deposits

Due to credit institutions. .. ... .. . o 8,991 2,087

Due to customers

savings deposits. . ... L

other liabilities . ... ......... S 482,123
Securitized liabilities

bonde iesued ... ..

other gocuritized liabilities . . ... ... ... ... ...
Other ligbilitiee . ... .. . e 341

Total L. e 8.991 484,551

Breakdown of Earnings by Geographic Markets

Certain eamnings must be classified by geographic markets pursuant to §64 (1) item 9 of the
Austrian Banking Act. While a breakdown by foreign branch office is of significance to Bank Austria due to
its foreign business activities, such earnings have been divided between “Austria” and “Abroad’’ due to
the structure of the Bank Austria Group.

Austria Abread
1995 1994 1995 1994
(in ATS thousand}

Interest and similar earnings ............ 35,227,139 34,917,171 5,214,737 4,384,330
Earnings from securities and

equity interests ..................... 701,381 660,469 36,747 38,121
Commission income . .................. 4 125,268 4,248,400 373,981 352,559
Earnings from financial trangactions. ... .. 538,649 56,300 515,399 205,811
Other operating income . ............... 1,087,366 1,351,907 34,342 58,825
Total. ..o i 41,679,803 41,234,247 6,175,206 5,039,646

Breakdown of other and Extraordinary P & L items

Pursuant to § 684 (1) item 12 of the Austrian Banking Act the most significant individual amounts
found within “‘other” and “'extraordinary” profit and loss items are to be presented if they are of
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP (Continued)

importance in evaluating the financial statements. in this regard the Bank Austria Group incurred
extraordinary expenses due almost exclusively to allocations made to provisions for pensions, severance
payments and anniversary payments to cover the respective deficits. Other expenses involve outside
computer services totaling ATS 131 mn.

Allocations to and Reversals of Untaxed Reserves

1999 1999
AlloGations Reversals Allocations Reversals
{in ATS thousand)

Valuation reserve ... .ot 765,078 13,188 2,297 2,571
investment reserve pursuant to § 9,

lncome Tax Law . ......... .. i, 11,500 8,114
Investment allowance pursuant to § 10,

Income Tax Law ...t i 102,384 5,953 106,795 27,186
Reserve pursuant to § 12, Income Tax Law ....... 55,868
Other untaxed reserves. . .. ... .. ... .. ... ... 1,224 6
1o - | 858,686 30,647 109,092 93,738

Equity of other Shareholders

Ag on the liabilities side of the balance sheet, there is also the item 'equity of other sharehoiders’ in
the profit and logs account. In 1995 this amounted to ATS 140.6 mn (1994: ATS 62.6 mn).
V. Additional Data
Total Expenditures from the use of Non-Capitalized Tangible Fixed Assels

In connection with rent and leasing obligations, § 266 item 2, Gommercial Code, requires that they
be differentiated between two time periods: the following fiscal year and the following five fiscal years:
Obligations under Leasing and Rent Agreemenmts

31st Dec. 1995 31st Dec. 1994
{in ATS thousand)

for the following fiscal year. .....vvvvrii ittt iiine i aeans 1,242,000 792,000
for the following five fiscal years ..........oo it 5,400,000 4,000,000

Forelgn Currency Business as a Percentage of Tolal Assels

Assets denominated in foreign currency accounted for 31 percent or ATS 213.1 bn (1894:
29.6 percent or ATS 192.9 bn) of the consolidated total assets, while liabilities denominated in foreign
currency accounted for 33.2 percent or ATS 228.4 bn (1934: 24.2 percent or ATS 158 bn}.

Unsettied Forward Transactions

in the area of unsettled forward transactions, unsettled buying contracts as of 31st December 1995
amounted to ATS 243.4 bn (1994: ATS 221.5 bn), selling contracts ATS 241 bn (1994: ATS 220.5 bn),
and swaps ATS 49.7 bn (1994: ATS 31.1 bn). Since this almost exclusively involves forward transactions
of Bank Austria Aktiengesellschaft, details are included only in the notes to the financial statements for
the bank.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP (Continued)

Mortgage Banking

Within the Bank Austria Group mortgage banking activities are pursued exclusively by Bank Austria
Aktiengeselischaft, and thus a detailed presentation is nct included in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

V1. Data on Personnel and Executive Badieg
Employees

On an annual average, some 9,754 white-collar workere (1994: 9,490) and 506 blue-collar workers
(1994: 520) were employed by the Bank Austria Group. Part-time employees are included here based on
the amount of time worked.

Expenditures for Severance Payments and Pensions

Pursuant to § 266 item 6 of the Commercial Code, expenditures for severance payments and
pensions to employees at fully consolidated companies in the Bank Austria Group amounted to
ATS 55.9 mn for managing board members and senior executiveg, and ATS 1 bn for other employees.

The term *‘senior executives' comprises general managers, heads of division, and the heads of the
regional head offices and their deputies. Expenditures on “‘senior executives™ are generally not included
for subsidiaries, since business managers fall within the category ‘members of the managing board'".

Emoluments of Members of the Managing Board and Supervisory Board

The earnings of the members of the managing boards and supervisory boards of the parent company
and the subsidiary companies of the Bank Austria Group include all payments resulting from managing
board, supervisory board or committee-retated duties. In 1995 payments totaled ATS 55 mn for managing
board members and ATS 3.2 mn for supervigory board members. Pension payments to former managing
board members amounted to ATS 30.8 mn.

Loans to Members of the Managing Board and Supervisory Board

Loans made to mambers of the managing board amounted to ATS 1.6 mn (1994: ATS 2.8 mn).
Loans made to members of the supervisory board (including representatives of the employees)
amounted to ATS 14.4 mn (1994: ATS 13.4 mn). The maturities of the above loans are betwean five and
ten years; the interest rate is the same ag the rate charged other Bank Austria employeses.
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THE EQUITY INTERESTS OF THE BANK AUSTRIA GROUP

This overview pursuant to § 265 of the Commercial Code is a part of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Bank Austria Group. To enhance transparency, the presentation has been
prepared in connection with the overview of Bank Austria AG's equity interests pursuant to § 238 ltem 2
of the Commercial Code, which is an integral part of the Notes to the Financial Statements of Bank
Austria AG. Figures are not stated where disclosure is not required under § 241 Para. 2 ltem 1 of the
Commercial Code, or pursuant to § 265 Para, € Iltem 4 of the Commercial Code.

Name of Gompany, Domicile

1. GROUP COMPANIES
2. Fully Conselidated
Credit Institutions and Finanelal institutions
BA Maschinen und KFZ Leasing
GmbH & Co KG, Vienna.........ooivvinvinnnnnne,
Bank Augtria (CR) a8, PraguelCZ .. ... ..........
Bank Austria (Switzerland) Ltd., Zurich/CH ..........
Bank Austria (8R) as., Bratistava/SK ...............
Bank Austria d.d., Liubljana/SLO ........ ... ... ...
Bank Austria Handelsbank Aktiengesellschait, Vienna'"
Bank Austria Leasing GmbH, Vienna
with 70 projekt companies . .......................
Bank Austria Treuhand & Beleiigungsfonds
Aktiengeselischaft, Viennal™ ...
Bank Austria Wohnbaubank Aktiengeselischaft, Vienna
LB Fonds Beratungsgesellschaft m.b.H., Yienna.......
BANK AUSTRIA America, Inc., New York/USA ......
Bank Austria Finance, Inc., New York/USA .........
Bank Austria Securities, Inc., New York/USA........
LB Capital, Inc., New York/USA ...................
LB CREDIT CORPORATION, LTD,
San Francisco/USA . ... oo i e
LB Holding GmbH, Vienna..............o0veeen,
Midvale Sacuritiee Corporation, Los Angeles/USA . ..
RNG Capital Group, Inc., Los Angeles/USA.........
RNC Capital Management, Los Angeles/USA .......
LB-Leasinggeselischaft, mb.H., Vienna...............
LBL-IMMORENT-Leasinggeselischaft m.b.H., Vienna
M.AV. 7. Bank Austria Leasing Bautriger
GmbH & Co. OHG, Vienna.. ....................
QLB Holdings (UK) Lid,, London/GE.......... IR
Sovereign Finance PLC, Manchester/GB ... ... ..
Sab Beteiligungsgesellschaftt mbH., Vienna ..........
VISA-SERVICE Kreditkarten
Aktiengesetischaft, Viennal” ... ...
Z Leasing Immobilien Holding
Gesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna with 12 project
COMPANIBE . ..o vvr et ine e e aaerneaeneanns
Z-LB {Cayman Islangs) Limited, Grand Cayman/KY ...
Z-LB Options Limited, London/GB............00vvu0

Other Companies

Bank Austria Aktiengeselischaft & Co EDV Leasing
OEG, VIonmna . ..vvvrr et ciiniirranranranens

Bank Austria — Finanzservice Ges.mb.H., Vienna" ..

Bank Austria Aktiengesellschaft — Immebilien- und
Mobilienvermietungs OHG, Vienna .................

Bank Austria Aktiengesellschaft —
Liegenschaftsverwertung OHG, Vienna.............

Bank Austria Property Investment Ltd., London/GB ...
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Equity Intorests  Equity Interests Equity Equity Balance
indirect >50% <50% Valuation Capital Results Sheet Date
{in ATS 1,000}
X
§7.33 379213 48,228 31121995
86.00 473,887 15,369 31.12.1995
100.00 165,448 (2,054) 31.12.1995
99.45 221,147 28514 31.12.1995
100.00 223,225 47,784 31121995
X 100.00 1,896,413 117945 31.12.1985
100.00 317,525 34,331 31,12.1995
89.98 138.047 1,195 31.12.1995
X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
¥ ¥
X X
X X
X X
100.00 156,683 (2.993) 31.12.1995
X X
X X
100.00 368,667 48,299 31.12,1995
X X
X
76.00 103975 210386 31.12.1905%)
100.00 188,666 33748  31.12.1995
X
X
X
X
X
100.00 103,045 636 31.12.1995
X



Name of Company, Domicile

DATALINE Datenverarbeitungs GmbH. Vienna. .. ... ...
DATASERVICE Informalik Ges.m.b.H., Vienna . .
DATASERVICE Organisations- und
Datenverarbeilungs-Ges.m.b.H., Vienna ............
GANYMED Immobilienvermietungsgessllschafl m.b.H.,
Vienmal™
Garage Am Hof Geselischaft m.b.H.. Vienna*"? ... ... ..
HYPERION immobiiienvermietungsgeselischaft m.b.H.,
Vienna'™
lassallestrane Holding Gesellschaft mb.H.. Vienna . ...
Laseallestrafie Bau-, Planungs-, Errichtungs- und
Varwertungegasallschait m.b.H., Vierna . ... ... ...
KSG Karten- Verrechnungs- und Service- gesellschatt
mb.H, Vienna .......... s e
AUDAX Varmbgenesverwaltungsgesellschaft mb.H.,
VIBMNE ..o
Z-Treuconsult Beteiligungsgesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna

2. Group Companies which are not Subsidiaries
of Bank Austria AG
BA-GC Investmentbank Austria Aktiengesellschat,
Vienna Congolidated financial etatements . ..... ... ..
BANKINVEST AUSTRIA Bank Austria- GiroCreait
YermSgensverwaltungsbank, Ges.m.b.H., Vienna ... .
SPARINVEST AUSTRIA Kapitalaniage
Akligngesellschaft, Vienna . .....................
Die Erste Immorent Z
Einrichtungshausverwertungsgesellschaft m.b.H.,
VIBMNG ..o
Eurolease Immorent Grundverweriungsgesellschaf!
mbH, Vienna ....... ... ... ...
GiroGredit Bank Aktiengeselischaft der Sparkassen,
Mienna .ooooveiinyiinnianes e T
Immarant ASTRA Grundverwertunge Gesellsahaft
mbH Vienna............. ... ... ... ...
fmmorent RASTA Grundverwertungsgeselischafl m.b.H.,
Vienna ...
NOBG-Vermgensverwaltungsgesellschaft mbH.,
Vienna .o e e
OHFT-Verméganaverwaltungs Geseilschaft m.b.H.,
VIBNna ...
Sparkassen-Dalendienst Aktiengesellschaft & Go, KG,
Vienna ...
Opardat Austria Rechenzentrum Gesellschaft m.b.H.,
Vienna ..o e Ve
Schul- u, Amtegehduda
Grundstiicksverwaltungsgeselischaft m.b.H., Graz . .
Schulerrichtungsgesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna ..........

3. Group Non-Finance Companies

AZ Bautrager Immobilien- Yerwertungs- und
Vermietungsgesellschaft m.b H., Vienna ............

ARGENTUM Vermdgensberatungs GmbH, Vienna ... ..

Asphaltgesellschaft Richard Felsinger GesmbH,
Wianersdorf-Ceynhausen .........................

AURUM Finanzierungs- und Beteailigungsgesellschaft

Equity Interests  Equity interests Equity Equity Balance
direct indirect >50% < 50% Valustion Capial Resule Sheat Date
(in ATS 1,000)
X X
X X
X X
X X 100.00 709,446 15,665 31.12.1995
X X
X X 100.00 989,736 10,754  31.12.1995
X 100.00 274,610 (28) 31121995
X X
X X
X X
X X
X 38.80 E 348,186 (165,126) 31.12.1995
X 50.00 E 77.459 32146 31.12.1995
X X
X X
X X
b X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X E
X X
X X
X X
X X E
X X
X X
X X £
4 X
X X
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Equity Interests  Equity Interests  gquity  Equity Balance

Name of Company, Domicile direct indirest > 50% <50% Valuation Capital  Results Sheet Dale
(in ATS 1,000)
BA & GrECo Varsicherungsmanagement Ges.m.b.H.,
VIBNNE ..ovvraviininns ey . X X E
BA Dollar Liber Fund Ltd., St. Pater Port/GBG ........ X X
BA Fund Managers {Guernsey) Ltd.. 3t. Peter
POR/GBG vrvoeeirrennrinsrceiiisrarsaaroanes X X
BA WORLDWIDE FUND MANAGEMENT LTD.,
Viginia/USA . ... X X
Bank Austria Asia Nominees Limited, Hong Kong/HK .. X X
Bank Austria Bratislava Service GmbH, Sered/SK ... .. X X
Bank Austria Handelsholding Gesellschaft, m.b.H.,
VIENMEB + v vvarirennionssnnns ety X g6.m E 728,204 72828  31.3.1995
Consolidated financial statemants
Bank Austria Immobilienfonds AG, Vienna ............ X 100.0 E 138,372 72139 31121994
Kunstforum Handelegeselischaft, m.b.H., Vienna. ... ¥ X
TELEDATA Consulting und Systemmanagemant
Geselischaft, m.b.H., Gotzis ... X X
Bank Austria Industrisholding Geselischaft m.b.H., .
Vienna Consolidated financial statements .. ....... .. X 100.00 E 2,197,829 29,868 31.12.1994

Bank Austria Leasing GmbH/Non-financial services

group with 25 project companies . ........aeiaons ¥ X
Bank Austria Wohnbau Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna . ..., X X 100.00 E 200,956 23820 31.12.1994
Baubeteiligungs AG, VIENNa .............coovverinns X X
BFZ (Qverseas) Lid. Cayman Island, George Town/KY X X
Campustar (Hong Kong) Ltd., Hong Kong/HK ....... X 99.99 E 35,756 141 31.12.1994
Celer Aligemeine Vermagensverwaitungs-, Investitions-

und Beratungs Gesellschaft mb.H., Budapest/H ... X X
Computer Systemvertrieb Austria, GmbH, Vienna. ... X X E

SUD-0ST Informationstechnik und Blromaschinen

Gesellschaft mbH., Wr.Neustadt ............... X X

DATASERVICE Holding GesmbH., Vienna........... X X £

Delta Golf Donnerskirchen Golfplatz- Errichtungs-,

Betriebs- und Vermietungsgeselischaft m b H. u. Co

KG, Donnerskirchen.................o..cooiinnn X X X
Delta Golf Donnerskirchen Golfplatz- Errichtungs-,

Betriebs- und Vermistungsgesellschaft mb.H.,

Donnerskirchen . .. ... ... ..o, X X 1
Ekazent Realitatengeselischaft mb.H., Vienna......... K X 100.00 295,381 1.7.1995
Erste Wiener Hotel Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna......... X 4490 E (61,173} (12,674) 3t.12.1994
Erzet-Vermégensvenwaltungsgeseltschaft m.o.H.,

Vienna ....oveeiinnens e e e X X

FONTANA Hotelverwaltungagesellschaft mb.H.,

Salzblrg ... e X
FONTANA Clubhotel Gesellschaft m.b.H., Sauerbrunn X
FONTANA Kurhotel Gesellschaft m.b.H., Sauerbrunn X
FONTANA Sporthotet Gesellschaft m.b.H.,

Fieberbrunn...... e e er e

Freizeitpark Oberlaa Vermietungs GmbH, Vienna .. ...
(Gart Rossow GmbH, Vienna .................oee X
Gewista Werbegesellschaft mbH., Vienna ........... X 51.
AuBanwerbung Tschechien - Slowakei

m

b a4
X

8 = x

E 163465 37811 31.12.1994

Betelligungsgeselischatt mbH, Vienna ............ X X
Eurcfiag Zaszloreklam Kft., Budapest/H.............. X X
Europlakat Gesellschaft m.b.H., Poiska, Warsaw/PL ... X X

EURDOPLAKAT Intemational Werbegesellschaft

mbH., Vienna ......oooveeii e X X

Europlakat Kift., Budapest/H ...................... X X

1) Figures are based on the opening balance as of 1st July 1995.
Currency conversions were based on the rates prevailing on 28th December 1995.
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Name of Company, Domicile

EUROPLAKAT sro., Prague!CZ ..................
EUROPLAKAT-Interwerb s.r.o., Bratislava/SK ... ...
Proreklam — Europlakat d.0.0., Lubljana/SLO ... .. .
Sprint Werbegesellschait mb.H., Vienna ...........
Werbeunternehmean EURDPLAKAT Gesellechaft
m.B.H, Maribor/SLG ...
Heilbad Sausrbrunn Betriebsgessllschaft m.o H.
Sauerbrunn ...
Heilbad Sauerbrunn Betricbsgeselschaft
m.b.H. & Co. KG, Sauerbrunn ...............000u0s

Helmut Lunacek GmbH, vienna ............ . ..... ..
Hotel & Touristik Holding Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna |
Consolidated financial statements
IMMOTRUST Anlagen Akliengesellschaft, Vienna .. .. ..
Interting Geseflschaft mb.H. Vienna.................
KILEA Terrain- und
Bau-Gesellschall mb.H, Vienna.............. ...
Consolidated financial statements
Kommerz-Real Liegenschaitaverwertungsgesellschaft
mb.H, Yiema ...
Konzern Service und Beratung GmbH, vierna! ...,
LB-Bauconsult GmbH-Lisgensehaftaverwertung
Althanstralie KG, Vienna .........................
LB-Beteiligungs-Aktiengeselischaft, Bieh/CH ,.........
LB-Liegenschaftsvarwertung Gagellsehaft mb.H.,
VIBNNG o

LB International Trade Services Handelsgesellechaft
MBH, VIBRNE o
MAV. 11, 3. Anlagen Vermietung Gesellschaft
MbH & COOHG Vienna . .......................
MAV. 9., 3. Anlagen Vermietung Geseltschaft
m.b.H. & Co OHG, Vienna ............cooei .
Martin Breuner GmbH, Vienna. ........... ... ... ...
Melusine Grundsilcksverwaltungs- und
Verwartungegeselischaft mb H., Vienna............
MOVE Hancels- und Betailigungs GmbH, Vienna ... ...
Palais am Stadipark Hotelbetrieds AG, Yienna ........
Plus Warenhandelsgesellschatt mbH, Vienaa . ... ... ...
PRIMEQ FUND, George TowniKY ...................
Rudolf Hinterecker GrnbH, Vienna .., ....ovvvvenen. ..
S-informatik Gesallashatt m b H., Vienna..............
Shopping Center Sopron Aktiengesallschaft, Sopron fH
SPA Handelsgesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna .............
Susanne Wendlinger GmbH, Vienna..................
Telecem Poal Finanzierungsservice GmbH, Vienna .. ...
Transmerx Import- und Export- Gessllschaft m.b.H.,
Vienna ...
TSG EDV-Terminal-Service Gesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna
UNITECH Aktiengesellschaft, Kirchdorf/Krems ........
Congalidated financia! statements
Vispa-Forderungsgesellschaft fiir ale Stadt Yolkermarkt
Geselischaft mbH, Villach . ..........00c0eivly ),
VYY-Vermogensvarwaltungsgesallschaft m.b.H., Vienna
Wiener Bautragergesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna..........

Equity Interests

Equity Interests

Equity Equity Balance
dicect indirect >50% <50% Valuation Capital Results Sheet Date
(in ATS 1,000)
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X 36.96 42 547 12,406  31.12.1994
X X
X X
X 74.98 a 428,856  (13,341) 31121994
X X 3376 E 556,299 17,764  31.12.1004
X 100.00 E 183,549 23,446 31.12.1999
X X 100.00 E 71,740 40,148 31.12.1004
X X X
X X
X X
X 100.00 6,456 1,053  31.12.1994
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X E
X X
X X
X X
X X X
X ¥
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X X E
X X 100.00 E 238,017 54,131 31.12.1994
X X
X X
X X 10C.00 E 83,966 {2,019} 31.12.1994

1) Integrated inter-company relationship with Bank Austria Aktiengesellschatft.
Currency conversions were based on the rates prevailing on 28th December 1995.
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Name ot Company, Domicile

"KONGRESS PARK' Geschaits- und Wahnhaus-
vermietungsgeselischaft m.b.H,, Vieana............
RoTaCo-Blirchausvermietungsgesellschaft m b H.,
VIBMNG _ it e i
WET Wohnpark Markhoigasse Vermietungs- GmbH,
LE 7 O S
Wiener Bautrager Wohnungseigentumsgesellschaft
mbH, Vienna ...
Wisner Batriehs- und Baugeseliechaft mi.H.. Vienna ..
Consolidated financial statements
Wiener Hafen und Lager, Ausbau u.
Vermbgensverwaltungges. mb.H. (WHV), Vienna ...
WIENCONT Container Terminal Gesellschaft m.o.H.,
VIBMNE 41 v s vevrrurinneenesoriantinnesenannens
Wiener Hafen, Lager und Umschlagsbetriebe
Gesellschaft m.b.H. (WHL), Vierna .............
Wiener Messen und Congress Gesellschaft mb.H.,
Vienna .......... PN
TOP Messestandbau Gesellschaft m.p.H., Yienna. ...
VAZ-Veranstaltungszentrum St. Plten
Batriebegeselischaft mb.H. St. Polten ...........
Wiener Werbezenirale Gesellschaft, m.b.H., Vienna .,
Wohnbauerrichtungs- und-verwertungs-
Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna . .......................
“LVS” Bautechnik Ges.m.bH., Vienna ...........o0en
“LYS" Liegenschaftsverwertungs-, -entwicklungs- und -
sanierungs Gesslischaft, mb.H., Vienna............
Z-Beteiligungsholding Gesellschaft, m.b.H., Yienna with
22 SURSIRANES « v v vv vt i
Zentralexport Handelsgesallschaft, mb.H., Vienna ... ..
Z Leasing Immobilien Holding Gesellschaft,
m.b.H./non-financial services group with 4 project
COMPANIBS . . ..o e

Il. ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
1. Equity Valuation
ARWAG Holding-Aktiengeselischaft, Vienna .._..._....
BFAG-Holding Gesellschaft, m.b.H., Yienna...........
EB und HYPD — Bank Burgenland Aktiengesellschaft,
Bisenstadt . ... .. .. e
EGG-Holdinggeseilschaft, mb.H., Vienna ............e
EUROPAI KERESKEDELM BANK RT, Budapest{H. .. ..
F7Ov-Holding Gesellschaft, mb.H., vienna...........
GrEGo International Aktiengeseiischaft, Vienna ........
Investkredit Holding Gesellschaft, mbH., Vienna ......
KABAG Hoiding Gesellschaft, m.nH,, Vienna .........
0C1-GZB Beteiligungsgeselischalt, mb H., Vienna . ...
OKB-Holdinggesellschaft, m.b. M., Vienna .............
Ringturm Kapitalaniagegesellschalt, m.b.H., Vienna .. ..
UNION Versicherungs-Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna .. .. ..
Vareinigte Pensionskasse Aktiengesellschafi, vienna . . .

2. Materiality

3. Anlagen Vermietung GmbH, Vienna ...............

ALPHA SPEZIALPAPIERE HANDELSGESELLSCHAFT,
MBH., Vienna ..o

Equity Interests  Equity Interests Equity Equity Balance
direct indirect >50% <50% Valustion Capital Results Sheet Date
(in ATS 1,000)
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X 100.00 E 82,471 (96,118) 51.12.1904
X X 100.00 E 94,314 13472 31.12.1994
X X
X X
X X E
X X
X X
X X
X X 100.00 £ 85,776 2201 31121994
X X
X X
X X E
X X
X A
X X £
X X E
X 3413 E 550,302 46,677 31.12.1004
X X E
X 50.00 E 185128 24,694 31.12.1994
X A E
X X E
X X £
X X E
X X E
X X E
X X E
X 3333 E 206,586 55989 31.12.1994
X 3012 E 130,613 {23,930} 31.12.1004
X X
X X

In view of the 1998 Structural Adjustment Act the liable capital reserve and resulting uncertainty of future

tax developments were not included in the equity capital of credit institutions.

Currency conversions were based on the rates prevailing on 28th December 1995,
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Name of Company, Domicile

Bank Austria Leasing GmbH, Vierna with 7 project
COMPANIES . .. ...

KDK Forschungs- und Entwicklungsgesellschaft fir
Kabel, Draht und Kunststoff Gee.m b.H., Vienna. ., ..
KKD Kunden-Karten-Dienstleistungsgesaliechatt m.b.H.,
Vienna ..o e
LB-Leasinggeselischaft m.b.H., Vienna with 5 project
COMPANIBS . ...
M & A Bank Aktiengeselischaft, Vienna...............
Meainhardgarage Gasellschaft mb.H., Innsbruck .......
PHG FOS ~ Handelsgesellschaft mb.H., Vienna ... ...
Rudolf Lechner & Sohn Verlags- &
Commissionsbuchhandlungs AG, Vienna ...........
WED Holding Gesellschaft mb.H., Vienna ............
2 Leasing Immobilienholding Gesellschaft m.b.H.,
Vienna with 2 project companies ..................
Z-Treuconsult Beteiligungsgesellschaft m.b.H. & Co
Wohnungseigentum ““Hohe Warte” KG, Vienna. ... ..

Ill. OTHER EQUITY INTERESTS
“NEUE HEIMAT" Gemeinniitzige Wohnungs- und
Siedlungsgeselischafl, Gesellschaft m.b.H., Vienna ..
3. Anlagen Vermistung GmbH & Co KG, Vienna . ......
Adria Bank Aktiengeselischaft, Vienna................
Aligemeine Baugeselischaft ~ A, Porr
Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna ................... ...,
Bank Austria Treuhand & Beteiligungsfonds
Aktiengeselischatt, Vienna with 7 parinership entities
Berg- und Schllift Schwaz-Pill Ges.m.b H., Schwaz . ...
CLS Beteiligungs-Gesellschaft mit beschrénkter
Haftung, Vienna ..............cccccc e,
Danubia Handafs- und Beteiligungsakliengesellschaft,
VIBTNA oo
EMCOM Beteiligungs GmbH, Vienna................ .
Fraizeitpark Oharlaa Vermiatunge GmbH & Co KG,
VIBINA o ovvie e
Geragen-, Einkaufs- und Freizeitzentrum NaBfeld
GesmbH. & CoKG, Villaeh.................... ..
Gerlitzen-Kanzelbahn-Touristik Ges.m.b.H. & Co KG,
Annenheim . ... i e e
GEWOG Gemeinnitzige Wohnungsbau-Gesellschaft
mbH,Vienna ..............
immorent-00 Sparkassen Leasing Gesellschaft mbH,
Linz.. ...
LTB Beteiligungs-Geselischaft m.b.H., Vienna .........
Meinhardgarage Ges.m.bH. & Co KG, Innsbruck . .. ...
(Ottakringer Beteiligungs AG, Vienna .............. ..
RECULTA Altlastensanierung GmbH, Yienna ..........
Ruster Hatel Bau- und Betriebsgesellschatt mb.H.,
Vienna ...
Ruster Hotel Bau- und Betriebsgeselischaft
mbH, &ColG, Vienna.........................
Schianitzenalm HotelbetriebsgmbH & Co KG, Hermagor
SERVICO Technische Betriebsthrung und Biirodienste
GmbH, Mienna ........... ...
Sparkassen-Haitungs Akliengesellschaft, Vienna. ... ...
Siadlgemeinde Judenburg Wasserkraftwerk
Gesellschaft mb.H. & Co KG, Judenburg...........
STEL-Holding Gesellschaft mb.H., Vienna ............

Equity Interests

Equity Interests Equity Equity Balance
direct indirect >50% <50% Valuation Capital Results Sheet Date
{in ATS 1,000)
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X X
X X
X X
X X
® 3z.61 658,458 81470 31.12,1994
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
b X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
X X
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Equity Interests  Equity Interests  gquity Equity Balance

Name of Company, Domicile direct Indirect >50% <50% Valation Capital  Resulta Sheet Date
(in ATS 1,000)
SZKI Intelligens Software Szamitatechnikal Fejleszid,
Gyarto es Ertekesitd) Rt., Budapest/H.............. X X
Thermengelfanlagen-Loipersdorf Fiirstendfeid
Retriebsgesellschaft m.bH. & Ce KG. Loipersdorf ... X X
VBV delta Anlagen Vermietung Geselischaft m.b.H.,
Y 1 R X X
WEVAG Wohnpark Erdberg Vermietungs GmbH, Vienna X X
WEVAG Wohnpark Rennweg Vermietungsges. m.b.H.,
WIBTIMIB « v vvvrvsansans s oaian e X X
Z-Treusonsuit Bateiligungegaseliechatt :
mbH &CoKG Vienna.............ooviiveeaninss X X
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ANNEX C

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET OF THE CREDITANSTALT GROUP AT 31 DECEMBER 1995

Assets

1.

2.

1.
12
13,

Cash in hand, balances with central banks and

postoffice banks. . ........ .. . . ... ... .. ... ...
Treasury bills and other bills eligible for refinancing with
central bamks ... ... ... e
a) Treasury bils and similar securities . .. ... ... ...,
b} other bills eligible for refinancing with centra! banks . , .
Claims on eredit institutions ................. ... ........
a) repayableondemand...................... . ... ..
b)Y otherclaims .......ooooeiiiin

a) issued by public-sector entities .. ...................
b} issued by otherborrowers........ .. ... .. . 0,

of which: own issues ................ ... .........
Shares and other variable-yield securities .................
Investments in related companies ........................
of which: in credit institutions . .......... ... .. .. ...,

Intangible fixed assets . ................ .. ... .. ... .. ...
Tangible fixed @ss815 .. ..vuuuuuvn e
of which: land and buildings cccupied by credit institutions

for their own activities ......... ... ... ... ... ...,
Own shares and own participation cerlificates .............
Otharaseete ......... .. .. ... ... ... ... . ...,

31 Dec., 1995

31 Dec. 1994

Change

in ATS 1,000 in ATS 1,000 in ATS 1,000 in %
7,916,802 10,518,269 — 2,601,377 —247
36,405,124 33,221,172 T 3183852 + 96
35,690,353 32,359,164 + 3,331,189  +10.3
714771 862,008 ~ 147237 171
221,515,478 204,107,636 +17,407.842 + 85
6,841,640 9,691,204 — 2,849,654 —29.4
214,673,838 194,416,342 +20.257.498 +10.4
295,284,277 282,863 948 112420329 + 44
49,843,282 51,795,074 — 1982712 — 38
5,918,154 4,857,129 + 1061026 4218
43,925,108 46,938,845 — 3013731 — 64
892,690 759,238 + 63451 + 84
2,857,458 3,048,092 ~ 190634 — 63
10,002,490 9,437,923 T 964567  + 6.0
3,710,119 3,586,420 + 123699 + 34
11,841,994 10,906,852 + 835142 + 88
315,281 208,354 + 16,827 + 57
2,337,619 2,332,218 + 5403 + 0.2
680,604 568,135 + 112,488 +108
173,885 198,063 - 24178 —122
5,716,100 5,064,390 — 248290 — 4.2
796,695 750,648 + 37,040 + 49
645,006,555 ©15,452,535 +29,554,020 + 4.8

The financial information concerning Creditanstalt and the Creditanstalt Group (the
“CA Group”) in this Annex C has been taken from Creditanstalt’s publicly available 1995 Annual
Report. Neither Creditanstalt nor its independent auditors participated in the preparation of this
Oftering Memerandum or any of the Annexes hereto, including this Annex C. The Bank and the
Initial Purchasers assume no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness of the information
in this Annex C.

C-1




Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

1. Liabilities to credit inStHUtions. ... cveiiaeavvan e
a) repayable ondemand. ... ... ...l
b) with agreed maturity dates or periods of notice .......

2. Liabilities (o GUSIOMEIS. ... ianisrrenassass v ciannnn
a) savings deposits ... ...
aa) repayableondemand.......... ..o

bb) with agreed malturity dates or periods of notice ..

b} other liabilities .. ...... ... ...

aa) repayableondemand. ... ........ ... .. s

bb) with agreed maturity dates or periods of notice ..

3. Liabilities evidenced by certificates ... ................. ..

2) bondsand notes . ... ... . iiieieeiiiiiiaanan

b) other certificates ............ e

4, Otherliabilities . ........... ...l e
5 Defarrad inCOME ... ... ... e
6. ProviSionS .. ..ovii i e e
a) provisions for severance compensation ..............

b) provisions for PENSIONS . ... ...coiiiiiiiin i

C) Other Provigions .. ....ovrrviniinnnnee e,

7. Subordinated liabilities .. ... ... . .. ...
8.  Supplementary capital ......... ... iiiiiieas Varas
9. Paid-upcapital... oo
a) subscribedecapital . ... ...

D) CapitalresServes ... .. ... v errreacarsinanaranny
SHAS PremiMM L oot ves v ar st naens

10. Eammedeurplus. . ...... ... o
) FEVENUE IBSEIVES .. .. ... ccierieiiaiennanrnnsns vae

of which: balance arising from capital consolidation. . ..

b) consolidated surplus forthe year....................

11. Minority INterests .. ... ciiin i iiiiiiiiinaianes e
Shareholders’ equity {items Sto 14) ... ..........ovine

‘G2

31Dec. 1995 31 Dec. 1994 Change
in ATS 1,000  in ATS 1,000 in ATS 1,000 in%
316,020,554 277,372,533 438657021  +139
25,785,491 38,885,735  —13,100244 —337
290,244,063 238,486,798  +51,757,265  +21.7
170.850,645 103052124 —13,201479 — 6.8
76,856,604 75009224  + 1757470 + 2.3
49,305 146775 — 97,470 —664
76,807,380 740952448  + 1854040 + 25
102093851 117952900 —14958949 —I12.7
45,019,710 50,790,434 — 5770724 —11.4
57,074,241 67,162,466 — 0,188,225 ~—137
93,208 809 86,787,876 + 6510833 t+ 7.5
38,918,090 48,916,364 — 9,008,274 204
54,380,710 97,871,612  +16500207 +438
6,590,006 8314731 — 1724835 207
793,133 1,245313 — 452780 —36.3
8,905,366 8867720 4+ 37627 + 04
1,159,424 1126950 + 32474 + 29
5,178,060 4,770,206 + 407,764 + B5
2,567,882 2070493 — 402611 —13.6
10,327,174 11,157,312 — 830,138 — 7.4
3,654,600 3,741,400 — 86600 — 2.3
10,614,716 10,614,716 — —
4443279 4,443,279 — —
6,171,437 6,171,437 — —
6,171,437 6,171,437 — —
13,962,249 13322535 + 639714 + 48
11,876,112 11,553,917  + 322105 + 28
— 624085 — 1388808 — 235387 —606
2,086,137 1768618 + 317519 +18.0
980,013 975656 + 4,357 + 0.4
25 556,078 24912807 + 644071 + 286
645,006,555 615,452,535 420554020 4 4.8



ITEMS SHOWN BELOW THE BALANCE SHEET

31 Dsc. 1995
in ATS 1,000

Assets
i.  Foreign assets......... e e s E e e e e e e e e e 376.367.803

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
1.

Contingent lialilities «....vviiiiviennin... I T 64,824,595

of which:

d) acceptances and liabilities arising from the endorsement of rediscounted bille ... ............. .. 14,356,666

b} guarantees and assets pledged as GOIRLEIA! SEOURLY . ...\ .\ 's' s e e e e e 49,354,614
2. COMMIIMENIE . . . e e e 100,509,387

of which: commitments arising from sale and repurchase ransactions .. ..., 2,963,965
3. Liabilities arising from trust transactions...,........ L e e e e e 31,082,187
4. Total net capital rasources under Sections 23 and 24 in combination with Section 20 of the

Banking Act of the group of credit INStEUtONS ... ... ... .. 37.957.000
5. Basis of calculation under Section 22 of the Banking Act for the group of credit institutions ........... 386,236,000
B.  Foreign Babiltias 287,208,469
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W = M

a.

10.

ni.
iv.

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT OF THE CREDITANSTALT GROUP
for the year ended 31 December 1995

Interast and similar iNComMe . .. ... . ... oo
Interest and similar SXPENSES. .. vvveain e NP

Net interestincome . .................... i eeiieiaeaes

Income from securities and from investments in subsidiaries

and related cOmpanies .......c..vvvviiraneas i eereas
a) income from shares and other variable-yield socurities . .
b} income from investmenis in subsidiaries ..............
c) income from investments in Gompanies valued at equity
d)  income from investments in other refated companias . ..
Net fee and commission income (subtotal of items 4 and 5}

Fee and COMIMISSION INGOME ...civvervrersrirniarssnanses
Fee and commission BXpenses .. ............oirerannnasen
Net profit on trading activities . ... _....... ... ..o oo
Other operating INGOMEB. .. ..o iviraraarersansnsaneanns

Operatingingeme................... eder s aneess Ve

General administralive BXpeNsSes . ... .. ... . iiii i
@) Staffl eXPenses. . ... vt i
wagesand salaries ......... ... il
statutory social-security contributions as well as levies
and compulsory contributions dependent on wages and
salaries ... .. ... .. e e e
other employee benefits .............. oo,
expenses for retirement benefits .............. ..ot
allocation to the provision for pensions . ..............
allocation to the provision for severance compensation
b} other administralive expenses . oo e v e
Depreciation in raspect of acsat iteme Qand 10 ... ... ...,
Other operating eXPeNSES ... ... iiiiirianerrrrrrninss

Operating eXpenses . . ..................c.c.ccoveneeanenns
Operatingresult ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ..

11./12.  Nel expenses arising from the sale and valuation ot

loans and securities . .. ... ..o i i e e,

13./14.  Net expenses arising from the sale and valuation of

15.
16.
17.
18.
19.

Vi.

20.
V.

bonds and notes valued as financial fixed assets and of
investments in subsidianes and related companies. . . ..

Resutlt of ordinary activities . . ... ... ... . ... ... . ...

Extraordinary incoma . ... ... ...
Extraordinary €XpensSeS . ... ...o.oovernnnrnrnnernrsns iae
Result of extraordinary items {subtotal of items 15 and 16}..
TaXes ON NCOMEB ..ttt e et ee e
Other taxes uniess included initem 18 .........cooevvvinn

Surplus forthevyear................ PR
Profit attributable to minarity interests .. ... ... ... ... ...
Consolidated surpius fortheyear . ............... .. R
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1995 1994 Change
in ATS 1,000 in ATS1,000 inATS 1,000 in%
40,030,788 37,367,313 +2,663,475 + 7.1
30,870,378 28.320,518 42,540,862 + 9.0
9,160,410 9,046,797 + 113,813 + 1.3
2,209,724 1,488,978 + 740,748 4497
" 242,768 123.430 + 118838 +96.3
204,851 82,760 + 122,091 =100
$,620,312 085,080 + 6835952  +B4AS
162,293 297,728 — 135435 —455
3,553,140 3,575,250 - 2118 — 08
4,717,318 4,856,888 — 138570 -— 298
1,184,178 1,281,630 - 117452 — 9.2
1,657,131 1,330,630 + 326,501 +245
741,550 071 447 — 029,807 237
17,341,955 16,413,110 4+ 028845 4+ 57
10,238,970 9,645,410 + 593560 + 6.2
6,151,312 8,015,042 + 136270 + 23
4,184,717 4,209,776 — 25059 — 06
1,027,662 970,845 + 56817 + 59
108,139 105,271 + 2868 + 27
408,121 375,015 + 31,108 4 83
311,967 235 577 + 76390 +324
112,706 118,558 - 5852 — 49
4,087,658 3,630,368 + 457200 4126
440,844 406,213 + 34631 + 85
523,659 676,256 — 152,897 —226
11,203,473 10,727,879 + 475584 + 44
£,138.482 5,685,231 + 453251 + 80
—3,486,042 —3,154879  — 331,163 —105
— 65978 — 354.835 + 208,857  +81.4
2,586,462 2,175.517 + 410945 1188
14,941 27,286 — 12345 —452
226,125 236,241 — 12,116 - 94
-~ 211,184 — 210,055 - 290 - 0.1
136,987 98.421 + 38566 +3%.2
72,224 47,469 + 24755  +52.1
2,166,067 1,818,672 + 347,395  +19.1
79,930 50,054 + 29876 +59.7
2,086,137 1,768,618 + 317519 +18.0




ANNUAL ACCOUNTS OF CREDITANSTALT FOR 1995

BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 1995

Assets

1.

2

11,

12,
13.

Cash in hand, balances with central banks and

postofice banks. .. ... .

Treasury bills and other bills eligible for refinancing with

central banks ... ...
a) Treasury bills and similar securities .. ...............
k)  other bills eligible for refinancing with central banks . . .
Claimea on creditinstitutions ... .. .. .. ... ... 0.,
a) repayableondemand..... ... ... ... ... ....... ..
by otherclaims ... i
Claims on customers ... ... ... . . iiiiiiriinnn..

a) issued by public-sectorentilies ....................
b) issued by otherborrowers .. ........... ... .,

of which: ownissues .............................
Shares and other variable-yield securities ................
Investmente in related companies ........ ... ... ... ...

of which: in credit institutions ., . ... .....................
Investments in subsidiaries ....... 000000 i b e e aeas

Infangibie fixed assets . ....... ... .. ... ... ... ...
Tangible fixed assets .......covvvienns, N

of which: land and buildings occupied by the credit

institution for its own activities ............... ... ... ..
Own shares and own participation certificates ............
of which: nominal value ... ... ... oL

31 Dec. 1995 31 Dec. 1994 Change
in ATS 1,000 in ATS 1,000 in ATS 1,000 in%
4.870,838 7467400 — 0598562 —24.0
34,119,667 32,499,048 + 1,620,619 + 5.0
33,404 808 31,644,386 + 1,760,510 + kb
714,771 854662 — 139891 —164
230,007,048 216,388,024  +13,619,024 + 6.3
6,577,744 0214500 — 2636756 —20.8
223429304  207.173.524  +16255780 + 7.8
070,663,280 256,224,010 114439270 + 56
42 285 208 35,004 804 + 6,280,381 +17 58
5,709,984 3,058,826 + 2,651,158 +B67
36,575,221 32,036,998  + 3,639,228 +11.0
786,280 791,818 + 84,460 + 848
2,130,288 2.916,964 — 786,676 —27.0
8,028,507 7,368,632 + 659,875 + 2.0
2.715.792 2264382 — AREQD — 2.1
17.429.715 16,618,085 + 811,630 + 4.9
8,083,673 4,737,697 — 754024 —159
150,555 105,087 + 45488 +433
1,706,166 1,719,896 ~ 13728 — 0.8
400,280 413,018 - 3738 — 09
159,615 188,447 — 28632 —15.2
38,580 33,101 + 5,479 +16.6
2,006,484 2044625 ~ 38141 — 10
484,609 204,860 - 20,251 — 410
614,042,179 580,039,902 +34,002,277 + 59




Liabilitios and Shareholders’ Equity

1.

I o

SomxN

11,

12,

14.

Liabilities to credit institutions. ... ... ... oo iii i
a) repayableondemand. ... ... ... i,
b}  with agreed maturity dates or periods of notice ..... ..
Liabilities 10 CUSIOMEIS. .. ... ... . i
a) savings deposits ... ... viiiiianans i

aa) repayableondemand.................. ... ...
bb) with agreed maturity dates or periods of notice . .

k) other liabilities .................... i ey

aa) repayableondemand.. .................... ...

bb) with agreed maturity dates or periods of notice . .
Liabilities evidenced by certificates .......... e
a) bondsandnotes ... .. ... ... ...l
b) othercertificales ............oevireeiiiiiiiiannnnss
Other liabilities . . ... ... .. i i i e s
Defarrad income . ... ... e
PrOVISIONS .. ... e e aiitiaaes
a) provisions for severance compensation ..............
b} provisions for pensions ... ... Ll
C)} OWEr ProviSIONS ... ..ot ecaaianennases
Subordinated liabilities ..........0000ciieee bereriarsias

Supplementary ecapital ......... ...
Subscribed capital ... ... ...
Capital Teserves. . ... ittt

a)
[2)]

share pramium . ... .. e
Olher capital TeServesS . .......ovvuvvneaes Cevr e

REVENUE rBSEIVES L. vty e e caeaen i eaaacessrinanaaarrs

a}
b)

statutory reserves .. .. .. ..
OtNBY TBSBIVES ... ... i i iitineacnrsristasssnrnnns

Reserve under Section 23(6) of the Banking Act ..........
Net profit. .. .. ...
Untaxed reSernves . ...........oiiieeiiuurariansnneannnns

a)

b)

valuation reserve resulting from special depreciation . ..
other untaxed reserves . ....... ... ... .. .. ...
{investment allowance reserve under Section 10 of the

Income Tax Act 1988) ... ... ... . oot

Cc-8

31 Dec. 1995 31 Dec. 1994 Change
in ATS 1,000 in ATS 1,000 in ATS 1,000 in %
309.413.906 269,520,522  +39,893384 +14.8
55,047,786 98032008 —12785172 —33.8
284 166,140 231487584  +52678556 +22.8
166,674,342 160,162,949  —13,508.607 — 7.5
72,761,582 70008352  + 1763230 + 25
72,761,582 70,998,352  + 1,763,230 + 2.5
03,012,760 100,184,507  —15271837 —14.0
41,320,746 46,601,347 — 5280601 —11.3
52,592,014 62,583,200 — 9,991,236 —16.0
86,808,120 82127577  + 7,788,552 + 95
38,027,823 44850082 — 5822259 —13.2
50,968,306 37,277,495 113,690,811  +36.7
1,267,510 0070834 — 703324 —340
160,245 273258 — 113012 —41.4
7,943,776 7,613,340 + 130436 + 1.7
1,066,500 1007700 + 58800 + 58
5,001,500 4579600 + 421900 + 92
1,875,776 2,226,040 — 350,264 —15.7
10,317,674 10,400,019 — 83,245 — 08
3,648,800 3736900 — BB100 — 2.4
4,443,279 4,443,279 — —
6,171,437 8,171,497 — —
6,171,437 6.171.437 — -
4,036,674 3851674 + 185000 + 48
38,582 38,582 — _
3,996,092 3.813.092 + 185000 + 4.9
8,530,000 7043000 + 587000 + 7.4
462,109 476,727 — 14618 — 3.1
976,297 1027486 — 51,189 — 50
003,840 033840 — 30,000 — 8.2
72,457 U366 — 21188 =228
79,457 03616 — 21180 —298
614,042,179 580,030,002  +34,002277 + 5.9



ITEMS SHOWN BELOW THE BALANCE SHEET

Agsets

1.

FOrRIOn aSSBIS . . ... .ottt

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
1. Contingent abiltties . . ..o o e e

No

of which;,

a) acceptances and liabilities ariging from the
endorsement of rediscounted Bills . ............ o

b} guarantees and assets pledged as collateral security . .

Commitments . .......... ... ... ..

of which: commitrments arising from saie and repurchase
raNSactions . . .. e

Liabilities arising from trust transactions ., .................

Total net capital resources under Section 23 in combination
with Section 29 of the Banking Aet. ... ... ... .. . ..
Basis of caiculation under Section 27 of the Banking Act. ...
Foreign Habilities . ... oo i s
Cover shortage under the transitional regulations contained
in Article X(3) of the Financial Reporting Act..............

C-7

31 Dec. 1995 31 Dec. 1994 Change

in ATS 1,000 in ATS 1,000 in ATS 1,000  in %

300927572 283080806  +26,846,766 + 9.5
59,376,024 54,105,339  + 5272685 + 97
14,083,128 13,707,986  + ar5.142  + 27
45,204 806 40,307,353+ 4807543 +12.1
07 628,455 81,509,087  +16.029.368 +196
0043065 27831478 4+ 180487 4 58
46,058,415 96,007.657 4+ 50858 + 0.1

344714295  324,349.206  +20365089 <+ 6.3

273,822,693 248,940,953 124,881,740  +10.0
1,748,300 1038500 — 190,200 — 98




N@moe

9.
10.

.
.

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT OF CREDITANSTALT
for the year ended 31 Decomber 1995

Interest and similar Income .. ... e
of which: from fixed-income securities .. ...................
Interest and similar expenses. . ... oo iiiiii i

Netinterestincome .............................cvvunes

Income from securities and from investments in subsidiaries

and related companies ....... ... .. ool
a) income trom shares and other variable-yield securities . .
i) income from investments in retated companies ........
¢) income from investments in subsidiaries ..., 00000,
Net fee and commission income (subtotal of items 4 and 5)

Fee and commission income . ... .. ... .. ...,
Fee and commISSION BXPENSES .. vt iiiineiaineins e
Net profit on trading activities . ... ... ... . ...l
Other gperating income. ... ... i,

Operatingincome. .. .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ...

General administrative expenses .. ... ... ... ... ...
d) Slaff eXPeNSES . ... ... ...,
wages and salaries ... o iiiii i, ceas
atatutory social-gecurity contributions as wall as levies
and compulsory contributions dependent on wages and
salanes . ... e e
other employee benefits ............................
expenses for retirement benefits .. .. .................
allocation to the pension Provision ... ..ivvivieiiar s
allocation to the provision for severance compensation
D) other administrative expenses . ......................
Depreciation in respect of asset items 9 and 10 ..... RPN
Other aperating expenses . ... .. ... ... ...

Operating expenses . ... . . ... ... ... ..

Operatingresult ............. ... ... ... ... ...

11./12.  Net expenses arising from the sale and valuation of

loang and securities ... ... ... ...,

13.714.  Net income fexpenses ariging from the sale and

15,
16.
17,
18.
18.
VI.

20.

Vil

21.

valuation of bonds and notes valued as financial fixed

assets and of invesiments in subsidiaries and related

COMPAMES . .. e e
Result of ardinary activities .. ... ... ... ... ... ...
Extracrdinary income .. ... .. e
EXtracrainany eXpenSesS . .. ...

Result of extraordinary Hems (subtotal of items 15 and 16)..
Taxes ONINCOME ... ... i

Surplus fortheyear ......._ ... .. ... ..........

Adjustment ofresarves ... ...
of which: allccation to the Reserve under Section 23(8) of
the Banking Act ... ... .. . e

Profitfortheyear. .....................................
Profit rought forwarg from the previous year ..............

VII. Netprofit ... .. ... . ... .. . . . . . ................

C-8

1995 1904 Change
in ATS 1,000  in ATS 1,000 in ATS 1,000 in%
36,403,042 23020401  +13,103551 + 08
5,158,970 4,354,041 + 804,979 +185
28,981,754 25,792,793 + 3,188,961 +12.4
7,441,208 7,430,698 + 4,590 + 0.1
1,172,053 831,586 + 340,467 +40.9
45352 32337 4+ 13015  +40.2
279,369 362,789 — 83420 —230
847,332 436,460 + 410,872  +94.1
2,993 061 3,003,260 — 79308 — 2.6
3.890.416 4077881 ~ 187465 — 4.6
966,455 1074612~ 108,157 —10.1
1,408,692 1,033,475 + 465117 4450
509,000 441,231 + 67.769 +15.4
13,544,894 12,746,259 + 798.83& + 8.3
8,505,190 8,085,321 + 509,878 + 6.3
9.237,824 5113.010 + 124814 + 24
3,505,766 3,536,361 - 30,595 — 0.9
856,217 801,006 + 55211 + 6.9
84,980 86,383 — 2001 - 23
390,125 358444 + 31681 + 88
301,127 219,554 + 81,573 +3r7.2
100,187 111,242 — 11,055 — 9.9
3.357,375 2972311  + 385084 +130
275,370 254,118 + 21,252 + 8.4
300,193 228,764 + 71,429 +31.2
9,170,762 8,568,203 + 602,559 + 7.0
4,374,132 4,178,056 + 196,076 + 4.7
— 2974757 2713561 — 261,206 — 96
— 45 987 276,897 — 322,884 > 100
1,353,388 1,741,402 — 388.014 —52.3
196,000 195,700 + 300 + 0.2
— 196,000 - 195,700 — 300 — 0.2
19.087 00,207 — 10,140 —347
11,877 8574 + 3303 +385
1,126,424 1507901 — 381477 —953
700,617 1,064,065 — 364,348 342
587,000 335,000 + 252,000 +75.2
425,807 442 336 - 17,129 — 39
36,302 3379 4+ 2511 + 74
462,109 476,727 - 14,618 — 31




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS OF CREDITANSTALT
AND OF THE CA GROUP FOR 1995

The annual accounts of Craditanstalt-Bankvarein (Craditanstalt) and the consolidated accounts of
the CA Group for 1995 have baen prepared in accordance with the formate set out in Annex 2 1o Article |,
Saction 43, of the Austrian Banking Act as publiched in the Federal Law Gazette BGBI 639/1993.

These formats must for the first time bs used for the annual accounts of credit institutions for
business years ending after 31 Dacember 1994. The financial reporting rules applicable in the European
Union have thereby been introduced in Austria. At the same time credit institutions are required, for the
first time, to prepare consolidated accounts from that date,

I. Aecounting and valuation methods
a) Foreign currency franslation

All assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies have been translated at the middle rates
of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date. Holdings of foreign notes and coins have been
translated at the relevant middle rates of exchange.

In the consolidated accounts, foreign currency items of foreign CA Group members have first been
translated into local currency at the local middle rates of exchange and then into Austrian schillings at the
corresponding middle rates of exchange prevailing on the Vienna foreign exchange market at the balance
sheet date.

b) Fixed assels
Securities intended to be held as long-term investments have been valued at cost.

Investments in subsidiaries and related companies are stated at acquisition cost unless persistent
losses have led to perrmanent diminutions in value requiring write-downs. This applies to both listed and
unlisted companics.

For interest-bearing securitics held as fixed assets, use is made, above a specific amount, of the
option to spread premiums/ discounts over the period to maturity in accordance with Section 56(2) and
Section 56(3) of the Banking Act. At the balance sheet date, the remaining premium for the period to
malurity was ATS 101.0 million for the CA Group, and ATS 87.3 million for Creditanstalt.

Land and buildings as well as office furniture and equipment are stated at acquisition cost or
production cost less normal depreciation. The depreciation rates for real property range between 2% and
3%, and for movable assets between 5% and 25%.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS OF CREDITANSTALT
AND OF THE CA GROUP FOR 1995 (Continued)

The analyses of fixed assets are presented below. No use was made of the option to take the book
values as acquisition cost for the first analysis of Group fixed assets.

Fixed assets of the CA Group at 31 December 1995 (in ATS m)

Accumulated
dapreciation/ Depreciation/
Batance sheet  Acquisition Acquisition  write-downs/  Balance sheet write-downs/
value at cost*} st Additions Disposals ¢ost at wiite-ups until value at writa-ups
Balance sheet item 91 Doc, 1994 1Jan, 1995 1985 1995  31Dec. 1995 31 Dec. 1935 31 Dec. 1995 1985
2. a) Treaeury bills and other
securities efigible for
refinansing with central
banks. ................ 28,754 28,757 45532 42,403 31,888 {22) 31,854 (27)
3. b) Other claims on credit
institutions ,...., . 299 276 — 45 231 {n 230 —
4. Claims on customers . ... ... 4,200 5544 610 3,458 2,808 {9) 2,887 —

5. a) Bonds ang other fixed-

inceme securities issued

by public-sectar entitios 1,382 1,282 2177 1,318 0,044 (14) 2007 {14}
5. b) Bonds and other fixed-

income securities issued

by other borrowers ... .. 24,612 24,823 8,728 9,669 23,780 (28) 23,762 (17)

0. Shares and other variable-

yield securities . ............ 500 735 422 210 937 (14) 923 21
7. Investments in related

GOMPAMNIES v vvsvineniennan 9.014 2.014*%) 1,114 404 9,664 339 10,003 339
8. Tnvestments in subsidiaries .. 10,415 10,415+*) 2,880 1,707 11,568 254 11,842 254
9. Intangible fived assels ... .. 274 479 131 24 586 (272) 314 (67)
10. Tangible fixed assels ....... 2,171 4,913 565 90 5,388 {3,051) 2,337 (309
Total fixed assets .. .._..._.... 81.901 86,128 62,157 58,278 89,007 (2.828) 86,179 180

of which: net income for the year
of companies valued at equity

—
73
=3
[==)

*) including foreign currency translation adjustmant
**} including balance aricing from consalidation



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS OF CREDITANSTALT
AND OF THE CA GROUP FOR 1995 (Continued)

Fixed assets of Creditanstalt at 31 December 1995 (in ATS m)

Accumulated
Balanse sheat  Asquisition Aequisition dapresiatian]  Balanse shest Dapraciation/
value at gost’) at  Additions Disposals cost al write-downs until valug at write-downs

Balanca shaat item 31 Dae. 1004 1 Jan. 1005 1445 1995 31 Das. 1085 31 Dea. 1995 31 Dee. 1995 1995
2. a}y Treasury bills and

other securilies

gligible for refinancing

with central banks ... 27,178 27,188 44,493 41,568 30,174 (21) 30,103 (18)
3. b} Other claims on credit

institutions ... ... o 299 278 — 45 21 {1 230 —_
4. Claims on customers . .... 4,290 9,944 610 3,458 2,696 {9 2,687 -—
5. a) Bonds and other

fixed-income

securities issued by

public sector entities 1,500 1,282 2,001 1,301 2072 (14) 2,058 {14)
5. h) Bonds and other

fixed-income

securities issued by

othar borrowers. ... .. 12,118 11,899 8222 5,924 14,197 (12) 14,185 (n
6. Shares and other variable-

yield securities .......... 190 220 23 27 226 (38} 188 (2}
7. Investmenis in related
GOMpanies .o...o.vvvun. 7,369 7,629 1,000 234 8,030 (907} 8.028 (73)

8. Investments in subsidiaries 16,618 18,204 2,362 1,457 19,109 (1,679) 17,430 (352}
9. Intangibie fixec agsets . . .. 105 196 73 — 269 {118) 151 (27}
10. Tangible fixed assels..... 1,720 4,199 233 24 4,388 (2,682) 1,706 (248}
Total fixed assets .......... 71,477 76,808 58,137 54098 81,847 {5.081) 76,766 {735)

") including foreign currency translation agjugtment

¢} Current assets

Listed securities held as current assets with appropriate liquidity are marked to market. At
31 December 1995, the market value of such securities held by the CA Group exceeded cost by
ATS 276.5 million (Creditanstalt: ATS 200.2 million). For other listed securities held as current assets,
the market value within the CA Group at the balance sheet date was ATS 52.3 million (Credilanstalt;
ATS 49.2 million) higher than the balance sheet figure.

Provisions have bean made for identifiable risks associated with borrowers. For individual groups of
risk assets, specific provisions have baen made according to group-related criteria.

The provision for possible logses on loans to rescheduling countries takes account of international
market prices.

No use hag been made of the optional valuation rules under Section 57 (1) of the Banking Act.

d) Liabilitias

lsguing costs and premiums/discounte in connection with bond issues are gpread on a straight-line
basis over the period to maturity. Disbursement commissions are recognised in the profit and ioss
account at the time of loan disbursement, and premiums/discounts on mortgage bonds and
local-authority bonds in the yaar of issue.

Pension obligations are calculated on the basig of the Ettl-Pagler mortality tables and an interest rate
of 8%, using the present-value method for prospective pension benefits and the cash-value method for
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS OF CREDITANSTALT
AND OF THE CA GROUF FOR 1985 (Continued)

pensions. For severance compensation obligations at the balance sheet date, a provision has been made
which covers 50% of the deemed rights to severance payments. As a lower limit for the two provisions,
the level permissible in accordance with the relevant expert ogpinion of the Austrian certified public
accountants is maintained at all times.

The provisions for annivergary bonugeg and death benefite have been calculated in accordance with
the going-concern value method (“Teilwertvertahren'), using an interegt rate of 8%. Their levels ara in
keeping with the recommendationg contained in the expert opinion of the Austrian certified public
accountants.

Il. Consolidation principles

a) The 1995 consolidated accounts represent accounts required by law for the first time. 1 January
1995 was chosen as the date of first consolidation {capital consolidation and equity method valuation}.

b) The consolidation was carried out in accordance with the consolidation rules contained in the
Austrian Commercial Code as published in the Financial Reporting Act 1990, on the basis of audited
annual accounts or sub-group accounts using group-wide valuation rules. For the purpose of capital
consolidation and for the valuation at equity, the book value method was used (exception: for the
sub-group accounis of CA-Leasing GmbH, the revaluation method was used). For the consolidation of
AVABANK AG, CA-3 Banken Beteiligungsfonds AG, Creditanstalt Investment Bank AG and CA-Leasing
GmbH, sub-group accounts were used.

¢) Inaccordance with Section 58 of the Banking Act, the consolidated companies include the controlled
domestic and foreign credit institutiong as well ag the major controlled domestic and foreign financial
institutions. Ail other investments of Creditanstalt in companies which ara material for giving a true and
fair view of the CA Group's asgets, financial and earnings position, were dealt with by way of the equity
method. In the consolidated accounts, joint ventures wera accounted for under the equity method instead
of proportional consalidation. For the other companies in which investments are held, use was made of
the rules of Section 249(2) and Section 263(2) of the Commercial Code. They are included in the list
drawn up in accordance with Section 238 of the Commarcial Code.

With the exception of Banca C. Steinhauslin and C., S.p.A., a company sold in 1995, the
consolidated companies in the 1995 consolidated accounts are the same as in the 1994 consolidated
accounts. Despite this change, a meaningful comparison of the two sets of accounts is possible.

d) Forinvestments in companies which were neither fully consolidated nor included in the consclidated
accounts by way of the equity method, the book values and dividends received as contained in the
respective annual accounts have been used.

e) The sub-group of CA-Leasing GmbH comprises those companies which are to be included in
accordance with Section 52(3) of the Banking Act and whose activities are a direct extension of banking
or services ancillary to banking.

In the cub-group accounte of CA-lLeaasing GmbH and AVABANK AG, fixed assets leased to
customers were attributed, in accordance with Section 59(7) of the Banking Act, to the individual
categories of claims at the present value of the discounted claims under leasing transactions.

f) As part of the full consolidation, differences of about ATS 1.2 billion arising from capital consolidation
on the assets side were set off against differences of about ATS 0.6 billion on the liabilities side, and the
balance was shown as "‘Balance arising from capital consolidation’ under the revenue reserves. The
difference compared with the previous year results mainly from the change in the set of consolidated
companies referred to above.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS OF CREDITANSTALT
AND OF THE CA GROUP FOR 1985 (Continued)

As part of the full consolidation, intercompany claims and liabilities were eliminated; in the profit and
loge account, axpenseas arising from fully consolidated companies were offset against income from these
companies.

g) To ensure that the consolidated accounts provide meaningful information, all companies accounted
for under the equity method were included on a same-period basis. For those companies for which annual
accounts as at 31 December 1005 were not yet available, preliminary confirmed figures for their net
income for the year and equity were used. Differences between preliminary figures used and figures
atated in the annual accounts are taken into account in the subsaquent period. In the list prepared in
accordance with Seation 238 of the Commercial Code, the data contained in the most recent audited
acecounts are digelosed.

Under thie valuation mathod, the book values of investments as at 1 January 1995 were compared
with the share of equity. Differences on the liabilities side increased the revenue reserve by ATS 3.2
billion. The major part of these differences arose from retained profits in the period during which the
invastments have been held by Creditanstalt, Differences on the agsets side which were not attributed to
any specific assets amounted to ATS 3.6 billion and were offset against the revenue reserve. Attributed
differences contained in investments in associated companies total ATS 2.1 biltion.

Dividend payments received from these companies were replaced by the share of net income for the
year.

Under the equity method, investments in companies which are not subject to the rules of the
Banking Act continued to be valued according to general principles under the Commercial Code.

h) No major intercompany profits existed within the CA Group and thoge companies which are included
in the consolidated accounts under the equity method.

i) At present, the Group members do not hold any shares and participation certificates in Creditanstalt.

j) In line with the prevailing views of authoritative sources and commentaries, the presentation of
shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet of the CA Group has been changed; according to the source,
equily is now subdivided into paid-up capital and earned surplus. The Reserve under Section 23(6) of
the Banking Act is included in the revenue reserves, which do, however, not yet contain any
appropriations from the surplus for the year. Shareholders’ equity totalled ATS 25.6 billion, up by ATS 0.6
billion on the previous year, most of the increase resulting from the movement in sharaholders’ equity of
Creditanstait.

k) The data in the 1994 consolidated accounts published on a voluntary basis were slightly adjusted to
make them comparable with the 1995 consolidated accounts; however, no change was made in the
valuation principles.

fil. Notes to the balance sheet and the consolidated balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet and the consolidated profit and loss account are determined to a
large extent by the data in the annual accounts of Creditanstalt.

The CA Group's total assets rose by about ATS 29.6 billion or about 4.8%, corresponding to the
growth in Credilanstalt's total assets. Foreign business accounted for about 50.6% of the CA Group's
total assets (1994: about 49.6% ) and about 50.5% of Creditanstait’s total assets {1994: about 48.8%).

The consolidated balance sheet total is about ATS 645 billion, exceeding the comparable figure for
the annual accounts of Creditanstalt by about ATS 31 billion. This additional business volume is mainly
accounted for by AVABANK, the CA-Leasing group as well as the commercial banking subsidiaries in
Munich, Budapest, Prague and Warsaw.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS OF CREDITANSTALT
AND OF THE CA GROUP FOR 1995 (Continued)

a) Analyses of the claims on credit institutions and on customers by original maturities for the CA Group
and Creditanstalt as well as analyses of the liabilities to credit institutions and to customers by original
maturities for the CA Group and Creditanstalt are given below.

Analysis of claims and liabilities by original maturities (GA Group)

Amounts in ATS m repayable up to 3 months 1 year up over

at 31 December*) ondemand 3montha uptoiyear to5years 5 years Total
Claims on credit institutions. .. ....... . 6,842 60,641 89,727 38,671 25,635 221,516
Claimg on customers .. .................. 58,276 49,625 16,345 30,682 131,356 295,284
Bonds and other fixed-income securities. . . —_ 239 2,712 18,342 28,650 48,843
Total claimes — 1995 ... ... . ... ... . ... 65,118 110,505 108,784 06,695 185,541 566,643
Total claims — 1984 ............... 64,594 110,196 110,744 56,090 196,144 538,768
Liabilities to credit institutions . .. .. ....... 2,785 142.187 67.806 42,355 38,096 316,029
Liabilities to custormers .. ..o.vvrevreen... 45,069 59,296 23,499 156,984 6,002 179,850
Liabilities evidenced by cartificates ., ... .. — 24682 10,800 32,081 47,276 93,299
Total liabilities — 1905 . . . ... .. .. 70,854 203,045 131,705 91,300 91,374 589,178
Total iabilities — 1994 ... ... .. .... 89,823 200,990 129,791 50,082 85,626 557,212

*) translated at the middle rate of exchange ruling in Vienna at the end of December

Analysis of claims and liabilities by original maturities (Creditanstalt)

1 year up

Amounts in ATS m repayable up to 3 months tob over

at 31 Decomber*) on demand 3 months up to 1 year yoars 6 yoars Total
Claims on credit institutions ,,............ 6,578 56,809 99,433 40,956 26,231 230,007
Claimg on customers . ... ... ............ 60,680 44,884 11,623 30,717 122,749 270,663
Bonds and other fixed-income securities . . . —_ — 1,800 15,136 25,240 42,285
Totalclaims — 1995 .. . ... .. ... . . ... 67,268 101,803 112,856 86,800 174,288 542055
Total claims — 1994 ................cv0. 66,729 112,459 111,526 66,209 151,684 808,607
Liabilities to credit institutions . ........... 25,248 139,422 66,353 41 498 36,065 308,414
Liabilities to customers .................. 41,321 54,278 52,901 12,476 5698 166,674
Liabilitiee evidenced by certificates ... .. ... — 2,404 10,421 35,122 41,849 89,896
Total liabilities — 1995, .. ... .. .. . ... 66,569 196,104 129,675 83,024 84,612 565,984
Total liabilities — 1994 ... ... ......... 82,082 193.470 125,683 48,806 81,701 531,894

*) translated at the middle rate of axehange ruling in Vienna at the end of December

b) Details concerning companies in which an investment is held in accordance with Section 238 no. 2 of
the Commercial Code are listed separately as a part of the notes to the annual accounts. ORAG
Osterreichische Realitdten-AG, CA Fund Advisory Fonds Beratungs Gesellschaft m.b.H. and
“CA-Coneult International” Investitionsprojektberatungsgesellschaft m.b.H. are fully gontrolled by, and
integrated into, Creditanstalt.

¢) The amount stated for land and buildings in Creditanstalt's baiance sheet at 31 December 1995
includes the value of developed land of ATS 34.6 million (1994: ATS 34.8 million).



NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS OF CREDITANSTALT
AND OF THE CA GROUP FOR 1995 (Continued)

d) Trust assefs

Trust assets held within the CA Group are about ATS 34,404 million. Of this total, the fund assels
managed on behalf of third parties by Osterreichische Investment Gesellschaft m.b.H. account for about
ATS 30,171 million.

Assets held by Creditanstalt in its own name but for third-party account are included in the following
balance sheet items:

1995 1994
in ATS m
O Ty TR e g N oL D=1 o 01 = = 3,322.1 3,216.6
Liabifities to credit institutions ..o e e e 33.8 287
Liabilities 1o customers ..o i i e e e e e e, 3,288.3 3,187.9

e} Reserves

At 31 December, the investment allowance reserve under Section 10 of the Income Tax Act in
Creditanstalt’s balance sheet wag composed as follows:

1005 1004

in ATS 1,000
oM 10T e e — 41,344
oM 1002 e 43,893 29,657
TTOM 190 L e e 5,616 —
TOM 1094 22,948 22,645

TOM 10T L e e — —
72,457 93,646

The increase compared with the previous year’s figures results from the merger with CALG Mobilien
Leasing GmbH.

The valuation reserve for undisclosed reserves transferred under Section 12 of the Income Tax Act is
shown at ATS 903.8 million {1994: ATS 933.8 million}.

f) Provisions

Provisions for pensions in the CA Group’s balance sheet total ATS 5,178.1 million (1994
ATS 4,770.3 million).

Under Austrian law, the requirement for the provision for pensions for Creditanstalt under Section 14
of the Income Tax Act totals ATS 50244 million (1994: ATS 5,620.1 million). Of this amount,
ATS 5,001.5 million (1994: ATS 4,679.6 million), including a portion of ATS 156.0 million which was
subject to tax, is shown in the annual accounts of Creditanstalt at 31 December 1985 in accordance with
the transitional rule under Section 116 of the Inceme Tax Act. The regular aliocation ig included as an
expense in staff expenses, and the additionally required pro-rata 1995 allocation of ATS 117.5 million
(1894: ATS 117.0 million}, resulting from the transition to the Financial Reporting Act rules as at
1 January 1992, is shown under ‘‘extraordinary expenses’ in the profit and loss account. The remaining
additional requirement under the Income Tax Act to be allocated until the year 2009 is ATS 922.9 million
(1984: ATS 1,040.5 million). The provision as calculated on the basis of the expert opinion of the
Augtrian certified public aceountante. uging an interast rate of 6% and the going-concern value method
(" Teilwertverfahren), would be ATS 7,095.3 million (1994: ATS B6,782.7 million). The shortfall of
ATS 1,170.9 million (1994 ATS 1,162.6 milion), or 168.5% (1994: 17.1%), compared with the
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requirement of ATS §,924.4 million (1994; ATS 5,620.1 million) under Section 14 of the Income Tax Act
is below the tolerance limit of 25% indicated in the expert opinion of the certified public accountants. The
cover shortage under Article X(3} of the Financial Reporting Act is ATS 1,748.3 million (1994:
ATS 1,938.5 million). For the Austrian part of the CA Group, the total shortfall under the going-concern
value method is ATS 2,151.1 million.

Provisions for severance compensation in the CA Group total ATS 1,159.4 milion {1994:
ATS 1,127 .0 million) . The provisions for severance compensation shown in Creditanstalt’s balance sheet,
at ATS 1,066.5 million (1994: ATS 1,007.7 million), comply with the rules under Section 14 of the Income
Tax Act. This amount covers 50% of the deemed rights to severance payments and is ATS 238.9 million
(1994; ATS 206.5 million) lower than the actuarial requirement of ATS 1,305.4 million (1994:
ATS 1,214.2 million) calculated on the basis of an interest rate of 6%. The deviation of 18.3% (1994
17.0%) is also below the tolerance limit of 25%.

A total amount of ATS 97.5 million (1994: ATS 100.7 million) was allocated to the provisions for
anniversary bonuses and death benefits in Creditanstalt’'s balance sheet. Of this amount, one-fifth of the
additional requirement of ATS 392.6 million under the Financial Reporting Act, i.e. ATS 78.5 million, was
inciuded in “extraordinary expenses” in the profit and loss account.

Other provisions mainly comprise provisions for rigks in the lending and securities buginess as well
ag for expenses arising from equity investments in subsidiaries and related companies and for other
expenses attributable to the financial year.

g) Equity capital
At 31 December 1995 the share capital, shown unchanged, was composed as follows:

nominal amount

OrdiNarY SIS . ittt e e ATS 2,870,000,000
Non-Yoling ordinary Shares . ...ttt it ettt aea e ATS 1,230,000,000

ATS 4,100,000,000

Ordinary shares of Creditanstalt carry the full shareholder rights under the Companies Act.
Non-voting ordinary shares of Creditanstait carry the same gharsholder rights except the veting right; the
preference dividend of 6% — it not or not fully paid — must be paid out of the net profite of the
subsequent business years. At 31 Dacember 1995 the nominal amount of authorised but unissued
capital, which may be issued until 31 March 1997, was unchanged and amounted to ATS 1 billion.

The participation capital has been placed at the Bank's disposal as long as the company exists,
under waiver of extraordinary and ordinary cancellation. It may be repaid only with due regard to the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the banking supervision rules. CA participation certificates
give the holder a share of the net assets and the right to receive a share of profit at the same percentage
rate as the dividend paid on the non-voting ordinary shares, as well as the right to attend annual general
meeiings and request information thera.

At 31 December 1995, the nominal participation capital under Section 23(4) of the Banking Act
amounted to ATS 343,279,000, as in the previous year, represented by 686,558 participation certificates
with a nominal value of ATS 500 each.

The accounts contain own participation capital with a book value of ATS 52,070,400 (1994
ATS 38,275,660). In addition, own participation capital with a book value of ATS 4,032,000 (1994:
none) was lent,
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At 31 Decembear 1995, the CA Group’s liabilities inciuded subordinated capital in the amount of
ATS 13,981,974 000 (1994: ATS 14,898712,000), of which  ATS 3,654,800,000 (1994:
ATS 3,741,400,000) was supplementary capital under Section 23(7) of the Banking Act, and
subordinated bonds accounted for ATS 10,327,174,000 (1984: ATS 11,157,312,000). At 31 December
1995, Creditanstalt’s lhabilities included subordinated capital in the amount of ATS 13,966,474,000
(1894: ATS 14,137,819,000), of which ATS 3,648,800,000 (1994: ATS 3,736,900,000) was
supplementary capital under Section 23(7) of the Banking Act, and subordinated bonds accounted for
ATS 10,317,674,000 {1994 ATG 10,400,919,000). At 31 December 1895, the Bank held supplementary
capital with a nominal value of ATS 29,520,000 (1994: ATS 33,150,000) and subordinated capital with a
nominal value of ATS 65,460,000 (1994: ATS 89,720,000} as well as US$14,970,000 (1994: none) in
its own portfolio.

Supplementary capital comprises those paid-up capital resources which, under the terms of an
agreement, are placed at the disposal of the credit institution for at least eight years under waiver of
ordinary and exiracrdinary notice; on which interest may be paid to the extent that such interest is
covered by the surplus for the year (before adjustment of reserves); which, prior to liquidation, may be
repaid only subject to pro-rata deduction of the net losses which have accrued during their term; which
are subordinated under Section 45(4) of the Banking Act; whose residual maturity is at ieast three years;
and with respect to which the bank auditors have certified the fulfilment of the conditions mentioned
above.

Subordinated liabilities are liabilities, whether or not evidenced by certificates, which, under the
terms of an agreement and in the event of liquidation or bankruptey, may be satisfied only after the claims
of other ereditore have been satisfied.

A reciprocal shareholtding relationship without significant influence on either side exists with
EA-Generali AG.

h) Own shares

To ensure the proper functioning of the market, we and CA-affiliated companies acguired
1,134,243 ordinary shares with a nominal value of ATS 100 each at the average price of ATS §76,
2,177,062 non-voting ordinary shares with a nominal value of ATS 100 each at the averags price of
ATS 558, and 154,709 participation certificates with a nomiral value of ATS 500 each at the average
price of ATS 1,544, and we sold 1.394.915 ordinary shares at the average price of ATS 579,
1,924,422 non-voting ordinary shares at the average price of ATS 558, and 134,983 participation
certificates at the average price of AT3 1,495. The sales proceeds were added to the working capital. At
the balance sheet date, we held 36,598 shares (1924: 183,270) with a nominal value of ATS 100 each of
the Bank’'s own ordinary shares {including 5,000 shares lent and 119,000 shares borrowed to cover
short-term delivery obligations), 168,406 shares (1994: 51,666) with a nominal value of ATS 100 each
of the Bank's own non-voting ordinary shares, and 36,160 participation certificates (1994: 19,234} of the
Bank's own participation certificates (i.e. 5.27%, 1994: 2.8%). The holdings of ordinary shares and
non-voting ordinary shares correspond 1o a total of 0.5% of Creditanstalt's share capital, while the highest
level reached during 1985 was 0.57% of the share capital.

Additional securities lending and borrowing transactions were effected during 1995 to ensure the
proper functioning of the Vienna Stock Exchange.




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS OF CREDITANSTALT
AND OF THE CA GROUP FOR 1995 (Continued)

i) Other information

Obiigations arising from the use of tangible fixed assets not shown in the balance sheet (rented and
leased assets), to the extent that contracte had been concluded by the time the balance sheat wag
drawn up:

1995 1094
in ATS m in ATS bn

CA Group
total for the following five business years ... o vt i, 4,039.6 5.9
of which:
in the following business year ..........., e e e e 1,478.9 1.6
Creditanstalt '
total for the following five business years ................ e 2,856.2 2.9
of which:
in the following business year ... oviiii it nenii e iiieneaanns, 710.1 0.6

In 1995 the total volume of the CA Group's leasing business was about ATS 19.4 billion (1994
ATS 20.3 billion}.

From subsidiaries, the CA Group acquired intangible assets in the amount of ATS 117.4 million, and
Creditanstalt in the amount of ATS 37.5 million, during the busginess year.

Details concerning assets pledged as security under Section 64 (1) no. 8 of the Banking Act, the
breakdown of certain asset items into listed and unlisted securities under Section 64 (1) no. 10 of the
Banking Act, as well as the breakdown of securities admitted to stock exchange trading into those valued
as fixed assets and others under Section 64 (1) no. 11 of the Banking Act are given below.

Assets pledged as security under Section 64 (1) no. 8 of the Banking Act (Creditanstalt)

At 31 December 1995, fixed-income securities and assigned claims with a total nominal value of
ATS 46,561.1 million were pledged as security for liabilities arising from the following transactions:

In ATS m*)
Security provided in favour of the Austrian National Bank for foreign exchange
transactions . ............... P T T 1,287 .4
Margin requirement in favour of OTOB . ... .. ... . e 3505
Security provided in favour of QOesterreichische Kontrolibank Aktiengesellschaft for the
settlement of securities transactions. . ... ... .. 172.7
Security provided in favour of foreign banks for securities lending transactions ......... 13.5
Assets pledged in favour of foreign banking subsidiaries. .............. ... ... ... - 9546
Security provided in favour of Euro-Clear for securities transactions ...... S 1,200.2
Claims assigned in favour of Qesterreichische Kontrollbank Aktiengesellschaft.......... 41,157.0
S Ol . . 45,135.9
Collateral fund for savings depositson behalf of wards . ...... ... ... ... ............ 204.2
Collateral fund for funded CA BONGS ... ... .. 721.0
Substitute collateral for CA mortgage bonds ................ e, 500.0
L1 2 | P 46,561.1

"} translated at the middle rate of exchange ruling in Vienna at the end of December
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information under Section 64 (1) no. 10 and no. 11 of the Banking Act {Creditanstalt)

Amounts in ATS 1,000 Valued as
at 31 December 1995*} Unlisted Listed fixed agsate  Other valuation Total

5. Bonds and other fixed-

income securities . ... ... — 42,285,205 17,012,154 25273051 42,285,205
a) issued by public-
sector entities ... .. - 5709984 2,101,476 3,608,508 5,709,984
b) issued by other
borrowers ... ... .. — 36575221 14,910,678 21,664,543 36,575,221
6.  Shares and other
variable-yield securities . . 810,514 1,319,774 45,249 1,274,625 2,130,288
7. Investments in related
COMPANIes . ............ 809,320 7,219,187 8,028,507
8. Investments in
subsidiaries . ........ ... 13,825,824 3,603,891 17.,429715

“)  translated at the middle rate of exchange ruling in Vienna at the end of December

Of the bonds and other fixed-income securities shown on the assets side (under Section 64 (1)
no. 7 of the Banking Act}, securities in the repayable amount of ATS 6,993.0 million held by the
CA Grouo become due in 1996; securities in the repayable amount of ATS 5,864.8 million held by
Creditanstalt become due in 1996, Of the bonds and notes shown on the liabilities side {Section 64 (1)
no. 7 of the Banking Act) of the CA Group's balance sheet, securities in the repayable amount of
ATS 9,046.1 million issued by Creditanstalt become due in 1996.

The foreign assets shown below the fine refiect Creditanstalt’s business with partners who are not
resident in Austria and do not have their habitual domicile in Austria. Within the total amount, the largest
iterns are {in ATS billion):

Claims on foraign credit iNSHIUNIONS .. .. . o 200.5
Claims an fareign CUSTOMBIS .. .. ..t 63.3
Foreign bonds and other fixaed-income Securities ... . 37.6
Investmente in subgidiaries and relaied COMPArES . . .. .. 4.0
OO G88BIS . e 1.6

The contingent liabilities shown below the CA Group’s balance sheet are dominated by the data for
Creditanstalt. The sub-item 1.a) acceptances and liabilities arising from the endorsement of rediscounted
hills of Creditanstalt mainly includes bills under the Austrian export promotion scheme, ERP bills and bills
rediscounted at the Austrian National Bank. The sub-item 1.05) guarantees and assets pledged as
gecurity includes guaranteas in the total amount of ATS 38,716.8 million (1994 ATS 36,355.9 million)
and letters of credit in the total amount of ATS 6.578.1 million (1994: ATS 4,041.3 million).

In addition to the contingert liabilities shown below the line, a commitment has been imposed on
Creditanstalt under its membership, prescribed in Section 23 of the Banking Act of "'Einlagensicherung
der Banken und Bankiers Gesellschaft m.b.H.”. If claims are raised against this institution, formed for the
purpose of savings deposits protection, each bank is obliged to contribute towards the settiement of
such claims up 1o the maximum of one-third of its reserve set up under Section 23{6) of the Banking Act
as shown at the latest balance sheet date, For Creditanstalt the relevant amount is ATS 2,843.3 million
(1994: ATS 2.647.7 million). The relevant contingent liabilities of other Austrian members of the
CA Group total ATS 69.9 milkion,
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Most of the commitments shown below the line represent loan commitments and undrawn credit
facilities,

At 31 December 1995, the capital resourceg of Creditanstalt weare unchanged at about ATS 36.3
billion, of which ATS 23.6 billion was core capital (1994: ATS 22 .8 billion).

The total capital ratio was 10.6%, down by 0.7% on 1994; the tier 1 capital ratio was 6.8% compared
with 7.0%. For Creditanstalt, the basis of calculation under Section 22 of the Banking Act consists of
weighted assets of about ATS 303.5 billion and weighted off-balance sheet transactions of about
ATS 41.2 billion; for the CA Group, the basis of calculation under Section 30 of the Banking Act consists
of weighted assets of ATS 341.0 billion and weighted off-balance sheet transactions of ATS 44.3 billion.
The consolidated capital resources of the CA Group totalled about ATS 38.0 billion (1994: ATS 37.2
billion), corresponding to about 9.8% of the consolidated basis of calculation of ATS 386.2 billion (1994;
10.3% of ATS 360.9 billion); of this, core capital amounted to about ATS 25.7 billion (1994: ATS 24,2
billion}, representing about £.7% of the basis of calculation, as in the previous year.

The foreign liabilities shown below the line reflect Creditanstalt's business with partners who are not
resident in Austria and do not have their habitual domicile in Austria. Within the total amount, the largest
items are {in ATS billion):

Liabilities to foreign credit institutions .. ... ... ... ............ 210.0
Liabilities to foreign customers . ... ... . ... 30.8
Liabilities evidenced by certificates ............. .. .......... 27.7
Subordinated lizbilities to foreigners and supplementary capitat

issued abroad ... ... ... e 45

Foreign currency assets in the CA Group's balance sheet total ATS 328.3 billion, and foreign
currency liabilities ATS 326.9 billion, Creditanstalt's balance sheet contains foreign currency assets of
ATS 294.6 billion and foreign currency liabilities of ATS 293.2 billion (see analyses by currencies below).

Analysis of assets/liabilities by currencies

Greditanstalt CA Group

Amounts in ATS m Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

at 31 Docember*) 1995 1994 1995 1994 1995 1994 1995 1994
Austrian schilling ............. 319,463 305,874 320,822 301,812 346,712 813510 318,122 309,756
US dobar ... 131665 130555 121,070 135575 146335 145616 135516 150,015
DAMErK e 39,960 38,171 50852 52820 47,670 42989 58683 57,845
Pound sterling .. .............. 37,145 28,356 37,776 20,589 37,463 28419 38,103 29,657
SWISS ANG L. ... 23497 23446 26495 14,039 23733 23783 26700 14,274
Other GUITENGiSs . ............. 62,312 54,138 56,119 46205 73,088 61,137  67.875 53,006
Subtotal — foreign currencies .. 204579 274,666 203,220 278,228 328,295 301943 326,885 305,697
Total ..o 614042 580,040 614,042 580,040 645007 615453 645007 615453

*) translated at the middle rate of exchange ruling in Vienna at the end of December

Creditanstalt’s derivatives activities are shown below. The total volume of derivative transactions at
the other units of the financial group (primarily at Creditanstalt's subsidiaries in Centrat Europe) is very
modest, with risk controlled by Creditanstalt.
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Total volume of outstanding financial derivative transactions (Creditanstalt) presented in the
format recommended by the Institute of International Finance Inc., Washington:

Notional amounts Remaining life Market value
Amounts in ATS m at 31 Decomber 1995 < tyear 1—Eyears > b years Total {positive}
A. Interest rate contracts
OTC products:
Forward rate agreamenta. . ... ... ... 403,091 4 — — 403,001 .4 816.6
Single-currency swaps .. .......... ... ... 79,860.4 171,735.7 69,802.8 321,398.9 8.925.8
Interest rate options bought .......oviv i, 7,142.1 14,470.9 5,069.9 27,172.9 3920.0
Interest rate options sold ., ..................... £,6003 10,8829 5,680.5 222827 —_—
Other interest rate contracts .. .................. — - —_ — —
Exchange-traded products:
Intereet rate futures ... ... L. 88458 — — 88456 —
Options on interest rate futures . .........._..... 548.2 — — 548.2 —
Total A ... ... VR e 505,097.0 197,188.5 81,053.2 783,330.7 9932 4
B. Foreign exchange contracts
QTC products:
Ferward foreign exchange transactions .......... 1329112 40220 — 136,933.2 1.804.3
Cross-CUITENGCY SWADS v ovv v ireeracerttiinivens 5,624.8 12,976.3 4,252.1 23,053.2 1,321.6
Currency options bought ....................... 7.208.4 161.3 — 7.369.7 829
Currency options sold ... ........ ... ... ... 9,365 5 151.3 —_ 9.516.8 —

Other foreign exchange contracts .. ............. — — — - -

Exchange-traded products:

Currency futures ... .. ... - —_ — — —
Options on currency futures .......... .. Piiieas — — — — —
Total B .o e 1585,300.9 17,300.9 4,252.1 176,862.9 3.208.8

C. Securities-related transactions
OTG products:
Securities swaps ...........o i — — — et -

Stock options bought . ... oo 796.3 — — 796.3 12.0
Stock options soid .. ...l 611.8 — —_ 611.8 —
Other securities-related contracts ............... 3,807.2 112.0 — 3,919.2 16.4

Exchange-traded products:
Stock and other securities-price-related index

LU = 493.1 — — 493.1 -
Stock and other securities-price-related indax

OPHONS L e 1,186.4 —_ — 1,186.4 —
Total C ... ... ... ... 6,894 8 112.0 — 7.,006.8 28.4
Total A-C . ... e e 667,301.7 214,602.4 85,305.3 967,200.4 13,169.6
thereof: OTC products .. ....................... 656,228.4 214,602.4 85,305.3 956,136.1 13,169.6
thersef: exchange-traded products .............. 11,073.3 — — 11,073.3 —

Our derivatives activities are conducted for the purpose of risk management of our customers,
hedging our own risks, taking advantage of arbitrage opportunities as well as — in the Austrian money,
capital, futures and options markets — providing liquidity through our function as a market maker. The
extent of all these activities can be presented by a breakdown of the notional amounts by risk and
product categories and by the various maturity ranges. Notional amounts are used in the derivatives
sector as a basis of calculation without, however, giving a direct indication of the respective credit risk.
The credit risk is best represented by the current positive market value. The positive market value is the
amount we would expect to receive from the counterparty, on the basis of changes in market prices, if the
contract were terminated.
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To make these transactions more easily comparable with on-balance sheet business, we use the risk
categories defined in the Austrian Banking Act. The risk-weighted volume of all ouistanding financial
derivative transactions in accordance with Section 22 of the Banking Act, which is 1o be included in the
basis of calculation of the required capital resources, is ATS 3.6 billion (1394: ATS 2.7 billion) and the
capital resources required in this connection are ATS 287 million (1994: ATS 218 million).

The management of market risks has become a subject of public discussion over the past few vears.
The proposals put forward by the Group of Thirty, the International Organisation of Securities
Commissions (I0SCQ) and the Basle Committee on Banking Regulations and Supervisory Practices at
the Bank for International Settlements are gradually being developed into an international standard for
market risk measurement and market risk management. We are working on implementing these
standards in all units of the financial group where trading activities are concentrated. Qur money-at-risk
concept uses a variance-covariance approach based on historical time series. This risk measurement
approach is complemented by stress tests based on crises in the past.

in the future, the Austrian Banking Act will require banks to hold capital resources also 1o cover
interest rate risks and share price risks arising from trading activities, as well as exchange rate risks. An
amendment to this effect is stilt in the process of preparation, so that an exact calculation is not yet
possible. The future additional requirement on the basis of year-end positions is estimated at about
ATS 1.3 billion; the excess of capital resources over the required minimum is ATS 8.7 billion.

Details of the amounts of claims on (liabilities to) subsidiaries and related companies, whether or not
evidenced by certificates, which are contained in individual asset and liability items and are required to be
indicated under Section 45(3) of the Banking Act, are given in the table below.

Selected claims on/liabilities to subsidiaries and related companies

Amounts in ATS m Subsidiaries Other companies
a1 31 December 19957 ) Creditanstait CA Group Creditanstalt CA Group
Treasury bills and other bills eligible for refinancing

withcentralbanks ........ ... ... ... .. ... ...... — 2 —_ 294
Claims on credit institutions ..............cvvnet, 15,380 _ 5,009 8,178
Claimsoncustomers ............ouiiiiiien.... 35,386 24,379 2,068 32,435
Bonds and other fixed-income securities . ........... 66 — 10 57,497
Liabilities to credit institutions .. ...... .. iy, 6,128 — 1,768 14,887
Liabilities to customers . .. .......c.veveiiivennnnes 2,197 3,612 305 9,156
Liabilities evidenced by certificates ................ 2,298 — — 3,102
Subordinated liabilities. . .......... ... i, — — — 20,000

*) translated at the middie rate of exchange ruling in Vienna at the end of Daecember
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS OF CREDITANSTALT
AND OF THE CA GROUP FOR 1995 (Continued)

The statement of changes in balance sheet items of the CA Group below shows the sources of
finance of the CA Group and the application of these funds. The financing funds (source of funds} are
derived from a decrease in assets in the consclidated balance sheet (e.g. balances with the Austrian
Naticnal Bank) and an increase in items on the liabilities side of the consolidated balance sheet
(e.g. labilities to credit institutions or additions to capital resources) . The application of funds is reflected
gither in an increase in asset items {e.g. through increased lending) or in a decrease in liability items
(liabilities to customers, subordinated liabilities).

Statement of changes in balance sheet items in 1995 (CA Group)

Source of funds Appiieation of funds

ATS m % ATS m %
ASSETS
Increase in assets
Treasury bills and other bills ... ... ... ... .. ..... 3,184 6.3%
Claims on credit institutions . ... ... ... .. ... ....... 17,408 34.2%
Claims ON CUSIOMEIS . . ..ot e e 12,420 24.4%
Investments in subsidiaries and related companies. .. .. 1,500 2.9%
Tangible and intangible fixed assets ... .............. 22 0.1%
Decrease in assets
Cash, balances with the Austrian National Bank ....... 2,601 5.1%
Bonds and other fixed-income securities. ............. 1,953 3.8%
Shares and other variable-yield securities .. ........... 191 0.4%
Other @88618 .ot i e 235 0.5%
Changeinassets. ... . ... ... ... .. ... . .......... 4,980 Q8% 34534 67.9%
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Increase in liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Liabilities to credit institutions ......... ... ... .. ..... 38.657 76.0%
Liabilities evidenced by certificates .. ................ 6,511 12.8%
Provisions ..... R 38 01%
Shareholders’ equity ....... ... . i 644 1.3%
Decrease in liabilities and shareholders' equity
Liabilities to cuStOmMers .o vvvin i i e 13,202 26.0%
Subordinated liabilities ........ .0 i e e 830 1.6%
Supplementary capital .. ... ... o 87 0.2%
Other liabilities ..o e 2177 4.3%
Change in liabilities and shareholders’ equity .. . . .. 45,850 20.2% 16,296 321%
Total source/application of funds . ................... 50,830 100.0% 50,830 100.0%

The movement in untaxed reserves (allocation/release) in the 1895 annual accounts of
Creditanstalt has no effect on the taxes on income for the business year.

IV. Details concerning employees, Managing Board and Supervisory Board
a} Employees

The average total number of staff employéd by fully consolidated companies within the Group was
8,617 (1994: 9,141), within Creditanstalt 7,137 (1894: 7,148).

C-23




NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS OF CREDITANSTALT
AND OF THE CA GROUP FOR 1995 (Continued)

b) Managing Board, Supervisory Board
Advances, loans and guarantees
Manacing Boarp

Advances and loans to members of the Managing Board totalled ATS 10,486,743 (1994
ATS 4,862,261). They were granted on terms and conditions applicable to the Bank’'s own employees
under the relevant rules contained in the Banking Act. The total amount includeg loans backed by normal
banking security, and advances against the persons’ remuneration. Repayments during the business
year totalled ATS 1,225,360 (1994: ATS 938,962}.

SUPERVISCRY BOARD

Advances and loans to members of the Supervisory Board totalled ATS 4,433,138 (1994;
ATS 6,721,678) and were granted on market terms and conditions. Advances and loans to Supervisory
Boarc members who are staff delegates were granted on terms and conditions applicable to the Bank's
own staff under the relevant rules contained in the Banking Act. The total amount includes loans backed
by normal banking security, and advances against the persens’ remuneration. Repayments during the
business year totalled ATS 586,476 (1994: ATS 918,986).

Emoluments of Managing Board, Supervisory Board and International Advisory Board members
Manacing Boarp

The emoluments of the Managing Board members in the business year totalled ATS 34,432,088
{1994 ATS 33,273,265). The emoluments for activities for subsidiaries amounted to ATS 809,000
(1994: ATS 430,500), all of which was paid for functions performed as members of supervisory boards
and boards of directors. Payments to former Managing Board members and their surviving dependants in
the business year totalled ATS 32,366,575 (1994: ATS 26,077,130), the increase on the previous year
being mainly attributable to the retirement of a member of the Managing Board. The emcluments received
by these persons for activities for subsidiaries amounted to ATS 72,000 (1994: ATS 55,000}, all of which
was paid for functions performed as members of supervisory boards and boards of directors.

SUPERVISORY BOARD

The emoluments of the Supervisory Board members in the business year totalled ATS 4,754,064
(1994: ATS 4,707,000). The emoluments for activities for subsidiaries amounted to ATS 98,000 (1994
ATS 160,000), all of which was paid for functions performed as members of supervisory boards and
boards of directors.

INTERNATIONAL ADVISORY BOARD

In 1995 the remuneration of the International Advisory Board members totalled ATS 821,780 (1994:
ATS 1,193,600).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS OF CREDITANSTALT
AND OF THE CA GROUP FOR 1995 (Continued)

Members of the Managing Board and of the Supervisory Board

In the business year the following persons were members of the Managing Board and of the
Supervisory Board:

Manacing Boarp
Guido Schmidt-Chiari {Chairman)
Max Kothbauer (Deputy Chairman)

Alarich Fenyves (from 15 September 1995)
Ottokarl Finsterwalder (until 11 July 1995)
Roman Fojtl

Klaus Peschek

Herbert Sallnar

Surervisory BoarD
Walter Fremuth (Chairman)

Carl Anton Goéss-Saurau
{1st Deputy Chairman)

Anton Heschgl (2nd Deputy Chairman)

Michael Frenzel

Karl Hollweger

Alfred Holoukek
Herwig Hutterer
Dietrich Karner

Karl Kehrer

Paul Locbenstein
Kurt Mészaros

Peter Mitterbauer
Werner Muhm

Franz Rauch

Hans Dietmar Schweisgut
Johannes Strohmayer

Staff delegates:

Franz Brandweiner
Peter Burger

Martin Guttmann
Michael-Karl Jand|
Karl Kainzner
Emmerich Perl
Johann Prossinger
Emmerich Rudavsky
Johannes Trojan
Helmut Wasser
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS OF CREDITANSTALT
AND OF THE CA GROUP FOR 1995 (Continued)

c) Expenses for severance compensation and pensions

Expenses for severance compensation and pensions are included in the profit and loss account
items ‘'wages and salarics’, “expenses for retirement benefits”, "allocation to the provision for
1 13

pensions’', “allocation to the provision for severance compensation” and, as far as the pro-rata additional
allocation is concerned, "“extraordinary expenses'’.

Expenses for severance compensation and pensions for Managing Board members and managers of
Creditanstalt in accordance with Section 80(1) of the Companies Act fotalled ATS 109.5 million (1994:
ATS 85.8 million). The managers within the meaning of Section 80(1) of the Companies Act include the
heads of the Vienna Management units and Regional Management units, the managers of the branches in
London, New York and Hong Kong, as well as their deputies.

Expenses for severance compensation and pensions for other employees of Creditanstalt totalled
ATS 851.9 million (1994: ATS 759.0 million}.

The amounts indicated include expenses for surviving dependants.

V. Notes to the profit and loss account of the CA Group and of Creditanstalt.

Analyses of the major income items of the CA Group and of Creditanstalt by geographical segments
are given below.

Analysis of income by geographical segments under Section 64 (1) no. 9
of the Banking Act {CA Group)

Income from Qperating income
securities and (exel. interast
mvestments in expenses and

subsidiarias Fas and Net profit on Other fee and

Interest and related commission trading operating commiasion
Amounts in ATS m at 31 Dacembar®) income eompanies income activities income gapanses)

1985 1994 1995 1994 1995 1994 1985 1994 1995 1994 1985 1984

AUSIHA ..o 31,433 29,961 1,644 1376 4,197 4536 1343 1263 564 835 39,381 37,901
Central European emerging markets 1) .... 1,697 936 48 20 351 122 142 {18 17— 2185 1,186
European Union ......................... 3072 2758 1 3 a2 45 174 (47) 80 35 3369 2794
USA 3344 3233 a0 2 118 (3) 4 22 61 373 3506
FarBast2) . .oooviiniiiiii e, 524 438 — — A 35 i 2 58 a8 614 511
Restoftheworld ........................ 21 44 - = _1_2 = _=.1_1 23 47
Total oo 40,031 37368 2930 1480 4717 4858 18667 1330 742 070 48377 46,015

*} translated at the middle rate of exchange ruling in Vienna at the end of December
1) Czech Republic, Poland, Siovakia, Slovenia, Hungary, Romania, Croatia, Bulgaria

2) India, Japan, China, etc.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS OF CREDITANSTALT
AND OF THE CA GROUP FOR 1995 (Continued)

Analysis of income by geographical segments under Section 64 (1) no. 9
of the Banking Act (Creditanstalt)

income from Operating income
saeuritias and {excl. interest
investments in expensas and
subsidiaries Fee and Net profit on Other fee and
Interest and related commission trading operating commission
Amounts in ATS m at 31 Decembear*) income companies income activities income expenses)
1995 1094 1095 1004 1905 1904 1905 4904 1905 1994 1995 1994
Austrie ... 30064 27,900 1,171 829 3724 3880 1327 1054 451 367 37,037 34,030
Buropean Unien ......................... 2895 2415 1 3 40 45 174 (26) 3 6 3113 2443
USA ... .. PR 2468 2408 — — 95 118 (3) 4 22 42 2582 2862
FarBast 1) ... i iennnnnn, 496 415 — — 31 34 1 2 33 27 561 476
TOMW@l 36473 33.229 1,172 832 3800 4077 1490 100 500 442 43403 30614

* ) translated at the middle rate of exchange ruling in Vienna at the end of December

1) India, Japan, China, etc.

In 1995, the CA Group’s cash flow — comprising the surplus for the year (after taxes), depreciation
and net allocations to staff-related provisions — rose by 16.3% to ATS 3.2 billion.

The basis of calculation of earnings per share, a key figure for shareholders, is the Group result as
datermined in accordance with the method used by OVFA, the Austrian Association of Financial Analysts.
For 1995, this figure (result of ordinary activities less income taxes and minority interests) was
ATS 2,297.4 million for the CA Group. On the basis of the nominal capital of ATS 4,443.0 million, this
resutt gives earnings per share of ATS 51.7 (up from ATS 44.6 in 1994 and ATS 41.7 in 1993).

The item Income from securities and investments in subsidiaries and related companies in the
consolidated accounts of the CA Group contains income from profit-pooling arrangements in the amount
Of ATS 81.4 milion (1994: ATS 66.3 million} and income of ATS 204.8 million (1994: ATS 82.8 million)
from other subeidiaries not accounted for under the equity method. In the annual accounts of
Creditanstalt, the item Income from securities and investments in subsidiaries and related companies
contains incoma from profit-pooling arrangements in the amount of ATS 81.4 milion (1994: ATS 66.3
million) and income of ATS 765.9 million (1994: ATS 370.2 million) from other subsidiaries. Subsidiaries
are those companies in which the CA Group of Creditanstalt has a controlling interest.

In the profit and loss account of both the CA Group and Creditanstalt, the item Net income from the
valuation and sale of investments in subsidiaries and related companies contains net income of ATS 91.0
miliion (1994: ATS 475.8 million) from subsidiaries.

The CA Group’s operating result for 1995 reached about ATS 6.1 billion {1994: ATS 5.7 billion) . Thig
increase was higher than that for Creditanstalt, one of the contributing factors being the favourable trend
in the CA Group's holdings outside the financial services sector.

The increase in net expenses shown under item 11/12 (sale and valuation of loans and securities )
is mainly attributable to domestic business and is largely offset by the decrease in net expenses shown
under item 13/14 (sale and valuation of bonds and notes valued as financial fixed assets and of
investments in subsidiaries and related companies).

After deduction of minority interests, the CA Group’s consolidated surplus for the year was ATS 2.2
billion (1994: ATS 1.8 billion), exceeding Creditanstalt's surplus for the year by about ATS 1.1 billion.

C-27




No dealer, salesperson or other person has
been authorized to give any information or to
make any representations in connection with
the offer made hereby except as contained in
this Offering Memorandum and, if given or
made, no such information or representation
should be relied upon as having been
authorized by the Bank, the Initial Purchasers
or any of their respective agents. Neither the
delivery of this Offering Memorandum nor any
sale made hereunder shall, under any
circumstances, create any implication that
there has been no change in the information
set forth herein or in the affairs of the Bank
since the date hereof. This Offering
Memorandum does not constitute an offer to
sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy the
Notes by anyone in any jurisdiction in which
such offer or solicitation is not authorized or
in which the person making such offer or
solicitation is not qualified to do so or to any
person to whom it is unlawful to make such
ofter or solicitation.
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